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July 14, 2025

To

General Manager

Department of Corporate Service
BSE Ltd

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400001
Scrip Code: 543766

Dear Sir/Ma’am,

Sub: Notice of the Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of Ashika Credit Capital Limited being convened as per the directions provided in the Order of the Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (‘NCLT’) in the matter of the Scheme of Amalgamation of Yaduka Financial Services Limited (Transferor Company)

with and into Ashika Credit Capital Limited (Transferee Company) and their respective shareholders and creditors.

In terms of Regulation 30 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015, as amended (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), and in continuation of
our intimation dated June 26, 2025 and July 4, 2025,we hereby wish to inform that pursuant to the directions issued by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata
Bench ("Tribunal") vide its order dated June 25, 2025 read with Corrigendum Order dated June 27, 2025 ("Tribunal Order"), a meeting of Equity Shareholders of Ashika Credit
Capital Limited (“the Company”) is scheduled to be held on Saturday, August 16, 2025 at 01:00 P.M. IST("Meeting") through Video Conferencing ("VC") / Other Audio Visual
Means ("OAVM") to consider, and if thought fit, to approve the Scheme of Amalgamation of Yaduka Financial Services Limited (Transferor Company) with and into Ashika
Credit Capital Limited (Transferee Company) and their respective shareholders and creditors pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 - 232 of the Companies Act, 2013
("Companies Act") and other applicable provisions thereof and applicable rules thereunder.

In this regard, we enclose herewith the Notice, Explanatory Statement under Sections230(3), 232(1) and (2) and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 6 of
theCompanies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and theAnnexures to the Explanatory Statement (“Notice”).A copy of this Notice is also placed
on the website of the Company viz. www.ashikagroup.com at https://assets.ashikagroup.com/Notice-of-NCLT-Convened-Meeting-of-Equity-Shareholders.pdf and will also be
available on the websites of the Stock Exchanges where Equity Shares of the Company are listed, i.e. at www.bseindia.com and on the website of NSDL at

www.evoting.nsdl.com

The Notice of the Meeting along with the Explanatory Statement and other relevant Annexures has been sent today, i.e. Monday, July 14, 2025, to all shareholders through
registered post or speed post or courier or e-mails (whose e-mail IDs are registered with the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent / Depository Participant(s) /
Depositories).

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 and 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time
to time, Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Secretarial Standards-2 on General Meeting, SEBI circulars, MCA circulars; the Members are provided with the facility
to cast their vote electronically, through the e-voting services provided by NSDL, on the resolutions set forth in this Notice. The facility of casting votes by a member using
remote e-voting system before the Meeting as well as e-voting during the meeting will be provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).

The schedule of the NCLT Convened Meeting is set out below:

Event Event Details

Date and time of NCLT convened meeting Saturday, August 16, 2025 at 1:00 p.m. IST

Mode Video Conference (VC)/Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM)
Cut-off date for e-voting Saturday, August 9, 2025

E-voting start date and time Tuesday, August 12, 2025 at 9:00 a.m. IST

E-voting end date and time Friday, August 15, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. IST

We request to kindly upload the Notice on the website of the SEBI and acknowledge the receipt of the same.
The above is for your information and records.

Thanking you,
Yours truly,

for, Ashika Credit Capital Limited

Digitally signed by ANJU

ANJU MUNDHRA munorira

Date: 2025.07.14 19:38:50 +05'30"
(Anju Mundhra)
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
F6686

Encl: As Enclosed

www.ashikagroup.com

Growing and Sharing with you



& ashika

ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED
CIN: L67120WB1994PLC062159
Registered Office: Trinity, 226/1, A.J.C.Bose Road, 7" Floor, Kolkata 700020

Phone: +91 33 40102500, Email: investorservices@ashikagroup.com/secretarial@ashikagroup.com;
Website :www.ashikagroup.com

NOTICE CONVENING THE MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF ASHIKA CREDIT
CAPITAL LIMITED (“TRANSFEREE COMPANY” or “COMPANY” or “APPLICANT NO 2”) PURSUANT
TO THE ORDER DATED 25"JUNE, 2025, READ WITH CORRIGENDUM ORDER DATED 27"JUNE,
20250F THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, KOLKATA BENCH

MEETING DETAILS

Day Saturday

Date August 16, 2025

Time 01:00 P.M.

Mode of Meeting Through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio-
Visual Means (OAVM)

Deemed Venue (Registered Office) Trinity, 226/1, AJC Bose Road, 7" Floor, Kolkata -
700020,

Cut-off date for determining eligible Friday, July 11, 2025

shareholders for sending notice

Cut-off date for e-voting Saturday, August 9, 2025

Remote e-voting start day, date and time Tuesday, August 12, 2025 at 9.00 a.m. (IST)

Remote e-voting end day, date and time Friday, August 15, 2025 at 5.00 p.m. (IST)

E-Voting E- Voting Facility shall be available to the Equity
Shareholders during the meeting

Pursuant to the Observation Letter issued by BSE Limited on 09.05.2025, the shareholding pattern
of the Promoter/Promoter Group & Public Shareholder pre and post implementation of the Scheme
is presented in a tabular form herein under:

Category Pre - Scheme | Post -  Scheme | Change (%)
Shareholding (%) Shareholding (%)

Promoter/Promoter 48.59 55.75 7.16

Group

Public Shareholders 5141 44.25 (7.16)

Note: The aforesaid calculation i.e. changes in shareholding pre and post scheme is calculated on fully
diluted basis.

Shareholders may note that the implementation of scheme shall result in increase in shareholding
of Promoter/Promoter Group from 48.59 % to 55.75%.The change in the shareholding pattern of the
Promoter and Promoter Group is attributable to their majority ownership in the Transferor
Company, which, upon implementation of the Scheme, results in an increased holding in the
Transferee Company.Shareholders are informed that approval of the present Scheme of
Amalgamation will also be deemed as their consent to an increase in the shareholding of the
Promoters and Promoter Group, consequent to the implementation of the Scheme. Accordingly,
investors are encouraged to carefully review all documents related to the Scheme prior to
exercising their voting rights. An explanation with respect to change in shareholding and impact
thereon upon the public shareholder along with other details as required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Observation Letter issued by BSE Limited on 09.05.2025 is detailed in Clause No 12.(i) of
Point (XV) of the Explanatory Statement annexed to this Notice.
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1. | Notice of NCLT Convened Meeting of Equity Shareholders of ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL 4-16
LIMITED for approval of the Scheme of Amalgamation of YADUKA FINANCIAL
SERVICES LIMITED (“Transferor Company” or “Yaduka” ) with and into ASHIKA CREDIT
CAPITAL LIMITED (“Transferee Company” or “ Ashika” ) from the Appointed Date 1st
October, 2024 under the provisions of sections 230-232 of the companies Act, 2013 read
with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016
(“Notice”).

2. | Explanatory Statement under Section 230(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 17-49
Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

3. | Annexure - 1 50-63
Copy of Order dated 25" June, 2025 read with corrigendum order dated 27" June, 2025
passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench in Company
Application C.A.(CAA) NO. 153/KB/2025

4. | Annexure - 2 64 - 94
Scheme of Amalgamation of Yaduka Financial Services Limited with and into Ashika Credit
Capital Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”).

5. | Annexure - 3 95-115
Valuation Report dated July 31, 2024 issued by CA Vidhi Chandak, an Independent
Registered Valuer (Registration No. I1BBI/RV/06/2019/11186)

6. | Annexure -4 116 - 126
Fairness opinion dated July 31, 2024 issued by VC Corporate Advisors Private Limited, an
Independent Merchant Banker (SEBI Registration No. INM000011096)

7. | Annexure -5 127-135
Reports adopted by the Board of Directors of both the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company at their respective meetings held on July 31, 2024 pursuant to
Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act 2013.

8. | Annexure - 6 136 - 137
Complaints Report submitted by the Transferee Company to BSE Limited

9. | Annexure - 7 138- 141
Observation letter dated May 09, 2025 issued by BSE Limited to the Transferee company
conveying their no adverse observations to the Scheme.

10, Annexure - 8 142 - 153
Information pertaining to the Transferor Company in the format specified for abridged
prospectus as provided in Part E of Schedule VI of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018

11| Annexure -9 154 - 174
Shareholding pattern of the Transferor Company (pre-Scheme) and the
Transferee Company (pre-Scheme and post-Scheme) for equity shares as on June 30,

2025.

12| Annexure - 10
Details of material ongoing adjudication & recovery proceedings, prosecutions initiated and |~ 17°-175
all other material enforcement action taken against the company, its promoters and
directors.
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13. | Annexure - 11 176 - 182
Details of assets, liabilities, net worth and revenue of the companies involved, pre and
post scheme, including value of assets and liabilities of Transferor Company that are
being transferred to Transferee Company as on 30" September, 2024 certified by the
Chartered Accountant.

14. | Annexure - 12 183 - 187
Certificate from the Statutory Auditor of the Company to the effect that the accounting
treatment proposed in the Scheme is in conformity with the Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

15. | Annexure - 13 188 - 254
The Audited Financial Statement of the Transferee Company for the Financial Year
ended 31st March, 2025

16. | Annexure - 14 255 - 283
The Audited Financial Statement of the Transferor Company for the Financial Year
ended 31st March, 2025

17. | Annexure - 15 284 - 290
Details of shareholders pursuant to preferential issues of equity shares and warrants of
the transferee company.

18. | Annexure - 16 291 - 292
The share capital built-up for the Transferor Company.

The Notice of the Meeting, explanatory Statement and Annexure 1 to Annexurel6 constitute a single and complete
set of documents and should be read in conjunction with each other as they form an integral part of this document.

Dated this 5" Day of July,2025
Place:Kolkata

Sd/-

Rahul Parasrampuria

Chairperson appointed for the Meeting
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FORM CAA 2
(Pursuant to Section 230(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 and 7 of the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements & Amalgamations) Rules, 2016)

BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
KOLKATA BENCH
CA (CAA) NO.153/KB/2025

In the matter of:
The Companies Act, 2013;

AND

In the matter of:

An application under sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act,
2013 read withCompanies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamation) Rules, 2016and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013;

AND

In the Matter of:
1. YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED, a company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
(CIN: U51109WB2007PLC117012) and having its Registered
Office at 16/1A, Abdul Hamid Street, 2nd Floor, Room NO - 2B,
previously known as British India Street, Kolkata, 700069 in the
State of West Bengal, India

..... Transferor Company / Applicant Company No. 1.

2. ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED, a company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
(CIN: L67120WB1994PLC062159) and having its Registered
Office at 226/1 A. J. C. Bose Road, “Trinity”, 7"Floor, Kolkata,
700020 in the State of West Bengal, India

....... Transferee Company / Applicant Company No. 2.

AND

In the matter of:
1. ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED;

.......... Transferee Company / Applicant Company No. 2

NOTICE CONVENING MEETING
OF
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
OF
ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED ~-TRANSFEREE COMPANY

To,
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED

Notice is hereby given that the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench by an order dated 25
June, 2025 (“Order”) read with corrigendum order dated 27 June, 2025 in the matter of Company Application
C.A.(CAA) NO 153/KB/2025 has directed for convening a meeting of Equity shareholders of ASHIKA CREDIT
CAPITAL LIMITED for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving with or without modification(s), the
proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (Transferor Company) with
and into ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED (Transferee Company ) from the Appointed Date, i.e. 01st
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October,2024 under the provisions of sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

In pursuance of the said order and as directed therein, notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Equity
Shareholders of ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED will be held on Saturday, August 16, 2025, at 01:00 P.M
through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means (“VC’/ “OAVM”) (“Meeting”) in compliance with the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, and in terms of General Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, General Circular No.17/2020
dated April 13, 2020, General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, General Circular No. 02/2021 dated January
13, 2021, General Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, General Circular No. 2/2022 dated May 5, 2022,
General Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022, General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023,
General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, as amended
from time to time, pursuant to provisions of Section 230; Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016; Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof); Regulation 44 and other applicable provisions of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing
Regulations); Secretarial Standard — 2 on General Meetings, Master Circular bearing number SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-
2/PICIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023 (SEBI Master Circular) and any other circular issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI); and in accordance with the Order passed by the NCLT Kolkata Bench. In the said
meeting the following business will be transacted:

At the Meeting, the following resolution will be considered and if thought fit, with or without modification
be passed under section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with the
requisite majority:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and
related circulars and notifications thereto as applicable under the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modification or re-enactment or amendment thereof), Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with applicable circulars issued by SEBI from time to time, the
Observation Letter issued by BSE Limited and subject to the relevant provisions of any other applicable laws and the
clauses of the Memorandum and Avrticles of Association of ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED and subject to the
approval of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (“NCLT”) and subject to such other
consents, approvals, permissions and sanctions being obtained from appropriate authorities to the extent applicable
or necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by NCLT or by any
regulatory or other authorities, while granting such consents, approvals, permissions and sanctions, which may be
agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board”, which term shall be
deemed to mean and include one or more Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board or any person(s)
which the Board may nominate to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this resolution), the Scheme
of Amalgamation of YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (Transferor Company) with and into ASHIKA
CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED (Transferee Company)and its shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”), as enclosed with
the Notice of the NCLT convened Meeting of the Equity Shareholders, be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board, (hereinafter referred to as “the Board”, which term shall be deemed to
mean and include one or more Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board or any person(s) which the
Board may nominate to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this resolution) be and are hereby
authorized to perform and execute and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its absolute
discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution and effectively
implement the arrangements embodied in the Scheme of Amalgamation and to accept such modifications,
amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, at any time and for any reason whatsoever, which may be
required and/or imposed by the NCLT and/or any other authority(ies) while sanctioning the Scheme of
Amalgamation or by any authority(ies) under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any doubts or
difficulties that may arise including passing of such accounting entries and/or making such adjustments in the
books of accounts as considered necessary in giving effect to the Scheme of Amalgamation, as the Board of the
Transferee Company may deem fit and proper without being required to seek any further approval of the equity
shareholders of ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED or otherwise to the end and intent that the equity
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shareholders of ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto
expressly by the authority under this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board may delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to any Director(s)
and/or officer(s) of the Company to give effect to these Resolutions, if required, as it may in its absolute discretion

deem fit, necessary or desirable, without any further approval from the shareholders of the company.”

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in compliance with the NCLT Order and the provisions of clause (a) to Section
230(4) read with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under; (b) Regulation 44 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and (c) Secretarial Standards — 2
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED has provided the
facility of voting by remote e-voting (“Remote e-voting”) as well as electronic voting system (“e-voting”) during the
Meeting, so as to enable the equity shareholders to consider and approve the Scheme of Amalgamation by way of
the aforesaid resolution. Accordingly, voting by equity shareholders of ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED to the
Scheme of Amalgamation shall be carried out through (i) remote e-voting and

Remote e-voting start day, date and time Tuesday, August 12, 2025 at 9.00 a.m. (IST)
Remote e-voting end day, date and time Friday, August 15, 2025 at 5.00 p.m. (IST)

(ii) e-voting during the Meeting to be held on Saturday, August 16, 2025.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”)shall be providing the facility of
remote e-voting and e-voting during the Meeting, and participation in the Meeting through VC/ OAVM.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the facility of remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL after 5 P.M. on
August, 15, 2025. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up share capital
of the ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED as on Saturday, August 9, 2025 being the cut-off date (“Cut-off
Date”). The equity shareholders opting to cast their votes by Remote e-voting or e-voting during the Meeting are
requested to read the instructions in the Notes below carefully. Only registered equity shareholders, whose names
are recorded in the Register of Members maintained by the company/Registrar and Transfer Agents (“RTA”) or in
the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the depositories as on the Cut-off Date shall be entitled to
exercise their voting rights on the resolution proposed in the Notice and attend the Meeting.

It is clarified that votes may be cast by the equity shareholders by remote e-voting in terms of this Notice and
casting of votes by remote e-voting does not disentitle them or their authorized representatives from attending the
Meeting. However, the members or their authorized representatives who have cast their votes by remote e-voting
will not be eligible to cast their votes by e-voting during the Meeting.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that since the physical attendance of members has been dispensed with in pursuance
to NCLT Order, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of appointment of
proxies by members under Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 will not be available for the Meeting and
hence, the Proxy Form, Route map and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

However, in pursuance of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, Corporate / institutional Shareholders (i.e.
other than Individuals, HUFs, NRIs, etc.) are also required to send legible scanned certified true copy (in PDF
Format) of the board resolution / power of attorney/ authority letter, etc., together with attested specimen
signature(s) of the duly authorised representative(s), by email to the company at secretarial@ashikagroup.com

and to the Scrutinizer at bidisha.a2704@gmail.com.

In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the aforesaid Notice, the explanatory statement and the
Annexures (including the Scheme) as indicated in the index, are being sent to all the Equity Shareholders whose
names appear in the register of members/ list of beneficial owners as on July 11, 2025.

The Cut-off date for determining the eligibility of Equity Shareholders to vote and attend the Meeting shall be
Saturday, August 9, 2025 (“Cut-off date”). The votes cast by the said Equity Shareholders shall be reckoned
with reference to such Cut-off date.
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A copy of the Scheme, the Explanatory Statement under Sections 230, 232 and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, along with the
enclosures as indicated in the Index, are enclosed herewith. A copy of this Notice and the accompanying documents
will be placed on the website of the Company viz. www.ashikagroup.com and will also be available on the websites
of the Stock Exchanges where Equity Shares of the Company are listed, i.e. at www.bseindia.com and on the
website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com.Copies of this Notice which include Scheme of Amalgamation and
Explanatory Statement and other documents under Section 102, 230 and, 232 and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
can be obtained free of charge from the Registered Office of the Company at 226/1A.J.C. Bose Road Trinity 7th
Floor, Kolkata, West Bengal, India,700020 in the State of West Bengal, on all working days except Holidays,
Saturdays and Sundays, between 11.00 AM to 1.00 PM, up to the date of Meeting, on a requisition being so made
by the equity shareholders along with details of your shareholding in the company, by sending an email request on

secretarial@ashikagroup.com.

The Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench has appointed Mr. Rahul Parasrampuria, Advocate as Chairperson for the
said meeting including any adjournment thereof.

The Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench has appointed Ms Bidisha Achari, Practicing Company Secretary (Email id
- Bidisha.a2704@gmail.com) as the scrutinizer for the said meeting including any adjournment thereof.

The observations of the BSE Limited as mentioned in Serial No. 9 (Annexure 7)of the Index is to be read in
conjunction with the notice and explanatory statement forming part of it.

The Scheme of Amalgamation, if approved at the Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval of the NCLT
and any other approvals as may be required. The voting results of the meeting shall be announced by the
Chairperson not later than two working days from the conclusion of the Meeting upon receipt of Scrutinizer's report
and the same shall be displayed on the website of the Company www.ashikagroup.comand will also be available
on the website of the Stock Exchange where Equity Shares of the Company are listed, i.e. at www.bseindia.com,
and on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com., being the agency appointed by the Company to provide the
voting facility to the shareholders, as aforesaid, as well as on the notice board of the Transferee Company at its
Registered Office.In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Act read along with SEBI Scheme
Circular, the Scheme shall be acted upon only if majority in persons representing three fourths in value of the
equity share capital of the Company, voting through remote e-voting or by e-voting system agree to the Scheme
and the votes cast by the Public Shareholders in favour of the Scheme are more than the number of votes cast by
the Public Shareholders against it.

Dated this 5" Day of July,2025
Place: Kolkata SD/-
Rahul Parasrampuria
Chairperson appointed for the Meeting

NOTES:

Pursuant to MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, and in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with the NCLT Order, this
Meeting is being held by VC/ OAVM without physical presence of the shareholders at a common venue, as per
applicable procedures mentioned in the MCA Circulars, for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving,
the Scheme of Amalgamation under the provisions of sections 230 to 232 and of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made there under.

Since the Meeting is being held through VC/OAVM, the deemed venue for the Meeting shall be the registered
office of the Company.

The Statement pursuant to Sections 102, 230 to 232 of the Act read with other applicable provisions of the Act and
Rule 6 of CAA Rules read with SEBI Listing Regulations, SEBI Scheme Circulars and applicable circulars issued
by SEBI in respect of the business set out in the Notice of the Meeting is annexed to this notice. Further, additional
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10.

11.

12.

information as required under the SEBI Scheme Circulars and the observation letters of BSE Limited dated May
09, 2025 respectively are also annexed to this Statement.

The Notice convening the Meeting will be published through advertisement in the ‘Financial Express’ (All India
Edition) in English language and ‘AAJKAL’ in the Bengali language, having circulation in the State of West Bengal,
indicating, inter alia, the day, date and time of the Meeting.

Shareholders are informed that in case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder whose name
stands first in the Register of Members of the Transferee Company/ list of Beneficial Owners as received from
Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited - Registrar and Transfer Agent (“RTA”) in respect of such joint holding will
be entitled to vote.

The Shareholders can join the Meeting in the VC/ OAVM mode 30 minutes before the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned herein below. The facility of participation at
the Meeting through VC/ OAVM will be made available for 1,000 Shareholders on first come first serve’ basis. This
will not include large Shareholders (i.e. Shareholders holding 2% or more), Promoters, Institutional Investors,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the Meeting without
restriction on account of ‘first come first serve’ basis.

Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of the shares registered in the names of equity shareholders
as on Saturday, August 9, 2025. Persons who are not equity shareholders of the Transferee Company as on the
cut-off date i.e. Saturday, August 9, 2025 should treat this notice for information purposes only. Any person who
becomes a shareholder of the Transferee Company after dispatch of this Notice and whose names appear in the
records of the Transferee Company as on the cut-off date for e-voting may cast his vote by following the
instructions of remote e-voting and e-voting during the Meeting provided in this Notice.

Attendance of the Members participating in the meeting through VC/ OAVM facility using their login credentials
shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. Further, the Order also
directs that in case the required quorum for the Meeting is not present at the commencement of the Meeting, then
the Meeting shall be adjourned by 30 (thirty) minutes and thereafter, the persons present shall be deemed to
constitute the quorum.

The voting period for remote e-voting (prior to the Meeting) shall commence on and from Tuesday, August 12,
2025 at 9.00 a.m. (IST) and shall end on Friday, August 15, 2025 at 5.00 p.m. (IST). The remote e-voting module
shall be disabled by NSDL thereafter. The Company is additionally providing the facility of e-voting during the
Meeting.

The e-voting facility will also be made available during the Meeting to enable the equity shareholders who have not
cast their vote through remote e-voting to exercise their voting rights. Once the vote on the Resolution is cast by
the Shareholder, the Shareholders shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Act read along with SEBI Scheme Circular, the
Scheme shall be acted upon only if majority in persons representing three fourths in value of the equity share
capital of the Company, voting through remote e-voting or by e-voting system agree to the Scheme and the votes
cast by the Public Shareholders in favour of the Scheme are more than the number of votes cast by the Public
Shareholders against it.

The Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench has appointed Ms Bidisha Achari, Practicing Company Secretary (Email id -
Bidisha.a2704@gmail.com)as scrutinizer for the said meeting including any adjournment thereof to scrutinize the
votes cast through voting by remote e-voting and e-voting during the Meeting.
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

The relevant documents referred in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement are open for inspection by the
shareholders, basis the request being send from the registered email on secretarial@ashikagroup.com, physically
at the Registered Office of the Transferee Company on all working days, except Holidays, Saturdays and Sundays,
between 11:00 A.M. IST and 1:00 P.M. IST upto the date of the Meeting.

Pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder, (including any statutory
modification(s), clarification(s), exemption(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and in
compliance with the NCLT Order, Notice of the Meeting, and the accompanying documents mentioned in the index,
is being sent to all the shareholders of the Company as on the Cut-off Date, for sending notice i.e .Friday, July 11,
2025, through registered post or speed post or courier or e-mails (whose e-mail IDs are registered with the
Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent / Depository Participant(s) / Depositories.). The Company would
send a physical copy of the notice of general meeting and explanatory statement along with the accompanying
documents to those Shareholders who would request the same at secretarial@ashikagroup.com mentioning their
respective Folio No. / DP ID and Client ID. Shareholders may note that these documents will also be available on
the Company’s website www.ashikagroup.com, websites of the Stock Exchanges at www.bseindia.com, and on the
website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Members who have not registered their email IDs so far are requested to register their email IDs at the earliest.
Members holding shares in dematerialised form, are requested to register their e-mail addresses with their
respective Depository Participants, and Members holding shares in physical form are requested to update their e-
mail addresses with Company’s R&T Agent, Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited, in Form ISR-1 available at
the website of the Company at https://www.ashikagroup.com/accl/investor-relations-

files.html?asset_category=Shareholder+Desk&asset sub_category=Simplified+Norms+Physical+Shareholder or at
the website of RTA at https:/mdpl.in/formfor receiving all communication from the Company electronically and also

who wish to receive the notice and the explanatory statement together with the accompanying documents or attend
the meeting or cast their vote through remote e-voting or by e-voting at the meeting.

The scrutinizer appointed by the Hon'ble Tribunal shall within 2 working days from the end of the meeting shall
forward her report to the Chairperson appointed by the Hon’ble Tribunal who shall declare the result of the same.

The Chairperson appointed by this Bench will file his report on the meeting as directed herein above in Form No
CAA 4 within seven days from the conclusion of the meeting duly affirmed by his affidavit.

The Explanatory Statement setting out the material facts and reasons, in respect of this Notice, is annexed
herewith and the same should be taken as part of this Notice. The Meeting will be conducted in compliance with
the applicable provisions of the NCLT Order, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the Companies Act, the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“SS-2") and other applicable laws.

E-VOTING ON RESOLUTION :

The Transferee Company has made arrangements for E-voting on the resolution proposed in the notice. It
has engaged NSDL for providing platform for E-voting. The E -voting instructions as provided by the NSDL
are as below. Shareholders of the Transferee Company are requested to read the instructions carefully as
set out herein and in particular instruction for joining the meeting and manner of casting vote through
remote e-voting prior to the meeting or e-voting during the meeting.

THE E-VOTING INSTRUCTION AS RECEIVED FROM NSDL:
THE PROCESS AND MANNER FOR MEMBERS OPTING FOR VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS ARE
AS UNDER:

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 and 22 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, Secretarial Standards-2 on General Meeting, SEBI circulars, MCA circulars; the Members are
provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, through the e-voting services provided by NSDL, on all
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the resolutions set forth in this Notice. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting system
before the Meeting as well as e-voting during the meeting will be provided by NSDL.

The remote e-voting period commences on Tuesday, August 12, 2025 at 9.00 a.m. (IST) and shall end on
Friday, August 15, 2025 at 5.00 p.m. (IST). The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting
thereafter. A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners
maintained by the depositories as on Saturday, August 9, 2025 (‘cut-off date’) shall be entitled to cast their vote
electronically .Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently or cast the vote again. The facility for voting through electronic voting system shall also be made
available at the meeting.

Equity shareholders will be provided with the facility for voting through electronic voting system during the
VC/OAVM proceedings at the Meeting and equity shareholders participating at the Meeting, who have not
already cast their vote on the Resolution by remote e-Voting prior to the Meeting will be eligible to exercise their
right to vote on the Resolution upon announcement by the Chairperson. Equity shareholders who have cast their
vote on the Resolution by remote e-Voting prior to the Meeting will also be eligible to participate at the Meeting
through VC/OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote on the Resolution again. The remote e-Voting
module on the day of the Meeting shall be disabled by NSDL for voting, 15 (fifteen) minutes after the conclusion
of the Meeting.

Equity shareholders of the Transferee Company holding equity shares either in physical form or in demat form as
on the Cut-off Date of Saturday, August 9, 2025 may cast their vote by remote e-Voting. A person who is not an
equity shareholder as on the Cut-off Date should treat this Notice for information purpose only. A person, whose
name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the
Depositories as on the Cut-off Date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-Voting before the
Meeting as well as e-Voting during the Meeting.

Any shareholder, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after dispatch of
the Notice of meeting and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. Saturday, August 9, 2025, may cast their
votes electronically through remote e-voting by obtaining the login ID and password by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.com. However, if a person is already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then the equity
shareholder can use their existing user ID and password for casting their vote. If the equity shareholder has
forgotten their password, the equity shareholder can reset the password by using “Forgot User Details/Password”
or “ Physical user reset password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or by calling on 022 - 4886 7000
and 022 - 2499 7000. In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode and who acquires
shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares
as of the cut-off date may follow steps mentioned in the Notice under Step 1: “Access to NSDL e-Voting
system”.

As directed by the Hon’ble Tribunal, Ms Bidisha Achari, Practicing Company Secretary, shall act as scrutinizer to
scrutinize the remote e-voting process (prior to and during the Meeting), in a fair and transparent manner.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING (BEFORE AND DURING THE MEETING)
AND JOINING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, August 12, 2025 at 9.00 a.m. (IST) and shall end on
Friday, August 15, 2025 at 5.00 p.m. (IST). The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for
voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as
on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. August 9, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of
shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as
on the cut-off date, being August 9, 2025.

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps”which are mentioned below:
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Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id
in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of
shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with
NSDL.

1. For OoTP based login you can click
on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to
enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and generate
OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email id/mobile number and click on
login. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

2. Existing IDeAS wuser can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-
Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is
available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID
and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting
services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name
or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

3. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReq.jsp

4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once
the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will
have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein
you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede”
facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.
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NSDL Mobile App is available on

" App Store ' Google Play

Individual 1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
Shareholders existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page
holding securities in without any further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to
demat mode with visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System
CDSL Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option
for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the information
provided by company. On clicking the e-voting option, the user will be able to see e-
Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally,
there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers,
so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL
website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then
click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com
home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered
Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication,
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the e-voting is in progress and
also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Shareholders Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in,
(holding securities you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
in demat mode) NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
login through their Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you
depository will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
participants Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual ~ Shareholders  holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
securities in demat mode with NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.comor call at 022 -
4886 7000
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Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
securities in demat mode with CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor
contact at toll free no. 1800-21-09911

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

as shown on the screen.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under

3. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using
your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

at

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL
or CDSL) or Physical

Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in demat
account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client
ID is 12%¥** then your user ID is
| NSOO***].Z******.

b) For Members who hold shares in demat
account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is
12xwkrkinkkak then  your user ID s

1 2 *kkkkkkkkkkkkk

¢) For Members holding shares in Physical
Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN
is 101456 then user ID is 101456001***

your vote.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password'?

your ‘initial password’.

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the
‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

(i) 1f your emalil ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your
mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password
to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL
account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID" and
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(i) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.
6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with
NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and
your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-
Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN" in which you are holding
shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and
casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM”
link placed under “Join Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for
which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation
page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature
of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, by email to the company at
secretarial@ashikagroup.com  andto  the  Scrutinizer to  Bidisha Achari (Email id -
Bidisha.a2704@gmail.com). Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also
upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board
Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

2. ltis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts
to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset
the password.
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3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-
voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.:
022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Mr. Pritam Dutta, Assistant Manager atpritamd@nsdl.com /

evoting@nsdl.com

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories/Company/RTA
for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out
in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self
attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card) by sending an email to Company’'s mail id at

secretarial@ashikagroup.com.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to

secretarial@ashikagroup.com.

If you are Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login
method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile
number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility

GENERAL INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS:

1. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on
the day of the Court Convened Meeting shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

2. The Hon'ble Tribunal has appointed Bidisha Achari, Practicing Company Secretary, as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the remote e-Voting process as well as e-Voting during the Meeting in a fair and transparent
manner.

3. The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the Meeting unblock the votes cast through
remote e-Voting (votes cast during the Meeting and votes cast prior to the Meeting) and make, not later than
2 (two) working days of conclusion of the Meeting, a consolidated scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in
favor or against, if any, to the Chairperson of the Meeting or to any other person so authorized by him (in
writing), who shall countersign the same.

4. The results declared along with the scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the website of company,
www.ashikagroup.com, at the registered office of company and on the website of NSDL
www.evoting.nsdl.com. The company shall simultaneously communicate the results to BSE Limited, where
the equity shares of company are listed.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:
1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the meeting is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote
e-voting.
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2. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the Court Convened Meeting through VC/OAVM through the
NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-
Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu
against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The
link for VC/IOAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be
displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have
forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

3. Members are requested to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience and members will be
required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.
Please note that participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connected via
mobile hotspot may experience audio/video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of glitches.

PROCEDURE TO RAISE QUESTIONS / SEEK CLARIFICATIONS WITH RESPECT TO NOTICEAND
REGISTRATION AS SPEAKER AT THE MEETING

1. Equity shareholders are encouraged to submit their questions in advance with respect to the Scheme. These
queries may be submitted from their registered e-mail address, mentioning their name, DP ID and Client 1D/
folio number and mobile number, to reach company's email address at secretarial@ashikagroup.com. Before
5.00 p.m. (IST) on Saturday, August 9, 2025, will be considered and replied by the company suitably.

2. Members willing to express their views or ask questions at the meeting are required to register themselves as
speakers by sending their requests from Thursday, August 7, 2025 (9:00 A.M. IST) till Saturday, August
9, 2025 (5:00 P.M. IST) at secretarial@ashikagroup.com from their registered e-mail addresses mentioning
their names, folio numbers / demat account numbers, PAN details and mobile numbers. Only those Members
who have registered themselves as speakers will be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the
Court Convened Meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions, time allotted
and number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the Court Convened Meeting.
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
KOLKATA BENCH
CA (CAA) NO 153/KB/2025

In the matter of:
The Companies Act, 2013;

AND

In the matter of:

An application under sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act
2013 read with Companies(Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamation) Rules, 2016 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013;

AND

In the Matter of:

1. YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED, a company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 (CIN: U51109WB2007PLC117012) and having its
Registered Office at 16/1A, Abdul Hamid Street, 2"9Floor,
Room No - 2B, Previously Known as British India Street,
Kolkata700069 in the State of West Bengal

...Transferor Company / Applicant Company No.1.

2. ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED, a company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 (CIN: L67120WB1994PLC062159) and having its
Registered Office at 226/1A.J.C. Bose Road Trinity7th Floor,
Kolkata700020 in the State of West Bengal.

..... Transferee Company / Applicant Company No. 2.

AND

In the matter of:
1. ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED
..... Transferee Company / Applicant Company No. 2.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 230 to 232 READ WITH SECTION 102 AND OTHER
APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, AND READ WITH RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES
(COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 TO THE SCHEME OF
AMALGAMATION OF YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (TRANSFEROR COMPANY/APPLICANT
COMPANY 1) WITH AND INTO ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED - (TRANSFEREE COMPANY/APPLICANT
COMPANY NO 2) WHEREBY AND WHERE UNDER THE TRANSFEROR COMPANYIS PROPOSED TO BE
AMALGAMATED WITH THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY FROM THE APPOINTED DATE, 1ST OCTOBER,2024.

l. The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT"), Bench at Kolkata vide its order dated 25"June,
2025 read with corrigendum order dated 27t June 2025passed in Company Application C.A(CAA)
No.153/KB/2025has dispensed with the requirement of conducting and convening the meeting of
Equity Shareholders of the Applicant No 1, and Unsecured Creditors of both the Applicant Companies
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in view of 100% consent received by way of affidavit of all the shareholders of the Applicant Company
No.1 and Unsecured Creditors of both the Applicant Companies approving the Scheme of
Amalgamation without modification(s). There were NIL Secured Creditors in the Applicant Company
No.1, therefore no requirement to convene and hold meeting of Secured Creditors of the Applicant No
1. There was no requirement to convene and hold meeting of Secured Creditors of the Applicant No 2
as all Secured Creditors have been fully paid off prior to the filing of Company Application.

Il The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT"), Kolkata Bench vide its order dated 25"June,
2025along with corrigendum order dated 27™ June 2025 passed in Company Application C.A(CAA)
No. 153/KB/2025has directed to convene and hold the meeting of equity shareholder of the Company
for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving with or without modification, the Scheme of
Amalgamation of Yaduka Financial Services Limited (Transferor Company/Applicant Company No. 1)
with and into Ashika Credit Capital Limited (Transferee Company/Applicant Company No. 2).

1. The Statement forming part of the Notice dated 5™ July 2025 together with other relevant annexures is
being sent herewith to all the Equity Shareholders of the Company. This statement explains the terms
of the Scheme of Amalgamation as required u/s 230(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

V. The draft Scheme of Amalgamation was placed before and approved by the Board of Directors of the
Applicant Companies at their respective meetings held on31st July, 2024. Thereafter the Board of
Directors/Committee of Merger of the Applicant Companies have at their respective meeting held on
17th September,2024 and 6th January,2025, as applicable, have passed resolution incorporating the
changes sought by the BSE in the Scheme for issuance of its observation letter on the Scheme.

V. In terms of the said order passed by Hon’ble NCLT, the quorum for the said meeting has been fixed in
the manner as specified in Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.Further as provided in paragraph
14(L) of the order, the quorum and attendance for the meeting is as follows :

Quorum and Attendance:

The quorum for the said meeting of persons entitled to attend the same shall be determined in
accordance with Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In the event no quorum is present at the said meeting within 30 minutes from commencement of
meeting then in such event the Equity Shareholders who have logged in and joined the meeting
shall constitute the quorum.

V. In terms of the said Order, the Hon’ble NCLT has appointed Adv. Rahul Parasrampuria, (Email
id - parasrampuriarahul@gmail.com)as the Chairperson for the meeting directed including
any adjournments thereof.

VII. In terms of the said Order, the Hon’ble NCLT has appointed Ms Bidisha Achari, PCS, (Email id
- bidisha.a2704@gmail.com) as the Scrutinizer for the meeting including any adjournments
thereof.

VIII. THE FOLLOWING ARE THE DETAILS OF THE APPLICANT COMPANIES AS REQUIRED

UNDER RULE 6(3) OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND
AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016:

A. Details of the order of the Tribunal directing the calling, convening and conducting of the
meeting:-
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Pursuant to the Order passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench on
25th June, 2025, along with corrigendum order dated 27" June 2025 in Company Application
C.A(CAA) No. 153/KB/2025, the Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company/
Applicant Company No.2 will be convened on Saturday, August 16, 2025 at 01:00 P.M. IST
through VC / OAVM, in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and its rules
thereunder, as amended from time to time, the circulars issued thereunder, and the SEBI Listing
Regulations, for considering, and if thought fit, approving the proposed Scheme with or without
modification. This is a statement accompanying the notice convening such Meeting of the Equity
Shareholders of the Transferee Company.

. Details of the Companies involved in the Scheme
a) TRANSFEROR COMPANY/APPLICANT COMPANY NO.1

CIN U51109WB2007PLC117012

Permanent account Number | AAECP3304K

Name of the Company YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
(“YADUKA”)

Date of Incorporation 09/07/2007

Type of Company PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY

Registered Office of the 16/1A, ABDUL HAMID STEET, 2ND FLOOR, ROOM NO

company and Email ID - 2B, PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS BRITISH INDIA
STREET) KOLKATA, West Bengal, India, 700069
Email id: yadukafinancial@gmail.com

Main Objects of the Company as per the Memorandum of Association

1.To carry on business of leasing and hire purchase Investment in shares and securities,
sick industries, Rehabilitation, Bridge-Financing, Bill discounting, inter corporate deposits,
SME finance, international capital market, operations, money market operations, finance,
venture capital finance and other interrelated activities of lending money & financial, borrow
money, accepting de- posits and loans.

2. To act as Merchant Bankers, Managers, Co-managers, Registrars to the issue,
underwriters, brokers, sub-brokers, trustees Custodians, transfer agents and to provide
services as consultants, advisors, providing general administrative, secretarial, commercial,
financial, technical, legal accountancy, quality control loan syndication, finance structuring,
inter corporate deposits, fixed deposits, corporate planning profit identification appraisal and
funding mergers and acquisitions, capital restructuring, fund management, forex advisory
services, tie ups, collaborations, marketing, placement and recruitment of Indian and/or
foreign personnels, and to render such other related services to persons, firms, companies,
corporate bodies, trusts, associations, or organizations, whatsoever in India or abroad.

3.To borrow, raise, secure the payment of money, to receive money on deposits with or
without interest for the purpose of company's business in such manner and on such terms
and with such rights, powers, privileges and conditions as the company may think fit by
promissory notes, by taking credits in or opening current accounts with any person or
persons, firm or firms, banks, companies or financial institutions and with or without security
or by such other means as the directors may in their absolute discretion deem expedient and
to lend and advance money with or without security to such persons, firms or companies and
upon such terms and subject to conditions as may seem expedient and particularly to carry
on the business as financiers and investors and to acquire by purchase or otherwise, buy.
subscribe for tender, exchange, hold, sell, transfer, hypothecate, deal in dispose of any
share, bonds, stocks, obligations, securities, debentures, debenture stocks, proper- ties,
certificates issued or guaranteed by any company constituted and carrying on business in
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India or elsewhere, any Government state, sovereign, central or dominions state
commissioners, port trust, public body or other authority, supreme, municipal, local or
otherwise whether in India or elsewhere, provided that the company shall not carry on the
business of banking as defined in the Banking Regulations Act, 1949.

4. To buy, sell, trade on spot/cash and futures and options markets for the purpose of
Arbitrage, jobbing, investment, badla, trading or any other related business in Equity,
currency, commodity or any other marketable securities whether as client, agent, broker or
sub-broker and hold physical commodities, instruments like warehouse receipt etc or to
appoint agent, brokers etc for the said objective and to borrow funds accordingly.

5. To carry on the business as broker in exchange traded currencies, commodities equities,
bonds, securities or any other financial instrument, and to carry on the same as sub broker
arbitrager. underwriter, agent, sub agent, depository participant, market maker, Investor
and/or hedger, purchaser and/or seller in all kinds of shares, securities, derivatives,
commodities, currencies, agricultural products, debenture stock, bonds, certificates of
Mutual Fund, Commercial paper, saving certificate, government securities, metals including
precious metals, precious stones, diamonds & all other products/instruments in capital
market future & option market & all kinds of derivatives of commodities & currencies
permitted under the law of India or outside.

6. To become members & participate in trading, settlement & other activities of commodity ex
exchange or overseas whether for itself securities exchanges, currency exchange & other
exchanges or for its clients, trades and clearing settlement of in India trades in spots, in
futures & options, in capital, in currency, incommodities & in all its derivatives permitted
under the law of India or outside.

7. To carry on the business of an investment company and invest the capital and other
moneys of the Company in the purchase or upon the security of shares stocks units
debentures debenture-stock bonds obligations and securities issued or guaranteed by any
company corporation or undertaking whether incorporated or otherwise and wheresoever
constituted or carrying on business and to buy sell otherwise deal in shares stocks
debentures debenture-stock bonds, notes obligations and other securities issued or
guaranteed by any government sovereign ruler, commissioner trust municipal local or other
authority or body in India or abroad.

8. To carry on the business activities as developers of land, colonies, sheds, buildings,
structures, residential plots, commercial plots, industrial plots and sheds, roads, bridges,
channels, culverts and to act as architect, designers, contractors, sub-contractors, for all
types of constructions and developments work for private sector, government departments,
semi government departments and to develop the sites and plots and to carry on the
business activities of acquirer, purchaser, lease. exchange, hire or otherwise all types of
land, and properties of any tenure or any interest in the same or to erect and construct
houses, building, multi-stories, or work for every descriptions on any land of the company or
upon other land or property and to pull down re-build, enlarge, alter, and Improve, existing
houses, buildings, or work thereon and to purchasing and selling of houses and plots free
hold or other house property, building, or lands or interest, household articles and other
products of other companies in the instalments, network scheme or otherwise and to act as
commission agent and to offer various types of incentives, schemes from time to time either
directly or In collaboration with any other individuals, firms, bodies corporate in India or
elsewhere and to educate people for side work, entertainment end side work, personality
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development.

Main Business carried on by the company:

YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED is a registered Non-Deposit Accepting Non —
Banking Financial Company (“NBFC)” holding Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank
of India (“RBI"), issued on 11th September 2013 under section 45 — 1A, of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 (Certificate of Registration No. being N.05.06760). It is engaged in the
business of providing finance and Investment /dealing in shares and securities.

Details of change of name registered office and objects of the Company during the

last five years

The Company has not changed its name during the last 5 years.

There has been no change in the object clause of the Company during the last 5 years.

There has been no change in the address of the Registered office of the Company during

the last 5 years.

10

Name of stock exchanges (s) where
securities of the company are listed,

if applicable.

The shares of the Company are not listed in any
Stock Exchange.

11

Details of the Capital Structure of the Company as on the date of notice:

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

45,50,000 Equity Shares of INR 10 each

4,55,00,000

TOTAL | 4,55,00,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE

CAPITAL

45,22,150 Equity Shares of INR 10 each

4,52,21,500

TOTAL | 4,52,21,500

12

Name of the promoters and directors along with their address:

PROMOTERS as on date of notice:

NAME

ADDRESS

Pawan Jain

13, Mandeville Gardens, 3" Floor, Govardhan , Kolkata
700019

Kanchan Devi Jain

13, Mandeville Gardens, 3" Floor, Govardhan , Kolkata
700019

Roshni Jain

20, Mandeville Gardens, 3 Floor, Flat :3B Ideal Gardens ,
Kolkata 700019

DIRECTORS as on the date of notice:

NAME

ADDRESS

NEHA CHHAWCHHARIA
(DIN :02182603 )

3rd Floor, 206 Jodhpur Garden, Near South City, Lake
Garden, Circular, Kolkata — 700045

SOBHIT CHHAWCHHARIA
(DIN : 02926948)

16/1A Suite No-2B , 2nd Floor Abdul Hamid Street, Near
Great Eastern Hotel Kolkata — 700069

PUJA SHARMA
(DIN:06852209)

101, Arabinda Road, Howrah Corporation, Salkia, Howrah
711106, West Bengal
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13

If the scheme of compromise or arrangement relates to more than one company, the
fact and details of any relationship subsisting between such companies who are
parties to such scheme of compromise or arrangement, including holding, subsidiary

or of associate companies.

The companies involved in the scheme are falling under the same promoter group and

having similar business also.

14

The date of the Board
meeting at which the
scheme was approved by
the Board of directors
including the name of the
directors who voted in
favour of the resolution,
who voted against the
resolution and who did not
vote/ participate on such
resolution;

The Board of Directors approved the Scheme of
Amalgamation in their Meeting held on 3157 July, 2024.
Thereafter the Board of Directors of the Applicant
Companies have at their respective meeting held on
17"September,2024 and 06™January, 2025, as applicable,
have passed resolution incorporating the changes sought by
the BSE in the Scheme for issuance of their observation
letter on the Scheme.

The meeting of the Board of Directors of the Transferor
company, approving the Scheme, was held on July 31,
2024, and attended by the 3 (Three) directors namely, Mr.
Sobhit  Chhawchharia, (DIN 02926948); Ms Neha
Chhawchharia (DIN - 02182603); Ms Puja Sharma (DIN -
06852209), who attended the meeting in person.

None of the directors of the Transferor Company, who were
present at the meeting while considering the said agenda
item, voted against the Scheme. Thus, the Scheme was
approved unanimously by the directors of the Transferor
Company, who were present while considering the said
agenda item.

Thereafter meeting of Board of Directors were held on 17th
September 2024 and 6th January 2025 wherein the changes
in the scheme of Amalgamation, as required by BSE, were
approved by all Director present in the meeting.

15

The amount due to Creditors

as on 31.03.2025

Secured Creditor

NIL

Unsecured Creditor

Rs. 1,49,000/- (wherein Rs. 59000/- stands due as on
28.05.2025 i.e. the date before filing of application with
NCLT)

The Audited financial statements of the Transferor Company for the financial year ended March 31,

2025 is enclosed as Annexure l4andis also available on website of

Transferee company

www.ashikagroup.comand are available for inspection at the registered office of the Transferee

Company.

b)

TRANSFEREECOMPANY /APPLICANT COMPANY NO.2

1 CIN L67120WB1994PLC062159
2 Permanent account Number AACCA1721D
3 Name of the Company ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED
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Date of Incorporation 08-03-1994

Type of Company LISTED PUBLIC LIMITEDCOMPANY
Registered Office of the 226/1A.J.C.BOSEROADTRINITY7™FLOOR,
company and email ID KOLKATA, West Bengal, India,700020 Email:

secretarial@ashikagroup.com

Main Objects of the Company as per the Memorandum of Association

1. To carry on business of leasing and hire purchase, investment in shares and securities,
sick- industries, Rehabilitation, Bridge-Financing operations, money Bill discounting,
international capital market, market operations, share finance, venture capital finance and
other interrelated activities of lending money financial industrial enterprises, borrow
money, accepting deposits and loans.

2. To carry on business of consultants and advisers in the areas of accounts, finance and
taxation, relating to the Maintenance of Books of Accounts, preparation of Final Accounts,
installing batter accounting and cost accounting system, financial planning, project
reports, control over the progress of the new projects, Capital budgetary decision,
Amalgamation, purchase of new business valuation of shares, valuation of goodwill,
foreign collaborations, raising capital from various financial institutions, banks and other
sources, investments of surplus funds, tax planning and consultations on controversial tax
matters and to provide management consultancy service relating to preparation of
accounting manuals, cost analysis and cost accounting procedures, budgeting and
budgetary control, reporting to higher management, installation of computerized
accounting system, installation of internal control systems, and internal audit procedures,
cash resources management, materials management and installation, organizational
study, installation of sample accounting and financial systems for small scale industries,
profitability studies, price fixing, project planning, forecasting, cash flow analysis, staff
training and job evaluation, analysis and interpretation of financial of statements, inter and
intra firm comparisons and to provide consultancy in secretarial and company matters
relating to preparation of memorandum and articles of association, prospectus and
Company formation etc., appearance before registrar, regional director, Company law
Board, share department and other secretarial responsibilities, maintenance of various
registers and statutory books as required by the Companies Act and to act as legal
advisors and to provide consultancy relating to all legal and other matters and to carry on
the business of technical, financial and management consultants and advisor and to enter
into collaboration agreements and to provide all types of consultation including
managerial, personnel, secretarial, designing, engineering, preparation of feasibility and
project reports, drawing, plant layout and helping the finalization of contracts and
commissioning of ants and to carry on the business of industrial, technical and
commercial consultants and advise on all and matters relating to promotion planning,
establishment and development of an organization to provide consultancy in selection and
recruiting personnel sales promotion, import export, activities, purchase planning
marketing activities, research and development and administration and management of
any trade, business project, industry or enterprise in India or out in India and to carry on
buses of consultancy for undertaking providing, procuring, maintaining and promoting
administration and any other services and facilities required by or in connection with any
project industries or business including complete turnkey jobs and comprehensive
management of group thereof and to carry on business of consultants and advisors on
problems relating to the management, administration and organisation of industry and
business and the training of personnel for industry and business and to carry on all or any
of the business of industrial, business and personnel consultants including, rendering of
services and advice in business strategy, corporate planning, project evaluation, feasibility
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studies, equipment management, product development, inventory control and market
research for manufacturing transport, service and other peripheral industries and to advise
upon the means and methods of industries and all systems or processes relating to
production storage marketing, distribution and sale of goods and/or relating to the
rendering of service and to engage in research and provide technical knowhow into all
aspects of personnel, industries and business management and administration to collect,
prepare and distribute information and statistics relating to any type of business or
industry and to provide purpose and carry out such methods, procedure & measure and to
acquire from or sell to any person or body corporate or unincorporated whether in India or
elsewhere technical and commercial information knowhow, process, engineering
manufacturing, operating and commercial data, plans, layouts and blue prints useful for
design, erection and operation of any plant or process of manufacture and to acquire and
get license or other rights and benefits in the field of chemicals, fertilizers, agricultural
input and other items and to render any kind of management and consultancy service.

. To act as Merchant Bankers, Managers, Co-managers, Registrars to the issue,
underwriter brokers, sub-brokers, trustees Custodians, transfer agents and to provide
services as consultants, advisors, providing general administrative, secretarial,
commercial, financial, technical, legal accountancy, quality control loan syndication,
finance restructuring, inter-corporate deposits, fixed deposits, corporate planning profit
identification appraisal and funding mergers and acquisitions, capital restructuring, fund
management, forex advisory services, the ups, collaborations, marketing, placement and
recruitment of Indian and/or foreign personnel, and to render such other related services
to persons, firms, companies, corporate bodies, trusts, associations, or organizations,
whatsoever in India or abroad.

. To borrow, raise, secure the payment of money, to receive money on deposits with or
without interest for the purpose of company's business in such manner and on such terms
and with such rights, powers, privileges and conditions as the company may think fit by
promissory notes, by taking credits in or opening current accounts with any person or
persons, firm or firms, banks, companies or financial institutions and with or without
security or by such other means as the directors may in their absolute discretion deem
expedient and to lend and advance money with or without security to such persons, firms
or companies and upon such terms and subject to conditions as may seem expedient and
particularly to carry on the business as financiers and investors and to acquire by
purchase or otherwise, buy, subscribe for tender, exchange, hold, sell, transfer,
hypothecate, deal in dispose of any share, bonds, stocks, obligations, securities,
debentures, debenture stocks, properties, certificates issued or guaranteed by any
company constituted and carrying on business in India or elsewhere, any Government
state, sovereign, central or dominions state commissioners, port trust, public body or other
authority, supreme, municipal, local or otherwise whether in India or elsewhere, provided
that the company shall not carryon on the business of banking as defined in the Banking
Regulations Act,1949.

. To act as settlor, sponsor, trustee and investment manager to mutual fund, pooled
investment vehicles/ funds, alternative investment funds, and other related funds,
providing asset management / investment management services, investment advisory and
research, portfolio advisory, portfolio management, and any other consultancy and
advisory related matters etc. incorporating or causing the incorporation of and / or
acquiring and holding shares in an asset management company and / or trustee company
to a mutual fund. setting up, creating, issuing, floating, promoting, and managing various
types of funds such as mutual funds, unit trusts, growth funds, income or capital funds,
taxable or tax exempt funds, charitable funds, venture funds, risk funds, real estate funds,
education funds, on shore funds, off shore funds, consortium funds or organise or manage
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funds or investment on a discretionary or non-discretionary basis on behalf of any person
or persons (whether individual, firms, companies, bodies corporate, public body or
authority, supreme, local or otherwise, trusts, pension funds, charities, other associations
or other entities), whether in the private of public sector. to engage in such other activities
and provide support incidental to fund management, both in India and abroad, and to
carry out such activities as permitted under the applicable laws.

6. To carry on the business of providing financial assistance on such terms and conditions

as the company may deem fit, to individuals, firms, societies, association of persons,
companies or corporations, or such other persons or entities for the purpose of purchase ,
construction, acquisition of plots, houses, flats, apartments and/or repair, renovation
and/or up gradation of houses, flats or apartments for residential purpose and providing
loan to persons and entities and others engaged in the business of construction of
houses or flats for residential or non-residential/ commercial purpose upon such terms
and conditions as the company may think fit and proper.

8 Main Business carried on by the company:
‘ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED” is a registered Non — Deposit, Accepting Non-Banking
Financial Institution (NBFC), classified as a NBFC ICC Base Layer (BL) NBFC holding
certificate of registration (CoR:05.2892) as an NBFC issued on 7th September, 1998. The
Company is engaged in fund based activities like providing loans & advances, inter
corporate deposits, loans against securities and investments in shares and securities.

9 Details of change of name, registered office and objects of the Company during the
last five years.
The Company has not changed its name during the last 5 years .
There has been change in the object clause of the Company during the last 5 years:
Shareholders of the company altered the Main object of the company by addition of object
clause no 5 and 6 in the Main Object of Memorandum (as detailed above) approved vide
special resolution passed on 21t March 2025 through postal ballot.
There has been no change in the address of the Registered office of the Company during
the last 5 years .

10 | Name of stock exchanges (s) where | Presently, the shares of the Company
securities of the company are listed, if | are listed in BSE Limited.
applicable

11 | Details of the Capital Structure of the company as on the date of notice

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

7,00,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 70,00,00,000

TOTAL | 70,00,00,000/-

ISSUED AND SUBSCRIBED SHARE CAPITAL

3,81,96,638 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each* 38,19,66,380

TOTAL | 38,19,66,380/-

PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

3,81,90,464 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each* 38,19,04,640

TOTAL | 38,19,04,640/-

*The difference in issued and subscribed share capital and paid up share capital is for 6174
forfeited shares in June 2002

Pending conversion of warrants :

Board of Directors in their meeting held on 12.11.2024 had issued 18,00,000 Equity
convertible warrants to non-promoters @609/- per warrant ( including premium of Rs 599/-
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per warrant). The same were approved by shareholders in the Extra Ordinary General
meeting held on 12.12.2024 and accordingly the warrants were allotted in the Fund Raising
Committee meeting held on 26.12.2024.These warrants to be exercised by warrants holders
into equal number of equity shares within 18 months from date of allotment. The warrants are
pending to be exercised by warrants holders.

12 | Name of the Promoters /Promoter Groups and directors along with their address
A | Promoters and Promoters Group as on date
NAME ADDRESS

1 | Ashika Global securities Pvt Itd Trinity, 226/1, A.J.C.Bose Road, 7" Floor,
Kolkata 700020

2 | Pawan Jain (HUF) 13, Mandeville Gardens, 3" Floor, Govardhan ,
Kolkata 700019

3 | Ashika Global Finance Pvt Ltd Trinity, 226/1, A.J.C.Bose Road, 7" Floor,
Kolkata 700020

4 | Ashika Commodities & Derivatives Pvt Ltd | Trinity, 226/1, A.J.C.Bose Road, 7" Floor,
Kolkata 700020

5 | Daulat Jain (HUF) 20, Mandeville Gardens, 3 Floor, Flat :3B
Ideal Gardens , Kolkata 700019

6 | Daulat Jain 20, Mandeville Gardens, 3 Floor, Flat :3B
Ideal Gardens , Kolkata 700019

B | DIRECTORS as on the date of notice

NAME ADDRESS

PAWAN JAIN 13, Mandeville Gardens, 3 Floor, Govardhan
(DIN : 00038076) ,Kolkata 700019

AMIT JAIN 67, S.N.Roy Road, Block: Namah, Flat-2B,
( DIN : 00040222) Kolkata-700038

DAULAT JAIN 20, Mandeville Gardens, 3" Floor, Flat :3B Ideal
( DIN : 00040088) Gardens , Kolkata 700019

PINKI KEDIA A-501 Crescent Grande, Old Nagardas Road Raj

(DIN : 08455451)

Chambers, Andheri East, Mumbai, Suburban,
Maharashtra 400069

SUPRATIM BANDYOPADHYAY
( DIN: 03558215)

Room No. 1001, 10%" Floor, Daffodils, Runwal
Bliss, Kanjumarg, East Mumbai, Maharastra,
400042

PRAVIN KUTUMBE
(DIN:01629256)

B-803 Neelkanth Majestic, Plot No. 5, Sector 17,
Roadpali, Navi Mumbai 410218

CHIRAG JAIN
(DIN: 07648747)

13, Mandeville Gardens, 3 Floor, Govardhan,
Kolkata 700019

AJAY PRATAPRAY SHANGHAVI
(DIN: 00084653)

71192, Pushpa Kunj, Opp. Wadala Krishna
Mandir, Station Road, Wadala (West) Mumbai-
400031

TAPAN SODANI
(DIN: 01921743)

56/1A, Siddhinath Chatterjee Road, Circus
Avenue Behala, Kolkata 700034
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13

If the scheme of compromise or arrangement relates to more than one company, the
fact and details of any relationship subsisting between such companies who are
parties to such scheme of compromise or arrangement, including holding, subsidiary

or of associate companies.

The companies involved in the scheme are falling under the same promoter group and

having similar business also.

14

The date of the Board
meeting at which the
scheme was approved by
the Board of directors
including the name of the
directors who voted in
favour of the resolution,
who voted against the
resolution and who did
not vote/ participate on
such resolution;

The Board of Directors approved the Scheme of
Amalgamation in their Meeting held on 318July, 2024
Thereafter the Board of Directors/Committee of Merger of the
Company at their respective meeting held on 17th
September,2024 and 6th January,2025, as applicable, have
passed resolution incorporating the changes sought by the
BSE in the Scheme for issuance of their observation letter on
the Scheme

The meeting of the Board of Directors of the Transferee
Company, approving the Scheme was held on July 31, 2024
and, was attended by the 6 (Six) directors namely, Mr. Pawan
Jain, Executive Director (DIN — 00038076), MrDaulat Jain,
Managing Director (DIN - 00040088); Mr. Amit Jain, Non
Executive Non Independent Director (DIN - 00040222); Mr.
Ajay Pratapray Shanghavi, Independent Director (DIN -
00084653); Mr. Tapan Sodani, Independent Director (Din :
01921743) and Ms. Sonu Jain , Independent Director (DIN -
07267279), who attended the meeting in person.

None of the directors of the Transferee Company, who were
present while considering the said agenda item, voted against
the Scheme. Thus, the Scheme was approved unanimously
by the directors of the Transferee Company, who were

present while considering the said agenda item.

(Note: Ms Sonu Jain’s tenure as Director was completed on March 31, 2025
(end of business hour). Further Board of Directors was re-constituted w.e.f.
01.04.2025.)

Further meeting of Board of Directors/Committee of Merger
were held on 17th September 2024 and 6th January 2025
wherein the changes in the scheme of Amalgamation, as
required by BSE, was approved, unanimously by the directors
of the Transferee Company, who were present while
considering the said changes in the scheme.

15

The amount due to Creditors as on 31.03.2025

Secured Creditors

Rs. 56,23,575/- ( Nil before filing of application with NCLT - All dues
paid )

Unsecured Creditors

Rs.95,91,681/- (Rs. 21,05,680/- is pending as on 27.05.2025, i.e.,
the date before filing of the application with the Hon’ble NCLT. This
includes Rs. 17,82,603/- towards unclaimed dividend and Rs.
3,23,077/- under others creditors).
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The Audited financial statements of the Transferee Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2025 is enclosed as Annexure 13. The audited standalone financial statements of the Transferee
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 is also available on the website of the
Transferee Company at www.ashikagroup.com and are available for inspection at the registered office
of the Transferee Company.

C. Rationale and Benefits of the Scheme of Amalgamation:
The Scheme is intended to consolidate the business of the Companies in a manner which is expected
to enable better realization of potential of their businesses, yield beneficial results and enhanced value
creation for the Companies, their respective shareholders and stakeholders. The amalgamation of the
Transferor Company with and into the Transferee Company would inter alia have the following
benefits:-

1. The Transferee Company and the Transferor Company are Non-Banking Finance
Company duly registered with Reserve Bank of India and are engaged in Investing and
Financing activities. The business of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company
can be combined/adjusted and carried forward conveniently with combined strength and
would result in business synergy, consolidation of the Companies and pooling of their
resources into a single entity.

2. Consolidation of the businesses of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company,
for creation of a larger unified entity and to achieve optimal and efficient utilization of
capital, resulting in lesser overheads including administrative, managerial, and other
expenditure, optimal utilization of resources, and provide a common governance structure;

3. The Transferee Company is expected to have improved financial strength upon
amalgamation. Particularly, the Companies believe that the combined operation shall lead
to industry-leading revenue growth and profitability. Further, the Companies expect that
their combined balance sheet will provide diverse strategic options and flexibility;

4, Pooling of knowledge and expertise of both the Parties and align with the business plans to
meet long- term objectives and enhance operational and management efficiencies;

5. Unification and streamlining of legal and regulatory compliances currently required to be
carried out by both, the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company;

D.  Salient features / details / extract of the Scheme of Amalgamation
The features / details / extract set out above being only the salient features / details / extract of the
Scheme of Amalgamation:

1. The proposed Scheme is between Yaduka Financial Services Limited (“Transferor Company”)
and Ashika Credit Capital Limited (“Company” Or “Transferee Company”) and their respective
shareholders and creditors pursuant to Section 230 to 232 read with other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. “Appointed Date” means the opening of business hours on 01st October 2024, or such other
date as may be agreed between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company and
approved by the Appropriate Authority; (Paragraph 1.4 of Part | of the Scheme)

3. “Effective Date” means the last of the dates on which the certified copies of the sanction
order of the NCLT are filed with the Registrar of Companies by the Companies, and all actions
set out in Clause 22 have been duly completed. This Scheme shall be operative with effect
from the Effective Date, in its present form or with any modification(s), approved or directed by
the NCLT or any other Appropriate Authority and shall then become effective from the
Appointed Date, as defined in Section 232(6) of the Act in terms of respective parts of this
Scheme. Any reference in this Scheme to “on this Scheme becoming effective” or “upon this
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Scheme becoming effective” or “effectiveness of this Scheme” shall mean the "Effective
Date”;(Paragraph 1.10 of Part | of the Scheme)

. “Record Date” means a date to be fixed by the Board of the Transferee Company for the
purposes of determining the shareholders of the Transferor Company to whom equity shares of
the Transferee Company would be allotted pursuant to the Amalgamation, in accordance with
Clause 11 of this Scheme;(Paragraph 1.21 of Part | of the Scheme)

. “Scheme of Amalgamation” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme” means this Scheme of
Amalgamation in its present form as submitted to the NCLT or this Scheme with such
modification(s), if any, as may be made by the shareholders of the Transferor Company and/or
the Transferee Company or such modifications(s) as may be imposed by any competent
authority and accepted by the respective Board of Directors of Transferor Company and/or the
Transferee Company and/or directed to be made by the NCLT while sanctioning the
Scheme.(Paragraph 1.23 of Part lof the Scheme)

. "BSE" means BSE Limited; (Paragraph 1.6 of Part | of the Scheme).

. “SEBI" means the Securities and Exchange Board of India established under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992;(Paragraph 1.24 of Part | of the Scheme).

. CONSIDERATION [ Paragraph 11 (11.1) to (11.9)]

(i) Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and in consideration of the transfer and vesting
of the Undertaking of the Transferor Company in the Transferee Company, in terms of this
scheme, the Transferee Company shall without any further application or deed, be required
to issue and allot to the equity shareholders of the Transferor Company whose names
appear in the register of members as on the Record Date :

1,445 (One thousand four hundred forty-five) equity shares of Transferee Company
having a face value of INR 10/- each fully paid-up shall be issued for every 1000 (One
thousand) equity shares held in Transferor Company having a face value INR 10/-
each fully paid-up.”

(ii) The equity shares of the Transferee Company issued and allotted to the shareholders of
Transferor Company in accordance with the clause 11.1 shall be hereinafter referred to
as “New Transferee Company Shares”.

(iiThe New Transferee Company Shares shall be allotted and issued to equity shareholders
of the Transferor Company as provided in Clause 11.1 above shall be subject to the
provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Transferee Company
and shall rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares of the
Transferee Company after the Effective Date including in respect of dividend, if any, that
may be declared by the Transferee Company on or after the Effective Date.

(iv) For the purposes of allotment of the New Transferee Company Shares, pursuant to this
Scheme, in case any Transferor Company's shareholder becomes entitled to any
fractional shares, entitlements or credit on the issue and allotment of the New Transferee
Company Shares by the Transferee Company in accordance with Clause 11.1 above, the
Transferee Company shall not issue fractional shares to such. shareholder and shall
consolidate all such fractional entitlements and round up the aggregate of such fractions
to the next whole number and shall, without any further application, act, instrument or
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deed, issue and allot such consolidated shares directly to an individual trust or a board of
trustees or a corporate trustee nominated by the Transferee Company (“Trustee”), who
shall hold such New Transferee Company Shares with all additions or accretions thereto
in trust for the benefit of the respective shareholders, to whom they belong and their
respective heirs, executors, administrators or successors for the specific purpose of
selling such shares in the market at such price or prices at any time within a period of 90
(ninety) days from the date of allotment, and on such sale, distribute the net sale
proceeds (after deduction of the expenses incurred and applicable income tax) to the
respective shareholders in the same proportion of their fractional entitlements. Any
fractional entitlements from such net proceeds may be rounded off to the nearest Rupee.
It is clarified that any such distribution shall take place only on the sale of all the fractional
shares of the Transferee Company by the Trustee pertaining to the fractional
entitlements.

(v) Unless otherwise notified in writing on or before such date as may be determined by the
Board of the Transferor Company or a committee thereof, the New Transferee Company
Shares issued to the equity shareholders of the Transferor Company by the Transferee
Company shall be issued in dematerialized form by the Transferee Company, provided
that the details of the depository accounts of the members of the Transferor Company are
made available to the Transferee Company by the Transferor Company within 2 (two)
working days from the Record Date . In case of shareholders for whom such details are
not available with the Transferee Company and in case of the shareholders of the
Transferor Company who hold shares in physical form, the Transferee Company shall
deal with the issuance of the relevant New Transferee Company Shares in such manner
as may be permissible under the Applicable Law, including by way of issuing the said
New Transferee Company Shares in dematerialized form to a demat account held by a
trustee nominated by the Board of the Transferee Company or into an escrow account
opened by the Transferee Company or an escrow agent nominated by it, with a
depository, as determined by the Board of the Transferee Company, where such New
Transferee Company Shares of the Transferee Company shall be held on for the benefit
of such shareholders (or to such of their respective heirs, executors, administrators or
other legal representatives or other successors in title) of the Transferee Company. The
New Transferee Company Shares so held in such trustee's account or escrow account,
as the case may be, shall be transferred to the respective shareholders once such
shareholder provides details of his/ her/ its demat account to the Transferee Company,
along with such documents as may be required by the Transferee Company. The
respective shareholders shall have all the rights of the shareholders of the Transferee
Company, including the right to receive dividend, voting rights and other corporate
benefits, pending such transfer of the said New Transferee Company Shares from the
said trustee's account or the escrow account, as the case may be. All costs and expenses
incurred in this respect shall be borne by Transferee Company.

(vi) Notwithstanding anything contained in Clause 11.1 above, upon the Scheme coming into
effect, all equity shares which the Transferor Company holds in the Transferee Company
or vice versa shall get cancelled without any further application, act or deed, in
accordance with provisions of Section 66 of the Act and the order of the NCLT
sanctioning the Scheme shall be deemed to be also the order under Section 66 of the Act
for the purpose of confirming the reduction. It is clarified that no new equity shares shall
be issued or payment made in cash whatsoever by the Transferee Company in lieu of
such shares of the Transferor Company.
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(vii)On the approval of the Scheme by the Board and members of each of the Parties
pursuant to Sections 230-232 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act and rules
made thereunder, as applicable, it shall be deemed that the Board and members of each
of the Parties have also accorded their consent under Sections 42 and 62(1)(c) of the Act
and /or any other applicable provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder and the
relevant provisions of the articles of association of the Parties, as may be applicable for
the aforesaid issuance of the New Transferee Company Shares to the shareholders of
the Transferor Company, and no further resolution or actions, including compliance with
any procedural requirements, shall be required to be undertaken by the Transferee
Company under Section 42 or 62(1)(c) of the Act and/or any other applicable provisions
of the Act and rules made thereunder. Upon this Scheme coming into effect, the
Transferee Company shall, if required, file all necessary documents / intimations as per
the provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder with Registrar of Companies or any
other applicable Governmental Authority to record the Amalgamation, issuance of New
Transferee Company Shares to the shareholders of the Transferor Company and
dissolution of the Transferor Company, in the manner set out in this Scheme.

(viii)The equity shares issued and/or allotted pursuant to the Scheme in respect of such of the
equity shares of the Transferor Company which are held in abeyance under the
provisions of Section 126 of the Act shall, pending settlement of the dispute by order of
court or otherwise, be held in abeyance by the Transferee Company.

(ix) Inthe event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding of
any shareholders of Transferor Company, the Board of Directors of Transferor Company
shall be empowered prior to the Record Date, to effectuate such transfers in the
Transferor Company as if such changes in registered holders were operative as on the
Record Date, in order to remove any difficulties arising to the transferors of the shares in
relation to the equity shares issued by the Transferee Company after the Scheme is
effected. The Board of Directors of the Transferee Company shall be empowered to
remove such difficulties as may arise in the course of implementation of this Scheme and
registration of new members in the Transferee Company on account of difficulties faced in
the transition period.

9. LISTING OF NEW TRANSFEREE COMPANY SHARES OF THE TRANSFEREE
COMPANY (Paragraph 12.1 of Part Il)

a) The New Transferee Company Shares to be issued and allotted in terms of
Clause 11.1 above, shall, in compliance with the requirement of applicable
regulations, be listed and/or admitted to trading on the Stock Exchanges where
the existing equity shares of the Transferee Company are listed. The Transferee
Company shall enter into such arrangements and give such confirmations and/or
undertakings as may be necessary in accordance with applicable laws or
regulations for complying with the formalities of the Stock Exchanges. On such
formalities being fulfilled, the Stock Exchanges shall list and/or admit the New
Transferee Company Shares for the purpose of trading.

b) The Transferee Company shall, if and to the extent required, apply for and obtain
any approvals from the concerned regulatory authorities for the issue and
allotment by the Transferee Company of the New Transferee Company Shares
to the Eligible Members under the Scheme and listing thereof.

10. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT (Paragraph 14 of PART Il)
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a) Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from Appointed Date,
the Transferee Company shall account for the amalgamation of the Transferor
Company with the Transferee Company in accordance with Pooling of Interest
Method in accordance with Appendix C of Ind AS 103 notified under the
provisions of the Act, read with relevant rules framed thereunder and other
applicable accounting standards prescribed under the Act

b) The Transferee Company shall record the assets, liabilities and reserves relating
to the Transferor Company vested as a going concern in it pursuant to this
Scheme, at their respective carrying amounts.

c) The Transferee Company shall credit the aggregate face value/ nominal value of
shares issued by it to the shareholders of Transferor Company pursuant to
Clause 11 of this Scheme to the Share Capital Account in its books of accounts.

d) The identity of the reserves of the Transferor Company, if any, shall be
preserved and they shall appear in the financial statements of the Transferee
Company in the same form and manner in which they appeared in the financial
statements of the Transferor Company.

e) Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, to the extent that there are inter-
company loans, advances, deposits balances or other obligations as between
the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, the obligations in respect
thereof shall come to an end and corresponding effect shall be given in the
books of accounts and records of the Transferee Company for reduction of any
assets or liabilities, as the case may be. Further no interest shall be provided on
loans and advances or any outstanding loans and advances, if any, after
Appointed Date. All inter party transactions after the Appointed Date between the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall be treated as intra party
transactions for all purposes and inter company balances shall stand cancelled;

f) The shares held by Transferor Company in Transferee Company or vice versa
shall stand cancelled and difference, if any, would be adjusted against the capital
reserves account of Transferee Company and there shall be no further obligation
in that behalf.

Q) The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus
any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount
of share capital of the Transferor Company shall be transferred to capital reserve
and should be presented separately from other capital reserves.

h) In case of any difference in accounting policy between the Transferor Company
and the Transferee Company, the accounting policies followed by the Transferee
Company shall prevail and the difference till Appointed Date would be quantified
and adjusted in the capital reserves account of the Transferee Company to
ensure that the financial statements of the Transferee Company reflect the
financial position on the basis of consistent accounting policy.

i) Any matter not dealt with in clauses hereinabove shall be dealt with in
accordance with the Ind AS applicable to the Transferee Company.

11. MODIFICATION OF SCHEME : (Paragraph 200f PART Ill)

a. The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company through their respective Boards
of Directors or any Committee thereof or any Director/ executive authorised in that
behalf (hereinafter referred to as the “Delegate”) may assent to, or make, from time to
time, any modification(s) or addition(s) to this Scheme which the NCLT or any
authorities under law may deem fit to approve or which the NCLT or any authorities
under law may impose and which the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company may in their discretion accept or such modification(s) or addition(s) as the
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Transferor Company and the Transferee Company or as the case may be, their
respective Delegate may deem fit, or required for the purpose of resolving any doubts or
difficulties that may arise in carrying out this Scheme, and the Transferor Company and
the Transferee Company by their respective Boards of Directors or delegates are
authorised to do and execute all acts, deeds, matters and things necessary for bringing
this Scheme into effect, or review the position relating to the satisfaction of the
conditions of this Scheme and if necessary, waive any of such conditions (to the extent
permissible under law) for bringing this Scheme into effect, and/or give such consents
as may be required in terms of this Scheme. In the event that any conditions are
imposed by the NCLT or any Governmental Authorities, which the Transferor Company
or the Transferee Company find unacceptable for any reason, then the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company shall be at liberty to withdraw the Scheme.

h. For the purposes of giving effect to this Scheme or to any modification(s) thereof or
addition(s) thereto, the Delegates (acting jointly) of the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company may give and are authorised to determine and give all such
directions as are necessary for settling or removing any question of doubt or difficulty
that may arise under this Scheme or in regard to the meaning or interpretation of any
provision of this Scheme or implementation thereof or in any manner whatsoever
connected therewith or to review the position relating to the satisfaction of various
conditions of this Scheme and if necessary to waive any such conditions (to the extent
permissible in law) and such determination or directions or waiver, as the case may be
shall be binding on all the parties, in the same manner as if the same were specifically
incorporated in this Scheme.

c¢. For the purpose of giving effect to this Scheme or to any modifications/ amendments
thereof, the Directors of the Transferor Company (prior to its dissolution in pursuance to
Scheme) and of the Transferee Company may give and are authorised to give all such
directions as are necessary including directions for resolving any question of doubt or
difficulty that may arise.

d. Further, it is clarified that the initial consent of the shareholders and creditors (both
secured and unsecured) of the Companies to this Scheme shall in itself be deemed to
be sufficient to authorize the operation of the abovementioned clause of this Scheme
and any subsequent alteration would not require a fresh note of consent from such
shareholders and creditors.

12. EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS/ SANCTIONS (Paragraph 23of PART Ill)
a) In the event this Scheme is not being sanctioned by (i) the NCLT or such other
competent authority before which this Scheme is presented for approval (i)
requisite majorities of members, creditors of the Transferor Company or the
Transferee Company, the part not sanctioned shall stand revoked, cancelled and
be of no effect, save and except in respect of any further act or deed done prior
thereto as is contemplated hereunder or as to any rights and/or liabilities which
might have arisen or accrued pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and
be preserved or worked out as is specifically provided for in the Scheme or as
may otherwise arise in law.

b) If any provision of this Scheme is ruled invalid or illegal by the NCLT, or
unenforceable under present or future laws, then it is the intention of the parties
to this Scheme that such portion shall be severable from the remainder of the
Scheme, and the Scheme shall not be affected thereby, unless the deletion of
such portion shall cause this Scheme to become materially adverse to any party,
in which case the parties, through their respective Board of Directors may either
decide to revoke the Scheme or may attempt to bring about a modification in the
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Scheme, as will best preserve for the parties the benefits and obligations of the
Scheme, including but not limited to such portion.

13. SCHEME CONDITIONAL UPON SANCTIONS (Paragraph 22of PART Ill)

This Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

a. receipt of 'Observation Letter' or 'No-Objection Letter' from the BSE Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) on the Scheme, as required under Applicable Laws;

b. the Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majorities of the classes
of members and creditors (where applicable) of the Companies in accordance
with the Act and as may be directed by the NCLT;

C. the Scheme being approved by the public shareholders of the Transferee
Company through e-voting in terms of paragraph 10 of Part I(A) of SEBI Scheme
Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/PI/CIR/2023/93 dated 20 June 2023 and the
Scheme shall be acted upon only if vote cast by the public shareholders of the
Transferee Company in favor of the proposal are more than the number of votes
cast by the public shareholders against it.

d. the sanction of the NCLT being obtained under Section 230 read with 232 of the
Act in favour of the respective Parties and the necessary order(s) under Section
232 of the Act, being obtained,;

e. receipt of relevant sanction or approval of RBI or any other Appropriate
Authorities concerned, as may be considered necessary and appropriate, by the
respective Boards of the Parties being obtained and granted in respect of any of
the matters for which such sanction or approval is required; and

f. filing of the certified copies of the orders of the NCLT sanctioning this Scheme,
by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, under the applicable
provisions of the Act with the jurisdictional ROC.

The features / details / extract set out above being only the salient features / details / extract of
the Scheme of Amalgamation as are statutorily required to be included in this explanatory
statement, the members are requested to read the entire text of the Scheme of Amalgamation
(annexed herewith as Annexure 2) to get fully acquainted with the provisions thereof and the
rationale and objectives of the Proposed Scheme of Amalgamation.

Valuation report
The Applicant Companies has obtained valuation report from CA, VIDHI CHANDAK

(IBBI/RV/06/2019/11186), Registered Valuer, recommending the shares to be allotted pursuant to the
Scheme of Amalgamation by the TRANSFEREE COMPANY to the Shareholders of the
TRANSFEROR COMPANY. The valuer has adopted Assets approach (Net Assets Value Method) and
Market approach (Market Price) for the Transferee Company and Assets approach (Net Assets Value
Method) for the Transferor Company to derive the Swap Ratio for allotment of Equity Shares of
Transferee Company to the shareholders of Transferor Company. The said report has been adopted
by the Board of Directors of the Applicant Companies.

Fairness Opinion
Fairness Opinion on share exchange ratio in connection with the proposed Scheme was received from

M/s. VC Corporate Advisors Private Limited, a SEBI Registered Category | Merchant Banker dated
July 31, 2024.
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Copies of the (i) Valuation Report, dated July 31, 2024, issued by CA, VIDHI CHANDAK and (ii)
Fairness Opinion, dated July 31, 2024, issued by VC Corporate Advisors Pvt Ltd are enclosed as
Annexure 3and Annexure 4 respectively.

Details of Capital/Debt Restructuring, if any

There is no capital/ debt restructuring envisaged in the Scheme.

Material Interest of Directors, Debenture Trustee, KMP and their relatives
A Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their Relatives

None of the Directors, KMPs of the Transferor Company and their respective relatives have
any material interest in the Scheme except to the extent of their shareholding in the
Company, if any.

The directors holding shares of the Applicant Companies, if any, do not have any other
interest in the Scheme otherwise than that as a shareholder of such Companies. Further,
none of thekey managerial personnel and / or relatives of the directors of the Applicant
Companies is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the proposed Scheme
except to the extent of their shareholding. None of the Directors of the Applicant
Companies have any material interest in the proposed Scheme.

B. Details of the Directors and KMP of the TRANSFEREE COMPANY and TRANSFEROR
COMPANY and their respective equity shareholding as on 30.06.2025 in the
TRANSFEREE COMPANY and TRANSFEROR COMPANY are as follows:

DIRECTORS & KMP SHAREHOLDING

TRANSFEROR TRANSFEREE

COMPANY COMPANY

TRANSFEROR COMPANY
NEHACHHAWCHHARIA Nil Nil
SOBHIT CHHAWCHHARIA Nil Nil
PUJA SHARMA Nil Nil
TRANSFEREE COMPANY
PAWAN JAIN* 50.69 % Nil
AMIT JAIN Nil Nil
DAULAT JAIN * Nil 1.18%
PINKI KEDIA Nil Nil
SUPRATIM Nil Nil
BANDYOPADHYAY
PRAVIN KUTUMBE Nil Nil
CHIRAG JAIN Nil Nil
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AJAY PRATAPRAY Nil Nil
SHANGHAVI

TAPAN SODANI Nil Nil
GAURAYV JAIN, KMP Nil Nil
ANJU MUNDHRA, KMP Nil Nil

* The Directors of the Transferee Company have indirect interest shareholding in the
Transferor Company by virtue of shares held by their immediate relative in the Transferor
company.

The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company have not issued any debentures.
Hence, there are no debenture holders and debenture trustees.

Effect of the Scheme of Amalgamation/Benefits derived on various parties:
The effect of the scheme of the proposed Scheme on the stakeholders of the Applicant Companies in
terms of Rule 6 (3)(vi) and (vii) of the rules, would be as follows:

1. Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their Relatives

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Transferor Company shall be dissolved without winding up and its
directors shall cease to hold office. The Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the
Transferor Company and their respective relatives have no interest in the Scheme, financially
or otherwise, except to the extent of their shareholding, if any, and their interests are not
adversely affected by the Scheme.

The Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the Transferee Company and their
respective relatives have no interest in the Scheme, financially or otherwise, except to the
extent of their shareholding, if any, and their interests are not adversely affected by the
Scheme.

2. Promoter and Non-Promoter Members
The effect of the Scheme on the shareholders (promoters and non-promoter shareholders) of
the Applicant Companies is given in the reports adopted by the Board of Directors of the
Applicant Companies at their respective meetings held on July 31, 2024 pursuant to the
provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act.

3. Creditors

Under the Scheme, no arrangement or compromise is being proposed with the creditors
(secured or unsecured) of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company. The liability
of the creditors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, under the Scheme,
is neither being reduced nor being varied or extinguished. The creditors of the Applicant
Companies would in no way be affected by the Scheme.

Further, as on date, the Applicant Companies has no secured creditors and therefore, the
question of any effect of the Scheme on any secured creditors does not arise.

4. Employees
On the Scheme becoming effective, all the employees of the Transferor Company who are in
employment as on the Effective Date shall become the employees of the Transferee Company
with effect from the Effective Date without any break or interruption in service and on terms and
conditions as to employment and remuneration not less favourable than those on which they
are engaged or employed by the Transferor Company. It is clarified that the employees of the
Transferor Company who become employees of the Transferee Company by virtue of this
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Scheme, shall not be entitled to the employment policies unless otherwise determined by the
Transferee Company. The Transferee Company undertakes to continue to abide by any
agreement/settlement, if any, entered into by the Transferor Company with any
union/employee of the Transferor Company.(For details refer clause 9 under Part Il of the
Scheme as attached in the notice as Annexure 2)

5. Depositors, Debenture Holders, Deposit Trustee or Debenture Trustee
The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company have neither issued any debentures
nor taken any public deposits. Hence, there are no debenture holders, debenture trustees,
depositors and deposit trustees in the applicant companies.

There will be no adverse effect on account of the Scheme on any of the aforesaid
stakeholders. The Scheme is proposed to the advantage of all concerned, including the said
stakeholders. Further in compliance with the provisions of section 232(2)(c) of the Act, the
Board of Directors of the Applicant Companies have adopted separate reports dated July 31,
2024, inter alia, explaining the effect of the Scheme on their shareholders, Key Managerial
Personnel and other stakeholders. Copies of the aforesaid reports adopted by the Board of
Directors of the Applicant Companies are enclosed as Annexure 5. No benefit has been
derived by the Company, Members, creditors and others pursuant to this Scheme of
Amalgamation.

No investigation or proceedings

No investigation proceedings or inspection or any proceedings have been instituted or are pending in
relation to the Transferor Company and Transferee Company under Section 210 to 227 of Companies
Act, 2013 or under Sections 235 to 251 of erstwhile Companies Act, 1956.

There is no winding up proceedings which have been filed or are pending against any of the Applicant
Companies as on date.

Further to the knowledge of the Companies, no insolvency proceedings have been filed or are
pending against the Companies under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, or under
Insolvency and Bankruptcy (Insolvency and Liquidation Proceedings of Financial Service Providers
and Application to Adjudicating Authority) Rules, 2019.

The Company is facilitating voting through both e-voting and remote e-voting options. Shareholders
entitled to vote may exercise their right either through the remote e-voting platform provided by the
Company or by participating in the voting process during the meeting.

Details of approvals, sanctions or no-objection(s) from regulatory or any other governmental
authorities required, received or pending:

» The shares of Transferee company are listed on the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited. The
Transferee Company had filed the Scheme with the Stock Exchanges in terms of the SEBI Master
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20,2023 for their approval.

»  Further, the Transferee Company did not receive any complaint relating to the Scheme and ‘Nil’
Complaint Reports were filed by the Transferee Company with the Stock Exchanges in terms of
the SEBI Circular, copy of which are enclosed as Annexure 6. The Stock Exchange (BSE Ltd) by
their Observation Letter dated May 09, 2025 have given their no-objection to the Scheme. Copy of
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the said Observation Letter issued by the Stock Exchange to the Transferee Company are
enclosed as Annexure 7.

» Both the Transferor company and Transferee company are non-deposit Taking NBFC and
registered with RBI. The companies had obtained NOC from Reserve Bank of India vide its letter
dated January 06, 2025 to the Proposed Scheme of Amalgamation.

» The Applicant Companies may be required to seek further approvals/sanctions/no-objections from
certain regulatory and governmental authorities for the Scheme of Amalgamation such as the
concerned Registrar of Companies, Regional Director and will obtain the same at the relevant
time.

IX. In terms of the SEBI Schemes Master Circular, the applicable information of the Transferor Company
in the format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in Part E of Schedule VI of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 is
enclosed as Annexure 8.

X. The Company has served a copy of the Company Application containing the Scheme to the Regional
Director, Eastern Region, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Registrar of Companies, West Bengal and
Official Liquidator, High Court, Calcutta and also to Income Tax authorities having jurisdiction over the
company.

XI. In the event that the Scheme is withdrawn in accordance with its terms, the Scheme shall stand
revoked, cancelled and be of no effect and null and void.

Xl Shareholding and Capital Structure of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company
(pre-scheme and post-scheme)

The shareholding pattern of the Transferor Company (pre-Scheme) and the Transferee Company
(pre-Scheme and post-Scheme) for equity shares as on June 30, 2025 is enclosed as Annexure 9.
Post-scheme capital structure and shareholding pattern of the Transferor Company is not applicable,
as the Transferor Company shall be dissolved upon the Scheme becoming effective.

XIIl. Pursuant to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI
Circular bearing no. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023, the detailed pre
scheme and post scheme (expected) capital structure and shareholding pattern of Transferor
Company and Transferee Company are given herein below:

a) Pre-scheme capital structure of Transferor Company as on June 30, 2025:

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
45,50,000 Equity Shares of INR 10 each 4,55,00,000

TOTAL | 4,55,00,000
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL
45,22,150 Equity Shares of INR 10 each 4,52,21,500
TOTAL | 4,52,21,500

b) Pre-scheme Shareholding pattern of Transferor Company as on June 30, 2025:
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Category | Category of Shareholders Pre Scheme Shareholding Pattern

Code
Total No. of |As a % total
Shares share capital

(A) Promoter and Promoter Group 45,02,150 99.56

(B) Public Shareholders 20000 0.44

© Non-Promoter Non - Public Shareholders | Nil 0

TOTAL (A) + (B) + (C) 45,22,150 100

Post-scheme capital structure and shareholding pattern of the Amalgamating Company is not
applicable, as the Amalgamating Company shall be dissolved upon the Scheme becoming effective.

C) Pre-scheme capital structure of Transferee Company as on June 30, 2025 on fully
diluted basis:

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

7,00,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 70,00,00,000
TOTAL | 70,00,00,000/-

ISSUED AND SUBSCRIBED SHARE CAPITAL*

3,99,96,638 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 39,99,66,380
TOTAL | 39,99,66,380/-

PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL*

3,99,90,464 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 39,99,04,640
TOTAL | 39,99,04,640/-

*The difference in issued and subscribed share capital and paid up share capital is for 6174 forfeited

shares in June 2002

d) Post-scheme capital structure of Transferee Company as on June 30, 2025 on fully
diluted basis:

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

7,45,50,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 74,55,00,000
TOTAL | 74,55,00,000/-

ISSUED AND SUBSCRIBED SHARE CAPITAL

4,65,31,145 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each* 46,53,11,450
TOTAL | 46,53,11,450 /-

PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

4,65,24,971 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each* 46,52,49,710
TOTAL | 46,52,49,710/-

The difference in issued and subscribed share capital and paid up share capital is for 6174 forfeited

shares in June 2002
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XIV.

XV.

€)

Pre-scheme &Post-scheme shareholding of Transferee Company as on June 30, 2025 on

fully diluted basis :

SI. | Category of | Pre Scheme Post Scheme
No. | Shareholders No. % No. of Shares %
Shares Shareholding ' Shareholding
(A) | Promoter and | 1 94.30,090 | 48.59% 259,36,507 | 55.75%
Promoter Group
(B) | Public Shareholders | 2,05,59,474 | 51.41% 2,05,88,374 44.25%
(C) | Non-Promoter Non - | . : . .
Public Shareholders Ni Ni i i
TOTAL (A) + (B) +(C) 3,99,90,464 | 100% 4,65,24,971 100.00%

Auditors’ Certificates of conformity of accounting treatment in the Scheme with the
Accounting Standards
The Statutory Auditor of the Transferee Company has confirmed that the accounting treatment
specified in the Scheme is in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133
of the Act. The same is attached as Annexure 12.

Certain information, as advised by the Stock Exchange in the Observation letter and email dated 9™
May, 2025 have been provided under the following aspects of this Explanatory Statement are as given

below:

Sl.
No.

Remarks in the Observation
Letter

Information required to be disclosed by the
Company

1

The Entity shall ensure that it
disclose all details of ongoing
adjudication & recovery
proceedings, prosecution
initiated and  all  other
enforcement action taken, if any,
against the Company, its
promoters and directors, before
the  Hon’ble NCLT and
shareholders, while  seeking
approval of the scheme.

Details of material ongoing adjudication & recovery
proceedings, prosecutions initiated and all other material
enforcement action taken against the company, its
promoters and directors, as applicable are enclosed
herewith as Annexure 10. The aforesaid details also
formed part of the Company application in C.A. (CAA)
153/KB/2025.

The Entity shall ensure that
additional information, if any,
submitted by the Company after
filing the scheme with the stock
exchange, from the date of
receipt of this letter, is displayed
on the websites of the listed
company and the stock
exchanges.

The Company hereby inform that no additional
information is submitted by the Company to the stock
exchange, subsequent to the date of receipt of this letter
from the exchange conveying their
observations/comments on the Scheme. Further all the
relevant information related of the scheme is already
displayed on the website of the company at
www.ashikagroup.comand on the stock exchange also.

The  Entity shall  ensure
compliance with the SEBI
circulars issued from time to
time. The entities involved in the
Scheme shall duly comply with
various provisions of the Master

The company hereby inform that the company will
ensure all compliance with the SEBI circulars including
with the provisions of the Master circular of the Scheme
from time to time. Further all the liabilities of Transferor
Company shall be transferred to the Transferee
Company as per paragraph 5.3 under Part-Il of the
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Circular and ensure that all the
liabilities of Transferor Company
are transferred to the Transferee
Company.

scheme.

The Entity is advised that the
information pertaining to the
unlisted companies involved, if
any, in the Scheme, shall be
included in the format specified
for the abridged prospectus as
provided in Part E of Schedule VI
of the ICDR Regulations, 2018,
in the explanatory statement or
notice or proposal accompanying
the resolution to be passed,
which is sent to the shareholders
for  seeking approval, if
applicable.

Information pertaining to the unlisted company involved
in the Scheme, i.e., Transferor Company, in the format
prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in Part
E of Schedule VI of the SEBI (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018read with
SEBI Scheme Circular, is already enclosed hereto as
Annexure 8.

VC Corporate Advisors Private Limited, an independent
SEBI registered merchant banker, having SEBI
Registration No. INM000011096 has issued certificates
for Abridged Prospectus certifying the accuracy and
adequacy of the information in the abridged prospectus.
The said certificates are also attached hereto as
Annexure 8.

The Entity shall ensure that the
financials in  the scheme
including financials considered
for valuation report are not for
period more than 6 months old, if
applicable.

It is hereby informed that the financial statements
considered in the scheme are not older than six months
from the date of approval of the scheme by the Board of
Directors. Further, the financial statements considered in
the valuation report are not older than six months from
the date of issuance of the valuation report by the IBBI-
registered valuer.

The Entity is advised that the
details of the proposed scheme
under consideration as provided
by the Company to the Stock
Exchange shall be prominently
disclosed in the notice sent to
the shareholders.

All the relevant details pertaining to the Scheme have
been set out in the Notice and the Statement annexed to
this Notice read with the Annexures enclosed hereto.

The Entity is advised that the
proposed equity shares to be
issued in terms of the "Scheme”
shall mandatorily be in demat
form only.

The shares that will be allotted upon coming into effect
of the Scheme will be in the de-materialized form only.
The same has been reflected in the Scheme also in
paragraph 11.5 under the head of CONSIDERATION of
the Scheme.

The Entity is advised that the
"Scheme" shall be acted upon
subject to the applicant
complying with the relevant
clauses mentioned in the
scheme document.

The company hereby inform that after getting approval
from the sanctioning authority i.e. the Hon'ble Tribunal,
Kolkata Bench, the applicant companies shall be acted
upon the relevant clauses of the scheme accordingly.

No changes to the draft scheme
except those mandated by the
regulators/authorities  /tribunals
shall be made without specific
written consent of SEBI.

No changes to the scheme will be made without specific
written consent from SEBI except those mandated by
the regulators/authorities /tribunals.

10

The Entity is advised that the

The company had received the observation letter of
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observations of  SEBI/Stock
exchanges shall be incorporated
in the petition to be filed before
NCLT and the company is
obliged to bring the observations
to the notice of NCLT.

SEBI/stock exchanges dated May 9, 2025 on the
Scheme and the same has been filed in Company
application vide C.A. (CAA) No. 153/KB/2025 which was
filed before the NCLT, Kolkata Bench. Further the said
copy of observation letter is enclosed to this notice as
Annexure 7.

1

The Entity is advised to comply
with all the applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013,
rules and regulations issued
thereunder including obtaining
the consent from the creditors for
the proposed scheme.

The company ensure to comply with all the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, rules and
regulations issued thereunder on the Scheme. Further
the consent of the creditors for the proposed scheme
has already been received and submitted before the
bench and accordingly the direction order was passed
on Company Application by the Hon’ble Tribunal on
June 25, 2025 read with corrigendum order dated 27t
June 2025.

12

The entity is advised to ensure

that the following additional disclosure to the public

shareholders as a part of the explanatory statement or notice or the proposal accompanying
the resolution to be passed to be forwarded by the company to the shareholders while
seeking approval u/s 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 -

12.i

The shareholding pattern of
Promoter/Promoter Group and
Public shareholders before and
after implementation of scheme.
Further a brief explanation
regarding the reasons for the
increase in shareholding of
Promoter/Promoter Group and
its impact on the public
shareholders in terms of their
rights and value of their holding
in the Company.

Details of assets, liabilities, net
worth and revenue of the
companies involved, Pre and
Post Scheme.

The shareholding pattern of Promoter/Promoter Group
and  Public  shareholders before and after
implementation of scheme is disclosed by the company
on very first page of the Notice (in bold text and
highlighted for visibility).

The change in the shareholding pattern of the
Promoter and Promoter Group is attributable to their
majority ownership in the Transferor Company,
which, upon implementation of the Scheme, results
in an increased holding in the Transferee Company.
The Scheme does not confer any special advantage
or impose any disadvantage on any class of
shareholders, including public shareholders, and
the impact of the Scheme is uniform and equitable
for all shareholders, without resulting in any
disproportionate benefit or prejudice to any
shareholder.

Upon implementation of the Scheme, the public
shareholding will decrease from 51.41% to 44.25%.

The details of assets, liabilities, net worth and
revenue of the companies as on 30" September
2024, for both pre and post scheme of amalgamation
is enclosed to this notice as Annexure 11 as
certified by a Chartered Accountant.
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12.ii

Details of assets, liabilities, net
worth and revenue of the
companies involved, for both pre
and post scheme of
arrangement.

The details of assets, liabilities, net worth and revenue
of the companies as on 30" September 2024, for both
pre and post scheme of amalgamation is enclosed to
this notice as Annexure 11as certified by a Chartered
Accountant.

12.i

Impact of scheme on revenue
generating capacity of
Transferee Company.

In accordance with the rationale outlined in the Scheme,
the consolidation of assets of the Transferor Company
with Transferee Company is expected to enhance the
revenue-generating capacity of the Transferee
Company. The integration of resources will likely result
in operational synergies, better resource utilisation
leading to improved efficiency and increased financial
performance. Consequently, the Transferee Company is
anticipated to experience higher revenue generation as
an outcome of the Scheme.

12.iv

Need and Rationale of the
scheme, Synergies of business
of the companies involved in the
scheme, Impact of the scheme
on the shareholders and cost
benefit analysis of the scheme.

The need and rationale of the Scheme is already
mentioned in paragraph (C) of VIII of this explanatory
Statement.

Since both the companies are involved in similar
business, hence the merger of both the companies will
leads to combined strength and would result in business
synergy, consolidation of the Companies and pooling of
their resources into a single entity.

Impact on the public shareholders:
The proposed scheme will result in synergies between

the businesses of the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company, including revenue synergies and
resulting in the expansion and long-term sustainable
growth, which will enhance the value for the
stakeholders of the company.

There will be strong synergies in the proposed
amalgamation contemplated in the Scheme, the merged
company will be better positioned to carry on the
combined businesses of the Transferor Company and
the Transferee Company which would have direct
access to capital, and thereby creating a unified larger
entity with greater financial strength and flexibility and
otherwise.

Therefore, considering the above, the Scheme will be
beneficial to the public shareholders of the Company.

Cost benefit analysis of the Scheme:
Although the Scheme would lead to the Applicant

Companies incurring costs towards its implementation,
the benefits of the Scheme over a longer period of time
will outweigh such costs for the stakeholders of the
Applicant Companies. The proposed Scheme would be
in the best interests of the Applicant companies and
their respective shareholders, employees, creditors and
other stakeholders for the reasons mentioned in above.
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12.v

Value of assets and liabilities of
Transferor Company that are
being transferred to Transferee
Company

The value of assets and liabilities of Transferor
Company that are being transferred to the Transferee
Company pursuant to the Scheme with effect from the
appointed date is enclosed to this notice as Annexure
11.

12.vi

Latest financials of transferor
and transferee  companies
should be wupdated on the
Website and same also to be
disclosed in the explanatory
statement.

The latest Audited financials of transferor company and
transferee company as on 31t March 2025 are updated
on the website of the company at www.ashikagroup.com
and the same is also enclosed to this Notice as
Annexure 13 and Annexure 14.

12.vii

Revised shareholding pattern of
transferor  and transferee
companies Pre and Post-Merger.

The Shareholding pattern of the transferor company (pre
merger) and transferee company (Pre and Post-
Merger)as on 30.06.2025 is enclosed as Annexure 9.

Post-merger shareholding pattern of the Transferor
company is not applicable, as the Transferor Company
shall be dissolved upon the Scheme becoming effective.

12.viii

Pre and Post scheme
shareholding of transferor and
transferee companies as on the
date of notice of Shareholders
meeting along with rationale for
changes, if any, occurred
between filing of Draft Scheme to
Notice to shareholders.

The details of the same is already mentioned above in
clause 12.vii. Further there is no change in the
shareholding pattern of the company between
30.06.2025 and as on the date of notice to
shareholders.

Post-merger shareholding pattern of the Transferor
company is not applicable, as the Transferor Company
shall be dissolved upon the Scheme becoming effective.

12.ix

Disclose all pending actions
against the entities involved in
the scheme its
promoters/directors/lKMPs  and
possible impact of the same on
the Transferee Company to the
shareholders.

Details of pending actions against the transferee
company and its promoters / directors / KMP are already
mentioned in clause 1 of this table. Further there will be
no impact of the same to the shareholders of the
Transferee Company.

12.x

Rationale  for
preferential issues of equity
shares and warrants in
Transferee Company along with
details of shareholders to whom
they were issued and whether
they impact of same was
considered while arriving at the
share-swap ratio.

undertaking

The rationale for undertaking the preferential issue of
equity shares and warrants was to secure long-term
funding in alignment with the Company's future outlook,
growth targets, and strategic objectives. The proceeds
from the issue are intended to support the Company's
business and funding requirements, including but not
limited to business growth, expansion, investments in
business entities, new initiatives related to the
Company’s operations. Such funding is expected to
enhance the financial flexibility of the Company and
enable it to capitalize on emerging opportunities in line
with its long-term vision.

The list to whom preferential shares and warrants in the
Transferee  Company were issued is enclosed as
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Annexure 15.

The preferential issues were subject to approvals from
the shareholders and the stock exchange, which were
neither known nor foreseeable as of the Valuation Date.
The status of the preferential allotment of shares and/or
warrants was not available on the Valuation Date and,
accordingly, was neither known to nor considered by the
valuer while undertaking the valuation

Consequently, on valuation date for determining share
exchange ratio, the valuation of the aforesaid
preferential issue does not have any impact on the
share exchange ratio.

12.xi | Entity shall ensure that applicable additional information, if any to be submitted to SEBI
along with draft scheme of arrangement as advised by email dated May 09, 2025, shall form
part of disclosures to the shareholders. The queries raised in said email are as follows:

1. In  cases of Demerger, | Not Applicable as it is a case of Scheme of
apportionment of losses of the | Amalgamation.
listed company among the
companies involved in the
scheme.

2. | Details of assets, liabilities, | The Details of assets, liabilities, revenue and net worth
revenue and net worth of the | of the companies involved in the scheme, both pre and
companies involved in  the | nost scheme of arrangement, along with a write up on
scheme, both pre and post the history of the Transferor Company certified by
scheme of arrangement, along .
with a write up on the history of Chartered Accogntant (CA) is .encloslt.ad as .Annexure
the demerged | 11, already mentioned under point 12.(ii) of this table.
undertaking/Transferor Company
certified by Chartered
Accountant (CA).

3. | Any type of arrangement or | There is no arrangement or agreement entered into by
agreement between the | the applicant companies, or any of their respective
demerged company / resulting | creditors, shareholders, promoters, directors, or any
company  / merged /| other stakeholders that may have any impact on the
amalgamated company/ | Scheme or affect the interests of the shareholders of the
creditors [/ shareholders /| listed entity.
promoters / directors/etc., which
may have any implications on
the scheme of arrangement as
well as on the shareholders of
listed entity.

4, In the cases of capital reduction/ | Not Applicable as it is a case of Scheme of

reorganization of capital of the
Company, Reasons along with
relevant provisions of
Companies  Act, 2013 or
applicable laws for proposed
utilization of reserves viz. Capital
Reserve, Capital Redemption
Reserve, Securities premium, as
a free reserve, certified by CA.

Amalgamation.
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In the cases of capital reduction/
reorganization of capital of the
Company, Built up for reserves
viz. Capital Reserve, Capital
Redemption Reserve, Securities
premium, certified by CA.

Not Applicable as it is a case of Scheme of
Amalgamation.

In the cases of capital reduction/
reorganization of capital of the
Company, Nature of reserves
viz. Capital Reserve, Capital
Redemption Reserve, whether
they are notional and/or
unrealized, certified by CA.

Not Applicable as it is a case of Scheme of
Amalgamation.

In the cases of capital reduction/
reorganization of capital of the
Company, the built up of the
accumulated losses over the
years, certified by CA.

Not Applicable as it is a case of Scheme of
Amalgamation.

Relevant sections of Companies
Act, 2013 and applicable Indian
Accounting  Standards  and
Accounting treatment, certified
by CA.

The scheme is covered under section 230-232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations)
Rules, 2016 as amended time to time.

Further the Statutory Auditor of the Transferee Company
has confirmed that the accounting treatment specified in
the Scheme is in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards - 103 prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act.

The said certificate is attached to this notice as
Annexure 12.

In case of Composite Scheme,
details of shareholding of
companies involved in the
scheme at each stage

Not Applicable as it is a case of Scheme of
Amalgamation.

10.

Whether the Board of unlisted
Company has taken the decision
regarding issuance of Bonus
shares. If yes provide the details
thereof.

The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company has
not taken any decision regarding the issuance of Bonus
Shares from the appointed date till the date of the notice
to the shareholders.

11.

List of comparable companies
considered  for  comparable
companies’ multiple method, if
the same method is used in
valuation.

Comparable companies’ multiple method is not used in
the valuation while arriving at the share swap ratio.

12.

Share Capital built-up in case of
scheme of arrangement involving
unlisted entity/entities, certified
by CA.

The capital built-up certificates of the Transferor
company since incorporation as certified by the
Chartered Accountant is enclosed as Annexure 16.

13.

Any action taken/pending by
Govt./Regulatory  body/Agency
against all the entities involved in
the scheme for the period of
recent 8 years.

No action taken or pending against the applicant
companies by the Govt./Regulatory body/Agency during
the last eight financial years.

14.

Comparison of revenue and net

Not Applicable as it is a case of Scheme of
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worth of demerged undertaking
with the total revenue and net
worth of the listed entity in last
three financial years.

Amalgamation.

15.

Detailed rationale for arriving at
the swap ratio for issuance of
shares as proposed in the draft
scheme of arrangement by the
Board of Directors of the listed
company.

The Board of Directors of the listed entity i.e. Transferee
Company, have taken into consideration the fair
valuation exercise carried out by the Independent IBBI
Registered Valuer — CA Vidhi Chandak (Registered
Valuer Registration No. IBBI/RV/06/2019/11186) to
arrive at the swap ratio for the purpose of the proposed
Scheme of Arrangement.

Further, the valuation report and the swap ratio
mentioned thereunder have been considered and
corroborated by a fairness opinion issued by VC
Corporate Advisors Private Limited Category -I SEBI
Registered Merchant Banker (Registration  No.
INM000011096).

It is pertinent to mention that the valuation report and the
proposed swap ratio has been duly considered and
adopted by the Audit Committee as well as by the
Committee of Independent Directors of the Transferee
Company.

16.

In case of Demerger, basis for
division of assets and liabilities
between divisions of Demerged
entity.

Not Applicable as it is a case of Scheme of
Amalgamation.

17.

How the scheme will be
beneficial to public shareholders
of the Listed entity and details of
change in value of public
shareholders pre and post
scheme of arrangement.

The Scheme would be beneficial to the shareholders of
the Transferee Company, including its public
shareholders, in ways as detailed as per clause Il of the
Scheme, attached as Annexure 2.

The swap ratio has been arrived at based on the
independent Registered Valuer's report issued by the
IBBI registered valuer and the Fairness Opinion issued
by a SEBI Registered Category | Merchant Banker. It is
on this basis that the shareholders of the Transferor
Company shall be allotted shares of the Transferee
Company. Hence, the value of the shareholders of the
respective companies (as considered for determining
the swap ratio) remains the same pre and post the
Scheme of Amalgamation since shareholders of the
Transferor Company will be receiving shares basis the
value of the shares held by them in the Transferor
company.

18.

Tax/other liability/benefit arising
to the entities involved in the
scheme, if any.

The tax and other benefits arising from the Scheme are
detailed in Clause 5, with specific reference to Clause
5.5 of the Scheme. Further, the Scheme provides that
pursuant to the effectiveness of the Scheme, amongst
others, all assets, liabilities, obligations, rights, titles,
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XVI.

litigation of the Transferor Company shall stand
transferred to and vest with the Transferee Company.

It is further clarified and submitted that other than what is
mentioned in the Scheme, no tax, other liability, benefit
shall arise in the hands of the Transferor Company and
the Transferee Company.

19.

Comments of the Company on
the  Accounting  treatment
specified in the scheme to
conform  whether it is in
compliance with the Accounting
Standards/Indian ~ Accounting
Standards.

The Company confirms that the accounting treatment
specified in the Scheme is in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards - 103 prescribed under Section
133 of the Act as confirmed by the Statutory Auditor of
the Transferee Company, enclosed as Annexure 12.

20.

If the Income Approach method
used in the Valuation, Revenue,
PAT and EBIDTA (in value and
percentage terms) details of
entities involved in the scheme
for all the number of years
considered for  valuation.
Reasons justifying the
EBIDTA/PAT margin considered
in the valuation report.

The Valuer has not used the Income Approach method
(please refer para 8 of the Valuation Report or the Fair
Share Exchange ratio report dated 31st July 2024) and
therefore reasons justifying the EBITDA/PAT margin
considered is also not applicable.

21.

Confirmation that the valuation
done in the scheme is in
accordance  with  applicable
valuation standards.

The company ensures that the valuation done in the
scheme for determining the share entitlement ratio by
the IBBI registered valuer is in accordance with
applicable valuation standards.

22.

Confirmation that the scheme is
in compliance with the applicable
securities laws.

The company ensure that the scheme is in compliance
with the applicable securities laws as amended time to
time.

23.

Confirmation that the
arrangement proposed in the

The company ensures that the arrangement proposed in
the scheme is yet to be executed.

scheme is yet to be executed.

In addition to the documents annexed hereto, copies of the following documents will be available for
inspection through electronic mode on the Transferee Company’s website at www.ashikagroup.com at
the link https://ashikagroup.com/accl/investor/scheme.html _and open for inspection by the
Members at the Registered Office of TRANSFEREE COMPANY / APPLICANT NO 2 on all
working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays) up to the date of the meeting
between 11:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. up to the date of the ensuing Meeting, for which Shareholders
are required to send an e-mail to the Company Secretary at secretarial@ashikagroup.com.

o0 o

Scheme of Amalgamation;

Valuation report dated July 31, 2024 issued by CA, Vidhi Chandak;

Fairness Opinion dated July 31, 2024 issued by VC Corporate Advisors Private Limited;
Copy of letter issued by the BSE Ltd conveying their observation on the Scheme;

Copy of the Order dated 25" June,2025 read with corrigendum order dated 27t June 2025 passed

in Company Application No. C.A.(CAA)NO.153 /KB/2025 by the Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal of Kolkata;
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f. Copy of the Auditors’ certificate to the effect that the accounting treatment in the Scheme of
Amalgamation is in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013;

Copies of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Applicant Companies;

Copy of Audited Balance Sheet of the Transferee Company for the year ended 31.03.2025;

Copy of Audited Balance Sheet of the Transferor Company for the year ended 31.03.2025;

Reports adopted by the Board of Directors of both the Transferor Company and the Transferee

Company at their respective meetings held on July 31, 2024 pursuant to Section 232(2)(c) of the

Companies Act, 2013.

k. Reports of the Audit Committee and the Independent Directors Committee of the Transferee
Company dated July 31, 2024 recommending the Scheme;

. Information in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus pertaining to the unlisted entity i.e.,
Yaduka Financial Services Limited involved in the Scheme as provided in Part E of Schedule VI of
SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

m. The share capital built-up for the Transferor Company duly certified by Chartered Accountant;

n. The shareholding pattern of the transferor (pre scheme) and the transferee company (pre scheme
and post scheme) for equity shares as on 30" June 2025 ;

0. Details of ongoing adjudication & recovery proceedings, prosecution initiated, and all other
enforcement action taken, if any, against the company, its promoters and directors and details of
regulatory actions against the entities involved;

p. Details of assets, liabilities, net worth and revenue of the companies involved, pre and post
scheme, including value of assets and liabilities of Transferor Company that are being transferred
to Transferee Company, as on September 30, 2024.

g. Copy of Compliant report submitted by Transferee company to BSE Limited

s. Other relevant documents will also be displayed on the website of the Transferee Company’

XV, This statement may be treated as an Explanatory Statement under Sections 102 ,230 to 232 of the
Act read with Rule 6 of the Rules. Hard copies of the Particulars as defined in this Notice can be
obtained free of charge, from the registered office of the Company, on a requisition being so made by
the equity shareholders of the Company, along with details of your shareholding in the company by
sending an email request on secretarial@ashikagroup.com.

XVIIL. After the Scheme is approved, by the equity shareholders of the Company, it will be subject to the
approval sanction by NCLT or any other statutory or regulatory authorities as may be applicable.

Dated this 5 Day of July,2025
Place: Kolkata Sd/-
Rahul Parasrampuria
Chairperson appointed for the Meetings
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ANNEXURE -1

DIVISION BENCH M-1 (MENTIONING)
COURT -1
NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
KOLKATA BENCH
KOLKATA
C.A.(CAA)/153(KB)2025

CORAM: 1. HON'BLE MEMBER(J), SMT. BIDISHA BANERIJEE
2. HON'BLE MEMBER(T), CMDE SIDDHARTH MISHRA

ORDER SHEET OF THE HEARING ON 27™ JUNE 2025

IN THE MATTER OF YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICESLIMITED

UNDER SECTION SEC. 230-232, SEC 234
Appearance (via video conferencing/physically)

CORRIGENDUM ORDER

1. Upon mentioning the order dated 25" June, 2025, learned Counsel, Ms. Aisha Amin,
appearing on behalf of the Petitiooner states that in the said order, some inadvertent
error has crept in and the same needs to be corrected. On being satisfied, we amend the
order as under:

(a) At page No.l, in the cause title, “ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED, a
company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 and being a Company
within the meaning of the Companies Act, 2013 having Corporate Identification
No. U67120WB1994PLC062159 and its registered office at 226/1, A.J.C Bose
Road, Trinity, 7th Floor, Kolkata- 700020, in the state of West Bengal.” will be
replaced by “ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED, a company incorporated
under the Companies Act, 1956 and being a Company within the meaning of the
Companies  Act, 2013 having Corporate Identification No.
L67120WB1994PLC062159 and its registered office at 226/1, A.J.C Bose Road,
Trinity, 7th Floor, Kolkata- 700020, in the state of West Bengal”

2. Rest of the order dated 25" June, 2025 will remain unchanged.

Siddharth Mishra Bidisha Banerjee
Member (Technical) Member (Judicial)
SM (Steno)
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IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
DIVISION BENCH, (COURT NO.-I)
KOLKATA

Company Application (CAA) No. 153/KB/2025

An application under Section 230(1) read with Section 232(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules,2016,
and other applicable provisions of the law.

IN THE MATTER OF:
A Scheme of Amalgamation of (First Motion):

YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED, a company incorporated
under the Companies Act, 1956 and being a Company within the
meaning of the Companies Act, 2013 having Corporate Identification
No. U51109WB2007PLC117012 and its registered office at 16/1A,
Abdul Hamid Street, 27d Floor, Room No- 2B, previously Known as
British India Street) Kolkata- 700069, in the state of West Bengal.

.... Transferor Company /Applicant Company No. 1

With

ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED, a company incorporated under
the Companies Act, 1956 and being a Company within the meaning of
the Companies Act, 2013 having Corporate Identification No.
U67120WB1994PLC062159 and its registered office at 226/1, A.J.C
Bose Road, Trinity, 7t Floor, Kolkata- 700020, in the state of West
Bengal.

.... Transferee Company /Applicant Company No. 2

IN THE MATTER OF:
i. YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED.

ii. ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED.

.... Applicants

Date of Pronouncement: 25.06.2025
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IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
DIVISION BENCH, (COURT NO.-I)

KOLKATA
C.A.(CAA) No.153/KB/2025
Coram:
Smt. Bidisha Banerjee : Member (Judicial)
Cmde. Siddharth Mishra : Member (Technical)

Appearances (via Hybrid Mode):
Ms. Manju Bhuteria, Sr. Adv : For the Applicants
Ms. Aisha Amin, Adv

ORDER

Per: Bidisha Banerjee, Member (Judicial)

1. The court convened through hybrid mode.

2. The instant application has been filed in the first stage of the
proceedings under Section 230(1) read with Section 232(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) for orders and directions with regard
to meetings of shareholders and creditors in connection with the

Scheme of Amalgamation of the following Transferor Companies:

SL.No Name of the Company

Transferor Company No. 1 | Yaduka Financial Services Limited

With Ashika Credit Capital Limited, being the Applicant
Company No. 2 above named ("Transferee Company') whereby
and whereunder the Transferor Companies are proposed to be
amalgamated with the Transferee Company from the Appointed
Date, viz. 1st October 2024 in the manner and on the terms and
conditions stated in the said Scheme of Amalgamation

(“Scheme”).

The Copy of the said Scheme of Amalgamation is annexed to the
Company Petition being- Annexure- E in Volume II at Page
No(s). 317-347.

3. The Ld. Counsels appearing for the Applicant Companies submits
that the Applicant Company No. 1 and 2 are all Non Banking
Finance Company (NBFC) duly registered with Reserve Bank of

Page 2 of 13
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DIVISION BENCH, (COURT NO.-I)
KOLKATA

C.A.(CAA) No.153/KB/2025

India and are holding a valid certificate of Registration issued by

the said Bank.

4. The Ld. Counsels appearing for the Applicant Companies submits
that Ashika Credit Capital Limited- Transferee Company /
Applicant Company No. 2 is a listed company and its shares are

listed in the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE).

5. The Ld. Counsels appearing for the Applicant Companies submits
that the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company /
Applicant Company No. 2 have at their respective meeting held on
31.07.2024 have passed resolution adopting the proposed
Scheme of Amalgamation. Thereafter the Board of
Directors/Committee of the Applicant Companies have at their
respective meeting held on 17.09.2024 and 06.01.2025, as
applicable, have passed resolution incorporating the changes
sought by the Bombay Stock Exchange in the Scheme for

issuance of their observation letter on the Scheme.

The copy of the Resolution passed by the Applicant Company No.
2 is annexed with the Company Application being- Annexure- H1

in Volume III at Page No(s). 353-366.

6. The Ld. Counsels appearing for the Applicant Companies submits
that the certificate from Statutory Auditor of the Transferee
Company / Applicant Company No. 2 confirming that the
Accounting Treatment dated 31.07.2024, contained in the
Scheme, is in conformity with the applicable Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

is issued at the request of the Transferee Company.

A copy of the said Certificate issued by Statutory Auditor of the
Applicant Company No. 2 is annexed to the Company Application
being- Annexure - L in Volume V at Page No(s). 650 to 654.

Page 3 of 13
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KOLKATA

C.A.(CAA) No.153/KB/2025

7. The Ld. Counsels appearing for the Applicant Companies submits
that the Valuation Report regarding recommendation of Swap
Ratio for the proposed amalgamation of Yaduka Financial
Services Limited with Ashika Credit Capital Limited dated
31.07.2024 has been prepared by Mr. Vidhi Chandak, a
registered valuer having Registration No.
IBBI/RV/06/2019/11186.

A copy of the said Valuation Report is annexed to the Company
Application being- Annexure- I in Volume III at Page No(s). 367
to 387.

8. The Ld. Counsels appearing for the Applicant Companies further
submits that as per the Swap Ratio recommended the Transferee
Company will allot shares to the shareholders of the Transferor

Company:

“1,445(0One thousand four hundred forty-five) equity shares of
Transferee Company having a face value of INR 10/- each fully
paid-up shall be issued for every 1000 (One thousand) equity
shares held in Transferor Company having a face value INR 10/ -
each fully paid-up.”

9. The Ld. Counsels appearing for the Applicant Companies submits
that the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited have vide letter No.
DCS/AMAL/TS/R37/3612/2025-26 dated 09.05.2025 have
conveyed their observation / comments on the Scheme and have
also given direction to the Applicant Company No. 2 for due

compliance.

A copy of the said Letter is annexed to the Company Application
being Annexure- F in Volume II at Page No(s). 348 to 350.

10. The Ld. Counsels appearing for the Applicants Companies
submits that as directed by the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
in their letter No. DSC/AMAL/TS/R37/3612/2025-26 dated
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DIVISION BENCH, (COURT NO.-I)
KOLKATA

C.A.(CAA) No.153/KB/2025

09.05.2025 the Applicant Company No. 2 have annexed list of all

ongoing adjudication.

A copy of the said Report is annexed to the Company Application
being Annexure- G in Volume II at Page No(s). 351.

11. The Ld. Counsels appearing for the Applicant Companies
submits that the Reserve Bank of India have vide letter No.
KOL.DOR.DOR.NO.S189/99-06-009/2024-25 dated 06.01.2024
have granted their No-objection to the proposed Scheme of

Amalgamation.

A copy of the said Letter is annexed to the Company Application

being Annexure- H in Volume II at Page No(s). 352.

12. The Ld. Counsels appearing for the Applicant Companies

submits that the Applicants have the following classes of

Shareholders and Creditors:-

SL Name of Equity Secured Unsecured
No. the Shareholders Creditor Creditor
Company
1 Yaduka 7 Nos NIL 2 Nos
Financial (Page No. (Page No.
Services 388-408 of 594-602 of
Limited Application) Application)
NOC in 1 unsecured
Affidavit —100 creditor due
% paid of dated-
24.04.2025.
NOC in
Affidavit —100
%
2 Ashika 3635 Nos 3 Nos 11 Nos
Credit
Capital (Page No. (Page No. (Page No.
Limited 409-593 of 603 608 to 610
Application) -605 of and 646 to
Application) 649 of
Page 5 of 13
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KOLKATA
C.A.(CAA) No.153/KB/2025
Meeting to be Application)
Convened. 3 secured
creditor due | 10 unsecured
paid of creditor due
dated- paid of.
01.04.2025
and NOC in
16.05.2025. | Affidavit —100
%

13. The Applicant Companies herein have sought following

directions:

a) Dispensing with the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of
the Transferor Company / Applicant Company No. 1.

b) Dispensing with the meeting of the Unsecured Creditor of
the both Applicant Companies.

c) Dispensing with the meeting of the Secured Creditor of the
Transferor Company.

d) Necessary directions for convening, holding, and
conducting the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the
Transferee Company / Applicant Company No. 2.

14. We have duly considered the submissions made by the Ld.
Counsels appearing for the Applicant Companies and upon
perusing the records and documents in the instant proceedings
and considering the submissions made on behalf of the
Applicants, we allow the instant application and make the

following orders:

A. Meetings dispensed:

Equity Shareholders

Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of Applicant Company
No. 1 for considering the Scheme of Amalgamation is
dispensed with in view of shareholders representing 100%
in value of shares of Applicant Company No. 1 have given

their consent to the Scheme by way of affidavits.
Page 6 of 13
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Unsecured Creditors

Meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of Applicant Company
No. 1 and 2 for considering the Scheme of Amalgamation is
dispensed with in view unsecured creditors representing
100% in value of shares of Applicant Company No. 1 and 2
having respectively given their consent to the Scheme by
way of affidavits.

B. No requirement of Meetings

No requirement of Meeting of Secured Creditors of Applicant
Company No. 1- NIL creditors duly verified by auditor’s
certficate.

No requirement of Meeting of Secured Creditors of Applicant
Company No. 2 as all Secured Creditors have been fully
paid off prior to the filling of company application as verified
by the auditor’s certificate.

C. Meeting to be held:

Meeting of Equity Shareholders of Transferee Company /
Applicant Company No. 2 to be held.

D. Meetings date and time

The meeting of Equity Shareholders of Transferee Company
/ Applicant Company No. 2 will be held within 90 days from
the date of pronouncement of order by this bench. The
Chairperson appointed by this bench shall in consultation
with the Transferee Company / Applicant Company No. 2
shall fix suitable date and time for the meeting as per their
mutual convenience.

E. Mode of Meetings

The Meeting of Equity Shareholders of Transferee Company
/ Applicant Company No. 2 shall be held through Virtual

mode only.

Page 7 of 13
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F. Mode of Voting

The Equity Shareholders of Transferee Company /
Applicant Company No. 2 shall vote on the resolution
through remote e-voting only.

G. Agency for E-Voting

The Transferee Company / Applicant Company No. 2 shall
engage any of the agencies which are approved by the
Ministry of Coporate Affairs under Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014
for providng the platform for both remote e-voting and e-
voting at the meeting.

H. Advertisement:

At least 30 (thirty) clear days before the meeting to be held,

as aforesaid, an advertisement of the notice of meeting,
stating that copies of the Scheme and other relevant
documents under Section 230 — 232 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 is being
sent with the notice of meeting, be published once each in
the “FINANCIAL EXPRESS” in English in all India Edition
and “AAJKAL” in Bengali as per Rule 7 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules,

201e6.

I. Individual Notices:

At least 30 (thirty) clear days before the date of the meeting
to be held, as aforesaid, notice convening the said meeting,
along with all documents required to be sent with the same,
including a copy of the said Scheme, statement precsribed
under the provisions of the act for disclosing necessary
details, shall be sent to all Equity Shareholders of the
Transferee Company / Applicant Company No. 2 as

required under Section 230(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
Page 8 of 13
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read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises,

Arrangements and Amalgamation) Rules, 2016.

The said notices along with accompanying documents shall
also be posted on the websites of Transferee Company /

Applicant Company No. 2.

Further any person who becomes a member of the company
subsequent to the Cut off date, then such person shall
approach the company for service upon him a copy of the
said notice the company or the agency engaged by the
company shall serve the same upon him not later than
three (3) days from the date of communication of the

request by the modes prescribed in this order.

J. Chairperson:

Adv. Rahul Paras Rampuria having Mobile No.

9831042317, Email-id- parasrampuriarahul@wgmail.com
is appointed as the Chairperson of the meeting to be held,
as aforesaid. The Chairperson shall be paid a consolidated
sum of Rs. 1,00,000/- for conducting the aforesaid
meeting as Chairperson including any adjournment

thereof.

K. Scrutinizer:

Bidisha Achari, PCS having Mobile No. 8777713948 and
Email-id- bidisha.a2704@gmail.com is appointed as the

Scrutinizer of the meeting to be held, as aforesaid. The
Scrutinizer shall be paid a consolidated sum of Rs.
75,000/- for conducting the aforesaid meeting as

Scrutinizer including any adjournment thereof.
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L. Quorum and Attendance:

The quorum for the said meeting of persons entitled to
attend the same shall be determined in accordance with

Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In the event no quorum is present at the said meeting
within 30 minutes from commencement of meeting then in
such event the Equity Shareholders who have logged in and

joined the meeting shall constitute the quorum.

M. Cut-off date:

For Dispatch of Notices

The cut-off date for dispatch of notice in respect of Equity
Shareholders of Transferee Company / Applicant Company
No. 2 shall be list drawn on a Friday which will be at least
35 days preceding the date of the meeting fixed mutually by

the company and chairperson for the meeting.

For Eligibility and Values of votes

The eligibility and values of votes in respect of Equity
Shareholders of Transferee Company / Applicant Company
No. 2 shall be list drawn on a Friday which shall not be
more than seven days preceding the date of the meeting
fixed mutually by the company and chairperson for the

meeting.

N. Proxies & Board Resolution:

Since the meeting is conducted virtual no proxies will be
allowed as notice and e voting details will be sent to the
registered email id of the shareholders only. In case of a
Body Corporate, being a Equity Shareholder of Transferee
Company/ Applicant No 2 opting to attend and vote at the
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meeting, through its authorized representative, such Body
Corporate may do so provided a certified copy of the
resolution of its Board of Directors or other governing body
authorizing such representative to attend and vote at the
meeting on its behalf is filed with the registered email id of
the Transferee Company/ Applicant No 2 not later than
forty-eight hours before the time for holding the meeting.

O. Authorization to issue notice

The Chairperson appointed for the meeting or any person
authorized by the Chairperson do issue and send the

notices of the aforesaid meeting.

P. Attendance Slip and Route Map

Since the meeting is being held through Virtual Mode,
Attendance Slip and Route Map are not required to be

annexed to the notice convening the said meeting.

Q. Report of the Scrutinizer

The votes cast shall be scrutinized by the Scrutinizer. The
Scrutinizer shall prepare and submit the respective reports
on the meeting(s) along with all papers relating to the voting
to the Chairperson of the meeting(s) within 2 days from the
conclusion of the meeting(s). The Chairperson shall declare
the results of the meetings after submission of the reports

of the Scrutinizer.

R. Filing of Report by the Chairperson

The Chairperson appointed by this Bench will file his report
on the meeting as directed herein above in Form No CAA 4
within seven days from the conclusion of the meeting duly

affirmed by his affidavit.
Page 11 of 13
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S. Filing of Company Petition

The Applicants will file Company Petition within seven days

from the date of filing of the Report by the Chairperson.

14. The Applicant Companies shall serve a notice under Section 230(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 along with all accompanying documents,
including a copy of the aforesaid Scheme under the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 on:

a) the Regional Director, Eastern Region, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Kolkata,;
b) the Registrar of Companies, Kolkata, West Bengal with
whom the Applicants are registered;
c) the Official Liquidator, High Court, Calcutta;
d) the Income Tax Department having jurisdiction over the
Applicants
These notices shall be sent by hand delivery through special
messenger or by post and by email within two weeks from the
date of receiving this order and shall specify that representation, if
any, should be filed before this Tribunal within 30 days from the date
of receipt of the notice with a copy of such representation being
simultaneously sent to the Authorized Representative of the said
Applicants. If no such representation is received by the Tribunal within
such period, it shall be presumed that such authorities have no
representation to make on the said Scheme of Amalgamation. Such
notice shall be sent pursuant to Section 230(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules 2016 in Form No. CAA3 of
the said Rules with necessary variations, incorporating the directions
herein.
Further it is directed that since the Reserve Bank of India have
already given their No-objection to the proposed Scheme of

Amalgamation no further notice to be served upon them.
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Similarly it is directed that since Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited have already given their observation on the scheme no
further notice be served upon them, however the applicants will
ensure strict compliance of the observations.
15. The Applicant Companies shall file an affidavit of service of notice
and compliance of all directions contained herein at least a week before
the meeting(s) to be held.

16. The application being CA(CAA) No.153/KB/2025 is disposed of
accordingly.

17. Urgent Certified copy of the order may be issued, if applied for, be

supplied to the parties, upon compliance with all the requisite

formalities.
(Cmde. Siddharth Mishra) (Bidisha Banerjee)
Member (Technical) Member (Judicial)
Order signed on the 25t Day of June 2025
S.T. LRA
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ANNEXURE- 2

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION
OF
YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
(“Yaduka” or “Transferor Company”)
WITH AND INTO
ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED
(“Ashika” or “Transferee Company”)
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS
UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

FuYADUKAFlNANC\ALSERV\CES LIMITED For Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.

«]. M
W Director

Managig
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GENERAL

L PREAMBLE OF THE SCHEME

This Scheme of Amalgamation (hereinafter referred to as “Scheme” or “Scheme of Amalgamation”) is
presented under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act (as defined below) and other applicable
provisions of Applicable Laws (as defined below) including any statutory modification(s) amendment(s)
or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force and in compliance with the provisions of Section
2(1B) and other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, for the amalgamation of Yaduka
Financial Services Limited (“Yaduka” or “Transferor Company”) with and into Ashika Credit Capital
Limited (“Ashika” or “Transferee Company™) as a going concern. In addition, this scheme also
provides for various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected therewith. Yaduka

and Ashika are collectively referred to as “Companies” and individually as “Company”.
IL DESCRIPTION OF COMPANIES

1. VADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED, having Corporate Identity Number (“CIN”)
U51109WB2007PLC117012 is an unlisted public limited company incorporated on 09" July 2007 under
the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office at 16/1A, Abdul Hamid Steet, 2™ Floor, Room
No — 2B, (Previously Known as British India Street), Kolkata - 700069, West Bengal, India. Its
authorized share capital is INR 4,55,00,000 (Indian Rupees Four Crores Fifty-Five Lakhs only). It is,
inter alia, a registered Non-Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC”) holding
Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), issued on 11" September 2013
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (Certificate of Registration No. being
N.05.06760). It is engaged in the business of providing finance and dealing in shares and mutual funds.

2. ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED, having Corporate Identity Number (“CIN”)
L67120WB1994PLC062159 is a public limited company, listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited (“BSE”) incorporated on 08" March 1994 under the Companies Act, 1956 and having its
registered office 226/1 A.J.C. Bose Road Trinity 7% Floor, Kolkata - 700020, West Bengal, India. Its
authorized share capital is INR 35,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Thirty Five Crores only)! . It is, inter alia,
a registered Non-Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Financial Institution (“NBFI”), classified as a NBFC-
ICC, Base Layer (BL) NBFC, holding Certificate of Registration as an NBFC issued on 7" September
1998. The Company is engaged in fund-based activities like providing loans and advances, inter-

corporate deposits, loans against securities, and investments in shares and securities.
III. RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION

The Scheme is intended to consolidate the business of the Companies in a manner which is expected to
enable better realization of potential of their businesses, yield beneficial results and enhanced value
creation for the Companies, their respective shareholders and stakeholders. The émalgamation of the
Transferor Company with and into the Transferee Company would inter alia have the following

benefits:

1 On September 17, 2024, the Board approved increase in the authorized share capital from INR 35,00,00,000
(Indian Rupees Thirty Five only) to INR 70,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Seventy Crores only). This increase is
pending approval from shareholders’ at the proposed Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) to be held on October
17, 2024.

Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.
Fot YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES Lion - o

b JA L tr L
W Directot
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a)

b)

d)

e)

The Transferee Company and the Transferor Company are Non-Banking Finance Company duly
registered with Reserve Bank of India and are engaged in Investing and Financing activities. The
business of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company can be combined/adjusted and
carried forward conveniently with combined strength and would result in business synergy,

consolidation of the Companies and pooling of their resources into a single entity.

Consolidation of the businesses of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, for creation of
a larger unified entity and to achieve optimal and efficient utilization of capital, resulting in lesser
overheads including administrative, managerial, and other expenditure, optimal utilization of resources,

and provide a common governance structure;

The Transferee Company is expected to have improved financial strength upon amalgamation.
Particularly, the Companies believe that the combined operation shall lead to industry-leading revenue
growth and profitability. Further, the Companies expect that their combined balance sheet will provide

diverse strategic options and flexibility.

Pooling of knowledge and expertise of both the Parties and align with the business plans to meet long-

term objectives and enhance operational and management efficiencies;

Unification and streamlining of legal and regulatory compliances currently required to be carried out by

both, the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

In view of the aforesaid, the Board of Directors of the respective Companies have considered the
proposed amalgamation of the entire undertaking and business of the Transferor Company as a going
concern into and with the Transferee Company to benefit the stakeholders of the respective Companies.
Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the respective Companies have formulated this Scheme for the
amalgamation of the Undertaking (as defined hereinafter) of the Transferor Company into and with the
Transferee Company pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the Act, and in
accordance with section 2(1B) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (on a going concern basis) and other

Applicable Laws (as defined hereinafter).

PARTS OF THIS SCHEME
This Scheme is divided into the following parts:

(a) Part I deals with the definitions and interpretation, date of taking effect of this Scheme and the

Share Capital of the respective Companies;

(b) Part II deals with the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with and into the Transferee

Company; and

(¢c) PartIII deals with the general terms and conditions applicable to this Scheme.

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITeY For Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.
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1.4

PART I

DEFINITIONS., INTERPRETATIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURES

DEFINITIONS:

In this Scheme, unless repugnant or contrary to the context, the following expressions shall have the

meaning given below:

“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and any rules, regulations, circulars or guidelines issued
thereunder as amended from time to time and shall include any statutory replacement or re-enactment

thereof;

“Amalgamation” means amalgamation of the Transferor Company with and into the Transferee
Company on a going concern basis in terms of the Scheme (as defined hereinafter) in its present form or

with any modification(s) as approved by the NCLT (as defined hereinafter),

“Applicable Law(s)” or “Law(s)” means any applicable approval, bye-law, clearance, decree,
directive, guideline, judgment, law, circular, notification, order, ordinance, regulation, requirement, rule
of law, policy, statute, or any similar form of determination by or decision of any Appropriate Authority,
or any interpretation or adjudication having the force of law of any of the foregoing, that is binding on
or applicable to a person, whether in effect as of the date on which this Scheme has been approved by
the Boards of the Companies or at any time thereafter, including but not limited to any modification or

re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, whether in or outside India;

“Appointed Date” means the opening of business hours on 01st October 2024, or such other date as
may be agreed between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company and approved by the

Appropriate Authority,

“Appropriate Authority” means any government, statutory, regulatory, departmental or public body or
authority of the jurisdiction over the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, including

Registrar of Companies, Reserve Bank of India and the NCLT;

i.  any national, commonwealth, country, state, territory, provincial, district, local or similar
governmental, statutory, regulatory, administrative authority, agency, board, branch,
commission, department or public body or authority, tribunal or court or other entity, in each
case authorized to make laws, rules, regulations, standards, requirements, procedures or to pass
directions or orders, in each case having the force of law;

ii.  any non-governmental regulatory or administrative authority, body or other organization to the
extent that the rules, regulations and standards, requirements, procedures or orders of such
authority, body or other organization have the force of law;

iii.  any stock exchange of India or any other country, the Registrar of Companies, Regional
Director, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Reserve Bank of India, SEBI, Official Liquidator,
NCLT, and any other sectoral regulators or authorities as may be applicable; and

iv.  anybody exercising executive, legislative, judicial, regulatory or administrative functions
including delegated function/ authority of or pertaining to government, including any
government authority, agency, department, board, commission or instrumentality or any

political subdivision thereof or an arbitrator and any self-regulatory organization.

i i ital Lid.
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1.6 "BSE' means BSE Limited;

1.7 “Board of Directors” or “Board” means the board of directors of the Companies, as the context may

require, and includes committees of the Board (if any) constituted for the implementation of this

Scheme;
1.8 “Companies” means collectively, the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company;
1.9 “Consent” means any notice, consent, approval, authorization, waiver, permit, permission, clearance,

license, exemption, no objection certificate, registration, with, of, from or to any Person;

1.10 “Effective Date” means the last of the dates on which the certified copies of the sanction order of the
NCLT are filed with the Registrar of Companies by the Companies, and all actions set out in Clause 22
have been duly completed. This Scheme shall be operative with effect from the Effective Date, in its
present form or with any modification(s), approved or directed by the NCLT or any other Appropriate
Authority and shall then become effective from the Appointed Date, as defined in Section 232(6) of the
Act in terms of respective parts of this Scheme. Any reference in this Scheme to “on this Scheme
becoming effective” or “upon this Scheme becoming effective” or “effectiveness of this Scheme”

shall mean the "Effective Date”;

1.11 “Employees” means all the employees of the Transferor Company who are on the payroll of the

Transferor Company as on the Effective Date;

1.12 “Encumbrance” means any mortgage, pledge, equitable interest, assignment by way of security,
conditional sales contract, hypothecation, right of other persons, claim, seciJrity interest, encumbrance,
title defect, title retention agreement, voting trust agreement, interest, opinion, lien, charge,
commitment, restriction or limitation of any nature whatsoever, including restriction on use, voting
rights, transfer, receipt of income of exercise of any other attribute of ownership, right of set off, or any
other security interest of any kind whatsoever, or any agreement, whether conditional or otherwise to

create any of the same and the term “Encumbered” shall be construed accordingly;

1.13 “Governmental Authority” shall mean any governmental, political, legislative, executive or
administrative body, municipal or any local or other authority, regulatory authority, court, tribunal or
arbitral tribunal, judicial or quasi-judicial body, exercising powers conferred by Applicable Law in India

or any other applicable jurisdiction;

1.14 “GST” means goods and services tax and shall include any statutory modifications, re-enactments or

amendments thereof and the rules made thereunder, for the time being in force;
1.15 “INR” means Indian Rupee, the lawful currency of the Republic of India.

1.16 "IT Act" means the Income-Tax, Act 1961 read with the applicable rules there under, and any statutory
amendments or re-enactment thereof read with applicable rules as may be prescribed or notified by the

Government of India, from time to time;

1.17 “Intellectual Property Rights” or “IPR” means, whether registered or not in the name of or
recognized under Applicable Law(s) as being intellectual property of the Transferor Company, or in the
nature of common law rights of the Transferor Company, all domestic and foreign (a) trademarks,

service marks!‘iA ?‘rcalgg é’%si[!m”’ﬂ domain names, websites, online web portals, trade names, logos,
UKAFl = . . .
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trade dress and all applications and registration for the foregoing, and all goodwill associated with the
foregoing and symbolized by the foregoing; (b) confidential and proprietary information and trade
secrets; (c) published and unpublished works of authorship, and copyrights therein, and registrations and
applications therefor, if any, and all renewals, extensions, restorations and reversions thereof, (d)
computer software, programs (including source code, object code, firmware, operating systems and
specifications) and processes; (e) designs, drawings, sketches; (f) tools, databases, frameworks,
customer data, proprietary information, knowledge, any other technology or know-how, licenses,
software licenses and formulas; (g) ideas and all other intellectual property or proprietary rights; and (h)

all rights in all of the foregoing provided by Applicable Law(s);

1.18 “NCLT” means the National Company Law Tribunal constituted under Section 408 of the Act as
constituted and authorized as per the provisions of the Act for approving any scheme of arrangement,
compromise or reconstruction of companies under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and shall include, if
applicable, such other forum or authority as may be vested with the powers of a tribunal for the purposes

of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act as may be applicable;

1.19 “Parties” shall mean collectively the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company and the term

“Party” shall mean each of them, individually.
1.20 "RBI" shall mean the Reserve Bank of India;

1.21 “Record Date” means a date to be fixed by the Board of the Transferee Company for the purposes of
determining the shareholders of the Transferor Company to whom equity shares of the Transferee
Company would be allotted pursuant to the Amalgamation, in accordance with Clause 11 of this

Scheme;
1.22 “ROC” or “Registrar of Companies” means the Registrar of Companies, Kolkata, West Bengal, India.

1.23 “Scheme of Amalgamation” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme” means this Scheme of Amalgamation
in its present form as submitted to the NCLT or this Scheme with such modification(s), if any, as may
be made by the shareholders of the Transferor Company and/or the Transferee Company or such
modifications(s) as may be imposed by any competent authority and accepted by the respective Board of
Directors of Transferor Company and/or the Transferee Company and/or directed to be made by the

NCLT while sanctioning the Scheme.

1.24 “SEBI" means the Securities and Exchange Board of India established under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992.

1.25 "SEBI Scheme Circular" means Master Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL 1 /CIR/P/2021/0000000665
dated 23 November 2021, amended on 03 January 2022 vide SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/003, on 01 February 2022 vide SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/11 and on 20 June 2023 vide SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 on (i) Scheme of Arrangement by Listed Entities; and (ii)
Relaxation under Sub-rule (7) of rule 19 of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957; issued by
SEBI and as amended from time to time or any other circulars issued by SEBI, applicable to schemes of

arrangement, as amended from time to time;

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LiniTeD For Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.
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1.26 “Tax” means “Tax” or “Taxes” means and includes any tax, whether direct or indirect, including buy
back tax, charges, customs duty, duties (including stamp duties), excise duty, fees, foreign tax credit,
goods and service tax (“GST"), income tax (including withholding tax (“TDS”), levies, local body taxes,
octroi, service tax, tax collected at source (“TCS”), value added tax (“VAT”), or other similar
assessments by or payable to any Appropriate Authority, including in relation to (a) assets, capital gains,
employment, entry, expenditure, foreign trade policy, gift, gross receipts, immovable property, imports,
income, interest, licensing, movable property, municipal, payroll and franchise taxes, premium,
profession, sales, services, transfer, use, wealth, withholding, and (b) any assessments, fines, interest,
penalties or additions to tax resulting from, attributable to or incurred in connection with any

proceedings or late payments in respect thereof;

1.27 “Transferee Company” means Ashika Credit Capital Limited, a listed public limited company
incorporated on 08" March 1994 under the Companies Act, 1956;

1.28 “Transferor Company” means Yaduka Financial Services Limited, a limited company incorporated on

09' July 2007 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956;

1.29 “Undertaking” means all the undertaking and the entire business of the Transferor Company as a going
concern as on the Appointed Date, including all its assets, properties, investments, rights, approvals,
patents, licenses and powers, leasehold rights and all its debts, outstanding liabilities, duties, obligations

and employees including, but not in any way limited to, the following:

a) all the assets and properties (whether movable or immovable, tangible or intangible (including but
not limited to rights, titles, benefits, interest, goodwill, etc.), real or personal, in possession or
reversion, corporeal or incorporeal, present, future or contingent of whatsoever nature), whether
or not recorded in the books of accounts of the Transferor Company, investments of all kinds (i.e.,
shares, scrips, stocks, bonds, debentures, stocks, units, securities, or pass through certificates),
furniture, fixtures, machinery, office equipment, computers, fixed assets, current assets
(including, without limitation, all inventories, stock-in-trade or stock-in-transit, tools, plants,
merchandise (including, raw materials, supplies, finished goods, and wrapping, supply,
advertisement, promotional and packaging material), supplies, finished goods, packaging items,
wherever located), cash and bank accounts (including bank balances), contingent rights or
benefits, benefits of any deposits, receivables, advances or deposits paid by or deemed to have
been paid by the Transferor Company, financial assets, vehicles, rights to use and avail of
telephones, telexes, facsimile, email, internet, leased line connections and installations, utilities,
electricity and other services, reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of assets or properties or other
interest held in trust, registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangements of all kind, privileges
and all other rights, easements, privileges, liberties and advantages of whatsoever nature and
wheresoever situate belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession and in the control of or
vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed by the Transferor Company or in connection with or
relating to the Transferor Company and all other interests of whatsoever nature belonging to or in
the ownership, power, possession or the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or held for

the benefit of or enjoyed by the Transferor Company, whether in India or abroad,

b) all permits, licenses, permissions, approvals, clearances, Consents, benefits, registrations, rights,

entitlements, credits, certificates, awards, sanctions, allotments, quotas, no objection certificates,

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED For Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.
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d)

g)

h)

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES Lisiicd

exemptions, concessions, subsidies, liberties and advantages including those relating to privileges,

powers, facilities of every kind and description of whatsoever nature and the benefits thereto.

all contracts, agreements, purchase orders/ service orders, operation and maintenance contracts,
memoranda of understanding, memoranda of undertakings, memoranda of agreements,
memoranda of agreed points, minutes of meetings, bids, tenders, expressions of interest, letters of
intent, supply contracts, hire and purchase arrangements, lease/ license agreements, tenancy
rights, agreements/ panchnamas for right of way, equipment purchase agreements, agreements
with customers, purchase and other agreements with the suppliers/ manufacturer of goods/
services providers, other arrangements, undertakings, deeds, bonds, schemes, insurance covers
and claims, clearances and other instruments of whatsoever nature and description, whether

written, oral or otherwise and all rights, title, interests, claims and benefits thereunder;

all statutory licenses, approvals, permissions, no-objection certificates, permits, consents, patents,
trademarks, leasehold improvements, tenancies, offices, depots, quotas, rights, entitlements,
privileges, benefits of all contracts / agreements (including but not limited to contracts /
agreements with vendors, customers, government etc.), all other rights (including but not limited
to right to use and avail electricity connections, water connections, environmental clearances,
telephone connections, facsimile connections, telexes, e-mail, internet, leased line connections
and installations, lease rights, easements, powers and facilities) of the Transferor Company as on

the Appointed Date;

all applications (including hardware, software, licenses, source codes and scripts), registrations,
licenses, trade names, service marks, trademarks, copyrights, brands, patents, domain names,
designs, intellectual property rights (whether owned, licensed or otherwise, and whether
registered or unregistered), trade secrets, research and studies, technical knowhow, confidential

information and all such rights of whatsoever description and nature;

all the credits for Taxes such as income Tax, goods and service Tax including but not limited to
the right to claim credit for indirect Taxes GST credit, or any other input Tax credit, advance Tax,
withholding Tax/ TDS, taxes withheld/ paid in a foreign country, self-assessment tax, regular tax,
minimum alternate Tax, securities transaction Tax, deferred tax assets/ liabilities, accumulated
losses under the IT Act and allowance for unabsorbed depreciation under the IT Act, losses
brought forward and unabsorbed depreciation as per the books of account and tax refunds of the

Transferor Company;

all debts, secured and unsecured, liabilities including contingent liabilities, guarantees, duties,
taxes and obligations of the Transferor Company of whatsoever kind, nature and description and

howsoever arising, raised, incurred or utilized;

all staff and employees and other obligations of whatsoever kind, including liabilities of the
Transferor Company, with regard to their employees, with respect to the payment of gratuity,
superannuation, pension benefits and provident fund or other compensation or benefits, if any,
whether in the event of resignation, death, retirement, retrenchment or otherwise as on the

Effective Date; and

all legal proceedings, including quasi-judicial, arbitral and other administrative proceedings, of

whatsoever nature involving the Transferor Company. For Ashika Credit Capital Lid.
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3.1

g)

h)

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

For the avoidance of any doubt, it is clarified that the NBFC license of the Transferor Company, shall
be surrendered after Scheme comes into effect, in accordance with applicable regulatory requirements
of the RBI.

INTERPRETATION

In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires:

words in the singular shall include the plural and vice versa

reference to the word “include” or “including” shall be construed without limitation;

any reference to a clause or part is, unless indicated to the contrary, a reference to a clause or part of the

scheme; and
unless otherwise defined, the reference to the word “days” shall mean calendar days;

references to one gender includes all genders;

references to persons shall include individuals, bodies corporate (wherever incorporated),

unincorporated associations and partnerships;

the headings are inserted for ease of reference only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation

of this Scheme;

all terms and words not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the context or
meaning thereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, bye laws, as the case may be, including any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof from time to time. In particular, wherever reference is made to the Hon’ble NCLT in this
Scheme, the reference would include, if appropriate, reference to the such other forum or authority, as

may be vested with any of the powers of a NCLT under the Act.
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANIES

The Authorised, Issued and Paid-up Share Capital of Transferor Company as on 17" September 2024 is

as follows:

Particulars Amounts in INR
Authorised Share Capital
45,50,000 Equity Shares of INR 10 each 4,55,00,000
Total 4,55,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and paid up Share Capital
45,22,150 Equity Shares of INR 10 each 4,52,21,500
Total 4,52,21,500

Subsequent to the above date, there has been no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-

up equity share capital of the Transferor Company. . ‘
For Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.
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3.2

The Transferee Company as on 30 July 2024 had equity share capital of INR 11,88,00,000 divided into

1,18,80,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each. The Transferee Company in its Board Meeting dated 31st

July 2024 and 17th September 2024 approved the preferential issue of 95,40,000 equity shares and

12,69,000 equity shares respectively. The second preferential issue of 12,69,000 equity shares is

pending for shareholders’ approval in the proposed EGM to be held on 17th October 2024. Accordingly,

the Transferee Company in its Board Meeting dated 31st July 2024 and 17th September 2024 approved

the increase in authorised share capital of the company from INR 20,25,00,000 to INR 35,00,00,000 and

from INR 35,00,00,000 to INR 70,00,00,000 respectively.

Now giving effect to the above facts, the Authorised, Issued and Paid-up Share Capital of Transferee

Company is as follows:

Particulars

Amounts in INR

Authorised Share Capital

2,02,50,000 Equity Shares of INR 10 each

20,25,00,000

Add: Increased pursuant to Board approval in meeting dated 31 July

o 14,75,00,000
35,00,00,000

Add: Increased pursuant to Board approval in meeting dated 17
September 2024 (pending for shareholders’ approval in the proposed 35,00,00,000
EGM to be held on 17" Oct 2024)

Total 70,00,00,000
Issued and Subscribed Share Capital
1,18,86,174 Equity Shares of INR 10 each 11,88,61,740
Add: Preferential issue of 95,40,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each
pursuant to Board approval in meeting dated 31 July 2024 54,00,000
Add: Preferential issue of 12,69,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each
pursuant to Board approval in meeting dated 17 September 2024 (pending 1.26,90,000
for shareholders’ approval in the proposed EGM to be held on 17t Oct
2024)

Total 22,69,51,740

Paid Up Share Capital

1,18,80,000 Equity Shares of INR 10 each

11,88,00,000

Add: Preferential issue of 95,40,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each
pursuant to Board approval in meeting dated 31 J uly 2024

9,54,00,000

21,42,00,000
Add: Preferential issue of 12,69,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each
pursuant to Board approval in meeting dated 17 September 2024 (pending 1,26.90,000
for shareholders’ approval in the proposed EGM to be held on 17" Oct
2024)
Total 22,68,90,000

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMi i£D
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Further, the Transferee Company in its Board Meeting dated 31st July 2024 and 17th September 2024
approved the preferential issue of 60,30,000 equity convertible warrants and 95,31,000 equity
convertible warrants respectively. The second preferential issue of 95,31,000 equity convertible
warrants is pending for shareholders’ approval in the proposed EGM to be held on 17th October 2024,
The share capital of the Transferee company in the event of exercise of such share warrants will be

diluted accordingly to such extent.

Subsequent to the above date and apart from what has already been disclosed above, there has been no
change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Transferee

Company.
DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE:

The Scheme, as set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s), as may be approved or
imposed or directed by the NCLT, shall be effective from the Appointed Date as per Clause 1.4, but

shall become operative on and from the Effective Date.

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED cor Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.
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PART I

AMALGAMATION OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY WITH TRAN SFEREE COMPANY

S. AMALGAMATION

5.1 Upon this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Transferor Company
(including the Undertaking of the Transferor Company) shall, pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Act, if any, and in terms of Section 2(1B) of the IT Act, stand amalgamated
with and into the Transferee Company and the Undertaking of the Transferor Company shall be and stand
transferred to and vested in or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company, as a
going concern, without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing so as to become, the business,
undertaking, assets, estates, liabilities, properties, right, title, interest and authorities of the Transferee

Company by virtue of and in the manner provided in this Scheme.
52 Transfer of Assets:

5.2.1 Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 5.1 above, upon the Scheme coming into effect and with

effect from the Appointed Date:

(@) All assets and properties comprised in the Undertaking of the Transferor Company of whatsoever
nature and wheresoever situated, shall, without any further act or deed be and stand transferred to and
vested in the Transferee Company or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee
Company as a going concern so as to become, as and from the Appointed Date, the assets and
properties of the Transferee Company provided that Board of Directors of the Transferee Company
shall be entitled, at its discretion and as may be advised or considered fit, expedient or necessary, to
determine the classification/ reclassification and treatment of any or all of the assets transferred to and

vested in the Transferee Company pursuant to this Scheme.

(b) All immovable properties of the Transferor Company, including land together with plant &
machinery, buildings and structures standing thereon or embedded to the land and rights and interests
in immovable properties of the Transferor Company, whether freehold or leasehold or licensed or
otherwise and all documents of title, rights, security deposits, and easements in relation thereto shall
stand vested in and/or be deemed to have been vested in the Transferee Company on the same terms
and conditions, by operation of law pursuant to the sanctioning of the Scheme. Such assets shall stand
vested in the Transferee Company and shall be deemed to be and become the property as an integral
part of the Transferee Company by operation of law. The Transferee Company shall upon the NCLT
sanctioning the Scheme and upon the Scheme becoming effective, be always entitled to all the rights
and privileges attached in relation to such immovable properties including refund of any security
deposits and shall be liable to pay appropriate rent, rates and taxes and fulfill all obligations in
relation thereto or as applicable to such immovable properties. Upon this Scheme becoming effective,
the title to such properties shall be deemed to have been mutated and recognised as that of the
Transferee Company and the mere filing thereof with the appropriate registrar or sub-registrar or with

the relevant Governmental Authority shall suffice as record of continuing titles with the Transferee

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
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Company and shall be constituted as a deemed mutation and substitution thereof. The Transferee
Company shall upon the Scheme becoming effective be entitled to the delivery and possession of all
documents of title to such immovable property in this regard. It is hereby clarified that all the rights,
title and interest of the Transferor Company in any leasehold properties shall without any further act,

instrument or deed, be vested in or be deemed to have been vested in the Transferee Company.

(c) Without prejudice to the provisions of sub-clause (a) above in respect of such of the assets and
properties of the Transferor Company, as are movable in nature or incorporeal property or are
otherwise capable of transfer by manual delivery or by endorsement and/or delivery, the same shall
be so transferred by the Transferor Company and shall, upon such transfer, become the assets and
properties of the Transferee Company as an integral part of its undertakings without requiring any

deed or instrument or conveyance for the same.

(d) In respect of the movables other than those dealt with in sub-clause (c) above including sundry
debtors, receivables, bills, credits, loans and advances, if any, whether recoverable in cash or in kind
or for value to be recovered, bank balances, investments of all kinds (i.e., shares, scrips, stocks,
bonds, debentures, stocks, units or pass through certificates), earnest money and deposits with any
Government, quasi-government, local or other authority or body or with any company or other
person, the same shall on and from the Appointed Date stand transferred to and vested in the
Transferee Company without any notice or other intimation to the debtors (although the Transferee
Company may if it so deems appropriate, give notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper, to
each person, debtors or depositees, as the case may be), that the said debt, loan, advances, balance or

deposits stand transferred and vested in the Transferee Company.

(e) All the licenses, permits, quotas, approvals, permissions, registrations, incentives, subsidies,
concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases, tenancy rights, customer registrations, customer approvals,
liberties, special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed or conferred upon or held or availed of
by the Transferor Company and all rights and benefits that have accrued or which may accrue to any
of the Transferor Company, whether before or after the Appointed Date, without any further act,
instrument or deed, cost or charge be and stand transferred to and vest in or deemed to be transferred
to and vested in or be available to the Transferee Company so as to become as and from the
Appointed Date, licences, permits, quotas, approvals, permissions, registrations, incentives, subsidies,
concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases, tenancy rights, customer registrations, customer approvals,
liberties, special status and other benefits or privileges of the Transferee Company and shall remain

valid, effective and enforceable on the same terms and conditions.

522 All assets and properties of the Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date, whether or not included in
the books of the Transferor Company, and all assets and properties, which are acquired by the Transferor
Company on or after the Appointed Date but prior to the Effective Date, shall be deemed to be and shall
become the assets and properties of the Transferee Company, without any further act, instrument or deed,
be and stand transferred to and vested in and be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the
Transferee Company on a going concern basis upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, provided
however, that no onerous asset shall have been acquired by the Transferor Company after the Appointed

Date without the prior written consent of the Transferee Company.

: it Capita! Lid.
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5.2.3  Where the Transferor Company is entitled to various benefits under incentive schemes and policies and
pursuant to this Scheme, it is declared that the benefits under all of such schemes and policies shall be
transferred to and vest in the Transferee Company and all benefits, entitlements and incentives of any
nature whatsoever, including sales tax concessions and incentives, shall be claimed by the Transferee
Company and these shall relate back to the Appointed Date as if the Transferee Company was originally
entitled to all benefits under such incentive scheme and/or policies, subject to continued compliance
by the Transferee Company of all the terms and conditions subject to which the benefits under the

incentive schemes were made.
53 Transfer of Liabilities:

5.3.1 Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, all liabilities relating to
and comprised in the Undertaking of the Transferor Company including all secured and unsecured debts,
liabilities (including contingent liabilities), duties and obligations and undertakings of the Transferor
Company of every kind, nature and description whatsoever and however arising, raised or incurred or
utilized for business activities and operations along with any charge, encumbrances, lien or security
thereon (hereinafter referred to as “Liabilities”) shall, pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme, without
any further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing, be transferred to and vested in or be deemed to have
been transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company on a going concern basis, and the same shall be
assumed by the Transferee Company to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective Date so as to
become as from the Appointed Date the Liabilities of the Transferee Company on the same terms and
conditions as were applicable to the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall meet,
discharge and satisfy the same and further it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third party
or other person who is party to any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such Liabilities have arisen

in order to give effect to the provisions of this clause.

5.3.2  All debts, Liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferor Company shall, as on the Appointed Date,
whether or not provided in the books of the Transferor Company, and all debts and loans raised and used,
and duties, Liabilities and obligations incurred or which arise or accrue to the Transferor Company on or
after the Appointed Date till the Effective Date shall be deemed to be and shall become the debts, loans
raised and used, duties, Liabilities and obligations incurred by the Transferee Company by virtue of this

Scheme.

5.3.3 Where any such debts, Liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferor Company as on the Appointed
Date have been discharged by the Transferor Company after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective

Date, such discharge shall be deemed to be for and on account of the Transferee Company.

5.3.4 All loans raised and utilized and all Liabilities, duties and obligations incurred or undertaken by the
Transferor Company after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date shall be deemed to have
been raised, used, incurred or undertaken for and on behalf of the Transferee Company and to the extent
they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall, upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, without any
further act, instrument or deed be and stand transferred to or vested in or deemed to have been transferred
to and vested in the Transferee Company on a going concern basis and shall become the loans and
Liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferee Company which shall meet, discharge and satisfy the

same.

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED For Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.
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5.3.5 Loans, advances and other obligations (including any guarantees, letters of credit, letters of comfort or
any other instrument or arrangement which may give rise to a contingent liability in whatever form), if
any, due or which may at any time in future become due between the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company shall, ipso facto, stand discharged and come to an end and there shall be no Liability
in that behalf on any party and appropriate effect shall be given in the books of accounts and records of
the Transferee Company. It is hereby clarified that there will be no accrual of interest or other charges in
respect of any such inter-company loans, advances and other obligations with effect from the Appointed

Date.

53.6 The Scheme shall not operate to enlarge the security for any loan, deposit or facility created by or
available to the Transferor Company which shall vest in the Transferee Company by virtue of the
Amalgamation and the Transferee Company shall not be obliged to create any further, or additional

security therefore after the Amalgamation has become effective or otherwise.
54 Encumbrances:

The transfer and vesting of the assets comprised in the Undertaking of the Transferor Company to and
into the Transferee Company under Clause 5.2 of this Scheme shall be subject to the mortgage and

charges, if any, affecting the same as hereinafter provided.

5.4.1 All the existing securities, charges, encumbrances or liens (the “Encumbrances”), if any, created by the
Transferor Company after the Appointed Date, in terms of the Scheme, over the assets comprised in their
Undertaking or any part thereof transferred to the Transferee Company by virtue of this Scheme and in so
far as such Encumbrances secure or relate to Liabilities of the Transferor Company, the same shall, after
the Effective Date, continue to relate and attach to such assets or any part thereof to which they are related
or attached prior to the Effective Date and as are transferred to the Transferee Company and such

Encumbrances shall not relate or attach to any of the other assets of the Transferee Company.

5.4.2 The existing Encumbrances over the assets and properties of the Transferee Company or any part thereof
which relate to the liabilities and obligations of the Transferee Company prior to the Effective Date shall
continue to relate to such assets and properties and shall not extend or attach to any of the assets and
properties of the Transferor Company transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company by virtue of

this Scheme.

5.43 Any reference in any security documents or arrangements (to which Transferor Company is a party) to the
Transferor Company and in assets and properties, shall be construed as a reference to the Transferee
Company and the assets and properties of the Transferor Company transferred to the Transferee Company
on a going concern basis by virtue of this Scheme. Without prejudice to the foregoing provisions, the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company may execute any instruments or documents or do all
acts and deeds as may be considered appropriate, including the filing of necessary particulars and/or
modification (s) of charge, with the Registrar of Companies to give formal effect to the above provisions,

if required.

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES Liidiiw For Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.
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5.4.4 Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the Transferee Company alone shall be liable to perform all

obligations in respect of the Liabilities, which have been transferred to it in terms of the Scheme.

5.4.5 It is expressly provided that, save as herein provided, no other term or condition of the Liabilities
transferred to the Transferee Company is modified by virtue of this Scheme except to the extent that such

amendment is required statutorily or by necessary implication.

5.4.6 The provisions of this Clause 5.4 shall operate in accordance with the terms of the Scheme,
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any instrument, deed or writing or the terms of
sanction or issue or any security documents; all of which instruments, deeds or writing shall stand

modified and/or superseded by the foregoing provisions.

5.5 Taxes:

5.5.1 On and from the Appointed Date, if any certificate for tax deducted at source (“TDS”) or advance tax or
any other tax credit certificate relating to the Transferor Company is received in the name of the
Transferor Company it shall be deemed to have been received by the Transferee Company, which alone

shall be entitled to claim credit for such tax deducted or paid.

5.5.2 All taxes (including but not limited to advance tax, self-assessment tax, regular tax, TDS, minimum
alternate tax credits, securities transaction tax, taxes withheld/ paid in a foreign country, service tax,
goods and service tax etc.) paid or payable by or refunded/refundable to the Transferor Company with
effect from the Appointed Date, including all or any refunds or claims shall be treated as the tax liability
or refunds/ claims, etc. as the case may be, of the Transferee Company, and any tax incentives,
advantages, privileges, deductions otherwise admissible such as under Section 40, 40A, 43B, etc. of the
IT Act, exemptions, credits, holidays, remissions, reductions, GST input credits etc., as would have been
available to the Transferor Company, shall pursuant to this Scheme becoming effective, be available to

the Transferee Company.

5.5.3 Any tax liabilities under the Income Tax Act, 1961, Customs Act 1962, Goods and Service Tax Act,
2017, or other applicable laws/regulations dealing with taxes/duties/levies allocable or related to the
business of the Transferor Company, to the extent not provided for or covered by tax provision in the
accounts made as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date, shall be transferred to

Transferee Company.

5.5.4 Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Transferee
Company is expressly permitted to revise its financial statements and returns along with prescribed forms,
filings and annexures under the Income Tax Act, central sales tax law, applicable state value added tax
law, service tax laws, excise duty laws, goods and services Tax laws and other Tax laws, and to claim
refunds, revision of TDS quarterly statements and/or credit for Taxes paid (including, tax deducted at
source, wealth tax, etc.) and for matters incidental thereto, if required, to give effect to the provisions of

this Scheme.

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED For Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.
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5.5.5

5.6

5.6.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

Any unutilized credits, benefits, exemptions, if any, relating to GST paid on inputs/work-in-
progress/capital goods lying in the accounts of the Transferor Company and GST credits shall be
permitted to be transferred to the credit of the Transferee Company as if all such unutilized credits were
lying to the account of the Transferee Company. The Transferor Company shall accordingly be entitled to

set off all such unutilized credits against the GST payable by it.
Inter-Se Transactions:

Without prejudice to the provisions of Clauses 5.1 to 5.5, with effect from the Appointed Date, all inter-
party transactions between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall be considered as
intra-party transactions for all purposes from the Appointed Date. For the removal of doubt, it is clarified
that upon the Scheme coming into effect and with effect from the Appointed Date, to the extent there are
inter-corporate loans, deposits, investments, obligation, balances or other outstanding as between the
Transferor Company inter-se and/or the Transferee Company, the obligations in respect thereof shall
come to an end and there shall be no liability in that behalf and corresponding effect shall be given in the
books of account and records of the Transferee Company for the reduction of such assets or liabilities as

the case may be.
CONTRACTS, DEEDS ETC:

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and subject to the provisions hereof, all contracts, deeds,
bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements, assurances and other instruments of whatsoever nature to
which the Transferor Company is a party or to the benefit of which the Transferor Company may be
eligible and which are subsisting or have effect immediately before the Effective Date, shall continue in
full force and effect on or against or in favour of, as the case may be, and be enforced as fully and
effectually as if, instead of the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company had been party or

beneficiary or obligee thereto or thereunder.

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that vesting of the
Undertaking occurs by virtue of this Scheme itself, the Transferee Company may, at any time after the
coming into effect of this Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required under any
Applicable Law or otherwise, take such actions and execute such deeds (deeds of adherence),
confirmations or other writings or arrangements with any party to any contract or arrangement to which
any of the Transferor Company is a party or any writings may be necessary in order to give formal effect
to the provisions of this Scheme. The Transferee Company shall, under the provisions of this Scheme, be
deemed to be authorised to execute any such writings on behalf of the Transferor Company and to carry
out or perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on the part of the Transferor

Company to be carried out or performed.

For the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, it is clarified that
upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all Consents, permissions, statutory licences, certificates,

clearances, authorities, powers of attorney given by, issued to or executed in favour of any of the
For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
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6.4

7.1

7.2

Transferor Company shall stand transferred to the Transferee Company, as if the same were originally
given by, issued to or executed in favour of the Transferee Company, and the Transferee Company shall
be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder and the rights and benefits under the
same shall be available to the Transferee Company. The Transferee Company shall receive relevant

approvals from the concerned Government Authorities as may be necessary in this behalf.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, any statutory
licences, leasehold rights, permissions or approvals or consents held by the Transferor Company and
required to carry on operations or any business of the Transferor Company shall stand vested in or
transferred to the Transferee Company, without any further act or deed, and shall be appropriately
mutated by the statutory authorities concerned therewith in favour of the Transferee Company. Statutory
and regulatory permissions, factory licences, registrations, environmental approvals and consents
including statutory licences, permissions or approvals or consents required to carry on the operations of
the Transferor Company shall vest in and become available to the Transferee Company pursuant to the
Scheme. Any no-objection certificates, licences, permissions, consents, approvals, authorisations,
registrations or statutory rights as are held by the Transferor Company shall, as far as practicable and
permitted, be deemed to constitute licences, permissions, no-objection certificates, consents, approvals,
authorities, registrations or statutory rights of the Transferee Company, and the relevant or concerned
statutory authorities and licensors shall endorse and/or mutate or record the merger, so as to facilitate the
continuation of operations of the Transferor Company in the Transferee Company without any hindrance

from the Appointed Date.
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS:

On and from the Appointed Date, all suits, actions and legal proceedings by or against Transferor
Company pending and/or arising on or before the Effective Date shall be continued and/or enforced as
desired by the Transferee Company and on and from the Effective Date, shall be continued and/or
enforced by or against the Transferee Company as effectually and in the same manner and to the same
extent as if the same had been instituted and/or pending and/or arising by or against the Transferee
Company. The Transferee Company undertakes to continue to abide by any agreement/settlement, if any,

entered into by the Transferor Company with any union/employee of the Transferor Company.

If any suit, appeal or other proceeding of whatever nature by or against Transferor Company are pending
prior to Effective Date, the same shall not abate or be discontinued or in any way be prejudicially affected
by reason of the Amalgamation or by anything contained in this Scheme, but the said suit, appeal or other
legal proceedings may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against Transferee Company in the
same manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted and enforced
by or against Transferor Company as if this Scheme had not been made. Any amount receivable under the
pending suits, actions and proceedings shall solely belong to Transferee Company. Similarly, Transferee
Company will be responsible for discharging the liability in future in pending suits, actions and

proceedings of Transferor Company.

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMIi Lu For Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.

Director
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8.1

8.2

8.3

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including after the Effective Date:

a)

b)

d)

The Transferor Company shall carry on and be deemed to have carried on their respective businesses
and activities and shall be deemed to have held and stood possessed of their entire businesses and
undertakings for and on account of and in trust for the Transferee Company. The Transferor

Company shall carry on their activities in the ordinary course of business;

All profits or incomes accruing or arising to the Transferor Company, and all expenditure or losses
arising or incurred (including all Taxes, if any, paid or accruing in respect of any profit and income)
by the Transferor Company shall, for all purposes, be treated and be deemed to be and accrued as the
profits or incomes or as the case may be, expenditure or losses (including Taxes) of the Transferee

Company.

All assets howsoever acquired by the Transferor Company for carrying on its business, operations or
activities and the liabilities relating thereto shall be deemed to have been acquired and are also

contracted for and on behalf of the Transferee Company.

All the profits, Taxes such as advance tax, tax deducted at source, minimum alternate tax, credit,
taxes withheld/paid in foreign country, underlying tax credit, tax sparing, if any, thereon or incomes
accruing or arising to the Transferor Company or expenditure or losses arising or incurred by the
Transferor Company shall for all purposes be treated and be deemed to be and accrue as the profits,

Taxes or incomes or expenditure or losses, as the case may be, of the Transferee Company; and

Any of the rights, powers, authorities and privileges attached or related or pertaining to and exercised
by or available to the Transferor Company shall be deemed to have been exercised by the Transferor
Company for and on behalf of and as agent for the Transferee Company. Similarly, any of the
obligations, duties and commitments attached, related or pertaining to their Undertaking that has
been undertaken or discharged by the Transferor Company shall be deemed to have been undertaken

or discharged for and on behalf of and as an agent of the Transferee Company.

The Transferor Company shall carry on their businesses and activities with reasonable diligence and
business prudence and shall not venture into/expand any new businesses, alienate, charge, mortgage,
encumber or otherwise deal with the assets or any part thereof except in the ordinary course of

business without the prior consent of the Transferee Company.

The Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of this Scheme, to apply to the Central

Government and all other agencies, departments and authorities concerned as are necessary under any law

for such consents, approvals and sanctions which Transferee Company may require, (if applicable) to

carry on the businesses of the Transferor Company.

The transfer of the entire businesses and Undertaking of the Transferor Company to Transferee Company

and the continuance of all contracts or proceedings by or against the Transferor Company shall not affect

any contracts or proceedings already concluded by the Transferor Company on or after the Appointed

Date to the end and intent that the Transferee Company accepts and adopts all acts, deeds, matters and

things done and/or executed by the Transferor Company in regard thereto as having been done or

executed on behalf of the Transferee Company.

For Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.

Director
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8.4

For the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the applicable provisions of the
Scheme, it is clarified that with effect from the Effective Date and till such time that the name of the bank
accounts of the Transferor Company have been replaced with that of the Transferee Company, the
Transferee Company shall be entitled to operate the bank accounts of the Transferor Company in the
name of the Transferor Company in so far as may be necessary. All cheques and negotiable instruments,
payment orders received or presented for encashment which are in the name of the Transferor Company
after the Effective Date shall be accepted by the bankers of the Transferee Company and credited to the
account of the Transferee Company, if presented by the Transferee Company. Similarly, till the time any
regulatory registrations of the Transferor Company are closed / suspended and regulatory filings are
required to be done on such registrations, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to do so to comply

with the relevant regulations.
STAFF WORKMEN AND EMPLOYEES

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme:

a) the permanent employees of the Transferor Company who are in employment as on the Effective
Date shall become the employees of the Transferee Company with effect from the Effective Date
without any break or interruption in service and on terms and conditions as to employment and
remuneration not less favourable than those on which they are engaged or employed by the
Transferor Company. It is clarified that the employees of the Transferor Company who become
employees of the Transferee Company by virtue of this Scheme, shall not be entitled to the
employment policies unless .otherwise determined by the Transferee Company. The Transferee
Company undertakes to continue to abide by any agreement/settlement, if any, entered into by the

Transferor Company with any union/employee of the Transferor Company.

b) It is clarified that the services of all transferred staff, workmen and employees of the Transferor
Company to the Transferee Company will be treated as having been continuous for the purpose of
the aforesaid employee benefits and / or liabilities. For the purpose of payment of any retrenchment
compensation, gratuity, and / or other terminal benefits, and / or any other liability pertaining to staff,
workmen and employees, the past services of such staff, workmen and employees with the
Transferor Company shall also be taken into account by the Transferee Company, who shall pay the

same as and when payable.

c¢) Before the Effective Date, Boards of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, shall
take such actions and execute such further documents as may be necessary or desirable for the
purpose of giving effect to the provisions of this Scheme. After the Effective Date, the Board of the
Transferee Company, shall take such actions and execute such further documents as may be
necessary or desirable for the purpose of giving effect to the provisions of this Clause 9 of this

Scheme.

RVICES Luiaii o P
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10. SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS:

10.1 Subject to the terms of this Scheme, the transfer and the vesting of the Undertaking of the Transferor
Company under Clause 5 of this Scheme shall not affect any transactions or proceedings already
concluded by the Transferor Company on or before the Appointed Date or after the Appointed Date till
the Effective Date, to the end and intent that the Transferee Company accepts and adopts all acts, deeds
and things made, done and executed by the Transferor Company as acts, deeds and things made, done and

executed by or on behalf of the Transferee Company.

10.2 The Transferee Company shall under the provisions of this Scheme be deemed to be authorised to execute
any such writings on behalf of the Transferor Company, to implement and carry out all formalities and

compliances, if required, referred to above.

11. CONSIDERATION

11.1 Upon the coming into effect of this part of the Scheme and in consideration of and subject to the
provisions of the Scheme, the Transferee Company shall, without any further act or deed, issue to the
shareholders of Transferor Company whose name appear in the register of members of Transferor
Company on the Record Date or to such of their heirs, executors, administrators or the successor-in-title,

shares in the following mode:

“1,445 (One thousand four hundred forty-five) equity shares of Transferee Company having a face
value of INR 10/- each fully paid-up shall be issued for every 1000 (One thousand) equity shares held in
Transferor Company having a face value INR 10/- each fully paid-up.”

11.2 The equity shares of the Transferee Company issued and allotted to the shareholders of Transferor
Company in accordance with the clause 11.1 shall be hereinafter referred to as “New Transferee

Company Shares”.

11.3 The New Transferee Company Shares shall be allotted and issued to equity shareholders of the
Transferor Company as provided in Clause 11.1 above shall be subject to the provisions of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Transferee Company and shall rank pari passu in all
respects with the then existing equity shares of the Transferee Company after the Effective Date
including in respect of dividend, if any, that may be declared by the Transferee Company on or after the

Effective Date.

11.4  For the purposes of allotment of the New Transferee Company Shares, pursuant to this Scheme, in case
any Transferor Company's shareholder becomes entitled to any fractional shares, entitlements or credit on
the issue and allotment of the New Transferee Company Shares by the Transferee Company in
accordance with Clause 11.1 above, the Transferee Company shall not issue fractional shares to such.
shareholder and shall consolidate all such fractional entitlements and round up the aggregate of such

fractions to the next whole number and shall, without any further application, act, instrument or deed,

S LIMITED . . .
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11.5

11.6

issue and allot such consolidated shares directly to an individual trust or a board of trustees or a corporate
trustee nominated by the Transferee Company (“Trustee”), who shall hold such New Transferee
Company Shares with all additions or accretions thereto in trust for the benefit of the respective
shareholders, to whom they belong and their respective heirs, executors, administrators or successors for
the specific purpose of selling such shares in the market at such price or prices at any time within a period
of 90 (ninety) days from the date of allotment, and on such sale, distribute the net sale proceeds (after
deduction of the expenses incurred and applicable income tax) to the respective shareholders in the same
proportion of their fractional entitlements. Any fractional entitlements from such net proceeds may be
rounded off to the nearest Rupee. It is clarified that any such distribution shall take place only on the sale
of all the fractional shares of the Transferee Company by the Trustee pertaining to the fractional

entitlements.

Unless otherwise notified in writing on or before such date as may be determined by the Board of the
Transferor Company or a committee thereof, the New Transferee Company Shares issued to the equity
shareholders of the Transferor Company by the Transferee Company shall be issued in dematerialized
form by the Transferee Company, provided that the details of the depository accounts of the members of
the Transferor Company are made available to the Transferee Company by the Transferor Company
within 2 (two) working days from the Record Date . In case of shareholders for whom such details are not
available with the Transferee Company and in case of the shareholders of the Transferor Company who
hold shares in physical form, the Transferee Company shall deal with the issuance of the relevant New
Transferee Company Shares in such manner as may be permissible under the Applicable Law, including
by way of issuing the said New Transferee Company Shares in dematerialized form to a demat account
held by a trustee nominated by the Board of the Transferee Company or into an escrow account opened
by the Transferee Company or an escrow agent nominated by it, with a depository, as determined by the
Board of the Transferee Company, where such New Transferee Company Shares of the Transferee
Company shall be held on for the benefit of such shareholders (or to such of their respective heirs,
executors, administrators or other legal representatives or other successors in title) of the Transferee
Company. The New Transferee Company Shares so held in such trustee's account or €scrow account, as
the case may be, shall be transferred to the respective shareholders once such shareholder provides details
of his/ her/ its demat account to the Transferee Company, along with such documents as may be required
by the Transferee Company. The respective shareholders shall have all the rights of the shareholders of
the Transferee Company, including the right to receive dividend, voting rights and other corporate
benefits, pending such transfer of the said New Transferee Company Shares from the said trustee's
account or the escrow account, as the case may be. All costs and expenses incurred in this respect shall be

borne by Transferee Company.

Notwithstanding anything contained in Clause 11.1 above, upon the Scheme coming into effect, all equity
shares which the Transferor Company holds in the Transferee Company or vice versa shall get cancelled
without any further application, act or deed, in accordance with provisions of Section 66 of the Act and
the order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme shall be deemed to be also the order under Section 66 of
the Act for the purpose of confirming the reduction. It is clarified that no new equity shares shall be
issued or payment made in cash whatsoever by the Transferee Company in lieu of such shares of the

Transferor Company.
For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED For Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.

Director
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11.7  On the approval of the Scheme by the Board and members of each of the Parties pursuant to Sections 230-
232 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder, as applicable, it shall
be deemed that the Board and members of each of the Parties have also accorded their consent under
Sections 42 and 62(1)(c) of the Act and /or any other applicable provisions of the Act and rules made
thereunder and the relevant provisions of the articles of association of the Parties, as may be applicable
for the aforesaid issuance of the New Transferee Company Shares to the shareholders of the Transferor
Company, and no further resolution or actions, including compliance with any procedural requirements,
shall be required to be undertaken by the Transferee Company under Section 42 or 62(1)(c) of the Act
and/or any other applicable provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder. Upon this Scheme coming
into effect, the Transferee Company shall, if required, file all necessary documents / intimations as per the
provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder with Registrar of Companies or any other applicable
Governmental Authority to record the Amalgamation, issuance of New Transferee Company Shares to the
shareholders of the Transferor Company and dissolution of the Transferor Company, in the manner set

out in this Scheme.

11.8  The equity shares issued and/or allotted pursuant to the Scheme in respect of such of the equity shares of
the Transferor Company which are held in abeyance under the provisions of Section 126 of the Act shali,
pending settlement of the dispute by order of court or otherwise, be held in abeyance by the Transferee

Company.

11.9 In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding of any shareholders
of Transferor Company, the Board of Directors of Transferor Company shall be empowered prior to the
Record Date, to effectuate such transfers in the Transferor Company as if such changes in registered
holders were operative as on the Record Date, in order to remove any difficulties arising to the transferors
of the shares in relation to the equity shares issued by the Transferee Company after the Scheme is
effected. The Board of Directors of the Transferee Company shall be empowered to remove such
difficulties as may arise in the course of implementation of this Scheme and registration of new members

in the Transferee Company on account of difficulties faced in the transition period.

12. LISTING OF NEW TRANSFEREE COMPANY SHARES OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

12.1 The New Transferee Company Shares to be issued and allotted in terms of Clause 11.1 above, shall, in
compliance with the requirement of applicable regulations, be listed and/or admitted to trading on the
Stock Exchanges where the existing equity shares of the Transferee Company are listed. The Transferee
Company shall enter into such arrangements and give such confirmations and/or undertakings as may be
necessary in accordance with applicable laws or regulations for complying with the formalities of the
Stock Exchanges. On such formalities being fulfilled, the Stock Exchanges shall list and/or admit the New

Transferee Company Shares for the purpose of trading.

12.2 The Transferee Company shall, if and to the extent required, apply for and obtain any approvals from the
concerned regulatory authorities for the issue and allotment by the Transferee Company of the New

Transferee Company Shares to the Eligible Members under the Scheme and listing thereof.

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Director
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13. CONSOLIDATION OF AUTHORISED CAPITAL

13.1 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the authorized share capital of the Transferor Company shall be
deemed to be added to that of the Transferee Company without any further act, instrument or deed on the
part of the Transferee Company. Provided however that pursuant to the Scheme only such amount of
Authorised capital of Transferor Company would be added to the Authorised Capital of the Transferee
company as can be raised by the Transferee company by utilizing the fees already paid by Transferor
Company on their authorized share capital, which is available for set-off as per provisions of Section
232(3)(i) of the Act against any fees payable by the Transferee company for increase in the Authorised
share capital in terms of this Scheme. Further, the authorised share capital of the Transferee Company

shall be increased as may be required for the issue of shares pursuant to Clause 11.

13.2 It is hereby clarified that the approval of this scheme by the shareholders of the Transferee Company shall
be sufficient for the purposes of effecting the above amendment in the authorized share capital of the
Transferee Company and shall be deemed to include consent under any other provision of the Act as may
be applicable, and no further resolution under any provisions of the Act would be separately required.
Notwithstanding anything contained in Clause 25, the Transferee Company would discharge applicable

fees, if required, to the Registrar of Companies in this regard.

13.3 The Transferee Company shall file the amended copy of its Memorandum of Association with the
Registrar of Company within 30 (thirty) days from the date the said Scheme becomes effective, who will
register the same. The approval of the said Scheme by the shareholders under Sections 230-232 of the Act
shall be deemed to have the approval under Sections 13, 14 and 61 of the Act, and other applicable

provisions of the Act and any other consents and approvals required in this regard.
14. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

14.1 Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from Appointed Date, the Transferee
Company shall account for the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company in
accordance with Pooling of Interest Method in accordance with Appendix C of Ind AS 103 notified under
the provisions of the Act, read with relevant rules framed thereunder and other applicable accounting

standards prescribed under the Act.

14.2 The Transferee Company shall record the assets, liabilities and reserves relating to the Transferor

Company vested as a going concern in it pursuant to this Scheme, at their respective carrying amounts.

14.3 The Transferee Company shall credit the aggregate face value/ nominal value of shares issued by it to the
shareholders of Transferor Company pursuant to Clause 11 of this Scheme to the Share Capital Account

in its books of accounts.

14.4 The identity of the reserves of the Transferor Company, if any, shall be preserved and they shall appear in
the financial statements of the Transferee Company in the same form and manner in which they appeared

in the financial statements of the Transferor Company.

For Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.
For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES Lik: -,

Director
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14.5 Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, to the extent that there are inter-company loans, advances,
deposits balances or other obligations as between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company,
the obligations in respect thereof shall come to an end and corresponding effect shall be given in the
books of accounts and records of the Transferee Company for reduction of any assets or liabilities, as the
case may be. Further no interest shall be provided on loans and advances or any outstanding loans and
advances, if any, after Appointed Date. All inter party transactions after the Appointed Date between the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall be treated as intra party transactions for all

purposes and inter company balances shall stand cancelled.

14.6 The shares held by Transferor Company in Transferee Company or vice versa shall stand cancelled and
difference, if any, would be adjusted against the capital reserves account of Transferee Company and

there shall be no further obligation in that behalf.

14.7 The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additional
consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the Transferor
Company shall be transferred to capital reserve and should be presented separately from other capital

reserves.

14.8 In case of any difference in accounting policy between the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company, the accounting policies followed by the Transferee Company shall prevail and the difference
till Appointed Date would be quantified and adjusted in the capital reserves account of the Transferee
Company to ensure that the financial statements of the Transferee Company reflect the financial position

on the basis of consistent accounting policy.

14.9 Any matter not dealt with in clauses hereinabove shall be dealt with in accordance with the Ind AS

applicable to the Transferee Company.
15. PROCEDURAL FORMALITIES POST SANCTION OF THE SCHEME

a) The Transferee Company shall, at any time after the coming into effect of this Scheme in accordance
with the provisions hereof, if so, required under any Applicable Law or otherwise, execute deeds of
confirmation or novation or other writings or arrangements with any party to any contract or
arrangement in relation to which the Transferor Company has been a party, in order to give formal effect
to the above provisions. The Transferee Company shall, under the provisions of this Scheme, be deemed
to be authorized to execute any such writings on behalf of the Transferor Company and to carry out or

perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on the part of the Transferor Company.

b) Upon the Scheme becoming effective, for statistical purposes only and without any separate deed,
instrument or writing, the Transferor Company and/or the Transferee Company shall, if required,
simultaneously with the amendment in the register of charges and file particulars of the modified charge
with the concerned Registrar of Companies. Any documentation subsequently entered into with the term
lenders or the working capital lenders of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, shall be
for the sake of convenience and record only and to reflect the changes in the security pursuant to the
Scheme and there shall be no break in the continuity of such charge and the same shall relate back to the

date of its creation thereof in the Transferor Company.

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES wims i) For Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.

Director

mRaging Director
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d)

e)

16.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all statutory permissions, licenses, approvals, consents,
privileges, benefits and benefits of filings and all other incorporeal rights emanating from such licenses
relating to the Transferor Company, shall stand transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company
without any further act, instrument, or deed, as more particularly provided hereinabove.
Notwithstanding such transfer/ vesting of the Licenses, if any application is required for the statistical
record of the statutory authorities to implement the transfer and vesting of the Licenses, as provided
hereinabove, the Transferee Company shall facilitate the statutory authorities by filing such applications,
which shall be granted/ approved in favour of the Transferee Company based on the sanction order of

the Scheme by the Court.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company is expressly entitled to revise its direct
or indirect tax returns and related withholding certificates and shall be entitled to claim refund, advance
tax credits including MAT credit, TDS, Tax Collected at Source, Self-Assessment Tax, GST Input
Credit, pertaining to the Transferor Company, if any.

From the Effective Date, all bank accounts of the Transferor Company shall be permitted to be

continued with the same balances as of the Effective Date in the name of the Transferee Company.
APPLICABILITY OF THE PROVISIONS OF THE INCOME TAX ACT, 1961

This Scheme has been drawn up to comply with the conditions specified under section 2(1B) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961. The amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company in
terms of this Scheme shall take place with effect from the Appointed Date in accordance with the
provisions of Section 2(1B) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. If any terms or provisions of the Scheme are
found or interpreted to be inconsistent with the provisions of the said section at a later date including
resulting from an amendment of law or for any other reason whatsoever, the provisions of the said Section
of the Income Tax Act, 1961 shall prevail and the Scheme shall stand modified to the extent determined
necessary to comply with section 2(1B) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Such modification will however not

affect the other parts of the Scheme, except to the extent required to give effect to the Scheme.

i i i td.
For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED For Ashika Credit Capitai L

QVM_WMM

Director
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PART III

DISSOLUTION OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY AND GENERAL TERMS AN D CONDITIONS

17. DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, Transferor shall stand dissolved without winding up and the Board
and any committees thereof of Transferor Company shall without any further act, instrument or deed be
and stand discharged. On and from the Effective Date, the name of Transferor Company shall be struck

off from the records of the concerned ROC.
18. VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS ETC.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, resolutions, if any, of the Transferor Company, which are
valid and subsisting on the Effective Date, shall continue to be valid and subsisting and be considered as
resolutions of the Transferee Company and if any such resolutions have any monetary limits approved
under the provisions of the Act, or any other applicable statutory provisions, then the said limits shall be
added to the limits, if any, under like resolutions passed by the Transferee Company and shall constitute

the aggregate of the said limits in the Transferee Company.
19. APPLICATIONS/PETITIONS TO NCLT FOR SAN CTIONING SCHEME

The Parties shall, jointly with all reasonable dispatch, make application/petition under Section 230 to 232
and other applicable provisions of the Act to the NCLT for sanctioning of this Scheme and for appropriate
orders under the applicable provisions of the Act for carrying this Scheme into effect. It is hereby clarified
that submissions of the Scheme to the NCLT and to any authorities for their respective approvals is
without prejudice to all rights, interest, titles and defenses that the Parties have or may have under or
pursuant to all Applicable Law. The Parties shall also take such other steps as may be necessary or

expedient to give full and formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme.
20. MODIFICATION OF SCHEME:

20.1 The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company through their respective Boards of Directors or
any Committee thereof or any Director/ executive authorised in that behalf (hereinafter referred to as the
“Delegate”) may assent to, or make, from time to time, any modification(s) or addition(s) to this Scheme
which the NCLT or any authorities under law may deem fit to approve or which the NCLT or any
authorities under law may impose and which the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company may
in their discretion accept or such modification(s) or addition(s) as the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company or as the case may be, their respective Delegate may deem fit, or required for the
purpose of resolving any doubts or difficulties that may arise in carrying out this Scheme, and the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company by their respective Boards of Directors or delegates are
authorised to do and execute all acts, deeds, matters and things necessary for bringing this Scheme into

effect, or review the position relating to the satisfaction of the conditions of this Scheme and if necessary,

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED A, Ashika Cre dit Capital Ltd.
E ‘ ' Director
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waive any of such conditions (to the extent permissible under law) for bringing this Scheme into effect,
and/or give such consents as may be required in terms of this Scheme. In the event that any conditions are
imposed by the NCLT or any Governmental Authorities, which the Transferor Company or the Transferee
Company find unacceptable for any reason, then the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company

shall be at liberty to withdraw the Scheme.

20.2 For the purposes of giving effect to this Scheme or to any modification(s) thereof or addition(s) thereto,
the Delegates (acting jointly) of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company may give and are
authorised to determine and give all such directions as are necessary for settling or removing any question
of doubt or difficulty that may arise under this Scheme or in regard to the meaning or interpretation of any
provision of this Scheme or implementation thereof or in any manner whatsoever connected therewith or
to review the position relating to the satisfaction of various conditions of this Scheme and if necessary to
waive any such conditions (to the extent permissible in law) and such determination or directions or
waiver, as the case may be shall be binding on all the parties, in the same manner as if the same were

specifically incorporated in this Scheme.

20.3 For the purpose of giving effect to this Scheme or to any modifications/ amendments thereof, the
Directors of the Transferor Company (prior to its dissolution in pursuance to Scheme) and of the
Transferee Company may give and are authorised to give all such directions as are necessary including

directions for resolving any question of doubt or difficulty that may arise.

20.4 Further, it is clarified that the initial consent of the shareholders and creditors (both secured and
unsecured) of the Companies to this Scheme shall in itself be deemed to be sufficient to authorize the
operation of the abovementioned clause of this Scheme and any subsequent alteration would not require a

fresh note of consent from such shareholders and creditors.
21. APPROVALS

The Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to any
Governmental Authority, if required, under any law for such consents and approvals which the Transferee
Company may require to own the Undertaking of the Transferor Company and to carry on the business of

the Transferor Company.
22. SCHEME CONDITIONAL ON APPROVAL/SANCTIONS
22.1 The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

a) receipt of 'Observation Letter' or 'No-Objection Letter' from the BSE Limited (“Stock Exchange™) on

the Scheme, as required under Applicable Laws;

b) the Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majorities of the classes of members and
creditors (where applicable) of the Companies in accordance with the Act and as may be directed by the
NCLT;

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED For Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.

Director

R Ging Director
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c) the Scheme being approved by the public shareholders of the Transferee Company through e-voting in
terms of paragraph 10 of Part [(A) of SEBI Scheme Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93
dated 20 June 2023 and the Scheme shall be acted upon only if vote cast by the public shareholders of
the Transferee Company in favor of the proposal are more than the number of votes cast by the public

shareholders against it.

d) the sanction of the NCLT being obtained under Section 230 read with 232 of the Act in favour of the

respective Parties and the necessary order(s) under Section 232 of the Act, being obtained;

e) receipt of relevant sanction or approval of RBI or any other Appropriate Authorities concerned, as may
be considered necessary and appropriate, by the respective Boards of the Parties being obtained and

granted in respect of any of the matters for which such sanction or approval is required; and

) filing of the certified copies of the orders of the NCLT sanctioning this Scheme, by the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company, under the applicable provisions of the Act with the

Jurisdictional ROC.
23. EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS/SANCTIONS

23.1 In the event this Scheme is not being sanctioned by (i) the NCLT or such other competent authority
before which this Scheme is presented for approval (ii) requisite majorities of members, creditors of the
Transferor Company or the Transferee Company, the part not sanctioned shall stand revoked, cancelled
and be of no effect, save and except in respect of any further act or deed done prior thereto as is
contemplated hereunder or as to any rights and/or liabilities which might have arisen or accrued pursuant
thereto and which shall be governed and be preserved or worked out as is specifically provided for in the

Scheme or as may otherwise arise in law.

23.2 If any provision of this Scheme is ruled invalid or illegal by the NCLT, or unenforceable under present or
future laws, then it is the intention of the parties to this Scheme that such portion shall be severable from
the remainder of the Scheme, and the Scheme shall not be affected thereby, unless the deletion of such
portion shall cause this Scheme to become materially adverse to any party, in which case the parties,
through their respective Board of Directors may either decide to revoke the Scheme or may attempt to
bring about a modification in the Scheme, as will best preserve for the parties the benefits and obligations

of the Scheme, including but not limited to such portion.
24, EFFECT OF NON-FULFILLMENT OF ANY OBLIGATION

In the event of non-fulfillment of any or all the obligations under the Scheme, by any Party, the non-
performance of which will put another Party or Parties under any obligation, then such defaulting Party
will indemnify all costs/interest, etc. to the other Party, subject to a specific provision if any to the

contrary under the Scheme.

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITEC

4 . ,{,U_u,x.ul.u-»\
QM Director

For Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.
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25. COSTS AND EXPENSES

All costs, charges and expenses including stamp duty and registration fee of any deed, document,
instrument or the NCLT Order including this Scheme or in relation to the Scheme and of carrying out and
implementing the terms and provisions of this Scheme and incidental to the completion of the
amalgamation in pursuance of the Scheme shall be borne and paid by the Transferee Company. The
Transferee Company shall be eligible for deduction of expenditure incurred as per Section 35DD of the

Income Tax Act, 1961.
26. WITHDRAWAL OF THE SCHEME

The Companies shall be at liberty to withdraw this Scheme at any time as may be mutually agreed by the
Boards of the respective Companies prior to the Effective Date. In such a case, the Companies shall
respectively bear their own cost or as may be mutually agreed. It is hereby clarified that notwithstanding
anything to the contrary contained in this Scheme, the Companies shall not be entitled to withdraw the

Scheme unilaterally without the prior written Consent of the other Party.
27. MISCELLANEOUS

27.1 In the event of non-fulfillment of any or all obligations under the Scheme by any company towards the
other company, inter-se or to third parties and non-performance of which will put the other company
under any obligation, then such company will indemnify the other company in respect of all

costs/interests, etc.

272 If any part of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reason whatsoever, in the sole discretion of
the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company either by their respective Boards of Directors or
through Committees appointed by them in this behalf, the same shall not, subject to the decision of the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, affect the validity or implementation of the other parts

and/or provisions of this Scheme.

27.3 In the event that any conditions imposed by the NCLT are found unacceptable for any reason whatsoever
by the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company, then the Transferor Company and/or Transferee
Company shall be entitled to withdraw the Scheme in which event no rights and liabilities whatsoever

shall accrue to or be incurred inter se to or by the parties or any of them.

274 On the approval of the Scheme by the members of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company
pursuant to Section 230 read with Section 232 of the Act, it shall be deemed that the said members have
also accorded all relevant consents under other provisions of the Act to the extent the same may be

considered applicable for the purpose of this Scheme.

For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

LA - Motlan

Director
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27.5 The mutation of the title to the immovable properties shall be made and duly recorded by the appropriate
authorities pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme and upon the Scheme becoming effective, in
accordance with the terms hereof, in favour of the Transferee Company in respect of the immovable
properties vested in it. Any inchoate title or possessory title of the Transferor Company or its predecessor

companies shall be deemed to be the title of the Transferee Company.

27.6 It is the intention of the Parties that any Part of the Scheme, as may be mutually decided by the Board of
each of Parties, shall be severable from the remainder of the Scheme, and the Scheme shall not be affected

by such alteration.

. : i Lid.
For YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED For Ashika Credit Capital
M Director
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CA VIDHI CHANDAK

B.Com, FCA, DISA

Registered Valuer (Securities or Financial Assets)
Reglstration No.: IBBI/RV/06/2019/11184

— " e —

STRICTLY PRIV&TE & CONF]DENTIAL

e e e e . W

To,

' The Board of Directars, - | The Board of Directors,

| Ashika Credit Capital Limited, Yaduka Financlal Services Limited,
226/1, AJC Bose Road, Trinity-7 Floor, 16/1A, Abdul Hamid Street,2nd Floar,

| Kolkata - 700020 | Room no-2B, Kolkata-700069

Subject: Recommendation of Fair Share Exchange ratio for the Amalgamation of

Yaduka Financfal Services Limited {“YADUKA") with Ashika Credit Capital Limited
(“ASHIKA™).

Dear Sir/Madam,

| refer to the respective engagement letler dated 25 July 2024 whereby, 1, Vidhi
Chandak (herein after referred to as the “Valuer”) have been appointed by Ashika
Credit Capital Limited (referred to as  “ASHIKA"™ or “Transferee Company”) for
recommendation of fair share exchange ratio as on 30t July 2024 for the proposed
Scheme of Amalgamation of Yaduka Financial Services Limited (referred to as
“YADUKA" or “Transferor Company™) with ASHIKA (collectively referred to as the
“Companies” or Transacting Companies or “the clients” or “the valuatien subjects”
and individually referred to as the “Company”, as the cantext may require) with
effect from the appointed date of 1 October 2024 pursuant to a scheme of
Amalgamation u/s 230 to 232 and other applicable clauses of the Companies Act 2013
(“Scheme” or “Amalgamation”). The Management inciuding the Board of Directors of
the Transacting Companies shall together be referred to as 'the Management'.

This report sets out my scope of wark, background, sources of infarmation,
procedures performed by me and my recommendation of the fair equity share
exchange ratio.

Thanking You, o
Yours faithfully, 2500 ““*:-._\__
Vids ChanTuity 1'\ :’@‘ _;,
CA Vidhi Chandak AT ”*'
ICAl Memb. No- 057114 b -

Registered Valuer C
Regn. No.: IBBI/RV/06/2019/11186

Enrollment Na. |CAIRVO/RV-NO00183/2018-19

UDIN: 24057114BKEPYW 1469 &
Place: Kotkata @
Date: 31% July 2024 a

S R — e e e,

8 Lake Range, Kolkata- 700026, India
Mobile No.: 9051052600, E-mail: vehandak95®gmail.com

Page 96 of 292



Page 97 of 292



CA VIDHI CHANDAK

B.Com, FCA, DISA

Registered Valuer (Securities or Financial Assets)
Registration No.: IBBI/RV/06/2019/11186

I. CONTEXT AND PURPOSE

| understand that the Managements of the Transacting Companies are
contemplating a scheme of Amalgamation, wherein they intend to amalgamate
YADUKA with ASHIKA in accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory modifications, re-enactment or amendments
thereof for the time being in force ("the Act'] read with the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 {("the Rules"), as
amended from time to time and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act
and any other applicable taw for the time being in force including the applicable
provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and the circulars issued therein ("the Regulations”), in each case, as amended
fram time to time, and in a manner provided in the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation
(hereinafter referred to as the Scheme’).

The proposed Scheme of Amalgamation provides that the Transferor Company shall
stand merged with and be vested in the Transferee Company, as going concern,
without any further act or instrument and Pursuant to the applicable provisions of
the Act, together with all the properties, assets, rights, liabilities, benefits and
interest therein, as more specifically described in the Scheme. As a consideration
for the proposed amalgamation,the equity shareholders of the Transferor Company
shall be aliotted the equity shares of the Transferee Company.

I understand that the appointed date for the Proposed Amalgamation shall be 1%
October 2024 as mentioned in the Scheme or such other date as may be agreed
between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company and approved by the
Appropriate Authority (as defined in the Scheme)

I, have been approached by the “Transferor Company” and the “Transferee
Company™ Lo carry out a relative (not absolute) valuation of the shares of the
Companies and to recommend a fair and equitable ratio of exchange of Shares , that
IS to say the number of shares to be allotted by the “Transferee Company” to the
shareholders of the “Transferor Company” an such Amalgmation.

The scope of my service is to canduct a relative (not absolute) valuation of the shares
of the Companies and recommending a Fair Share Exchange Ratio for the proposed
amalgamation in accordance with the the ICAl Valuation Standards 2018 issued by
the Institute of Chartererd Accountants of Indfa. This report ( “Report”) sets out the

findings of my exercise. For the purpose of this repert, the valuation date is
considered as on 30t July, 2024,

— e — ———y

8 Lake Range, Kolkata- ?ﬂﬂTﬂé,_ India Ao
Mobile No.: 9051052600, E-mai¥ehandak95@

i , -:' Q““)}f\
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CA VIDHI CHANDAK

B.Com, FCA, DiSA

Registered Valuer (Securities or F inancial Assets)
Registration No.: IBBI/RV/06/2019/11186

— - —_— e — S — -
= —— — = A= —

e e e ——— i

For the purpose of arriving at valuation of the Companies, | have consicered base
as “Relative value”. My valuation, and this report, is based on the premise of “going
concern” valuve. Any change in the valuation base, or the premise could have
significant impact an my valuation exercise, and therefare, this report.

I 'have been provided with the Limited Reviewed of ASHIKA and audited financial
statements of YADUKA for the three manths period ended 30" June 2024. | have
taken into consideration the current market parameters in my analysis and have

been carried out in the normal and ordinary course between 30 June 2024 and the
Valuation/ Report Date and that no material changes have accured in their
respectve operations and financial position between 30" June 2024 until the
Yaluation/Repert Date.

| have been informed that:

a. With effect from the appointed date, and upte and including the effective
date, there would not be any capital variation in the Transacting Companies
excepl by mutual consent of the Board of Directors of the transacting
companies or such other events as contempleted in the Scheme,

b. Till the Proposed Amalgamation becomes effective, neither of the
Transacting Companies would declare any dividend which are materially
different from those declared in the past few years,

C. There would be no significant variation between the draft Scheme of
amalgamtion and the final Scheme approved and submitted with the relevant

authorities,

| have been informed that, in the event either of the Transacting Companies
restructure their equity share capital by way of share split / consolidation / issue
of bonus shares / merger / demerger / reduction of share capital before the Scheme
becomes effective, the issue of shares pursuant to the fair equity share exchange
ratio recommended in this Report shall be adjusted accordingly to consider the

effect of any such corporate actions. }

“iaTa

e S e

e — 111 S I i i 2% ——— | e c——

8 Lake Range, Kolkata 700026, India
Mabile No.: 9051052600, E-mail: vchandak95@gmail.com
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CA VIDHI CHANDAK

B.Com. FCA, DISA

Registered Valuer (Securities or Financial Assets)
Registration No.: IBBI/RV/06/2019/11184

2. IDENTITY OF REGISTERED VALUER & OTHER EXPERTS
INVOLVED IN VALUATION

Vidhi Chandak is a Chartered Accountant & Registered Valuer (Securities or Financial
Assets) as required under The Companies (Registered Valuers & Yaluation) Rules,
2017. Vidhi Chandak is registered with Insclvency & Bankruptcy Board of India vide
registration number IBBI/RV/06/2019/11186. Vidhi Chandak's primary membership

15 registered with ICAl Registered Valuers Organization vide registration no
ICAIRVO/RV-PD00183/2018-19.

| have relied upon the Valuation Report from Mr. Anupam Kumar Sarkar- Registered
Yaluer with IBB| for Land & Buildings vide Registration Ne., BRI /RV/01/2019/12658
for the fair value of immovable property being “investment property’ in the
transferee company as provided to me by the management,

3. DISCLOSURE OF VALUER INTEREST

| do not have any direct interest or confiict of intersst of any kind with the
companies, with respect to the valuation undertaken by me.

My professional fee for this valuation is based upon my normal billing rates, and not
contingent upon the results or the value of the business or in any other manner,

4. BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANIES

ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED (‘ASHIKA' or ‘Transferee Company’)

Ashika Credit Capital Limited (CIN: L67120WB1994PLC062159) was incorporated cn
8™ day of March, 1994 under the Companies Act, 1956 is a public limited company,
lsted on the BSE Limited (“BSE"). It is, inter alia, a registered Non-Depuosit
Accepting Non-Banking Financial [nstitution (“NBFI™), classified as a NBFC-ICC, Base
Layer (BL), holding Certificate of Registration as an NBFC issued on 74 September
1998. It is mainly engaged fund-based activities like providing loans and advances,
inter-corporate deposits, loans against securities and investments in shares and
securities. At present the Company is having its registered office at 226/1 AJC Bose

Road, Trinily-7"* Floor, Kolkata - 700020. )
. = __*w_f .
B Lake Range, Kolkata- 700026, Indja [\ | 5% %
Mebile Mo.: 9051052600, E -mail: vchandak'?ﬁf:g?gl i T‘im'\l ' ;

Page 100 of 292



Page 101 of 292



Page 102 of 292



CA VIDHI CHANDAK
B.Com. FCA, DISA

Registered Yaluer (Securities ar Financial Assets)
Registration No.: IBBI/RV/06/2019/11186
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» During the discussions with the managements of the Companies, | have also
obtained explanations and information considered reasonably necessary for my
exercise In respect of each of the Companies. The Companies have been provided
with the opportunity to review the Draft report as part of my standard practice
to make sure that factual inaccuracies / omissions are avoided in my report,

¢ Further the Management of each of the Companies has informed me that all the

material information impacting the respective companies have been disclosed to
me.

7. VALUATION STANDARDS FOLLOWED AND PROCEDURES
ADOPTED

The Report has been prepared in compliance with the valuation Standards
adopted by ICAl Registered Valyers Organisation.

In connection with this exercise, | have adopted the following procedures to carry
out the valuation analysis:

1. Requested and received financial and operational information of the
Companies from the Management.

2. Discussions (physical / over call) with the Management tg:
a. Understand the business and fundamental factors that affect its
earning-generating capability.
b. Enquire about the historical financial performance, current state
of affairs and business plans and realizability of assets,

3. Obtained and analysed data available in public domain, as considered relevant
by me,

4. Selection of valuation approach and valuation methodology/ (ies), as
considered appropriate and relevant by me after deliberations and

consideration to the sector in which the Transacting Companies operate and
analysis of their business operations.

5. Determination of fair value of the Equity Share; p_f__ the Companies and Swap
Ratio. ﬂ- *\
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Each of the above approaches is discussed in tha following paragraphs:

1. Market Approach:
Market Price Methad:

considered as the value of the equity shares of that com
are arising from the shares being

element of speculative support that

pany where such quotations
regularly and freely traded In, subject to the
may be inbuilt in the value of the shares,

In the present case, the equily shares of Transferee Company are listed on BSE and
are frequently traded. The value of equity shares of under this method is det

requ : ermined
considering the share price on BSE over an appropriate period.

| have not considered the market price method for the Transferor Company as the
equity shares of the Transferor Company are not listed in any stock exchanges.

Comparable Companies Multiple(CCM)/ Comparable Transactions Multiple{CTM)
Method

Under this methodology, market multiples of comparable listed companies are
computed and applied to the business being valued in order to arrive at a multiple
based valuation. The difficuity here is in the selection of a comparable company
since it is rare to find two or more companies with the same praoduct portfolio, size,
capital structure, business strategy, and profitability and accounting practices.

| understand from the Management that ASHIKA is a non-deposit taking NBFC which
primarily derives value from the investment it holds in equity shares of listed

companies, mutual fund and alternative investment funds. Thus, | have riot used
CCM method for valuing the equity shares of ASHIKA,

| understand from the Management that YADUKA is a non-deposit taking NBFC which
1s engaged in the activity of trading in equity shares of listed company and lending
to borrowers. There are no listed comparable companies operating in similar line of
business and having similar operating/financial metrics as YADUKA. Moregver, 1t
primarily derives value from the inventory of equity shares of listed companies, etc
and toans given by it, Thus, | have not used CCM method for valuing the equity
shares of YADUKA. Sy
o)
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Under CTM, the value of shares/ business of a company is determined based on
market multiples of publicly disclosed transactions in the similar space as that of
the subject company. Multiples are generally based on data from recent transactions
in a comparable sector, but with appropriate adjustment after consideration has
been given to the specific characteristics of the business being valued.

Based on my analysis and discussion with Management, | understand that there are
no recent comparable transactions, data of which is available in public domain,
involving companies of similar nature and having a similar operating/ financial
metrics as that of ASHIKA and YADUKA, Moreover, ASHIKA primarily derives value from
the investment it holds in equity shares of listed companies, mutual fund and
alternative investment funds and YADUKA primarily derives value from the inven tary
of equity shares of listed companies, etc and loans given by it. | have therefore not
used CTM method to value the equity shares of these Companies.

2. Income Approach:;

Income Approach is a valuation approach that converts maintainable or future
amounts (e.g., cash flows or income and expenses) to a single current (1.e.
discounted or capitalised) amount. An approach based on ea rnings is relevant in case
of companies generating a steady stream of income.

Discounted Cash Flows  “DCF"

Under DCF methad, the projected free cash flows from business operations, afler
considering fund requirements for projected capital expenditure and incremental
working capital, are discounted at the Weighted Averaue Cost of Capital (WACC).
The sum of the discounted value of such free cash flows and discounted value of
perpetuity is the value of the business.

| understand from the Management that ASHIKA is a non-deposit taking NBFC which

primarily derives value from the investment it holds in equity shares of listed
compares, mutual fund and alternative investment funds.

| understand from the Management that YADUKA is a non-deposit taking NBFC which
is engaged in the activity of trading in equity shares of listed company and lending
to borrowers. It primarily derives value from the inventory of equity shares of listed
campanies, etc and loans given by it.

Both the Companies do nat have steady stream of income and due to abave
mentioned factors the Companies are not in a position to provide me with the

accurate long-term future projections. Hence, | am not able to use Income Approach T"_""
for the Companies. - M
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3. Cost Approach or Asset Approach

't is a valuation approach that reflects the amount that would be required currently
to replace the service capacity of an asset (often referred to as cu rrent replacement
cost) The common methodologies for the cost approach are the Replacement Cost
Method and Reproduction Cost Method. These methods involve determining the
value of the asset based on the cost that would have to be incurred to recreate/

replicate the asset with substantially the same utility as that of the asset under
valuation,

Asset Approach / Net Asset Value Method (“NAY™)

The value arrived at under this approach s based on the financial statement of the
business and may be defined as Shareholders’ Funds or Net Assets owned by the
business. The balance sheet values are adjusted for any contingent liabilities that
are likely to materialize. The Net Asset Value is generally used as the minimum
break-up value for the transaction since this methodology ignores the future return
the assets can produce and is calculated using historical accounting data,

This approach involves determining the value per share based on the assets and
liabilities of a company. | have used the NAY Approach to determine the value of
the Transferor and Transferee Companies., For this approach, the value of the

underlying investments and other assets has been considered at their realizable/
fair values,

Hence, | have used Net Asset value methad.

9. BASIS OF FAIR EXCHANGE RATIO

7.1 The basis of the fair share exchange ratio for the proposed dmalgamation would
have to be determined after taking into consideration all the factors and
methods mentioned hereinabove. For the purpose of recommending the fair
share exchange ratio it is necessary to arrive at a final value for the equity
shares of each Company. It is, however, important to note that in doing so, |
am not attempting to arrive at the absolute values of the Companies, but at
the relative values to facilitate the determination of the fair share exchange
ratio. For this purpose, it is necessary to give appropriate weights to the vgiues
arrived at under each methedology. F i
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9.2 The fair share exchange ratio has been arrived at on

share valuation of the Companies based on the various
explained herein earlier and various qualitative factors relevant to each
Company and the business dynamics and growth Potentials of the businesses of
the Companies, having regard to the information

. base, key underlying
assumptions and the limitations, This is the approach considered for

the basis of a relative

9.3 Normally valuation of shares i

» the dividend paid on
shares, the relevant growth prospects, the ratip of distributable ea rnings to

shareholders, the book value and market value of net assets of the Companies,
restriction on transfer of shares, future earning of the companies etc. The
answer to the question whether some or all of this factor can be applied witl
depend upon the circumstances of each case.

9.4 To arrive at Fair Valuation working of Swap Ratio for allotment of Equity Shares
of Transferee Company ta the shareholders of Transferor Company, | have
applied Assets approach (Net Assets Value Method) and Market approach
(Market Price) for the Transferee Company. | have applied Assets approach (MNet
Assets Value Method) for the Transferar Company.

9.5 | have independently appiied methods discussed above, as considered
appropriate, and arrived at their assessment of value per share of the
Companies. To arrive at the consensus on the fair value exchange ratio for the
proposed Amalgamation, suitable minor adjustments/ rounding off have been
done in the values.

9.6 For the purpose of my opinion, | have relied upon the current shareholding of
the Companies, the draft Scheme of Amalgamation and other information as
provided by the Management of the Companies and their respective advisors
and authorized representatives,

9.7 While | have provided my recommendation of the fair equity Share Exchange
Ratio based on the information available tc me and within the scope and
constraints of my engagement, others may have a different opinion as to lEhe
fair equity Share Exchange Ratio. The final responsibility for the determinat:gn
of the Exchange ratio at which the Propesed Transaction shall take place will
be with the Board of Directors of the respective Companies who should take

into account other factors such as their own assessment of the Proposed

-

Transaction and input of other advisors. Ty
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10. SCOPE LIMITATIOQNS, ASSUMPTIONS & CAVEATS

i,

V.

This document has been prepared for the purposes stated herein and should
not be relied upon for any other purpose. My clients are the only authorized
user of this report and are restricted for the purpose indicated in the

be consistent with the intended use,
unauthorized use of this report,

Une of the companies included in Inventories of YADUKA has been delisted
fr.nm the stock exchange and the management has taken its book value as
nil. Hence, | have also taken its value as nil for valuation purpose,

| owe responsibility to only to the clients that have appointed me under the
terms of the engagement letter, | will not be liable for any losses, claims,
damages or liabilities arising out of the actions taken, omissions or advice
given by any other Person. In no event shall | will be liable for any loss,
damages, cost or expenses arising in any way from fraudulent acts,
misrepresentations or willful default on part of the client or companies,
their directors, employees or agents.

While my work has involved an analysis of financial information and
accounting records, my engagement does nat include an audit in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards of the client existing business
records. Accordingly, | express no audit opinion and assume no respensibility
and make no representations with respect to the accuracy or completeness
of any information previded by and on behalf of you and the client.

While | have provided my recommendation of the fair equity share ratio
based on the information available to me and within the scope and
constraints of my engagement, others may have a different opinion. The
final respensibility for the determination of the fair value equity exchange
ratio at which the proposed amalgamation shall take place will be with the
Board of Directors of the Transacting companies who should consider other
factors such as their own assessment of the proposed amalgamation and the
input of other advisors.

F
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The Management has informed me that business activities of Transacting
Companies have been carried out in the normal and ordinary course between

30 June 2024 and the Valuation/ Report Date and that n

0 material changes

have occured in their respective operations and financial position between

30™ June 2024 untll the Valuation/ Report Date.

The decision to carry out the Proposed Amalgamation (inctuding
consideration thereof) lfes entirely with the Management/ Board of
Directors of the respective Company and my work and findings shall not
constitute recommendation as ta whether or not the Management/ the

Board of Directors of the Company should carry out the Proposed
Amalgamation

My report is subject to the scope and limitations detailed hereinafter. As
such the report is to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction

with the relevant documents referred to herein and in the context of the
purpose for which it is made.

The valuation of companies and assets is made based on the available facts
and circumstances and the conclusions arrived at in rmany cases will be
subjective and dependent on the exercise of individual judgment. Although
every scientific method has been empioyed in systematically arriving at the
vatue, there is no indisputable single value. Whilst, | consider the valuation
to be both reasonable and defensible based on the information available,
athers may place a different value.

My Valuation Analysis should not be construed as investment advice;
specifically, | do not express any opinion on the suitability or otherwise of
entering into any transaction with the Companies. Any party shall do so after
seeking their own professional advice. | take no responsibility or liability
towards third parties for any loss, damage, cost or expense caused by use of

or reliance on information disclosed in this report. .
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An analysis of such nature is necessarily based on the prevailing stock market,
financial, economic and other conditions in general and Industry trends 1n
particular as in effect on and the information made availabie to me as of, the
es and circumstances, this
valuation report can only be regarded as relevant as at the valuation date.
Events occurring after the date hereof may affect this report and the

disumptions used in preparing it, and | do not assume any obligation top
update, revise or reaffirm this Report,

The Companies and its management/representatives warranted to me that
the information they supplied was complete, accurate and true and correct
to the best of theijr knowledge. | have relied Upon the representations of
the Companies and their fnanagement and other third parties concerning
the financial data. | shall not be Hable for any loss, damages, cost or
expenses arising from fraudulent acts, misrepresentations, or willful default
on part of the companies, their di rectors, employees or agents.

! have been informed by management that there are no significant lawsuits,
or any other undisclosed contingent liabilities which may potentially affect
the business, except as may be disclosed elsewhere in this report. | have
assumed that no costs or expenses will be incurred in connection with such
liabilities, except as explicitly stated in this report.

| have relied on data from external sources also to conclude the valuation.
These sources are believed to be reliable and therefore, | assume no liability
for the truth or accuracy of any data, opinions or estimates furnished by
others that have been used in this analysis. Where | have relied on data,
opinions or estimates from external sources » reasonable care has been taken
Lo ensure that's such data has been correctly extracted from those sources
and/er reproduced in its proper form and context.

The report assumes that the companies comply fully with relevant laws a.nd
regulations applicable in its area of operations and usage unless otherwise
stated, and that the companies will be managed in a competent and
responsible manner. Further, as specifically stated to the contrary, this
report has given no consideration to matters of a legal nature, including
1ssues of legal title and compliance with local laws, and litigations and other
contingent liabilities that are not recorded/reflected in the balance
sheet/fixed assets register provided to me. T
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XVI. 1t am fully aware that based on the opinfon of valye expressed in this report,
I may be required to give testimony or attend court / Judicial proceedings
with regard to the subject assets, although it is out of scope of the
assignment, unless specific arrangements to do so have been made in
advance, or as otherwise required by law. In such event, the party seeking
my evidence in the proceedings shall bear the cost/professional fee of
attending court / judicial Proceedings and my tendering evidence befare
such authority shall be under the applicable laws,

XVIl.  The opinion of valye given in this report is based on information provided in
part by the management of the companies and other sources as listed in the
report. This information 4s assumed to be accurate and complete,

XVIIL. 1 have not attempted to confirm whether or not all assets of the companies

are free and clear of liens and encumbrances, or that the owner has good title
Lo all the assets,

KIX. | have not carried out any physical verification of the assets and liabilities of

the Transacting Companies and take no responsibility for the identification of
such assets and liabilitjes.

XX.  The valuation analysis and results thereof for recommendation under this
Report are governed by concept of materiality.

XXl. | have also assumed that the business will be operated prudently and that
there are no unforeseen adverse changes in the economic condition affecting
the business, the market or the industry.

XXIl. | am independent of the company and have no direct interest in the Company
or its assets. The fee pald for my services in no way influenced the results of
my analysis.

XXII.  This Report does not in any manner address the price at which equity share
of ASHIKA shall trade following announcement of the Proposed Amalgamation
and | express no opinion or recommendation as to how the shareholders of
ASHIKA AND YADUKA should vote at any shareholders' meeting(s) to be held
In connection with the Proposed Amalgamation, My report and opinion /
valuation analysis contained herein is nat to be construed as advice relating
to investing in, purchasing, selling or otherwise dealing in securities

XXIV.  This report is subject to Indian Laws only. A
.... —— S - .,-..l-—[‘:‘;é‘:-ﬁwdl{-r i
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Market Approach- Market Price is not considered for Transferor Company as its
equity shares are not listeq. CCM Method/CTM Methad s not considered for both the
Companies as | cannot find any Comparable Company of the same or comparable
sizé  and nature and  moreover poth the  companies derive  their
investments!inventory held by them.

Income Approach- Both the Companies do not have steady stream of income and
the Companies are notin a position to provide me with the aceurate long-term fy ture
projections and moreover both the Companies derive their fnvestmentsfinvemory
held by them. Hence, | am not able to use Income Approach for the Companies,

Asset Approach- Both the companies primarily derive valye from the inventory/
Investments of equity shares of [isteq Companies, and/or loans given by it,
Therefore, | have ysed Net Asset Value approach.
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BRIEF ABOUT COMPANIES

Yaduka Financial Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as "YFSL" or “Transferor
Company"), having Corporate Identity Number (“CIN") U51109WB2007PLC117012 is
an unlisted public limited company incorporated on 09 July, 2007 under the
Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office at 16/1A, Abdul Hamid Steet, 20
Iloor, Room No - 2B, (Previcusly Known as British India Street), Kolkata - 700069,
West Bengal, India. Its authorized share capital is INR 4,55,00,000/- (Indian Rupees
Four Crores Fifty-Five Lakhs only). It is, inter alia, a registered Non-Deposit Accepting
Non-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC") holding Certificate of Registration from the
Reserve Bank of India ("RBI"), issued on 11 September, 2013 under section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (Certificate of Registration No. being N.05.06760).
It is engaged in the business of providing linance and dealing in shares and mutual

funds.

Ashika Credit Capital Limited (hereinafter referred to as "ACCL" or "Transferee
Company”) having Corporate [dentity Number ("CIN") L67120WB1994PLC062159 is a
Public Limited Company, listed on the BSE Limited ("BSE") incorporated on 08% March,
1994 under the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office 226/1, A.].C. Bose
Road, Trinity, 7% Floor, Kolkata - 700020, West Bengal, India. Its authorized share
capital is INR 20,25,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Twenty Crores Twenty-Five Lakhs only). It
is, inter alia, a registered Non-Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Financial Institution
(“NBFI"), classified as a NBFC-ICC, Base Layer (BL) NBFC, holding Certificate of
Registration as an NBFC issued on 7' September 1998. The Company is engaged in
fund-based activities like providing loans and advances, inter-corporate deposits, loans

against securities, and investments in shares and securities.

The share capital structure of the Transferor Company as on 30* June, 2024 is as

follows: B o _
S Particulars INR
| Authorised Share Capital - ]
STRICTLY PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL IS Al\/
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| 45,50,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/~ each 4,55,00,000/-
Tﬂta-i l4‘|5 510010&0!‘

Issued, Subscribed and Pald -up Share Capital

| 45,22,150 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 4,52,21,500/-
Total | 4,52,21,500/-

The share capital structure of the Transferee Company as on 30" June, 2024 is as
follows:

Particulars INR

Authonsed Share Capital
| 2,02,50,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 20,25,00,000/-
! Total | 20,25,00,000/-
Issued and Subscribed Share Capital
' | 1,18,86,174 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 11,88,61,740/-

Total | 11,88,61,740/-

Paid Up Share Capital
| 1,18,80,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 11,88,00,000/-
Total _ 11,88,00,000/-

RATIONALE OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme is intended to consolidate the business of the Companies in a manner
which is expected to enable better realization of potential of their businesses, yield
beneficial results and enhanced value creation for the Companies, their respective
shareholders and stakeholders. The amalgamation of the Transferor Company with and
into the Transferee Company would inter alia have the following benefits:

(a] The Transferee Company and the Transferor Company are Non-Banking Finance
Company duly registered with Reserve Bank of India and are engaged in Investing
and Financing activities. The business of the Transferor Companies and the
Transferee Company can be combined/adjusted and carried forward conveniently
with combined strength and would result in business synergy, consolidation of the
Companies and pooling of their resources into a single entity.

(b) Consolidation of the businesses of the Transteror Company and the Transferee
Company, for creation of a larger unified entity and to achieve optimal and efficient
utilization of capital, resulting in lesser overheads including administrative,
managerial, and other expenditure, optimal utilization of resources, and provide a
common governance structure;

STRICTLY PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL (8 Q/
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(¢) The Transferee Company is expected to have improved financial strength upon
amalgamation. Particularly, the Companies believe that the combined operation
shall lead to industry-leading revenue growth and profitability. Further, the
Companies expect that their combined balance sheet will provide diverse strategic
options and flexibility.

(d) Pooling of knowledge and expertise of both the Parties and align with the business
plans to meet long-term objectives and enhance operational and management
elficiencies;

(e} Unification and streamlining of legal and regulatory compliances currently required
to be carried out by both, the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO FOR PROPOSED SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION

The Boeard of the Transferee Company has appointed CA Vidhi Chandak (IBBI No:
[BBI/RV/06/2019/11186) as Registered Valuer vide mandate letter dated 25% July,
2024 to determine and recommend the Share Exchange Ratio for the Proposed

Transaction, on a going concern basis with 30 July, 2024 as the Valuation Date.

[n this connection and pursuant to the requirements of SEBI Circular
SERBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023; we have been requested by
the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company to render an opinion on whether the
Share Exchange Ratio determined and recommended by the Registered Valuer vide
their report dated 31.07.2024, is fair. Pursuant to Proposed Amalgamation, ACCL shall
issue its equity shares of face value of INR 10/- each to the equity shareholders of YFSL
holding equity shares of YFSL of Face value of INR 10/- each.

The fair exchange ratio has been arrived by the Registered Valuer on the basis of a
relative equity valuation of the Companies based on the various approaches/ methods
and various qualitative factors relevant to each company and the business dynamics

and growth potentials of the businesses of the Companies, having regard to information
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base, key underlying assumptions and limitations determined therein. The Registered
Valuer has recommended the following Share Exchange Ratio:
“1445 (One Thousand Four Hundred Forty-five) equity shares of Transferee Company
having a face value of INR 10/- each fully paid-up shall be issued for every 1000 (One
Thousand] equity shares held in Transferor Company having a face value INR 10/-
each fully paid-up.”

It is also hereby clarified that no shares shall be issued by the Transferee Company in

respect of the shares held by the Transferor Company in the Transferee Company.

In terms of the SEBI Master Circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-
2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023, the fair value per share and fair exchange ratio

have been laid down below:

Valuation Approaches Ashika Credit Capital Yaduka Financial Services
‘ Limited (ACCL) Limited (YFSL)
| . ~|Value per share| Weight (%) | Value per share | Weight (%)
| Asset Approach 7108 | 0% 170.17 100.00%
| Income Approach- N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Discounted Cash Flow
Method - I
Market Approach - 117.76 100% N.A. N.A.
‘Market Price Method
Market Approach - N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Comparable Company
Multiple Method | I
Market Approach - N.A N.A. N.A. N.A.
Comparable Transaction [
Multiple Method o
Relative value pershare | 117.76 - 170.17 -
Share Exchange Ratio _ 1445:1000

*Since the value per equity share of ACCL under NAV method is lower than the floor
price as per regulation 164 of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 ('SEBI ICDR Regulations’) i.e. higher of 10 days and 90 days volume
weighted average price preceding the relevant date as determined under the Market

Approach, the Registered Valuer have assigned zero weightage to the value per equity
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share under NAV method and considered value per equity share as per Market
Approach i.e. the floor price to arrive at the fair share exchange ratio in accordance with

SEBHICDR Regulations.

SOURCES OF INFORMATION

For the purposes of fairness opinion, we have relied upon the following sources of

information received from the management of the Transferee Company:

= Audited Annual Accounts of ACCL and YFSL for F. Y. 2021- 2022 and F. Y. 2022-23;

* Audited financial statements of the Transferor Company and Limited Reviewed
financial statements of the Transferee Company for the period ending on
30/06/2024.

* Shareholding Pattern of the Companies as on 30.06.2024;

*  Management Certified Dralft Scheme of Amalgamation for the proposed
amalgamation;

= Brief Overview of the Companies and their past & current operations;

*  Recommendation of Fair Value Share Exchange/ Share Exchange ratio Report dated
31.07.2024 issued by CA Vidhi Chandak.

« Such other information, explanations and representations that were required and
provided by the Management; and

= Such other analysis, inquiries, and reviews as we considered necessary.
CONCLUSION AND OPINION

Subject to above read with the caveats as detailed later, we as a Merchant Banker
hereby certify that pursuant to SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-
2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023, we have reviewed the proposed Scheme of
Amalgamation with respect to the share exchange ratio recommended by the
Registered Valuer to be fair and reasonable from the point of view of equity

shareholders of the Companies.,

CAVEATS

SIRICTLY PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL S }( \
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We wish to emphasize that; we have relied on explanations and information
provided by the respective management and other publicly available information.
Although, we have reviewed such data for consistency and reasonableness, we have
not independently investigated or otherwise verified the data provided.

We have not made an appraisal or independent valuation of any of the assets or
liabilities of the companies and have not conducted an audit or due diligence or
reviewed / validated the financial data except what is provided to us by the
Transferee Company and Transferor Company.

The scope of our work has been limited both in terms of the areas of the business
and operations which we have reviewed and the extent to which we have reviewed
them. There may be matters, other than those noted in this Scheme, which might be
relevant in the context of the transaction and which a wider scope might uncover.

We have no present or planned future interest in the Transferee Company and
Transferor Company and the fee payable for this opinion is not contingent upon the
opinion reported herein.

Our Fairness Opinion should not be construed as investment advice; specifically, we
do not express any opinion on the suitability or otherwise of entering into the
proposed transaction.

The Opinion contained herein is not intended to represent at any time other than the
date that is specifically stated in this Fairness Opinion Report. This opinion is issued
on the understanding that the Management of the Restructured Companies under the
Scheme have drawn our attention to all matters of which they are aware, which may
have an impact on our opinion up to the date of signature.

We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances

oceurring after the date of this Fairness Opinion.

Yours Faithfully,

STRICTLY PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL N
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GROWING & SHARING WITH YOU

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED
("COMPANY") IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 232(2)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, AT ITS
MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 3157 JULY 2024, AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT
226/1 A.J.C. BOSE ROAD TRINITY 7™MFLOOR, KOLKATA, WEST BENGAL, INDIA 700020, EXPLAINING
THE EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON EACH CLASS OF SHAREHOLDERS (PROMOTER AND NON-

1. This report is in refation ko the Draft Schema of Amalgamation of Yaduka Financial Services Limited
{*Transleror Company”) with and into Ashika Credit Capital Limited {"Compeny” or *Transferee Company’)
and their respective shareholders and creditors ("Draft Scheme”) pursuant to the provisions of sections
230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules and requlations made
thereunder (“Act”), read together with Master Circular Mo, SEBUHOICFD/POD-2/PICIR/2023/93 dated Juns

20, 2023, on Scheme of Amangements by listed enfities (*SEBI Circular”), issiied by the Securities
Fyrhanns and Rrsrd nf India MSERIM

2. The Scheme provides for, infer alia, amalgamation of Yaduka Financial Services Limited (‘Transferor

Company’)with and into Ashika Credit Capital Limited (‘Transferee Company') (as more explicitly delined
in tha Srhama)

3. The Appointed Date for the Scheme shall maan the opening of business hours on 1 October 2024 ar such

other dale as may be agreed between the Transferor Company and (2 Transferee Company and approved
b tha Anaranriate Authadite (" Asnointed Data™|

4. The Board at its meeting held on 31% July 2024 has approved the Draft Scheme, after considering the
documents which were duly placed before the Board as refemed hereinafter.

5. The Draft Scheme is subject to the receipt of approval from (a) requisite majarity of the shareholders of the
respective Transferor Company and Transferee Company, (b) Appropriate Authorly, Including Resanve
Bank of India (as defined in the Draft Scheme), (¢} SEBI (d) The BSE Limited, and (e) such other approvals,
permissions and sanctions of regulatory and other statutory or governmental authaorities! quasi-judicial
authorities, as may be necessary as per applicable laws.

6. As per section 232(2)(c) of the Acl, a report is required to be adopled by the board of directors of the
Companies, explaining the effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders, promoter and non-promoter
sharaholders and Key Managerial Parsonnel ("KMP*) laying out in particular fo the share exchange ratios,
specifying any special valuation difficulties.

Group Corporate Oflice

1004, 10th Flaor, Raheja Centre

214 Narimam Point, i a-400 031
Tel : #9122 6811 1700

Faw: 491,27 6611 1710

E-mail mumbai@asnikagroup com

Ragistered Office:

Tririty, 226/1. A 1 €. Bose Road

Tl Fleersy, Kolhata 700 070

Tl #8133 4010 2500

Faxr +81 33 40102543

£-madl sacretarial @ ashikagroup cem
"1“,.;@ﬂlnia:rnlm.llorﬂ
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CIN: L67120WB19547 10062159

Page 131 of 292



ASHIKA

GROWING B SHARING WITH YOU

7. The following documents were placed before the Board for Its consideration:

(a)
(b)

(e}

(d)

{0

Draft Scheme duly initialed by the Chairman of the meeting for the purpose of identification;

Valuation Report dated 31% July 2024, issued by Vidhi Chandak (Registered Valuer Registration No.
IBBI/RV/06/2019/11186) for the determination of the share exchange ratio ("Valuation Report’);

Fairmess Opinion dated 315! July 2024, from Mis. VC Corporate Advisors Privale Limited, a Merchant
Banker, (Merchant Banker Registration No. INM000011086), providing its opinion on the faimess of
the Snare Exchange Ratio as recommended in the Valuation Reporl("Faimess Opinion’);

the report dated 31 July 2024 of the Committee of the Independen! Directors of the Board
{‘Independent Directors Report’), recommending the Draft Scheme, after taking info consideration,
inter-glia, the Valustion Report, the share exchange ratios, the Faimess Opinion and that tha Draft
Schems is not detrimental to the interest of the shareholdars of the Company;

the report dated 319 July 2024, of the Audit Commitiee of the Board (“Audit Committee”), after laking
into consideration, infer-alia, the Valuation Repor, the share exchange ratios, the Faimess Opinion,
recommending the Draft Scheme and

the cerificate from Mis DMKH & Co., Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of the Company,
pursuant fo paragraph A(S)of Part | of the SEBI Master Circular bearing reference No
SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023, certifying that the accounting treatment
proposed in the Draft Scheme in Clause 14 is In compliance with the accounting stendards prescribed
under Section 123 of the Ac! read with applicable rules and/ or the accounting standards issued by the
Institufe of Charlered Accountants of India and other generally accepled sccounting standards and
principles (*Accounting Treatment Certificate”).

8. Share Exchange Ratio Report

The Board noted that the valuers have used multiple methods of valuation including Net Asset Value
method and Market Approach and atiributed appropriate welghtage to values far arriving at the share
exchange ratios,

The share exchange ratio has been amived al on the basis of Net Assel Value Approach and Markel
Approach for Ashika Credit Capital Limited (including giving consideration to the fioor price compuled as
per Regulation 164 of SEBI (Issue of Capital & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018) and Net
Asset Value Approach for Yaduka Financial Services Limiled, respectively,

Ruglsternd Dfice

Trinity, Z26/1, A 1 C Doss Aoad
Fh Flood, Kolkata 700 020

Tel - +01 13 4010 2500
Fan: #01 13 4010 2543

p-miail segretanal@ashiagroup.em £-mad: mumbai@ahikagroup.oom

ashiha@ashilagrolp.com
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Share exchange ratios of the Scheme are based on valuation report are as foliow:

*1,445 (One thousand four hundred forty-five) equity shares of Transferes Company having a face valug

of INR 104 each fully paid-up shall be issued for every 1,000 (One thousand) equily shares held in
Transferor Company having a face value INR 10/ each fully paid-up."

N special valuation difficulties were reported.
9. Rationale of the Scheme

a) The Transferee Company and the Transferor Company are Non-Banking Finance Company duly
registered with Reserve Bank of India and are engaged in Investing and Financing activities, The
business of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company can be combined/adjusted and
camied forward conveniently with combined strength and would result in business synergy,
consolidation of the Companies and pooling of their resources into a single enlity.

b} Consolidation of the businesses of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Campany, for creation
of a larger unified enlity and to achieve optimal and efficient utilization of capital, resulling in lesser
overheads including administrative, managerial, and other expenditure, optimal utilization of resources,
and provide 2 common govemance structure;

c) The Transferee Company is expected to have improved financial strength upon amalgamation
Particularly, the Companies befieve that the combined operation shall lead to industry-leading revenue
growth and profitability. Further, the Companies expect that their combined balance sheet will provide
diverse sirategic options and flexibllity.

d) Pooling of knowledge and expertise of hath the Parfies and afign with the business plans lo meet long-
ferm objectives and enhance operational and management efficiencies;

8} Unification and streamiining of legal and regulatory compliances currently required to be carried out by
both, the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

10, Effect of the Scheme on the equity shareholders (promoter and non-promoter) of the Company

o Board reviewed the documents placed in the meeting held on 31 July 2024, and is of the opinion,
upon the recommendations of the Audit Committee and the Committee of the Independent
Directors that, the Draft Scheme is in the best interests of the Company and its sharehelders,

+ Impact of the Draft Scheme on the shareholders including promoters and public shareholders
wauld be the same in al respects and no shareholder is expecled to have any disproportionate

atvantage or disadvantzge in any manner
Registecad Offico: Group Corporate Qﬂlr..z:
Teinity, 2261, o, 1 € Hose Road 1008, 10th Flocs, Raheja Centre -
Tth Flaot, Keeata 700 020 114, Mariman Foint, Mumbas-200 021
Tel - +91 32 4010 2500 Tol - #5122 6611 TTOD
Fax: +57 33 4000 2543 Fax +91 22 6611 1710
E-mrall seg retathal Ea hivagroup.com E prail; mumbg Bashiagroup oom
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* The shares aliotied fo shareholders of the Transferor Company shall rank pari passu in all
respects with the then existing equity shares of the Company.

11. Effect of the Scheme on KMPs of the Company

* The KMPs of the Company shall continue as key managerial personnel of the Company afier
effectiveness of the Scheme.

«  Such KMP of the company who are also the shareholders of the Transferor Company will be
allotted shares of the Company, like the other shareholders of the Transferor Company,. Please
refer to para 10 above for details regarding effect on the shareholders.

¢ Under Clause 8 of the Scheme, upon the Scheme becoming effective, all the employees of the
Transferor Company , if any, shall become the employees of the Company, on temms and

conditions no less favourable than those on which they are engaged as on the Effective Dale (as
defined in the Draft Scheme)

Excepl the above,
= there is noimpact of the Draft Scheme on KMPs of the Company,
12. Effect of the Scheme on Promoters of the Company

» Such Promolers who are also the shareholders of the Transferor Company will be aliotted shares
of the Company, like the other shareholders of the Transferor Company, and be ‘promoters’ of the
Transferee Company. Please refer o para 10 above for details regaerding effect on the
shareholders.

13. Effect of the Scheme on Non-Promoters Shareholders of the Company
= Please refer lo Parz 10 above for details regarding effect on the shareholders.
14, Effect of the Scheme on Craditors of the Company
= MNo rights of the creditors of the Transleree Company are being affected pursuant 1o the Scheme

The Gability of the Transferee Company towards the creditors is neither being reduced nor being
varied or extinguished. The creditors of the Transferee Company will in no way be affected by the

Scheme.
megistered Oifice: Group Corporate Office:
Trittily, 2261, &. J, C- Bose Road 1008, 10t Floor, Raheis Centte
7th Hast, Kolkata 700020 114, Nariman Point, Mumba-8D0 021 |
Tol 481 13 4010 2500 Tel :+&1 22 611 1700
Fam:+971 33 4010 7543 Fas: #31 12 6E11 1710
E-rmail secitari i ashihagroun com Eomanil: mumbai@ashikagroup Lam
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15. Adoption of the Report by the Board

. Eﬂdutﬁmﬁsnfhtﬂmyhmmﬁeﬂhisﬁmm i
. . noting and eonsidering the
inmrm?ﬂnnsm forth in this Report and documents placed before the Board. The Board mannfdulr
auimlnnsed mm&ebymmsmwmmMeMIm&aﬁmmm Report, i
required, and such modifications or amendmants shall be deemed Io form part of this Repart,

For and Behalf of the Board
For, Ashika Credit Capital Limited

L=

PA JAIN

Executive Chalrman

DiN: nn3RATR
Reghirrnd Offica: G Coiprirate Difics
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To,

BSE Limited

Department of Corporate Services

P J Towers, Dalal Street,

Mumbai - 400001

Scrip Code: 543766

Dear Sir/Madam,

Sub: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR"”) for the Scheme of
Amalgamation of Yaduka Financial Services Limited (“Transferor Company”)
with and into Ashika Credit Capital Limited (“Transferee Company”) and their
respective shareholders and creditors under section 230 to section 232 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) (“Scheme”)

Ref: Report on Complaint in term of Para I(A)(6) of the SEBI Master circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/PICIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023 as amended from time
to time (“SEBI Master Circular”)

This is with reference to the Scheme filed by the Company under Regulation 37 of the SEBI

LODR with BSE Limited (*"BSE") on 13" August 2024,

As per Para |(A)(6) of the SEBI Master Circular, the company is inter-alia required to submit

a 'Report on Complaints’ containing the details of complaints received by the Company on

the Scheme from various sources. Accordingly, we attach herewith a ‘Report on Complaints’,

as Annexure - 1 to this letter.

The Report on Complaints is also being uploaded on the company's website i.e.

hitps://ashikagroup.com/investor relation.ohp as per requirement of the aforementioned

said SEBI Master Circular.

We kindly request you to take the above submission on record as compliance under the

applicable provisions under SEBI Master Circular.

Thanking you

Yours faithfully,

For Ashikac_; redit Capital Limited,

A\ ke
e

Anju Mundhra ¥ '

Company Secretary & Cnmpllance Officer

Place: Kolkata

Date: 16 September 2024

Registered Office: Group Corporate Otfice:

Trinity, 2261, A. 1, C. Bose Road (08, 10th Floor, Rahea Centre

7t Floor, Kolkata 700 020 214, Nariman Point, Mumba-400 021
Te|: +91 33 4010 2500 Tel.: +91 22 €611 1700

Fax: +#51 33 4010 2543 Faw: +91 22 6611 1710

E-mall: seeretarial @ashikagroup.com E:mall: mumbali@ashikagroup.Lon

ashiva@ashikagroup com

www.ashikagroup.com
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Annexure-1

Complaints Report

Report of Complaints/ Comments received by Ashika Credit Capital Limited on the
draft Scheme of Amalgamation of Yaduka Financial Services Limited with and into
Ashika Credit Capital Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors

(‘Scheme’)
PART A
Sr. Particulars Number
No.
: Number of complaints received directly Nil
2. Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges/ Nil
SEBI
3. Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) Nil
4, Number of complaints resolved Not Applicable
5. Number of complaints pending Not Applicable
PART B
Sr. | Name of complainant Date of complaint Status
No.
Not Applicable
Registered Office Group Corporate Office:
Trinity, 226/1, &. ). . Bose Road 1008, 10th Fioar, Raheja Centre
7th Floar, Kolkata 700 G20 714, Nariman Point, Mumba 400 021
Tel.-+91 33 4010 2500 Tel: +491 22 6611 1700
Eax: #4591 33 4010 2543 Fax: +91 22 6611 1710
E-mall: secretariali@ashikagroup.com E-mail: mumbai@&ashikagroup.com
ashika@ashikagroup.com

www.ashikagroup.com
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BSE®”

DCS/AMALITS/IR37/3612/2025-26 May 09, 2025

The Company Secretary,
Ashika Credit Capital Limited |
Trinity, 226/1, A.J.C. Bose Road, |
7th Floor, Kolkata, West Bengal, 700020

Sub: Scheme of Amalgamation of Yaduka Financial Services Limited with and into Ashika Credit

Capital Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors pursuant to section 230 to 232
of the Companies Act 2013 and read with rules made thereunder

We refer lo Scheme of Amalgamation of Yaduka Financial Services Limited ("Transferor Company”)
with and into Ashika Credit Capital Limited (*Trensferee Company”) and their respective shareholders
and creditors pursuant to section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act 2013 and read with rules made
thereunder and thair respeclive shareholders and creditors pursuant to Section 230 to 232 read with
other applicable provisions of the filed with the Exchange under Regulation 37 of SEBI LODR
Regulations, 2015, read with SEBI Master circular no. SEBIVHO/CFDIPOD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June
20, 2023, and Req. 94(2) of SEBI LODR Requiations, 2015,

In this regard, SEB| vide ils Lelter dated May 02, 2025, has inler alia given the following comment(s)
on the said Scheme of Arrangement:

1. Ine entity shall ensure that it discioses all detalls of ongoing adjudication & recovery
proceedings, prosecution initiated, and all other enforcement action taken, if any,
against the Company, its promoters and directors, before Hon'hle NCLT and
shareholders, while seeking approval of the schemae.”

2. “The Entity shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company
after filing the scheme with the sto4k exchange, from the date of receipt of this letter,
is displayed on the websites of the listed company and the stock exchanges.

3. “The Entity shall ensure compliance with the SEBI circulars issued from time to tima.
The entities involved in the Schems shall duly comply with various provisions of the
Master Circular and ensure that all the liabilities of Transferor Company are
transferred to the Transferee Comg any."”

4. "lhe entities 1s advised that the intormation pertaining to all the Unlisted Companies,
if any, involved in the scheme shall be included in the format specified for abridged
prospectus as provided in Part E of Schedule VI of the ICDR Regulations, 2018, in the
explanatory statement or notice or proposal accompanying resolution to be passed,
which is sent to the shareholders f:r seeking approval, if applicable.

5. “The Entity shall ensure that the financials in the scheme including financials
considered for valuation report are not for period more than 6 months old, if
applicable.”

6. 'The Entity is advised that the deta s of the proposed scheme under consideration as
provided by the Company to the Stack Exchange shall be prominently disclosed in the
notica =ant to the Sharsholdare ™

7. “The Entity is advised that the prcposed equity shares to be issued in terms of the
"Scheme" shall mandatorily be in €2mat form only.”

A00 000, India, a9 22 2572 1254/33 | E! corp.oommidbse|nois.com
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10.

11.

12.

RCFj

Tateily Tend

Iho Hower of
“The Entity is advised that the "Scl:eme"” shall be acted upon subject to the applicant
complying with the relevant clauses mentioned in the scheme document.”

“No changes to the draft scheme exuept those mandated by the regulators [ authorities
! tribunals shall be made without specific written consent of SEBL.”

“The Entity is advised that the .<hservations of SEBI/Stock exchanges shall be
incorporated in the petition to he filed before NCLT and the company is obliged to
bring the chservations to the notice of NCLT.”

Tine Enuty 1s advised to comply with all the applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, rules and regulations issued thereunder including obtaining the consent
from the creditors for the proposed scheme.”

“The entity is advised to ensure th-t the following additional disciosure to the public

shareholders as a part of explanatc ry statement or notice or proposal accompanying

resolution to be passed to be forw arded by the company to the shareholders while
seeking approval uls 230 to 232 of ' 1e Companies Act 2013, to enable them to take an

informed decision: - .

i.  Inthe interest of ensuring transparency and informed decision making by public
shareholders, transferee company to prominently disclose following information
on the very first page of the notice convening the shareholders meeting for
approval of scheme of arrangement {in bold text and highlighted for visibility)
and in all the further communications to the public sharehelders:

"The shareholding pattern of | romoter/Promoter Group and Public shareholders
before and after implementation of scheme is depicted as under:

Pre-Schenie Post-Schemo [ Change
Category Sharehold ng (%) | Shareholding (%) (%)
| Promoter | : | -
| Promoter
ﬁamhoirlars

Ine snarenolders may note that implementation of scheme shall result in
increase in the shareholding of Promoter/Promoter Group from % to %.
Shareholders may also note that approval of the shareholders to scheme of
merger would also result in |0 them agreeing to increase in shareholding of
promoters on implamanl’:atinr,: of the scheme. Therefore, investors should read
all the scheme related docums:nts before exercising their voting rights.

The above disclosure shall als» be accompanied by a brief explanation regarding
the reasons for the increase in shareholding of Promoter/Promoter Group and
its impact on the public sharcholders in terms of their rights and value of their
helding in the Company. Details of assets, liabilities, net worth and revenue of
the companies Involved, pre ind post scheme. Details of assets, liabilities, net
worth and revenud of the com panies invelved, pre and post scheme.

il details of assets, liabilities, niit worth, revenue of the companies involved in the
scheme, for both pre and pos! scheme of arrangement;
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iii. Impactof scheme on revenue generating capacity of Transferee Company.

iv. Meed and Rationale of the s:heme, Synergies of business of the companies
involved in the scheme, Impict of the scheme on the shareholders and cost
benefit analysis of the schem:-

V. Value of assets and liahilities of Transfaror Company that are being transferred
to Transferee Company

vi.  Latest financials of transferor and transferee companies should be updated on
the Website and same also to be disclosed in the explanatory statement.

vii. Revised shareholding pattern of transferor and transferee companies Pre and
Post-Merger. i

viii. Pre and Post scheme shareho ding of transferor and transferee companies as on
the date of notice of Shareho!ders meeting along with rationale for changes, if
any, occurred between filing « f Draft Scheme to Notize to shareholders.

ix. Disclose all pending actions against the entities involved in the scheme its
promoters/directors/KMPs ani possible impact of the same on the Transferee
Company to the shareholders

x. Rationale for undertaking pri ferential issues of equity shares and warrants in
transferee company along witl details of shareholders to whom they were issued
and whether they impact of rame was considered while arriving at the share-

xi. Entiiy shall ensure that applic able additional information, if any to be submitted
to SEBI along with draft scheme of arrangement as advised by email dated May
09. 2025 shall form part of di: closures to the shareholders.

13. “it is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company bhefore NCLT after
processing and communication of comments | observations on draft scheme by SEEI
| stock exchange. Hence, the company is not required to send notice for
representation as mandated undel section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013, to SEBI
again for its comments / observatic ns / representations.”

Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offere'd by SEBI, lhe company is hereby advised:

K To provide additional information, if any, (as slated above) long with various documenls
to the Exchange for further dissemir.ation on Exchange website.

i To ensure that additional informat on, if any, (as stated sforesaid) along with various
documents are disseminated on ther (company) wabsile.

fii. To duly comply with various provisicis of the circulars.

In light of the above, we hereby advise lhal we [-ave no adverse observalions with limited reterence to
those mallers having a bearirig on listing/de-listir Jlcontinuous listing requ.rements within the provisions
of Listing Agreement, so as (o enable the comp: 1y to file the scheme with Hon'ble NCLT.

Please note that the submission of decuments i information, in accordanice with the circular to SEE| /
Exchange should not any wey be deemed or construed that the same has been cleared or approved
by SEBI / Exchange. SEBI ! Exchange does not ke any responsibility either for the financial soundness
of any scheme or Tor the correctness of the stalamenls made or opinions expressed n lhe document

i
Further, where applicable in the explanatory sta'2ment of the notice to b2 sent by the company o the
shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose infermation about unlisted
company involved in the format prescribed for aridged prospectus as specified in the Master circular
ng. SEBI/HO/CFDIPOD-2/PICIRI2023/93 dated -June 20, 2023.

Kindly note that as recuired under Reqllation 37 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the validity ¢! this Observation Letter shall be six months from the
date of this Letter, within which the scheme shal. be submilled lo the NCLT.
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The Exchange reserves ils right to withdraw its ‘I adverse observation' at any stage if the informatian
submitted to the Exchange is found to be intomplele | incorrect | misleading / false or for any
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreemant,
Guidelines/Regulations issued by statutory auth: rities.

Please nole that the aforesaid observations does not preclude the Company from cemplying with any
ather requirements,

Further, it may be noled that with reference to Suction 230 (5) of the Companies Acl, 2013 (Act), read
with Rule 8 of Companies (Compromises, Arrariyements and Amalgamations) Rules 2016 {Company
Rules) and Section 66 of the Act read wilh Rule & of the Company Rules wherein pursuant to an Order
passed by the Hon'ble National Company Liw Tribunal, a Notice of the proposed scheme of
compromise or arrangement filed under sections 230-232 or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 as

the case may be is required to be served upon the Exchange seeking representations or
objections if any.

In this regard, with a view to have a better trar"'aparency in processing the aforesald nolices served
upon the Exchange, the Exchange has already introduced an online system of serving such Notice
along with the relevant documents of the proposed schemes through the BSE Listing Centre.

Any service of nolice under Seclion 230 (5) :r Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 seeking
Exchange's representations or objections if any, would be acce ted and processed through the
Listing Centre only and na physical filings viould be accepted. You may please refer to circular
dated February 26, 2019 issued to the company

Yours fatthfully,
_ J
_ﬁ, -5 g -
Ashok Kumar Singh g Raghav Garg
Additional General Manager Assistant Manager
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ANNEXURE -8

VC CORPORATE ADVISORS PVT LTD.

CIN - UB7120WB2005PTC106051
Date: 04.07.2025 VCCA7/25/02

To.

The Board of Directors,

Ashika Credit Capital Limited,

Trinity 226/1, A, J. €. Bose Road, 7" Flowr,
Kollkata- 700 020

Diear Sir,

Sub: Scheme of Amalgamation of Yadula Financinl Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“Transferor Company” or “Yaduka™), with and into Ashika Credit Capital Limited
(hereinafter referred 1o as “Trunsferce Company® or “Ashika™) and their respective
shareholders and creditors pursuant 1o section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
rules thereunder (*Scheme™)

Re:  Due Dilipence Certificate_in_adherence with SERI Master Circular SEBIVHO/CFD/POD-
ZIP/CIR2023/93 duled June 20, 2023,

PURPOSE.:

This has reference to our engugement letter daed 19.06.2025 for providing Due Diligence
Certificate("Certificate”) on the accuracy and adequacy of the disclosure made in the Abridged Prospectus
of Transleror Company and prepared by the Transferee Company as per the format provided in Part E of
Schedule VI of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations 2018, as amended. read with SEB] Master Circular
SEBIVHO/CF/POD-2PCIR202393  dated  June 20, 2023 read with SEBI Master Cireular
SEBVHOCFL/Pol- 1/ CIR 2024/01 34 dated November |1, 2024 ("SEBI Circulars') pursuant 1o the
Scheme approved by the board of directars of the Company on July 31, 2024 under Sections 230 w0 232 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Aet, 2013 and rules framed thereunder (including any statutory
maodifications/ s} therenf).

Aceordingly, we, on the basis of the examination of various documents pertaining to the Transferor Company
mude available w us by the Transferee Company and discussions with the officials of the Transferce
Company. confirm that the information cantained in the Abridged Prospectus is in cenformity with the
format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in Pant E of Schedule VI of the SEBI (ICDR)
Resulutions and such information disclosed in the Abridged Prospectus is fair, accurate as well as adequate
in terims of the SEBI Circulars read with SEBI Circular No, SEBIHO/CTD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/00094 dated

Jung, 2, 2023

The above confirmation is based on the information furnished and explanation provided to us by the
munagement of the Transferee Company assuming the same 1s complete and accurate in all material aspects
on an as is basis. We have relied upon financials, information and representations furnished to us and have
not carried out an audit of such information. Our scope of work does not constitute an audit of financial
information of the Transferor Company. This certificate is based on the information as at dated 19.06.2025.
The information contained herein and our Certifieate is intended only for the sole use of captioned purpose

31, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 2nd Floor Suite No. 2C, Kolkata-700 013 E-mail : mail@vccorporate com
Tel, | 0332235 3940, Fax 0332225 3941 Website | www vecarporate com

-

SEBI AUTHORISED MERCHANT BANKERS
SEBI REGN NOC  INM0OD0110986
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meluding for the purpose of obtaining requisite approvals as per SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended and compliance of SEBI Circulars, The certificate is not. nor
should it be considered to be, a certificate of compliance of the Scheme with the provisions of the applicable
faw including company. taxation and securities markets related laws or as regards to any legal implications
or issues arising thereon, except for the purpose expressly mentioned herein.

SOLRCES OF INFORMATION: -

For the purposes of providing our Certificate. we have relied upon the following sources of information:

a. Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company;

b, Audited Annual Accounts for the Financial Years ended 31 March 2023 and 312 March 2024 and
Centified Un-audited financial statements by the management of the Transferor Company for the
Financial Year ended 3 1% March 2025;

¢ Siened copy of the Scheme of Amalgamarion:

do Observation  leters  dated May 09, 2025 issued by BSE Limited vide letter no.
DOCS/AMALITS/RIT/3612/2023-26;

¢ List of shareholders of both the Transteror and Transferee Company as on the date of Board Meeting
approving the Scheme; and

£, Such other information, representation and explanations that have been provided to us by the
Management of the Transferee Company about the Transferor Company.

EXCLUSIONS AND LIMITATIONS: -
«  This Certificate s issued for a specific purpose in compliance with SEBI Circulars and is not intended
for use i any other context or transaction.

I'he due diligence and conclusions are based on information available to us by the Transferee Company
as on date. We are not obligated to update this Cenificate 1o reflect any changes in circumstances or
events occurring thereafter.

« The financial data. information. and representations relied upon for this Certificate were provided by
Transteree Company's and Transferor Company's management and gathered from publicly available
sources. No independent audit or verification of the information has been conducted.

o Qur scope of work does not include auditing the financial statements or operational results of the
I ransferor Company. Consequently. we do not provide an opinion on the accuracy or fairness of the
financial information included in the Abridged Prospectus.

o Our analysis and result are specific to the purposes of the exercise of giving our Due Diligence
Centificate on the accuracy and adequacy of information provided in the Abridged Prospectus. It may
not be valid for any other purpose of if provided on behalf of any other entity.

e Our Certificate is not, nor should it be construed as our opining or certifying the compliance of the
Scheme with the provisions of any law including companies, taxation and capital market related laws or
as regards any legal implications or issues arising thereon, except for the purpose expressly mentioned

herein.

o Weaceept no lability for any losses, expenses or other consequences arising directly or indirectly from
reliance on the information provided in this Certificate.
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YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: US1109WB2007PLC117012

Regd Office: 16/1A, Abdul Hamid Street, 2nd Floor, Room No - 28
Kolkata WE 700063 IN

Email ID: yadukafinancisl@amail com

Abridged Prospectus

THIS ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS (“DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT") HAS BEEN PREPARED SOLELY AS PER THE
REQUIREMENTS OF THE SEBI MASTER CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HOICFDIPOD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 DATED JUNE, 20, 2023,
AS AMENDED FROM TIME TO TIME, TO THE EXTENT APPLICABLE AND SEBI MASTER CIRCULAR NO.
SEBI/HOICFDIPoD-1/PICIRI2024/0154 DATED NOVEMBER 11, 2024 [*HEREINAFTER COLLECTIVELY REFERRED TO
AS THE MERGER CIRCULAR"], IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION OF YADUKA
FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (“TRANSFEROR COMPANY" OR “YADUKA") WITH AND INTO ASHIKA CREDIT
CAPITAL LIMITED (“TRANSFEREE COMPANY" OR "ASHIKA") AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND
CREDITORS UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
(THE "ACT") AND APPLICABLE RULES (“SCHEME") FILED BEFORE THE HON'BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW
TRIBUNAL, KOLKATA BENCH.

This Abridged Prospectus discloses applicable information as prescribed in the format for abridged prospectus provided in
Part E of the Schedule VI of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 read with SEBI Masler Circular No, SEBIHOICFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/00094 dated June, 21, 2023 as
amended, pertaining to information of Yaduka Financial Services Limited, being an unlisted company in the Scheme, in
compliance with SEBI Merger Circular,

This Disclosure Document should be considered as a part and shall be read together with the Scheme, and the Notice along
with the Explanatory Statement and other related documents sent to the shareholders of the Ashika, in connection with the
Scheme. This Disclosure Document should not be considered as an invitation or an offer of any securities by or on behaif of
Yaduka or Ashika, on private placement or public offer. The equity shares of the Transferee Company are listed on BSE
Limited ("BSE").

Pursuantto the Scheme, itis proposed to amalgamate the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, in consideration
for which fully paid-up equity shares will be issued by the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Company
as of the Record Date as defined in the Scheme in proportion to their respective shareholdings in the Transferor Company.
As the Transferee Company is not issuing shares to the public at large, except to the existing shareholders of the Transferor
Company, the requirements with respect to General Information Document (“GID") are not applicable and the abridged
prospectus should be read accordingly.

You may download this Disclosure Document along with the Scheme and other relevant documents from the website of the
Ashika Credit Capital Limited (https:/iwww.ashikagroup.com) or the website of the stock exchanges BSE Limited
(www.bseindia.com) where the equity shares of Ashika Credit Capital Limited are listed. Unless specifically defined herein,
capitalised terms and abbreviations used herein shall have same meaning as scribed to them in the scheme.

THIS ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS CONTAINS 9 PAGES. PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU HAVE RECEIVED ALL THE

PAGES.
YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: US1109WB2007PLC117012 | Date of Incorporation: Sth July, 2007

Registered Office Corporate Contact Email and Telephone Website

Office Person
16/1A, Abdul Hamid Street, 2~ NA Mr Sobhit yadukafinancial@gmail.com Nat Available
Floor, Room no — 2B, (Previously Chhawchharia, | Tel: 033 40102541
known as British India Streset), Director
Kolkata 700069, West Bengal
NAME OF THE PROMOTERs: MR. PAWAN JAIN, MRS. KANCHAN DEVI JAIN AND MRS. ROSHNI JAIN o 'I A

ok e
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YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

CIN: U51109WB2007TPLC117012
Regd Office: 16/1A, Abdul Hamid Street, 2nd Floor, Room No - 2B

Kolkata WB 700069 IN

Email ID; vadukafinancial@amail.com

Details of Offer to Public:

Type of Issue Fresh Issue OFS Size (by Total Issue Size | Issue Under | Share
(Fresh/ OFS/ Fresh | Size (by no. of | no. of shares (by no. of shares | 6(1)/6(2) Reservation
& OFS) shares or by or by amount or by amount in
amount in Rs) inRs) Rs)
QB [ NIl | RI
Not Applicable.
OFS: Offer for Sale

Details of OFS by Promoter{s)/ Promoter Group/ Other Selling Shareholders (upto a maximum of 10 selling

shareholders):
Name Type No. of Shares | WACA in Name Type Noof Shares | WACAin
offered/ Rs per offered/ Rs per
Amountin Rs, | Equity Amountin Rs. | Equity
NOT APPLICABLE.

P: Promoter; PG Promoter Group; OSS: Other Selling shareholder, WACA: Weightsd Average Cost of Acquisition shall be
calculated on fully dilufed basis.

Price Band, Minimum Bid Lot & Indicative Timelines
Not Applicable, since this Abridged Prospectus is prepared
in relation fo the Scheme.

Price Band*

Minimum Bid Lot Size

Bid/Offer Open On

Bid/Closes Open On

Finalisation of Basis of Allotment

Initiation of Refunds

Credit of Equity Shares to Demat accounts of Allottees
Commencement of trading of Equity Shares

*For details of price band and basis of offer price, please refer to price band advertisement and page xx of the Disclosure
document — Not Applicable.

Details of WACA of all shares transacted over the trailing eighteen months from the date of Disclosure Document:

Period Weighted Average Costof | Upper End of the Price Range of acquisition
Acquisition (in Rs.) Band is X' times the price Lowest Price-
WACA Highest Price (In Rs.)
Trailing Eighteen Month from the NOT APPLICABLE
date of the Disclosure document

WACA: Weighted Average Cost of Acquisition shall be calculated on fully diluted basis for the trailing eighteen months from
the date of Disclosure Document

RISK IN RELATION TO FIRST OFFER
Not Applicable as Yaduka is an unlisted Company and is not offering any securities/ equity shares through an Initial Public
Offering to the public, through Scheme.

The #.bndgad Prospacius is |ssuad pursuanttn the Scheme and is t nﬁaf m pubhc arga The time fmrﬁe cannnt;
be established with absolute certainty, as the Scheme is subject to approvals from relevant regulatory and stahtcw
authorities .
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YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: US1109WB2007PLC117012

Regd Office: 16/14, Abdul Hamid Streef, 2nd Fioor, Room No - 28
Kolkata WB 700069 IN

Email ID: yadukafinancial@amail. com

l GENERAL RISKS |
Investments in equity and equity-related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in this
issue unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their investment. Investors are advised to read the risk factors carefully
before taking an investment decision in refation to the scheme. For taking an investment decision, sharehalders must rely on
their own examination of Yaduka, Ashika and the Scheme including the risk involved. The Equity shares of Yaduka have not
been recommended or approved by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), nor does SEBI guarantee the
accuracy or adequacy of the content of this Disclosure Document. Specific attention of the investors is invited o the section
litled "Risk Faclors" at page 8 of this Abridged Prospectus.

| PROCEDURE f

The Procedure with respect to public issue/offer would not be applicable to Yaduka as Yaduka is an unlisted company and is
not offering any of its securities fequity shares to public under the scheme and no investment by public is being made in
Yaduka, pursuant to the Scheme. Further the allotment of equity shares of Ashika under the Scheme is limited to the
shareholders of Yaduka in accordance with the Share Exchange Ratio mentioned in the Scheme. Hence, the procedure with
respect to a General Information Document is not applicable.

SCHEME DETAILS, LISTING AND PROCEDURE

This Scheme of Amalgamation (hereinafter referred to as *Scheme” or “Scheme of Amalgamation®) is presented under
the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and other applicable provisions of Applicable Laws, inciuding any statutory
modification(s) amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force and in compliance with the provisions
of Section 2(1B) and offer relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, for the amalgamation of Yaduka Financial
Services Limited (*Yaduka' or “Transferor Company®) with and info Ashika Credit Capital Limited (*Ashika” or
“Transferee Company’) as a going concem. In addition, this scheme also provides for various other matters consequential
or otherwise integrally connected therewith. Yaduka and Ashika are collectively referred to as “Companies” and individually
as “Company”.

Transferor Company shall be and stand transferred to and vested in or be deemed o be fransferred to and vested in the
Transferee Company, as a going concemn, without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing so as to become, the
business, undertaking, assets, estates, liabilities, properties, right, itle, interest and authorities of the Transferee
Company by virtue of and in the manner provided in this Scheme.

Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, and in consideration of the Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with
and into the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company shall, without any further act or deed and without any further
payment, basis the Share Exchange Report, issue and allot to the shareholders of Transferor Company (whose name is
recorded in the register of members of the Transferor Company as on Record Date) or to such of their heirs, executors,
administrators or the successor-in-title o the shareholders of the Transferor Company proportionate new equity shares
{"New Equity Shares”) in the Transferee Company in the following manner:

For the Equity Shareholders:

“1,445 (One thousand four hundred fory-five) equity shares of Transferee Company having a face value of INR 10/ each
fully paid-up shall be issued for every 1000 (One thousand) equity shares held in Transferor Company having a face valug
INR 10v- gach filly paid-up.”

The New Equity Shares of the Transferee Company issued in terms of this Scheme will be listed and/ or admitted to trading
on the Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Transferee Company are listed and/or admitted o trading subject fo
necessary approvals under SEBI regulations and from Stock Exchanges and all necessary applications and compliances
being made in this respect by the Transferee Company.

"
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YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U51109WB2007PLC117012

Regd Office: 16/1A, Abdul Hamid Street, 2nd Floor, Room No - 2B
Kolkata WB 700069 IN

Email 1D: yadukafinancial@gmail.com

DETAILS ABOUT THE BASIS FOR THE SWAP RATIO IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SCHEME AND SHARE
ENTITLEMENT RATIO AND REPORT ON FAIRNESS OPINION WILL BE AVAILABLE ON THE WEBSITE OF THE
TRANSFEREE COMPANY AND THE STOCK EXCHANGE.

The details in respect of the meetings of the equity shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors of the
Transferee Company as convened in accordance with Section 230- 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the approval of
the Scheme will be published in the relevant newspaper as per the directions of the Hon'ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (“Tribunal® or “NCLT").

Rationale:

The Scheme is intended to consolidate the business of the Companies in a manner which is expected to enable better
realization of potential of their businesses, yield beneficial results and enhanced value creation for the Companies, their
respective shareholders and stakeholders. The amalgamation of the Transferor Company with and into the Transferee
Company would infer alia have the following benefits:

a) The Transferee Company and the Transferor Company are Non-Banking Finance Company duly registered with Reserve
Bank of India and are engaged in Investing and Financing activities. The business of the Transferor Companies and the
Transferee Company can be combined/ adjusted and carried forward conveniently with combined strength and would
result in business synergy, consolidation of the Companies and pooling of their resources into a single entity.

b) Consolidation of the businesses of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, for creation of a larger unified
entity and to achieve optimal and efficient utilization of capital, resulting in lesser overheads including administrative,
managerial, and other expenditure, optimal utilization of resources, and provide a common governance structure;

c) The Transferee Company is expected to have improved financial strength upon amalgamation. Particularly, the Companies
believe that the combined operation shall lead to industry-leading revenue growth and profitability. Further, the Companies
expect that their combined balance sheet will provide diverse strategic options and flexibility.

d) Pooling of knowledge and expertise of both the Parties and align with the business plans to meet long-term objectives and
enhance operational and management efficiencies;

g) Unification and streamlining of legal and regulatory compliances currently required to be carried out by both, the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company.

In view of the aforesaid, the Board of Directors of the respective Companies have considered the proposed amalgamation of
the entire undertaking and business of the Transferor Company as a going cencern into and with the Transferee Company to
benefit the stakeholders of the respective Companies. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the respective Companies have
formulated this Scheme for the amalgamation of the Undertaking (as defined hereinafter) of the Transferor Company into and
with the Transferee Company pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the Act, and in accordance
with section 2{1B) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (on a going concern basis) and other Applicable Laws.

+I- % change in
closing price, (+/-%
change in closing
benchmark) - 180t

+/- % change in closing
price, (+/% change in

closing benchmark) - 30

calendar days from listing

+- % change in
closing price, (+/-%
change in closing
benchmark) - 90

+1% (+5%) calendar days from | calendar days from
listing -2% (-5%) listing de=
NOT APPLICABLE 3K g
* Disclosures subject to recent 7 issues (initial public offerings) in current financial year and two preceding financial yea,rs :
managed by each Merchant Banker with common issues disclosed once. ; L\ '
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YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

CIN: US1109WB2007PLC117012

Regd Office: 16/1A, Abdul Hamid Street, 2nd Fioor, Room No - 28
Kolkata WB 700069 IN

Email ID: yadukafinancial@gmail.com

Name of BRLM and contact details (telephone and email | Not Applicable
id) of each BRLM
Name of Syndicate Members

In case of issues by Small and Medium Enterprises under Chapler |X, details of the market maker to be included — NOT
APPLICABLE

Name of Regisirar to the Issue and contact NOT APPLICABLE
details (telephone and email id)
Name of Statutory Auditor Shyamsukha Amit & Associates,

Chartered Accountant, FRN 324516E

19, Ganesh Chandra Avenue,

Premier House, 2" Floor, Suite No 7, Kolkata- 700013
Name of Credit Rating Agency and the rating or grading NOT APPLICABLE

obtained, if

Name of Debenture Trustee, if any

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

Non Syndicate Registered Brokers

Details regarding website address(es)/ link(s) from which the
investor can obtain list of registrar lo issue and share
transfer agents, depository participants and stock brokers
who can accept application from investor (as applicable)

PROMOTERS OF YADUKA
8r. Name Individuall Experience & Educational Qualification
No. Corporate
1 Pawan Jain Individual Experience: Mr, Pawan Jain, the Founder & Chairperson of
Ashika Group of Companies. Mr, Jain leverages his expertise
and experience of more than 35 years to provide
comprehensive financial services including Broking, Corporate
Financing, Debt Syndication, Depository Services, Investment
Banking, AlF and other verticals that have made Ashika reach
millions of hearts today.
Educational Qualification: Fellow Member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and an alumnus of Harvard
Business School.
2 Kanchan Devi Individual Experience: NA (Super Senior Citizen)
Jain Educational Qualification : Matric
3 Roshni Jain Individual Experience:10 years' experience in financial and
administrative services
Educational Qualification : B.Com
SINESS OVERVIEW OF YADU RVICESLIMITED
“Yaduka Financial Services Lim osely held unlisted Publc Limited
incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 and is a non-deposit accepting Non-Banking
Financial Company (NBFC) holding a cerfificate of registration from the Reserve Bank of
India (RBI), categorised as Base layer NBFC. The Company s engaged in the business of
providing finance and dealing in shares and securities.
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YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

CIN: U51109WB2007PLC117012

Regd Office: 16/1A, Abdul Hamid Street, 2nd Fioor, Room No - 28

Kolkata WB 700069 IN

Email ID: yadukafinancial@amail.com

Product/ Service Offering: | Yaduka is primarily engaged in the activities of providing loans and advances and
investments only
Revenue segmentation by | Financial Services - Rs 124.40 crores (year ended 31.03.2025)
product service offering
Geographies serviced India
Revenue segmentation by | Ason March 31, 2025, Yaduka has only one registered office in India only and the revenue
| geographies generated from the aforementioned aclivities only.

Key Performance Indicators

(Amount in Rs. crores)

Key Performance Indicators FY 2024- | FY 2023- FY 2022-
2025 2024 2023
Total income from operations 124 .40 87.62 5.82
Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax 2160 .74 5.55
Retum on Networth (%) 25,50 12.31 10.03

(i) Return on Net Worth = Profit after Tax / Net Worth.
(ii) Source: Annual Certified Financial Statements of Yaduka,

Client Profile or Industries | Financial services
Served
Revenue segmentation in Mot applicable
terms of top 510 clients or
Indusiries
Intelleciual Property, if any. | Mol applicable, As on dale
Market Share Mot applicable, as on date
Manufacturing Plant, if any | Not applicable, as on date
Employee Strength Mot applicable, as on date
Sr. | Name & DIN Designation Experience and Educational Other Directorships
No. (Independent Qualification
| Whole time
| Executive INominee)
Sobhit Director Having more than 17 years of | NIL
Chhawchharia, rich experience in field of Audit,
Din : 02926948 taxation, consultancy services.
Chartered Accountant.
Neha Director Having more than 15 years of | Machfin Business Solution
Chhawchharia, rich experience in field of Audit, | Privale Limited,
Din: 02182603 taxation, consultancy services. NSC Consultants Private
Limited,
Chartered Accountant. Machfin Business Solution
Imf Private Limited
Puja Sharma, Director Having mere than 12 years of | NIL
Din: 06852209, rich experience in  feld
Compliance, secretarial and
legal services.
Company Secretary.
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YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U51109WB2007PLC117012

Regd Office; 16/1A, Abdul Hamid Street, 2nd Floor, Room No - 28
Kolkata WB 700069 IN

Email ID: yadukafinancial@gmail com

Details of means of finance: Not applicable

Details and reasons for non-deployment or delay in deployment of proceeds or changes in utilization of issue
proceeds of past issues Irights issue if any, of the Company in the preceding 10 years: Not Applicable

Name of monitoring agency, if any: Not applicable

Terms of Issuance of Convertible Security, if any: Not applicable

Thehnalgamahnn of the Tmnsﬁamr Compan}as vnﬂ‘r and lntu Ihe Transferee Cwnpany is suughl tu ba undaﬂahen 1n wiave

the following benefits:

L. The Transferee Company and the Transferor Company are Non-Banking Finance Company duly registered with
Reserve Bank of India and are engaged in Investing and Financing activities. The business of the Transferor Companies
and the Transferee Company can be combined/adjusted and carried forward conveniently with combined strength and
would result in business synergy, consolidation of the Companies and pooling of their resources into a single entiy.

il. - Consolidation of the businesses of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, for creation of a larger
unified entity and to achieve oplimal and efficient utilization of capital, resulting in lesser overheads including
adminisirative, managerial, and other expenditure, optimal utilization of resources, and provide a common governance
structure;

iii. ~ The Transferee Company is expected to have improved financial strength upon amalgamation. Particularly, the
Companies believe that the combined operation shall lead to industry-leading revenue growth and profitability. Further,
the Companies expect that their combined balance sheet will provide diverse strategic options and flexibility.

iv.  Pooling of knowledge and expertise of both the Parties and align with the business plans to meet long-term objectives
and enhance operational and management efficiencies; ;

v.  Unification and streamlining of legal and regulatory compliances currently required to be carried out by both, the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

:".' ._... Gl e T TR WL g el Ay s scmmmr L

No. " % of hulding Pre- Scheme
1 Promoter and Promoter Group 45,02,150 99.56%
2 Public 20,000 0.44%

Total 45,22 150 100

Numberfamount of equity shares proposed to be sold by selling shareholders, if any: Not applicable

summary u-f the financial position af ‘faduka I’m’ 'eha Iast ﬁnaal 3 ykaarsxs gw& beiuw o

Details of Standalone financial position of Yaduka of last three financial years:

Particulars FY 2024-2025 |FY 2023-2024| FY 2022-2023
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited)

Total income from operations (net) 124.43 87.62 5.82

Net Profit/ (Loss) before tax and extraordinary items 2226 740 5.57

INet Profit/ (Loss) after tax and extraordinary items 21.60 T 5.55
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YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

CIN: US1109WB2007PLC117012

Regd Office; 16/14, Abdul Hamid Street, 2nd Floor, Room No - 28
Kolkata WB 700069 (N

Email ID; yadukafinanciai@gmail.com

Equity Share Capital (face value of Rs 10/- per share} 452 4.52 452

Reserves and Surplus 80.20 58.60 50.83
[Net worth 84.72 6312 55.36
Basic & Diluted eamings per share (Rs.) 47.77 17147 12.27
Return on net worth (%) 25.50 1231 10.03
Net Asset Value Per Share (Rs.) 187.43 139.58 12242

(i) Net worth includes Equity share capital and Reserve & Surplus.
(ii) Return on Net Worth = Profit after Tax / Net Worth.

(iif) Net Asset Value per Share = Net Worth / No. of equity shares.
(iv) Source: Annual Certified Financial Statements of Yaduka.

Detalls of Consolidated financial position of last five years: Not Applicable

N

lation by the RBI and changes in

nd regu

*  We are subject fo supervision a I's regulations governing us could adversely
affect our business.

e  The Scheme for Amalgamation is subject to the conditions/ approvals as envisaged under the Scheme and any failure to
receive such approvals will result in non-impiementation of the Scheme and may adversely affect the shareholders.

« Yadukais presently an unlisted Company, and its securities are presently not available for trading on any stock exchange.

o Credit Risk: Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the failure of a borrower to honour its financial or contractual
obligations. Yaduka's inability to recover the amounts due from customers to whom it has provided unsecured loans in a
timely manner, or at all, and its full collateral and its customers' failure to comply with applicable statutory or regulatory
requirements in relation to such loans could adversely affect Yaduka's operations and profitability.

» Market Risk: Market is the risk of loss from changes in the market prices and rates including interest rates, equity prices,
foreign exchange rates, property rates, efc.

» Liquidity Risk: It is important for the Company that liquid resources are available for growth of the Company. Liquidity
Management is thus very important for the Company. The Company need to manage the liquidity risk by ensuring sufficient
liquidity needed for a smooth functioning as well as growth.

«  Operation Risk: Operation is the risk of loss due to inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. We have a dedicated operation function to have robust process guidelines to control through system
platforms and monitored through dashboards.

« Catastrophic events such as further phases of COVID-18, could materially have an adverse effect on the financial condition

of the Company.
o  Economic slow-down, recession, down-grade in credit ratings, other health pandemics, natural calamities would adversely

affect the business of the Resulting Company.

A. Total number of outstanding litigations against Yaduka and amount invelved:

Particulars Criminal Tax Statutory or | Disciplinary Material Aggregate
Proceedings | Proceedingg Regulatory actions by the | Civil amount
Proceedings | SEBlor Litigations | involved
Stock Exchanges (Rs. in Crore)
against our
Promoters
Company
- By the NIL NIL NIL NIL Nil [ NIL
Company
-Against the NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Company iy |

2P
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YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: UST109WB2007PLC117012

Regd Office: 16/1A, Abdul Hamid Street, 2nd Floor, Room No - 2B
Kolkafa WE 700089 IN

Email ID: yadukafinancial@gmail com

Directors

- By our NIL NIL MNIL NIL NIL NIL
Directors

- Against the NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Directors

Promoters

-By NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Promoters

- Against NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Promoters

Subsidiaries

-By Not Applicable, since there are no subsidiaries of the Company.
Subsidiaries
- Against

Subsidiaries

# Litigation against the Directors/Promoter on personal levelin other Companies are not disclosed.
. Brief details of top 5 material outstanding liigations against Yaduka and amount involved: NIL

. Regulalory Action, if any - disciplinary action taken by SEBI or stock exchanges against the Promoter in last 5 financial
years including outstanding action, if any: Nil

. Brief details of outstanding criminal proceedings against Promoters (200 - 300-word limit in total) -NOT APPLICABLE

e g e —
“had AL

- : o S h o
We hereby declare that all relevant psﬁuns of the Companies Act, 1956, Companies Act 2013 and the guidelines/
regulations issued by the Government of India or the guidelines/regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India, established under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may he have been
complied with and no statement made in the Disclosure Document is contrary to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1936,
the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or rules made or guidelines or regulation

issuad there under, as the case may be. We further ceify that all statements in the Disclosure Document are true and correct.

=

(Sobhit Chhawehharia) ;> Y
Director ‘b,___f__,..f’_’, '
DIN: 02926048

Date: 03.07.2025
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1. Name of Listed Entity: Yaduka Financial Services Limited

2, Scrip Code NA | Class of Security : Equity Shares

3. Share Holding Pattern Filed under : Reg. 31(1)(a)/Reg. 31(1){(b)/Reg. 31(1)(c) This is Pre-scheme shareholding pattern
filed as per the requirements of Stock
Exchanges prescribed in accordance with

a. If under 31 (1){b) then indicate the report for Quarter ending: 30.06.2025 SEBI Master Circular no. SEBVHO/CFDIPOD-

2/PICIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023
relating to Schemes of Armangement by

- Listed entities. This shareholding pattern is
b. If under 31(1)(c ) then indicate date of allotmentiextinguishment: s maptlinmindunmipp g

30, 2025
4. Declaration : The Listed entity is required to submit the following declaration to the extent of submission of information:-

Particulars Yes*

VWhether the Listed Entity has issued any partly paid up sharas?

VWhether the Listed Entity has issued any Convertible Securities or Warrants?

Whether the Listed Entity has any shares against which depository receipts are issued?

Whether any shares held by promoters are pledge or otherwise encumbered?

813213 (2|33

Whether company has equity shares with differential voting rights?

1
2
]
4 |Whether tha Listed Entity has any shares in Locked-in?
5
[
7

Whether the Listed Entity has any significant beneficial owner?

* If the Listed Entity selects the option ‘No' for the questions above, the columus for the partly paid up shares, Quistanding

Convertible Securities/\Warrants, depository receipts, locked-in shares, No of shares pledged or otherwise encumbered by

promoters, as applicable, shall not be displayed at the time of dissemination on the Stock Exchange website Also wherever
there is 'No’ declared by Listed Entity in above table the values will be considered as 'Zero’ by default on submission of the

format of holding of specified securities.

5. The tabular format for disclosure of holding of specified securities is as foliows:-

ANNEXURE -9
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1, Name of Listed Entity: ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED (CIN:LE7120W81984PLC062159)
2. Scrip Code BSE -543766, Class of Security Equity
3. Share Holding Pattern Filed under : Reg. 31(1)(a}/Reg. 31(1)(b)/Reg. 31(1)(c)

a. If under 31 (1)(b) then indicate the report for Quarter ending: 30.06.2025

b. If under 31(1}{c ) then indicate dale of allotment/extinguishment;

This is Pre-scheme shareholding pattern
filed as per the requirements of Stock
Exchanges prescribed in accordance with

SEBI Master Circular no. SEBIVHO/CFD/POD-

2IPICIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023
relating to Schemes of Amangement by
Listed entities. This shareholding pattern is
based on the shareholding data as on June
30, 2025

4. Declaration © The Listed enlity is required to submit the following declaration to the exient of submission of information:-

Particulars Yes* MNo*
1|Whether the Listed Entity has issued any partly paid up shares? No
2|Whether the Listed Entity has issued any Converlible Securities or Warranls? Yes
3|Whether the Listed Entity has any shares against which depository receipts are issued? No
4|Whether the Listed Entity has any shares in Locked-in? Yes
5|Whather any shares held by promolers are pledge or otherwise encumbered? Mo
&|Whether company has equity shares with differential voting rights? Mo
7 |Whether the Listed Entity has any significanl beneficial owner? Yes

* If the Listed Enlity selects the option "No’ for the questions above, the columus for the partly paid up shares, Outstanding
Convertible SecuritiesWarranls, deposilory receipts, locked-in shares, No of shares pledged or otherwise encumbered by
promoters, as applicable, shall not be displayed at the time of disseminalion on the Stock Exchange website Also wherever
there is 'No' declared by Listed Enlily in above table the values will be considered as Zero' by default on submission of the

format of holding of specified securities.

5. The tabular format for disclosure of holding of specified securities is as follows:-

Note : (1) 1800000 waranls are considered in equity shares on diluted basis are not included in dematerialised mode
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ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED

Tk | - of swcurilies - Pra Saheme of mraatioen
Sharshoiding
LT R
1 g full
na g % of esonvarsion of Number of shares
total no. of senvartible sthareise
numuvmmmn&:hmmum ot o md%ﬂdlnm ﬂ::tdlr
Mo of [calcubated T of Vating Rights Underlylng tage of Number of
b a8 per SCRR. [Caes sgen Clans Total outstanding  |diluted share equity shares
Mo, of fully No.of Partly |undestying | Totsl 1957) gy convertible | capital) AsnYeof lbmidin =
Catagory of Nof of  |paid up equity |paid-up Dmposttory (nos.shares held | [Vl Totsl &8 & | BESuritios =V () As lia & % of total
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[ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED

Category & Name of the
|Sharehalders {1}

1

BAN(E

1]

Custodian /DR Halder

1
Numbser of|
shares
pledged ar
otherwise
held in each el
w"%‘"’m‘;m i ;:':‘m ding | Mumber of Locked in mwm
i sha X0 ad (X
No of Voting | sesga res (XH)
Sharehol |Neaf assuming fn:' ;l :'-
ding % h Gon '
leuiatn Undertying [convertible tota
as par loutstandin [securities (as shar |Numbar of
Nos. of RRL '] 4 percentage H.:;‘ ;:H m
Mo, of fully shares. Total 1857) M_ o |of diluted ﬂt o ol ey
|paid up Partly paid{underlying |nos.share|As a % |Total 25 a |securities |share capital) As 8 % of |ap) I:
No of oquity up equity (Depoaitory |8 heid of o of Totl | {Including  |(XI}={Wil}+({X} total  |icab|appl e
sharshol |shares shares Recoipts  |[VIl)={IV]+|{A+B+C2 Voting  |Warramts) |Asa % of shares |le) ll:" ‘I:M
dors hetd (V) |hald (v) _lpwa) (Vi+[Vi] ) [vil] [Classx |Classy |Total rights (X} A+BAC2) No. {a) | held (b} |{a} 1){b] i

9
E

=

g
-

Employee Benefit T
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Swesl Equity) Raguiations, 2021

Total Mon Promoter - Nan Public
Sharshoiding (Cy=(CY1}={CH2}
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ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED

Annexure
Table V - Statement showing details of significant beneficial owners
Date of
creation |
acquition of
significant
Details of holding | exercise of right of the SBO in the |beneficial
Details of the (SBO) Details of the registered owner reporting company, whether direct or indirect: interest
[0 {1 Whether by virtue of: (Ill) (v}
Rights on
distributab
e
dividend
or any Exercise
PAN / Passport No. PAN / Passport No, other of
in case of a foreign in case of a foreign Shares |Voting  |distributio [Exercise |significant
Sr No Name  |national Nationality  |Name national Nationality (%) rights (%) |n (%) of control |influence
1 Pawan |- Indian Pawan Jain HUF - Indian 2.87 287 2.87 Mo Yes 01.04.1996
Jain Ashika Global Securities Pvt |- NA 15.73 15.73 15.73 No Yes 06.06.2017
Ltd
Ashika Global Finance Pvt |- NA 15.30 15.30 15.30 No Yes 06.09.2024
Ltd
Ashika Commodities & 5 NA 12.65 12 65 12.65 No Yes 17.03.2020
Derivatives Pvt Lid
Daulat Jain indian 1.13 - - No Yes 27.03.2018
2 Daulat |- indian Daulat Jain - Indian 1.13 1.13 1.13 No Yes 27.03.2018
Jain Daulat Jain HUF = Indian 0.90 0.90 0.90 No Yes £8.10.2024
Ashika Global Securities Pt |- 15.73 15.73 15.73 Mo Yes 06.06.2017
Ltd MA
Ashika Global Finance Pt NA 15.30 15.20 15,30 No Yes 0F.09.2024
Ltd
Ashika Commodities & - NA 12.85 12.85 12.65 No Yes 17.03.2020
Derivatives Pvt Lid
3 Shashi |- Indian Pawan Jain HUF 7 Indian 287 = i No Yes 01.04 1996
Jain Ashika Commodities & i 1265 12.65 12.65 No Yes 17.03.2020
Derivatives Pvt Lid NA
Ashika Global Securities Pyt |- 15.73 15.73 15.73 No Yes 06.06.2017
Lid MNA
Ashika Global Finance Pwt |- NA 15.30 15.30 15.30 Mo Yes 06.09.2024
Ltd
Roshni Indian Ashika Global Securities Pvt |- 18.73 16.73 15.73 No Yes 06.06.2017
Jain Lid NA
Ashika Commodities & 12.65 12.65 12.65 No Yes 17.03.2020
Derivatives Pvi Lid NA
Daulat Jain HUF = Indian 0.20 - — Mo Yes 28.10.2024
Daulat Jain B Indian 1.13 = 5 No Yes 37.03.2018
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1. Name of Listed Entity; ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED (CIN:L67120WB1994PLC082159)

2. Scrip Code BSE -543766, Class of Security Equity

3. Share Holding Pattern Filed under ; Reg. 31(1}{a)/Reg. 31{1)(b)}Reg. 31(1)(c) This is post-schems shareholding pattern
filed as per the requirements of Stock
Exchanges prescribed in accordance with

a. Ifunder 31 (1){b) then indicate the report for Quarter ending; 30.06.2025 SEBI Master Circular no, SEBIVHO/CFD/POD-

2PICIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023
relating to Schemes of Arrangement by

Listed entities. This sharsholding pattern is
b. If under 31(1)(c ) then indicate date of allotment/extinguishment: Sinedh o the elharaholiad ALK B oo dian

30, 2025

4. Declaration : The Listed entity is required to submit the following declaration to the extent of submission of information:-

Particulars Yes* No*
1|Whether the Lisled Enlity has issued any parily paid up shares? Mo
2|Whether the Listed Enlity has issued any Convertible Securities or Warrants? Yes
J|Whether the Listed Entity has any shares against which depository receipls are issued? Mo
4|Whether the Lisled Enlily has any shares in Locked-in? Yes
5|Whether any shares held by promolers are pledage or otherwise encumbered? Mo
6|Whether company has equity shares with differential vating rights? No
7 |Whether the Listed Entity has any significant beneficial owner? Yes

* If the Listed Entity selects the option ‘Mo’ for the guestions above, the columus for the partly paid up shares, Qutstanding
Convertible Securities/\Warrants, depository receipts, locked-in shares, No of shares pledged or otherwise encumbered by
promoiers, as applicable, shall nol be displayed at the time of dissemination on the Stock Exchange website Also whereyer
there Is ‘Mo’ declared by Listed Entity in above table the values will be considered as 'Zera' by default on submission of the
format of holding of specified securities,

5. The tabular format for disclosure of holding of specified secunities is as follows:-

Note : (1) Shares issuaed pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation are not Included in dematerialised mode
(2} 1800000 warants are considered in equity shares on diluted basis are nol included in dematedalised mode
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" ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED

Tabie | - L] L - -]
Shareholding
s a
Sharehelding amsuming full
s a %l |conversion of Mumiber of shares
totalna. of | wumbar of Vofing Rights held in sach class of securition eanvertiin Humbar of Locked plodged or otherwise
sharms ) No of shares  |coourilies (15 & Iy i n@_
P, of (esboulated Tioal Undertying par g=of Numbar of
shares as par SCRAR. [y g Clase Total cutstanding  [diluted share |asuéty mhares
No.of Partly |enderying | Totsl 188T) e convertible capital} Amav |heldin
Category of Naos. of Mo of fully paid |pald-up Depository  |nos.sharss held (R Total a5 8 | socuritien [XIy=[VI+X) A As § % of of total  |dematerialized
Cateq |sharshoider | sharsholders up equity shares [equity shares| Receipis (W= As 8% ol %ol  |(including n % of total sharss ghares  |form
'u_r,_ﬂ'_l_ [ ] i | henidd {1V} il (] (L] {1 [ArBeC) Frants No. ja) el {b) Mo, {a) Iheld [b) [DEIV)
AN | Promater &
:"::'" 8 2.50.36, 507 - - 25e8 507 | 88.75% 2,50,36,507 . 2.50,36,587 | 55.75% . 55T5% 1,850,188 | T1T% . = 1,84,30,960
B |Publc
3819 20888374 - - 205,58 AT4 44 20% 2 05,88, 374 - 20588374 | 44.25% . FrE-i13 B7,50,554 | 47.54% - . 1,86 46,217
(&) |Mon
Prametar - . & g -~ § = i " "
Men Public
{C1)  |Shame
unciertying z = - . . - - ‘ = = . _ 5 a & i #
DRs
(G2Z) | Gharss hald
by Emiployma
Trusts - = = = - = 2 = =
Tatal asm] 48534971 - z A%524,071 | toooos | 48524871 : 4,85,24.971 | 100.00% = 00,00% 2.73,02,162 SmET - 3,80,77,307 |
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A.BHIISA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED

Table V - Statement showing details of significant beneficial owners

Diate of
craation /
scquition af
significant
Details of holding / exercise of right of the SBO in the |beneficial
Details of the (S80) Details of the registered owner reporting company, whather direst or indirect: interest
i (i Whether by virlue of (1) V)
PAN | Passpor Exercise
PAN | Passport Mo, in Mo, In case of af
case of a foreign a forelgn Mationalit |Shares  [Vating Exercise |significant
Srio  |Name  |national Nationality |Name national ¥ %) rights (%) [n (%) lof control linfluence
1 Pawan |- Inclizn Pawan Jain HUF |- Indizn A7 247 [2.47 No Yes 01.04 1206
Jain Pawan Jain - ImdiEn 7.12 7.12 7.12 Mo Yes -
Kanchan Devi Jain|- Imelian 337 - - Mo Yes -
Ashika Global - INA 13,62 {3652 13.52 Mo Yes 06.08,2017
Securilies Put Lid
Ashika Glokal - NA 13.15 13.156 1315 Mo Yes 0608, 2024
|Finance Pvi Lid
Aghika - NA 10.87 10,87 10.87 L] Yas 17.03.2020
Commodities &
Derivatives Pvt
Ltd
IDauIﬂ Jain - indian 0.87 B B No Yes 27.03.2018
z Daulat |- Indian | Daulat Jain - indian 0.87 0.87 0.87 Mo Yes 27.03.2018
Jain | Daulal Jain HUF |- indian___ |0.77 0.77 0.77 Ho Yaa 28.10.2024
Pawan Jain - Indian 7.12 - - No Yes "
Kanchan Dewi Jain]- Indian 337 . - Mo Ted =
Roshni Jain Inefien 349 - - Mo Yes -
Ashlka Global 13,52 13.52 19.52 Mo Yas D606 2017
Securtins Pvt Lid INA
[Ashika Global - A 13.15 1315 1315 Mo Yes 06 0% 2024
Finance Pt Lid
Aghika - NA 1087 1087 10.87 Mo ‘Yes 17.03 2020
Commaoditias &
Derivatives P
Lid
3 Shashi |- Indian Pawan Jain HUF |- Indian 247 = = Mo Yes 01.04, 1955
Jain Pawan Jain £ Incdian 7,12 - — Mo Yas -
Ashika - 10.87 1087 10.87 T Yes 17.03.2020
GCommodities &
Derivatives Pvi
L1 A
Ashika Global 2 13.52 13.52 1362 Mo Yes DB 08 2017
Securifies Pui Ltd A,
Ashika Global - [N 1345 13.15 13.15 () Yas Of.09 2024
Finance Pwt Lid
4 Roshni Indian Ashika Global - 1352 1352 1352 Ma Yes 06 06 2017
Jain Securities Pvt Lid NA
Ashika 10.87 10.87 1087 Mo Yes 17.03.2020
Commodities &
Darvatives Py
Lid A
Roshni Jain - Inedian 3.49 - Mo Yes -
Caulal Jain HUF Inetian 0.77 - — Wa Vs 28.10.2024
Daulat Jain . Indlan 0.87 - = o Yes 27.03.2018
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ANNEXURE -11

' @‘( SHYAMSUKHA AMIT & ASSOCIATES
- Chartered Accountants (ICAI Reg. No. 324516E)

1%, Ganesh Chandm Avenue, “"PREMIER HOUSE', 2nd Floor, Sulte Mo, 7,

Kolkata-700 013, Mob ; 93310 29389, 78364 72553, 783462 12602
Webisite © www saoa co.n « E-mail . amilshyamsukha co@gmail com

Certificate certifying the statement providing details of assets, liabilities, revenuae and nel worth
of the participating companics, both pre and post the Scheme of Amalgamation

To,

. The Board of Dirgctors,
Ashika Credit Capital Limited
226/1 A.1.C. Bose Road Trinity 7" Floor,
Kolkata, West Bengal, India, 700020

(2]

The Board of Directars,

Yaduka Financial Services Limited
16/1A, Abdul Hamid Steet,

2M Floor, Room No - 2B,
Kolkata-700069, West Bengal, India

This is with reference to the Scheme of Amalgamation of Yaduka Financial Services Limited (*Transferor
Company™) with and inte Ashika Credit Capital Limited (“Company™ Or “Transferee Company”™) and their
respective shareholders and ereditors (*Scheme™)

We, Shyamsukha Amit & Associates, Chartered Accountants, have been enzaged to issue this centificate on the
Statement of details of assets, liabilities, revenue, and net worth as at 3Uth September 2024 (the “Sratement”™) of
vVaduka Financial Services Limited and Ashika Credit Capital Limited. both on a pre and post Scheme basis, for
the purpose of soliciting approvals from the sharcholders and the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal
(NCLT) in connection with the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation.

The afaresaid Statement, enclosed herewith as Annexure A and Annexure B. has been initisted by us for
identification purposes.

1. 'The preparation of the Statement is the responsibility of the menagement of the Company ncluding the
preparation and mujntenance of all accounting and other relevant supporting records and documents, This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Statement and applying an appropriaie basis of preparation and making
estimates that are reasonable in the ¢ircumstances.

=

['he Management is responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the provision of Sections 230
1o 232 of the Act and other provisions applicable, if any, of the Act and SEB! (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements), Rezulations, 2015 and the SEBI circular, and the applicable accounting standards,
in relation to the Scheme, and for providing all relevant information to the relevant National company Law
Tribunal, the SERT, and the BSE Limited (hercinafter referred 1o as 'the stock exchanges')

3. It is our responsibility to provide reasonable assurance {hat the amounts in the Statement have been correctly
extracted from the audited financial statements as on 307 September 2024 prepared in accordance with the
Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014,

4. Our responsibility is not to verify the accuracy of the facts stated in the certificate. We conducted our
examination in accordance with the guidance notes on Audit reports and certificates for special purposes issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Tndia. Our scope of work did not involve perform ey it

tests in the context of our examination. We have not performed an audit, the objective of whigh o
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 SHYAMSUKHA AMIT & ASSOCIATES Continuation Sheet

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

expression of an opinion on the financial statements. specified elements, accounts or items thereof, for the
purpose of this certificate. Accordingly. we do not express such opinion.

5. We conducted our examination of this statement in accordance with the Guidance Nete on Reports or
Certificates for Special Purpose (Revised 2016) ("the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (1ICA1) and Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirement of the Code of Ethics issued
by the ICA

6. We have complied with the relevant upplicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1,
Quality Control for Firms that perform Audit and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other
Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

7. Based on our examination of the Statement, and according to the information, explanations, and
representations provided to us by the management of the Company, and subjcct to the limitations set out in
this certificate, we hereby state that:

B. the figures relating to the pre-amalgamation assets, labilities, net worth, and revenue of Yaduka
Financial Services Limited and Ashika Credit Capital Limited as at 30th September 2024, as presented
in the Statemnent, have been correctly extracted from the respective financial statements of the said
companies as at that date,

b. the computation of post-amalgamution assets, liabilities, net worth, and revenue as presented in the
Statement has been arithmetically verified and found to be correct, based on the aggregation of the
respective figures of both companies and as per the methodology explained in the Statement.

We do not express any audit opinion or assurance on the financipl statements or on the Scheme of Amalgamation
as a whole. Our scope was limited to verifying the extraction of figures and the arithmetic accuracy of the post-
amalgamation computation,

This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of compliance and submission to the Honble National Company
Law Tribunal and/er any ether regulatory authority, as may be required under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, in connection with the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation.

This certificate i not intended for any other purpose and may not be used, circulated, quoted, or referred 1o, in
whole or in part. for any purpose or to any other party without our prior written consent.

For Shyamsukha Amil & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 324516E

edir Shyawmeuel—¢
Amil Shvamsukha, FCA
(Partmer)
Membership No. (058596
Certificate No.: 0055/2025-26
UDIN: 25058596BMLDELI282

Place: Kolkata
Date: 02 Day of July, 2025

Page 177 of 292



YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: US51109WB2007ELC117012

Regd Office: 16/ 1A, Abdul Hamid Street, 2nd Floor, Room No - 2B
Kolkata WE 700069 IN

Email ID: yadukafinancial@gmail. com

Annexure 4

(AU Amounts in Crs.)

L. Detail of Assels
Particular Pre - Scheme as on 30" | Past- Scheme
| September 2024
Non- current Assets Not spplicable since the
Non-current Investments 2.55 | Company would cease 1o
' Total Non- current Assets 2.55 | existafter amalgamation
_i;'.urrenl Assets i
Trade receivables 022 |
Cash and cash equivalents 0.35
Short-term loans and advances 7785
Inventories -
Total Current Assets T8.42
Tatal Assets 80.97
IL. Detail of Liabilities
' Pre - Scheme as on 30" | Post- Scheme
September 2024
Current Liabilities ] Not applicable since the
Other current liabilities 0.02 | Company would cease to
Short Term Provision Jags] after amalgamation
Total Current Liabilities 1.50
1. Details of Net Worth
- Pre - Scheme as on 30" | Post- Scheme
September 2024
Equity Share Capital ~ 4.52 | Not applicable since the
Reserve and Surplus 74.95 C::trnpany -
- exist after amalgamation
Total Net worth | 79.47 | r
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v, Details of Revenue

Pre - Scheme as on 30"
September 2024

Post- Scheme

Revenue from Operations 119.53
Other Income 0.02
5 o
 Total Revenue 119.55 |

Not applicable since the
Company would cease 10
exist after amalgamation

V. History of the Transferor Company:

| Vaduka Financial Services Limited was incorporated on 9" July 2007, with the Corporate
Identity Number (CIN) U5 109WB2007PLC117012 and Permanent Account Number (PAN)
AAECP3304K. It is a Public limited company having registered office at 16/1A, Abdul Hamid
Steet. 2nd Floor, Room No - 2B, Kolkata-700069, West Bengal, India

2. Yaduka Financial Services Limited (YFSL) was formerly known as PR Vyapaar Private
Limited. The company is a limited company domiciled in India and a non-deposit accepting
Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) holding a certificate of registration from the Reoone
Bank of India (RBI). The company is engaged in the business of providing finance and dealing

in shares and securities.

For Yaduka Financial Services Limited

Sobhit Chhawchharia
Director

DIN: 02926948

Date: 02™ July 2025
Place: Kolkata =
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& ashika

Ashika Credit Capital Ltd.

Annexure B
(Al Amarnts in Crs.)

Finmml Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 0.48 0.83
Bank Balance other than (a) above 0.18 0.18
Investments 27177 280.32
Receivables 12.74 12.96
Short Term Loans and Advances - 77.02
Others financial assets 0.08 0.08
Total Financial Assets 291.25 371.39

Non-Financial Assets

Current Tax Assets 0.03 0.85
Investment Property 0.12 0.12
Property, Plant and Equipment 0.16 0.16
Other non-financial assets 0.15 0.15
Inventories - -
Total Non - Financial Assets 0.46 1.28
Total Assets 2917 372.67

1l Detail of Liabilities

1 e - 0s!
? =
SLERY R L B hide A L5 e N Ne T
Financial Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 3.47 347
Payables 14,97 14.97
Borrowings 46.85 46.85
Other Financial Liabilities 0.61 0.61
Total Financial Liabilities 65.90 65.90
Non-Financial Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilities (net) 1.90 3.18
| Provisions 0.37 0.56

T N




‘Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) | 2.18 218 |
Other Non-Financial Liabilities J 0.18 U.El)i
Total Non-Financial Liabilities J" 46 6.12

1
| |

Total Liabilities ' 70.53 7202 |

L Details of Net Worth

| Pre - Scheme as on Post - Scheme as

30" September 2024 | on o™

 September 2024
Equity Share Capital —— 21.42 | 27.95
Other Equity 199,76 274.71
Total Net Worth 1l 221.18 | 302.66

*The following reserves have been excluded from net-worth computation

r i Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme
| Capital Reserve - {2.01)
| Total Reserves excluded ' - (2.01)

V. Details of Revenue

i Pre - Scheme as on

Post - Scheme as

- 30™ September 2024 | on o™

— | September 2024

Revenue from Operations B 35.58 155.11
Other Income 0.00* | 0.02
35.58 155.13

Total Revenue

*amount is less than | lakh

v) Methodology for Computation of Post-Amalgamation Financials

a) Aggregation of Assets and Liabilities:

The assets and liabilities of Yaduka Financial Services Limited (Transferor Company) as at 30th
September 2024 have been aggregated with the assets and liabilities of Ashika Credit Capital Limited
(Transferee Company) as at the same dare.

No adjustments have been made for potential synergies, restructuring costs, or revaluation of assets and
liabilities as the amalgamation is proposed to be accounted for under the Pooling of Interests Method.

b) Revenue:
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Revenue figures represent the aggregate revenue of both the Transferor and Transferee Companies for
the six-month period ended 30th September 2024,

Inter-company transactions, if any, have been eliminated to the extent identifiable from the management
records.

¢) Net Worth:
Net worth as at 30th September 2024, post-amalgamation, has been computed as follows:
Paid-up Share Capital:

I'he paid-up share capital of the Transferee Company as at 30th September 2024 has been
apgrepated with the share capital proposed to be issued to the sharcholders of the Transferor
Company in accordance with the share exchange ratio specified in the Valuation Report
forming part of the Scheme of Amalgamation.

Reserves and Surplus:

The reserves and surplus represent the combined reserves of both the Transferor and Transferee
Companies as at 30th September 2024, after considering.:

i) The transfer of all reserves (including statutory reserves, if any) of the Transferor Company ta
the Transferee Company.

i1) The creation of a capital reserve or adjustment to reserves. as applicable, on account of the
difference between the net assets acquired and the share capital issued, as per the accounting
treatment specified in the Scheme.

d) Accounting Framework:

The financial information has been prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting standards
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014,

¢) Basis of Preparation:

The figures have been extracted from the respective limited reviewed/audited financial statements as at
30th September 2024.

No further audit or independent verification of the financial statements was carried out for the purpose
of this Statement.

Thanking you
Yours faithfully,
For Ashika Credit Capital Limited,

=

%ﬂuhl&‘-’ J—ﬂrx

Gauray Jain

Chief Financial Oflicer
Place: Kolkata

Date 02 July 2025
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. ANNEXURE -12
N R,
DMKH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS i

The Board of Directors

Ashika Credit Capital Limited
Trinity, 226/1, A.J.C. Bose Road,
7" Floor, Kolkata-700020

Certificate on the Proposed Accounting Treatment specified in clause 14 of part Il of the Scheme
of Arrangement of Merger of Yaduka Financial Services Limited (“Transferor Company™) with
Ashika Credit Capital Limited (“Company” or “Transferee Company”) and their respective
shareholders and creditors under Section 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013

1. We, DMKH & Co., Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of Ashika Credit Capital
Limited (“the Company"”) having its registered office at the above mentioned address, have
been requested by the Company, to certify that the proposed accounting treatment in the
books of the Company as specified in clause 14 of part Il of the Scheme of Arrangement (“the
Draft Scheme”) of Merger of Yaduka Financial Services Limited (“Transferor Company™) with
Ashika Credit Capital Limited (“Company” or “Transferee Company") and their respective
Shareholders and Creditors, pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act") and other applicable provisions of the Act, with effect from October 1, 2024 , as
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on July 31, 2024, is
in compliance with the applicable Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of
the Act read with rules thereunder (“Ind AS") and Other Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India. Accordingly, this certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter dated July 29, 2024.

2. We have examined the proposed accounting treatment in the books of the Company specified
in Clause 14 of Part Il of the draft Scheme with reference to its compliance with Ind AS and
other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India.

3. The draft scheme is approved by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company and
Transferar Company on July 31, 2024 and is subject to approval of the National Company Law
Tribunal (“NCLT") and Statutory and Regulatory Authorities, as applicable. The appointed
date for the proposed scheme is October 1, 2024.

Management’s Responsibility

4. The responsibility for the preparation of the Draft Scheme and its compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations, including the applicable Ind AS notified under section 133 of
the Act, read with the rules made thereunder and other Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles as prevalent in India, is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Draft Scheme, and applying an
appropriate basis of preparation, and making estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

5. The Company's management is also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with
the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and providing all relevant information with respect
to the proposed scheme ta the relevant authorities.

gl _
803-804, Ashok Heights, NICCO Circle, Near Bhuta School. Old Nagardas Lands Andher (Easl), Mumbai - 300 D6S.
Tol : 022-26824800 / 4500 | Email : contact@idmkhca.in | Wiww.dmikhca.in

Head OMfics.: Mumbsi, Branch Office, . Pune | Abrmedabad | Gandhinagar | Burat | Vadodara | Ballar | Delhi | Udaipur
-
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Auditor's Responsibility

6. Pursuant to the requirement of the Act our responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance
as to whether the proposed Accounting Treatment in the books of Company specified in Clause
14 of Part Il of the Draft Scheme is in compliance with SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and circulars issued thereunder and all applicable Ind AS
notified under Section 133 of the Act read with rules made thereunder and other Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in India. Further, our examination did not extend to any other
parts and aspects of a legal or proprietary nature in the aforesaid Draft Scheme. Nothing
contained in this Certificate, nor anything said or done in the course of, or in connection with
the services that are subject to this Certificate, will extend any duty of care that we may
have in our capacity as the Statutory Auditors of any financial statements of the Company.

7. The following documents, inter alia have been furnished by the Company:

a. Copy of the Draft scheme, duly authenticated on behalf of the Company.

b. Extract of the Draft scheme containing clause 14, duly authenticated on behalf of the
Company. (attached herewith and initialled by us only for the purpose of
identification)

c. (Certified true copy of the board resolution approving the Draft scheme.

8. We have conducted our examination of the Draft Scheme in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India [“the ICAI"). The Guidance Note requires that we comply with
the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAl, We have not performed an
audit, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion on the financial
statements, specified elements, accounts or items thereof, for the purpose of this Certificate.

9. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality
Control (5QC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements issued by the
ICAL

Opinion

10. Based on our examination, as above, and according to the information, explanations and
representations given to us by the Management of the Company, we are of the opinion that
the proposed accounting treatment in the books of the Company specified in Clause 14 of Part
Il of the Draft Scheme is in compliance with SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and circulars issued thereunder and all applicable Ind AS
natified under Section 133 of the Act read with rules made thereunder and other Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles, as applicable.

11. For ease of references, Clause 14 of Part |ll of the Draft Scheme duly authenticated by the
Company is attached herewith as “Annexure A" to this Certificate and initialed by us only for
the purposes of identification.

Restriction on Use

12. This certificate is issued at the request of the Company and is addressed to and provided to
the Board of Directors pursuant to the requirements of Circulars issued under SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201% rd submission to the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI™), BSE Limi
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Annexure A: Extract of Accounting Treatment from the Draft Scheme of Arrangement of Merger
of Yaduka Financial Services Limited (“Transferor Company”) with Ashika Credit Capital Limited

(“Company™ or “Transferee Company") and their respective shar
eholders and credit
Section 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 ang creditors under

14, ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

14.1 Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from Appointed Date, the
Transferee Company shall account for the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the
Transferee Company in accordance with Paoling of Interest Method in accordance with
Appendix C of Ind AS 103 notified under the provisions of the Act, read with relevant rules
framed thereunder and other applicable accounting standards prescribed under the Act,

14.2 The Transferee Company shall record the assets, liabilities and reserves relating to the
Transferor Company vested as a going concern in it pursuant to this Scheme, at their
respective carrying amounts,

14.3  The Transferee Company shall credit the aggregate face value/ nominal value of shares issued
by it to the shareholders of Transferor Company pursuant to Clause 11 of this Scheme to the
Share Capital Account in its books of accounts.

14.4  The identity of the reserves of the Transferor Company, if any, shall be preserved and they
shall appear in the financial statements of the Transferee Company in the same form and
manner in which they appeared in the financial statements of the Transferor Company.

14.5 Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, to the extent that there are inter-company loans,
advances, deposits balances or other obligations as between the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company, the obligations in respect thereof shall come to an end and
corresponding effect shall be given in the books of accounts and records of the Transferee
Company for reduction of any assets or liabilities, as the case may be. Further no interest
shall be provided on loans and advances or any outstanding loans and advances, if any, after
Appointed Date. All inter party transactions after the Appointed Date between the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company shall be treated as intra party transactions for all
purposes and inter company balances shall stand cancelled.

14.6 The shares held by Transferor Company in Transferee Company or vice versa shall stand
cancelled and difference, if any, would be adjusted against the capital reserves account of
Transferee Company and there shall be no further obligation in that behalf.

14.7  The difference, if any, between Lhe amount recorded as share capital issued plus any
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ANNEXURE - 13

DHC & Co.
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Ashika Credit Capital Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Ashika Credit Capital Limited
{“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements
including a summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information
{hereinafter referred to as “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
{*the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (*Ind AS™) prescribed
under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its loss (including other
comprehensive income), its changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 5tandards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined
the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

DHC & Co., Chartered Accountants FRM Ho, 103525W, (registered on 01st fanuary, 1981)
Registerad offices: 42, Free Press Howse, 715, Mariman Point, Mumbai-400021, India. Tei:+91 22 6132 6999 Fax:491 22 2285 6237
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| 10 of Master Direction- Reserve Bank of |
India (Mon-Banking Financial Company-
Scale Based Regulation) Direction, 2023
(“the Direction"). We have assessed
disclosure requirements for classification
and identification of Stage 3/ NPAs in
accordance with the Direction.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the infarmation included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's Report,
Report on the Corporate Governance but does not include the standalone financial statements,
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The above mentioned
information are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including Ind AS prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the standalene financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasanable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalane financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication,

Other Matter

The audit of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, was carried out and reported
by DMKH & Co., vide their unmodified audit report dated May 13, 2024, whose report has been
furnished to us by the management and which has been relied upon by us for the purpose of our audit
of the standalone financial statements,

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

{1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we report in “Annexure 1", a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Cther Comprehensive Income},
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended,
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e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure 2";

g. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our gpinion and to the best of our informaticn and according te the explanaticns given to
us, the remuneration paid/ provided by the Company, to one of its directors, during the year
is in excess of the limits laid down under section 197 of the Act. However, the company has
obtained necessary approvals from the shareholders of the company by way of Special
Resolution.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

{i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements - Refer Note 30 on Contingent Liabilities to the standalone
financial statements;

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

{ili) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

{iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{iv) (b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties"}, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

{iv}) {c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered_
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice th

sonable and appropriate in the
us to believe that the
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representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11{e}, as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting the
compliance with section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

{vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with and

the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for recaord
retention.

For DHC & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No. 103525W

\

Pradhan Priya Dass

Partner

Membership No. 219962
UDIN: 25219962BMHXJC5507
Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 10, 2025
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in
the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Ashika Credit Capital Limited
{"the Company”) on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025]

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
standalone financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information,
explanations and written representation given to us by the management and the books of account
and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

(i}
(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment property.

(B) The Company does not have any Intangible Assets and accordingly, reporting under clause
{i){a)(B) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(b} During the year, the Property, Plant and Equipment and investment property of the Company
have been physically verified by the management and no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c} The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of lessee) disclosed in the
standalone financial statements are held in the name of the Company, except for the details

given below:
| Description | Gross Held in | Whether Period held Reason for not |
| of property | carrying | name of promoter, being held in
value director or name of
their relative Company
| or employee
Buildings Rs.13.26 | Queens Park | No Since Conveyance is |
Lakhs Estates Pwi, October-2006 | pending
Ltd. and
others |

{d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right of Use
assets) and/or Intangible Assets during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (i)(d) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

{e) Mo proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025
for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(i)
{a) The Company is in the business of Investment and Financing activity and consequently does
not hold any inventory. Therefore, reporting under clause (ii){a) of paragraph 3 of the Order
is not applicable.

{b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees during
the year, in aggregate from financial institutions, on the basis of security of current assets,
However, as per the agreement no quarterly rety nts were required to be
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submitted by the company to those financial institutions. Further, the Company has not been
sanctioned working capital limit in excess of five crore rupees during the year, from banks on
the basis of security of current assets.

(iif)
{a) The Company's principal business is to give loans and therefore, reporting under clause (iii)(a)
and (e) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

(b} The investments made, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans
and advances in the pature of loans provided by the Company during the year are not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company. Further, the Company has not provided any
guarantee during the year.

ic} The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest in respect of the loans and
advances in the nature of loans has been stipulated.
Further, we have been given to understand that taking into consideration the nature of
business of the Company, the status of repayment of principal and payment of interest, as
per the aforesaid stipulated schedule, in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans
keeps changing on a daily basis for cases which are irregular, Hence, it is difficult and
impracticable to identify all the instances wherein the repayments or receipts are irregular
during the year. As at March 31, 2025, there are no case outstanding in respect of loans and
advances in the nature of loans which are irregular (includes principle and interest overdue).

{d) In respect of the aforesaid loans and advances in the nature of loans, there is no overdue
amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date,

{f) As informed to us, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

{iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 of the Act in respect of grant
of loans, providing guarantees and securities. Further, the provisions of Section 186, except
for Section 186(1) of the Act, are not applicable to the Company as it is engaged in the
business of financing.

{v) The Company is a Mon-Banking Finance Company registered with the Reserve Bank of India to
which the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the relevant rules made there under
are not applicable. Accordingly, reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

{vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for any of the
praducts of the Company under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules framed
there under.

(vii)

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities, undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Services tax (GST), provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, in all cases during the year.
During the year 2017-18, sales tax, value added tax, service tax and duty of excise subsumed
in GST and are accordingly reported under GST.

Mo undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance,

income tax, GST, customs duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it,

were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they

became payable. s{vR
Q)
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{b) There are no dues with respect to provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax,
GST, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, customs duty, excise duty and cess, which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) We have not come across any transaction which were previously not recorded in the books of
account of the Company that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b} The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

{c) The company did not obtain any maney by way of a term loans during the year and there were
no outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
{ix){c) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.

{d) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, no funds
raised on short-term basis, have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

{e) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiary as defined under the Act. Further, during the year ended March
31, 2015, the Company did not have any associates or joint ventures as defined under the
Act,

(f} The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiary as defined under the Act. Further, during the year ended March 31, 2025, the
Company did not have any associates or joint ventures as defined under the Act.

{x) (a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public issue offer / further public offer
{including debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, reporting under clause (x){a) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(b} The Company has made preferential allotment or private placement of shares during the
year and in our opinion, the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Act have been
complied with and the funds raised have been used for the purpose(s) for which they were
raised. Further, during the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible).

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud
by the Company nor any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of any such instance by the management,

(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government by
the auditors of the Company in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year or upto the date of this report.
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{c) There are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year and upto
the date of this report.

{xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting under clause (xii)
of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

{xiii) All transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv) (a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the Internal Audit Reports of the Company issued till date, for the period
under audit.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with them during the year and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

{xvi) (a} The Company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 and the registration has been obtained by the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without having a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (“Directions”) by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xvi){c) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable,

(d) Asinformed by the Company, the Group to which the Company belongs has no CIC as part of
the Group.

{xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses for the current financial year amounting to Rs 1,912.83
lakhs. However, no cash losses were incurred in the immediately preceding financial year.

{xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly,
reporting under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to
our attention, which cause us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of this audit report and that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.
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(%x) There are no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (C5R) on other than
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Act in
compliance with second proviso to section 135(3) of the said Act. Hence, reporting under
clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

For DHC & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 103525W

.

Pradhan Priya Dass

Partner

Membership No. 219962
UDIN: 25219962BMHXJC5507
Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 10, 2025

age 199 of 292

l:uminual:lonF;



DHC & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in
our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Ashika Credit capital limited on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025.]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i)
of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act"”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ashika Credit
Capital limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the intermal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Mote and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance
Mote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.
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DHC & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference te Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal controls stated in the Guidance MNote issued by the ICAl

For DHC & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 103525W

O
Pradhan Priya Dass
Partner
Membership No. 219962
UDIN; 25219962BMHXJC5507
Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 10, 2025
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ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED
Ly Standalone Balance Gheet as at 31st March, 2025

(1) Financial Assets

{a) Cash and Cash Equivaients F) T94.61 36.98
{b) Bank Balance ather than (a} above 3 1741 16.81
(¢} Recenables q

(1) Trade receivables - -

(1) Other recaevablas 0.03 7.57
(d) Loans 5 7,489.72 -
(e} [Investments ) 34,065.99 9,377.40
(f) Other Financlal Assets 7 2,33 2.33
{2) Non-Financlal Assats
(@) Current Tax Asseis {net) B 345.68 3.70
(b} Deferred Tax Assats (nat) El 1,487.93 -
(e] Investment Froperty 10 11.57 11.81
[d) Property, Plant anl Equipment 11 B89.54 17.34
(e} Other Non-Financial Assets 12 2523 14,36
TOTAL ASSETS 44,330.494 9,490.30

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

{1} Financial Liabilities

(a) Dervative financial instruments 13 B9.37 17.05
(b} Payables 14

(1) Trade Payables
(1] Tetal sutstanding dues of micro -
enterprises and small enterprises
(1) Total putstanding dues of creditors other
than micro erterprises and small enterprises
{11 Dther Payables

{1} Total outstanding dues of micro 17,48
enterprises and small antarprises
{1y Total outstanding dues of creditors other .71 17.57
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(e} Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) i5 56.24 2,511.84
{d} Other Financial Liabilites 16 53.36 44,560
(2) Non-Financial Liabilities
{a) Current Tax Liabilides (net) 17 - 9.72
{b] Provisions 18 38.43 33.32
(c} Deferred Tax Liablities {net) 4 - 32.65
{d} Other Mon-Financial Liabilities 19 29.27 15,49
TOTAL LIABILITIES 304.86 2,682.14
(3) Equity
a) Equity Share Capital 20 3,310.95 1,188.17
(b) Other Equity 21 40,714,863 5,619.89
TOTAL EQULITY 44,025.58 6,808.06
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 44,330.44 9,490.30

Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone  ]-55
Financial Statements
The Mates referred to above form an incegral part of the Standalone Balance Sheet.

This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chicag oo

For DHC & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Registration No, 103525W

Op

Daulat Jain Chirag Jain
Parner Chairman Managing Director Executive Director & Chief
Executive Dificar
Membership No. 219962 {DMN: DDC380TE) {DIN: 0D0S00BB) {DIN: 07e48747)
: Mumbal ace! Kolkata Place: Yumba|

- ét’-uﬂ - d—ﬂ--. ’
Anju Mundhra Gaurav Jain
Place ' Bennaluru Company Secrefary Chie! Financaa | Offjcer
Date: Mav 10, 2025 (FEGRE) Blace: Mumbai

Place: Mum bai
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ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year anded 31st March, 2025

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(¥ in Lokha)

) Interest Income 22 33382 110,02
fud  Dividend Income o6 32 Ta.47
{IH] Nel gain on lair value cChanges 23 . 1,703.87
{11 Total Ravenue fram Oparations 424.04 1,838.31
{11} Other Income a5 4.8 16.43
[110) Total Income {I+11) 429.03 1 854.74
EXFENSES
{¥)  Finanee Costs 25 754,68 Ta.43
fid  Net loss on fair value chanoes 23 5.041.87 -
ta}  Impairment on Financial Inslrumeals [net) 26 21.23 {30.88)
{4} Emolovee Benelits Expantes ar 343.54 Ba.71
() Depreciation. Amoriisalion and Imosirment Expanse 10-11 407 2.16
Iv}  Other Expenses 28 92598 249,16
| (I¥) Tota| Expenses 7,091.42 578.60
(V) Prefit/ (Loss) Before Exceptional items & Tax {III-1V) (6.662.38) 1,276.14
(¥1] Exceptional Tterma - )
(VII) Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (V-VI) (6,862.39) 1,276.14
WIIY Tax Expense:
fa) Current Tax - 144,18
(b Deferred Tax {1,520.45} 61.58
[e] Tax in resnack of earlier years {0.05) -
(IX) Profit/ {Loss] After Tax (VII-VIII) (5.,141.89) 1,070.38
{¥) Other Comprehensive Income
(i} Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
fa} Remensurement Galnd (Loss) an Defined Benefit Plans 0.am 4,52
(b} Incama tax on abive 0.12 {0.63)
| Totsl Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) [9:33) 1.89
(X1} Totsl Comprehensive Income [IX+X) {5,142.24) 1,072.27
{XIT} Earnings per Equity Share {Face Value ® 10/~ par share} 20
Basic {in ¥) 125.76) S.01
Diluted {in T} {23.76) 5.04
Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial 1-55
Statements

The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Standolone Statement of Profit and Loss.
Thig is the Standofone Statement of Profit and Lass refarred o in our report of even date.

For DHC & Co.
Charlered Accountants
ICAI Ferm Registration Mo, 103525W

&J\ -
Pradhaff Priya Dass
Fartnar

Memberendp Mo, 319963

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ci“,:?'il B

Maco: Bangajuru
Date: Maw 10. 2025

Place: Mumbai

in Chir ain
naging Director Executive Director &
Chiet Executive
Officer
(DIN: 0003B076) (DiM: DGO40088) DIBE) {DIN: DIe40747)
Place: Mumbai Flace: Kolkara Biace: Mumbai
) .
8 ] - AL A, ra_.‘_ r
Anju Mundhra Gaurav Jain
Coampany Secratary Chief Financial Officer
(FEEBEY Pace: Mumbai
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ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED
Standalene Stetement of Cash Flows for the year ended J1st March, 2025

A. Cash Flow from Operaking Activities
Profit/ (Lozs) Sefore Tax {E6.662.39) 1,276,148
Adygiments fos
Deeracanon. Amarfisaton and [moaisment Exornce a.0r ERE
Met unrealised fair value lpssfgain] on investments 442632 {320.60)
Imparmgnt gn Findescial instruments (gt § 41,28 130, B0
Finarce Cosl G556 74 1793
Sundee Baiances writlen off .00 .
Sundey Linhd|ities Wrttan Bach 14.76) £
Provigion for Gratuy .64 5.00
Imgrest ncoine (329.58) (2.7
Ingarest on income |ax refund = (3,63}
Inbgrgst gn inggms Lax - 176
Cperating profit before working capital changes {1,601.68) B59.98
Hovements in Worklng Canital =
Adjuintmants for:
fincraacsl J Decrasca m Lnsne (7.540,009 098,00
Increase ! iDecrease) in Other Financial Diatilies 8,96 1722
Increace ! (Decroase) in Other Nan-Finanoal Liabiktiss 11.78 5,07
tincreasad / Oacrgasa in Gther Financial Assets 1.00 1@,40¥
{Inoreasa)d / Decrease in Giher Non-Finandal Assets (1247 5,70
[increased ) Decrease in Investments (25414 400 (5.345.62)
{inerease) /) Decrease in Rece vables 7,54 4315
Ihtrease [ (Decrease) in Payvibies 25,38 17,57
increage ! {Decrgase) in Dorvativas financial instruments 73,11 15,32
Cash Generated ! (Used) in Operations (3B 489.17) (2415 75)
Advance taxes pad fintodng Tay Deducted 3t Sounce and net of Retunds) 1351.65) f1594.39)
Intereat on Lobn Rectived 32958 114,75
|__Fingnce Cost Pawd (512,34} {29.48)
bt Cash Generated from/ (Used n) Ooerating Activities (a) (39,023,581 [£.38%.29)]
B, Caszh Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plact and Eouiprment (76.01) -
ment mn icluary {0.51)
Mat Cash Generated from/ (Usad in] Investing Activitias (8) [{76.54) -
€. Cash Flow from Finandno Actlvities
Dividand Pasd {100
Flanay Raoe wod pIaTST Shars warfanis 667428 -
Issue of Fousty Shares 15 EES. &Y -
Amount received from berrovenas {other than debs seounoes) 67, 38600 17.955.00
| Repaymant of borrowings (athir Ihan debt secunities) {SOBRAOD)  (15.455.00)
Het Cash Generaled fram/ (Used (n) Financing Activities (C) 39B38,. 75 2,500.00
et Increase /[ Decreasa) in Cash and Cash Eguivalants {A+B+C) TEE.63 15.71
Lash and Cash Equivalents at the inning of the year 37.61 21,30
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (refer Note Mo, 2)* 755,64 57.01

* The amount 15 exclusiee of allwance for expected cradin lnss on batancas with bank amounting to 103 lskhs [31ar March, 3034 0.03
Lakhs)

| = - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

() Cash an hand 5.85 12.12
{1} Balances with Binks - iy Currend Account 4565 25,85
] 37,00
Less: Imparment |oge sllowsnce {1.03} [2.03)
TO4.61 3698

249665

Explanstions:
1. Tne abave Standalene Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indiract Method a5 s#1 cut in the Indisn Accounting Standard 7
‘Statement of Cash Floves'.

2. Figures pertaifing to previogs yohr hiave betn rearrangdd f regrouped, wharmess neoessery, (o make them comparable with thase of current
year.

This i tne Standalons Statement of Cash Flows referred (o 0 our repert of even date,

For OHC & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartéred Accountanta

1CAL Firm ‘E\gmrnllun Mo, LO3S25W i
Q2 2 ety Do
Prad Priva Dass Pawan lain Chi In
Partimer Chalirman naging Carecior Enacutive Direclar &
Chact Executive Officer
Membership No. 219962 {0IN: QOOJB0TE) [ExL: Q009 DORE) {GIre: 07680 347)
Fince: Mumbai Place: Kalkmn Place: Mumbai
L)

/A‘ma‘f:l Qavaav. ¢= 7
Anju Mundhra Gaurav Jain
Place! Benazlum Comnany Sarrsfary Cndel Fenancial D
Dot May 10, 2025 [FS886, Place: Mumba

Face: Mumbai

Page 204 of 292




Page 205 of 292



Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Standaloane Financial Statements

1(a) Corporate Information

Ashika Credit Capital Limited (the "Company”) Is a public limited company
domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956, The Company is engaged in fund-based activities like providing loans and
advances, inter-corporate deposits, loans against securities and investments in
chares and securities. The Company provides services to individuals, corporate
and financial institutions. The shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock
Exchange. The Company received a certificate of registration from the Reserve
Bank of India ("the RBI") on 7" September, 1998 to commence/carry on the
business of Non-Banking Financial Institution ("NBFI"), without accepting
deposits, classified as a Base Layer (BL) NBFC. The registration details are as
follows:

RBI 05.2892
Corporate ldentlty Number {C[N} L67120WB1994PLC062159

The registered office of the Company and the principal place of business is "Trinity’,
226/1, A.).C. Bose Road, 7™ Floor, Kolkata — 700020.

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,
2025 were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of
Directors on May 10, 2025.

1(b)} Accounting Policies

1.1 Statement of compliance

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as "Ind AS") notified under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, other relevant provision of the
Act and guidelines issued by the RBI and guidelines issued by the RBI and
paragraph 10 of Master Direction-Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial
Company-Scale Based Regulation) Direction, 2023.

1.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Ind AS notified under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to
time. The standalone financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as maodified by the application of fair value measurements
required or allowed by relevant Ind AS at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services. The accounting policies are applied consistently
to all the periods presented in the standalone financial statements.

The preparation of standalone financial statements require the use of certain
material accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosed amount of
cuntmgeno & jlities. Areas involving higher degree of judgement or complexity,

C"
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Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

13

(A)

a)

b)

or areas where assumptions are material to the Company are discussed in Note
No. 1.16 - Material accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of standalone
financial statements are prudent and reasonable.

Actual results could differ from those estimates and the differences between the
actual results and the estimates would be recognised in the periods in which the
results are known / materialised.

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all
values are rounded to the nearest Lakh, except otherwise indicated.

Comparative information has been restated to accord with changes in
presentations made in the current year, except where otherwise stated.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company, it can be reliably measured and it is reasonable to expect
ultimate collection.

Revenue from Operations:

Revenue from Operations is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on an
accrual basis as stated herein below:

Interest income from financial assets is recognised by applying the Effective
Interest Rate (‘EIR') to the gross carrying amount of financial assets, other than
credit-impaired assets and those classified as measured at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss (FVTPL) or Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
{FVTOCI). The basis of computation of EIR is discussed in Note No. 1.14.3,

Any subseguent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows having impact
on EIR are recognised in interest income with the corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the assets.

Interest Income on credit impaired financial assets is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the net amortised cost (i.e. after considering impairment
loss allowance) of the financial assets.

Income or net gain on fair value changes for financial assets classified as
measured at FVTPL and FVTOCI is recognised as discussed in Note No. 1.14.3.

Revenue from trading in securities/intraday transactions is accounted for on trade
date basis.

Income from dividend is recognised when the Company’s right to receive such
dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of
part of cost of the nvestment and the amount of dividend can be measured
reliably.

(B) Other Income:

All other items of income are accounted for an accrual basis.
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Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

1.4 Leases
a) Arrangements where the Company is the lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at the inception of a
contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves
the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii)
the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-
use asset ("ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements
in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve maonths or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these shert-term and low value
leases, the Company recognizes the |ease payments in the Statement of Profit
and Loss as operating expenses over the Lerm of the lease,

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease
before the end of the lease term. ROU assels and lease liabilities includes these
options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability i.e. the present value of the future lease payments,
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of
the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or if not readily determinable using the incremental borrowing
rates. Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related right of use asset if the Company change its assessment whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

b) Arrangements where the Company is the lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating
lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance |ease,
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

1.5 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds including interest expense calculated using
the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assats that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sala,
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Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

Other income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization.

Interest expense includes origination costs that are initially recognised as part of
the carrying value of the financial liability and amortized over the expected life
using the EIR. It also include expenses related to borrowing which are not part of
effective interest as not directly related to loan origination.

1.6 Employee Benefits
1.6.1 Retirement benefit costs and other employee benefits

(A) Defined Contribution Plans:

Contributions to Provident Fund, Pension Fund and Employee State Insurance are
considered as defined contribution plans and are recognised as expenditure when
an employee renders related services.

(B) Defined Benefit Plans:

Gratuity Liability is a defined benefit plan. The cost of providing benefits is
determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes
to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net
interest), is reflected in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected under retained earnings
and is not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(C) Short-term and other leng-term employee benefits:

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and
salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period in which related service is
rendered.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
related service.

1.7 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred
tax,

Current tax

Current tax is determined at the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable profit
for the year as per the Income-tax Act, 1961, Taxable profit differs from 'profit
befare tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting period.
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Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

1.8

MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be
recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the
Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT credit entitlernent. The Company
reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount
of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to
the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period,

Deferred tax

The Company's deferred tax is calculated using tax rate that are substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the standalone financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences,

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, unused tax credits and unused tax losses being carried forward, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available in future against
which these can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment shown in the balance sheet consists of assets used
in the provision of services or for administrative purposes.

Initial and subsequent recognition

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost together with
borrowing cost capitalized for qualifying assets. Cost comprises the purchase price
and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to the location and its
working condition for its intended use. Changes in the expected useful life are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period odology, as
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Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted
for as a separate asset is de-recognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting
pericd in which they are incurred.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. The date of disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
is the date the recipient obtains control of that item in accordance with the
requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in Ind AS
115.

Depreciation

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. It is
recognised to write down the cost of the property, plant and equipment to their
residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line basis. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

The Company has adopted the useful life as specified in Schedule II to the Act.

Depreciation on right-of-use asset is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on
straight line basis over the life of the asset.

Depreciation on assets purchased / sold during the period is recognised on a pro-
rata basis.

Investment Property

Properties, held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified as
investment property and measured and reported at cost, including transaction
costs.

Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of
the investment property less their residual values over their useful lives specified
in Schedule II to the Act. The estimated useful life, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and the
effect of any change in the estimates accounted for on prospective basis.

An investment property is de-recognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future econoemic benefits are
expected from disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-r ,qeagmtmn of property

S 30y AN
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Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

{calculated as difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which the property is de-recognised.

1.10 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts
of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount, An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.11 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. If the effect
of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be
derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of
meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are
expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable Is recognised as an asset
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if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

In case of litigations, provision is recognised once it has been established that the
Company has a present obligation based on information available up to the date
on which the Company’s standalone financial statements are finalised and may in
some cases entail seeking expert advice in making the determination on whether
there is a present obligation.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation
that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation. Company does not recognised contingent
liability but discloses its existence in the standalone financial statements.

Contingent Assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in the standalone financial statements, but
are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable,

1.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, balances with banks,
cheques on hand, remittances in transit and short-term investments with an
original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

1.13 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision-Maker (CODM). The CODM
assess the financial performance and position of the Company and makes
strategic decisions.

The Company is predominantly engaged in a single reportable segment of
'Financial Services’ as per the Ind AS 108 - Segment Reporting.

1.14 Financial Instruments
Classification of financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement
categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost

2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income

3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash
flows and the Company's business model for managing financial assets which are
explained below:
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Business model assessment
The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it
manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Company’s business madel is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable
factors such as:

» How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within
that business model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management
personnel.

» The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial
assets held within that business model) and the way those risks are managed.

» How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the
compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the
contractual cash flows collected).

» The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of
the Company's assessment. The business model assessment (s based on
reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’
scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way
that is different from the Company’s original expectations, the Company does not
change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business
model, but incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or
newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) test

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the
contractual terms of financial assets to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

'Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for
example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/
discount).

In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash
flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only
consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks
and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where
the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent
with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company classifies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless it has
designated liabilities at fair value through the profit and loss account or is required
to measure liabilities at fair value through profit or loss such as derivative
liabilities.

1.14.1 Recognition of Financial Instruments:

Financlal assets and financial liabilities are recognised when entity becomes a

party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Loans,ﬁt'ﬁduances and all
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other regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and de-
recognised on the trade date basis.

1.14.2 Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or daducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or less are recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost as permissible under Ind AS 27,
‘Separate Financial Statements’.

1.14.3 Subsequent Measurement:
(A) Financial Assets
Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost:

These financial assets comprise Bank Balances, Loans, Trade Receivables, Other
Receivables, Investments and Other financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost, if it is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash
flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVTOCI):

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI, if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL):

A financial asset which is not classified as Amortised Cost or FVTOCI is measured
at FVTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL. A financial asset
that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI
criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and
losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any debt
instrument as at FVTPL.

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as FVTPL and
held by the Company on the balance sheet date is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. In cases there is a net gain in the al|_;)gr£zl_:.|emtﬂ5r the same is
i /f/r :\'_h‘cii\'fy‘,
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recognised in "Net gain on fair value changes” under Revenue from Operations
and if there is a net loss the same is recognised in "Net loss on fair value changes”
under Expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The EIR is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument
and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liabllity
on initial recognition

The EIR for financial assets or financial liability is computed:

a) By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating
the cash flows.
b) Including fees and transaction costs that are integral part of EIR.

Impairment of Financial Assets:

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets
measured at amortised cost and FVTOCI at each reporting date based on evidence
or information that is available without undue cost or effort.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount
equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on
a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal
to 12-month expected credit losses.

No Expected credit losses are recognised on equity investments,

Also refer Note No. 1.14.6 Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) principles.

De-recognition of Financial Assets:

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On de-recognition of a financial asset accounted under Ind AS 109 in its entirety:

a) For Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost, the gain or loss is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b) For Financial Assets measured at FVTOCI, the cumulative fair value adjustments
previously taken to reserves are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the asset represents an equity investment in which case the cumulative
fair value adjustments previously taken to reserves may be reclassifled within
equity.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred
gualifies for de-recognition in its entirety, the previous carrying amount of the
larger financial as hall be allocated between the part that continues to be
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recognised and the part that is de-recognised, on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, it recognises its
retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, it continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a liability for the proceeds received.

Modification/ revision in estimates of cash flows of financial assets:

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise
madified and the renegotiation or modification does not result in the de-
recognition of that financial asset in accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognises a
modification gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

{B) Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments
Classification as debt or equity:

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument,

Equity Instruments

An Equity Instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Repurchase of the
Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial Liabilities

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at
amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at FVTPL. Such liabilities, including
derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon Initial recognition as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading, if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109 - "Financial Instruments”,
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Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method except for those designated in
an effective hedging relationship.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and
fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amartisation is included
in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the EIR method.

Trade and other payables

A payable is classified as 'trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on
account of goods purchased or services received in the normal course of business.
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the
Company prior to the end of financial year, which are unpaid. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subseguently measured at amortised cost.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantees issued by the Company are those guarantees that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder of the guarantee for a loss incurred
by the holder because the specified debtor fails to make a payment, when due, to
the holder in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument, Financial guarantees
are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transactions costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the
liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as
per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisation,

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another frem the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
de-recognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.14.4 Off-setting of financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Balance Sheet, when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and
sattle the liability simultaneously backed by past practice.

1.14.5 Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
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transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability

The Principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to ancther market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are cateqgorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
as follows:

Level 1 financial instruments: Those where the inputs used in the valuation
are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with
regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when
there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet
date.

Level 2 financial instruments: Those where the inputs that are used for
valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable
market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life. Such inputs
include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted
prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other
than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and
credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or
location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items that are comparable
to the wvalued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on
unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the
Company will classify the instruments as Level 3.

Level| 3 financial instruments: Those that include cne or more unobservable
input that is significant to the measurement as whole.
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1.14.6 Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) principles

Expected credit loss (ECL) is the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses
(i.e., the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. A cash shortfall is the difference between scheduled or contractual
cash flows and actual expected cash flows. Consequently, ECL subsumes both the
amount and timing of payments, It also incorporates available information which
is relevant to the assessment, including information about past events, current
conditions and reasonable and supportable information about future events and
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For portfolio of exposures, ECL is modelled as the product of the probability of
default, the loss given default and the exposure at default.

In case of assets identified to be significantly credit-impaired to the extent that
default has happened or seems to be a certainty rather than probability, ECL
would be determined by directly estimating the receipt of cash flows and timing
thereof,

Staging:

The lean portfolio would be classified into three stage-wise buckets - Stage 1,
Stage 2 and Stage 3 - corresponding to the contracts assessed as performing,
under-performing and non-perfaorming, in accordance with the Ind-AS guidelines.
The key parameter used for stage-wise classification would be days past due
(DPDs).

Stage 1:

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not
credit impaired upon origination are classified under this stage. The company
classifies all standard advances and advances upto 60 days default under this
category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved
and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2:

All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit impaired are classified under this stage. 60 Days
Past Due is considered as significant increase in credit risk.

Stage 3:

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred
are classified in this stage. For exposures that have become credit impaired, a
lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the
gross carrying amount. 120 Days Past Due is considered as default for classifying
a financial instrument as credit impaired. If an event (for eg. any natural calamity)
warrants a provision higher than as mandated under ECL methcodology, the
Company may classify the financial asset in Stage 3 accordingly.

While the presumption for inter-stage threshold for Stage 1 is 30 days, the
company has rebutted the presumption and has considered 60 days as the
threshold. As per current market practice, NBFCs typically tend to be paid later
than banks by borrowers since banks control their working capital financing.

o
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Methodology:

The basis of the ECL calculations are outlined below which is intended to be more
forward-looking. Key elements of ECL are, as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a
given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed
period, if the facility has not been previously de-recognised and is still in the
portfolio.

Exposure at Default (EAD) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default
date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting
date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by
contract or otherwise, expected drawdown's on committed facilities, and accrued
interest from missed payments.

Loss Given Default (LGD) is an estimate of the |oss arising in the case where a
default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive,
including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a
percentage of the EAD.

The key tenets of Company's methodology are as under:

Past performance as basis for ECL discovery: Company’'s ECL methodology
is based on discovery of the relevant parameters — namely EAD, PD and LGD -
from the Company's actual performance of past portfolios.

Life Cycle Determination: A significant portion of the advances of the Company
is short-term in nature. Based on maturity pattern on the Company's advances in
past years, the average life cycle has been considered as 1 year.

The management will continue to monitor the loan cases on an ongoing basis, and
have the discretion to make higher provisions on the basis expected recovery of
the individual accounts, wherever considered necessary.

1.14.7 Write-offs

The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the
Company has no reascnable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Company
determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs.
Any subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the Statement of
profit and loss.

1.15 Earnings per Share (‘EPS’)

Basic EPS per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividend, if any,
and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for
the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outsta ng the year are adjusted for the of all dilutive

Page 221 of 292



Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as
of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In
computing the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are
dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per share or Increases |oss per share
are included,

1.16 Material accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of standalone financial statements in confarmity with the Ind AS
requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of
the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. Although these
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the
ocutcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities in future periods.

In particular, information about material areas of estimation, uncertainty and
critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements is
included in the following notes:

1.16.1 Impairment Charges on loans and advances

The measurement of impairment losses requires judgement, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values
when determining Impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk. These are based on the assumptions which are driven by a number
of factors resulting in future changes to the impairment allowance.

A collective assessment of impairment takes intc account data from the loan
portfolio (such as credit quality, nature of assets underlying assets financed, levels
of arrears, credit utilization, loan to collateral ratios etc.), and the concentration
of risk and economic data (including levels of unemployment, country risk and
performance of different individual groups). These significant assumptions have
been applied consistently to all period presented.

The impairment loss on loans and advances is disclosed in more detail in Note No.
1.14.6 Overview of the ECL principles.

1.16.2 Business Model Assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the
SPPI and the business model test. The Company determines the business model
at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to
achieve a particular business objective. The Company monitors financial assets
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income
that are de-recognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their
disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business
for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous
assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial
assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is ng;;appmggate whether
C&a > LN
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there has been a change in business model, if so, then it will be a prospective
change to the classification of those assets.

1.16.3 Provisions other than Loan Impairment

Provisions are held in respect of a range of future obligations such as employee
entitlements, litigation provisions, etc. Some of the provisions involve significant
judgement about the likely outcome of various events and estimated future cash
flows. The measurement of these provisions involves the exercise of managemeant
judgements about the ultimate outcomes of the transactions.

1.16.4 Fair Value Measurement

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their
fair value is measured using various valuation techniques. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments.

1.16.5 Defined Employee Benefit Assets and Liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan/long-term compensated absences
and the present value of the gratuity obligation/long-term compensated absences
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed annually.

1.16.6 EIR Method

The Company's EIR methodology recognises interest income / expense using a
rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over
the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of
potentially different interest rates at varicus stages and other characteristics of
the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the
expected behaviour and life-cycle of the Instruments, as well expected changes
to India’s base rate and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the
instrument,

1.16.7 Other Estimates
These include contingent liabilities, useful lives of tangible assets etc.

1.17 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the
Company (i.e. INR) at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
translated to th nctional currency at the exchange rate at that date and the
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related foreign currency gains or losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

1.18 Recent pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 9 September 2024 and
28 September 2024 notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Second Amendment Rules, 2024 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Third Amendment Rules, 2024, respectively, which amended/ notified certain
accounting standards (see below), and are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2024:

= [nsurance contracts - Ind AS 117; and
» Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback - Amendments to Ind AS 116
The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its

evaluation has determined that it is not likely to have any material impact in its
standalone financial statements.
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ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED

Motes to Standal Fi lal St

£ o% ot and for the year ended 31st March, 2025

n Equity Tnztruments [Quatad )
APOLLD PIPESEG 1o 7.05,200 - FTF.AD -
BHARAT BLEEE.EOS. 5 27,000 . 118.37
CARRARD INOIA L - E0 10 234,000 = 739,18
CENTUM ELECTROMNIC EQ o 54,000 - EGLAT -
HARICM PRRE INDLIS-E0 10 54,000 28800 180.01 13052
I 5 4,597,000 = 1.813.70 L]
E 10 102,737 - G101 -
IMNE ZIMC EQ-RS 2 2 1000 - 498 85 -
INDW GELATIME ACHEM m 3.BED - 15 R -
ITDHCEMENTAT-EQ 1 437,742 - 1.439.54 E
JIC FINANCIAL EC 10 269,000 95,000 B39.51 150,21
M FINANCL -EQ HE 1 1 540,000 - 518.89 -
WOLTE-FATIL DEV - EO in 20,000 - 64,78
WEDT ASSIST HE-EQG- 5 108,000 - 491,51 -
NAVEAR CORPOR-ED 10 20,832,334 - 214668 -
HAZARA TECHNO-EQA- L} 31.04.354 - 2.884.97 .
ORIENT CEMENT- EQ 10 18.00. 000 = 611910 E
PSP PROJECTS-EQ 0 14, B35 - 94.30 -
A SYSTEMS 1EQ 11 I 1.53,000 499 47 -
RELIANGE INFRASTR-EQ L] B.55,000 - 2,211,372 -
ROUTE MOBILE-EQTY i 56,700 2,19.268 528.56 3.833.64
SANDFLCONSUMER - EQ in 78,449 - 3.7886.54 .
STANDARD OLASS-EQ 10 5.58.000 d 819.26 -
TECHMOCHAFT IMD -EQ H ] 737 . 19,35 =
TEIAS METWORKS -EQ 10 45,000 47,700 342,20 31210
UBL ST PEN 2 1.73,956 - 75114 .
YATRA OMLINE-EQ1F- L 11,497,000 1,023.20
FEE ENTERTAINMENT-EDQ 10 1.,24,000 - Ji1g.62 *
MEPPON N0 NFETYBESS L - REIEACLH - 266.72
ADANIENERGY S0LUTIONS in - 10,800 110.88
ADANI ENTERPRISES 1 - AHO0 - 115,00
ADANI GREEN EHERGY LTD i - 10,800 = 19820
BHAGIRALHA CHEMICALS 10 - 7,200 . 115.80
CLEAMN SCIEMCE AND TECHNOLOGY 1 - 10,800 . 143,57
CPSE ETF i - 1AZO00 - 175,45
KESORAM NDUSTRIES i . 030,000 - 232,50
NIPPOM B NIFTY FHARA 1 . 648,000 . 124,87
HIFPPON B0 PEL BARE L - 102,00 - 135.61
CHL INDIHG LT 10 - ir.000 - 162.06
RELEAARE ENTERPRISES i - 4 50680 - 443.07
RPESG WVENTURES LIMITED w0 - 13,500 = B 06
SBFC AINANCELTD 10 - 1,248,000 - 103.26
TCHS CLOTHMG CO LTD 2 - 83,1748 = 2116.09
TWE SUPPLY CHAIN S CLLITIONS 1 - 12,000 - 11417
1.04,03,973 24,20,327 32.250.38 70987
In Equity Instruments {Unaguated)
AN RATHAM FLAT OWHNERS ASSC. 1 1,298 1.298 a.01 0.01
Ashika Prvate Eoguly Advesor Private Limied 1 5,100 - 0.51 -
In Alternative Investmeant Fund
SISAF TH CSHORE FUND 10000 403 34 4i.a0 3368
-BEQLHTAS ECUETY FUND SCHEME L] 31,00, 000 3,00,000 374.84 0817
~SPARROW CAPITAL 11 10000 400 00 +8.87 20.00
-ASHIKA INDIA SELECT FUND in 10,560,000 160,80,000 112,83 107,63
13,80,803 13,580,524 537,949 470.498
In Mutual funds
[entsk Bond Regular Flan (G) 1] 463,438 4.63.438 349.71 321.73
|Eolak bMopey Markel Fund Reg (S} 1000 635 2.635 116,11 107.81
|5 Magrium Gilt Fund Reg (3] 11 163051 3.63.151 237,24 21778
kotsk Gil Investement {G) 10 3,45,127 2,45 127 734,57 116,14
UL WF Manufaciuning Fund Reg (G} o 5.39.873 = 46.38 0.00
561 Automotive Opporurities Fosd feg |G) 10 1,69,987 - 23,30 .00/
B Ene rigy Opportunities Fubd fiog (G) 0 2,69.987 2,69.987 26.21 27.25%
5B1 Innowative Opportun iies Fund Reg (6] | 10 2,69.987 . 23.55 0.00
| Fats CRISILA8x Gl Index April 2026 index Fund Reg {G) ) 19.20.527 19.30,527 230.06 214.33
A3 58,810 J3.7 1,287.15 1.907.04
| Tetnl 1,61,45, 984 0, 77014 34,065,959 &,377.40

Mure wfgrmption regarding the viluation methodologies con be found in Mete No. 36{B],
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ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED
Netes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2025

16. Other Financial Liabilities

¥ in Lakhs

\rahlt ta Emplayees %4 57 38 9
Liahilities far Qperating F¥paises - :

Other payables 0.96 -
Unpaid Dividends (refar Note Na. 16,1} 17.83 18.83
Total 53.36 44.60

16.1 To be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund on 12th September, 2026. As at 31st March, 2025,
there are no amounts due to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

17. Current Tax Liabilities (net)

Provision For Taxation
(Met of Advance Tax 34323 lakhs, 31st March, 2024
F135.16 lakhs )

Total - 9.72

18. Provisions

for Employee Benefits (refer Note No. 32)

Gratuity 38.43 13.32
[Total 38.43 33.32

19. Other Non-Financial Liabilities

Statutory Dues Payable i = ¢ ]
Total 29.27 15.49
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10.1 Preferential Alletment of Equity Shares and Convertible Warrants

1) During the year ended March 11, 2025, pursuznt to special resolution passed at Extroordinary General Mesting held on Augus!
30, 2024, the Company has, on September 06, 3034, made allotment of 95,400,000 Egquity shares of face value s, 10 each on
preferential ‘basis for cash to promoless group and certain identified non- promaters persanfentity at a price of Rs, 118 each
{including & pramium of As: 108 each) aggregating to Re. L1, 257 30 Lakhs,

Further (ha Company purseant bo aforessid special resolution has, on September 08, 2024, also made allotment of &0,30,000
Convertible Warrants on Preferential Basis for cash te Promoter snd Noo-Promoter ot 8 price of Rs. 118 per Warrant each
conwvertibie into, or exchangeable for, 1 {one] fully paid-up equity shere of the Comoany havirg lace value of 10 each at & premium
of Rs. 108 each aggregating to Rs, 7, 11540 Lakhs. The Company has recoived 25% of the issue price per warrant i.e, Rs, 29.50
each #s uplronl payment aggregabing to Rs. 1,778.85 Lakhs. Each warranl, so allotled, is convertible inlo an egual numbser of
equity shares of face value As. 10 each of tha Company an receipt of balance consideration.

Further the Company has received balance 75% of consideration amount for 25,00,000 warrants and accordingly the sald warrants
arg converted bo equal number of Equity shares of face value of Re. 10 gach on November 9, 2024,

Furthar the Company has receivad balance 75% of corsideration amount for 35,30,000 warrants and accordingly, the said warrants
are converted o gqual nimber of cquity shares of face value of RS, 10 each on February 7, 2025,

210urmg the vear endad March 31, 2025, pursuant 10 special resalution passed at Extracrdinary General Meeting held on October
L7, 2024, Tne Company has, on October 28, 2024, made allotment of 12,69,000 Equity shares of face valur Bs, 10 each on
preferential basis for cosh lo certain identified non- promoters. personfentity at a price of Rs.306 each {including a premium of Ry,
296 each) aggregating to Rs. 3,883.14 Lakhs,

Further the Company purswam to aforesaid special resolution has, on October 28, 2024, alse made altotment of 95,371,000
Convertiole Watrants on Preferential Basis for cash to Promoter 50 Non-Promoter at & pnce of Rs. 306 per Warrant each
convertible intd, or exchangeabie for, 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of the Company having face value of 10 «ach at a premiem
of Rs, 298 each aggregaling to Rs. 29,164.86 Lakhs. The Company has recelved 25% of the (ssue price per warrant & Rs. 76.50
tach a9 wpfrack payment aggregating bo Rs. 7,291.22 Llakhs. Each warrant, fo allolted, i convertible into an egual number of
equity shares of lace value Rs. 10 ¢ach of the Compary, subject to recelpl of balance consideration of Rs. 229,50 each (belng 75%
of the issue price per warrant) aggregating to Rs. 21,873.65 Lakhs from the allnttees to exercise conversion option against each
BCh wWarrant.

Furthir the COMPany Nes réctived Balance 75% of cansidaration amaunt for 43 88,800 warmants and accordingly, the said warranls
sre converted Lo egual number of equity shares of face value of Rs, 10 each on February 7, 2025,

Further the Company has received halance 75% of considaration amaount for 32,27, 700 warrants and accordingly, the said warrants
are converted to egual number of equity shares of face value of Bs, 10 each on &pril 10, 2025,

Further the company has recelved balance 75% of congideration amount for L4,11,500 and 4,43,464 warrants and accordingly, the
said warrants are converted o agual number of equity shares of fate value of Rs. 10 each on April 30, 2025 and May 02, 2025

respectively,

Further the Company has forfeited 35% of censideration, being the upfrant paymant aggregating to As. 4555 Lakhs, for 59,536
wiarrands due to non-receipt of balance 75% corsideration within the warrants exertise peried Le. within & months from the date of
sliotment Le. October 28, 2024,

3} During the year ended March 31, 2025, pursuant lo special resolution passed at Extraordinary Gensral Masting held an
December 12, 2024, the Company has, on December 16, 2024, made allotment of 18,00, 000 Convertible Warrants on Preferential
Basie for cash Lo Mon-Promoter at a price of Rs.60% per Warrant each convertible into, or exchangeable for, 1 (one) fully paid-up
equity share of the Company having face value of 10 each at a premium of Re. 599 sggregating to Rs. 10,962.00 Lakhs. The
Company has received 25% of the ssue price per warrant 1.e, Re. 152,25 ¢ach a5 upfront payment agoregating to Rs. 2,740.50
Lakhs. Each warrant, 5o allotted, Is convertible Inte an equal number of squity shares of face value Rs. 10 sach of the Campany,
subject to receipt of balance consideration of Rs. 456.75 each (baing 75% of the issue price per warrént) aggregsting Lo Ps.
8,221.50 Lakhs from the allottess to exercise converskon opticn against each such warrant,
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ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2025

36. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures
This sectlon gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on
balance sheet Items that contain financial instruments.

The details of material accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basls of measurement and the basls an which
income 3nd expenses are recognised in respect of each class of Financial Asset, Financial Liability and Equity Instrument are disclosed
in Note No. 1.14 to the Standalene financial statements.

A) Categories of Financial Instruments
Set out below, 15 8 comparnisen by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's finandal instrurnents:

mirn:ill Assets ]

a) Measured at Amortised Cost
i} Cash and Cash Equivalents 794.61 794.61 36.98 36,98
i} Bank Balance other than {i} above 17.81 17.81 18.81 18,81
iith Recelvablas 0.03 0.03 1.57 .57
) Loans 7.489.72 7,489.72 . -
v} Other Financial Assets 2.33 2.33 2.33 2,33
\Subtotal £,304.50 8,304.50 65.69 65,69
b) Measured at Fair value through Profit or Loss
|} Investments 34 065 48 34,065 48 9,377.40 9,377.40
] 3406548 | 3406548 | 9,377.40 9,377.40
Total Financial Assets 42, 369.98 42,368.98 9.443.09 9,443.08
Financial Liabilities
a) Measured at Amortised cost
ilPayables
{1} Trade Payabies
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smail B - . i
enterprises
(i) Tatal outstanding dues of craditars ather than micro - - - =
enterprises and small enterprises
(1) Other Payables
(1} Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 17.48 17.48 =
enterprises
(i1} Tatal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 20,71 2071 17.57 17.57
enterprises and small entarprises
ii) Borrowings 56.24 56.24 2.511.84 2.511.B4
53.36 53,36 44 .60 #4460
147.79 147.79 2,574.01 2,574.01
B9.37 £#9.37 17.05 17.05
29,37 | £9.37 17.05 17.05
237.16 237.16 2,551.06 2,591.08

Below are the methodoiogies and assumptions used fo deterrmnine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not
recorded and measured at fair value in the Company's financial statements. These falr values were caleulated for disclosure purposes
only. The below methodelogies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables.

Loans measured at Amortised Cosl

Loans having short term maturity (less than fwelve months) are valued at carrying amounts, which are net of impairment and are
considered reasonable approximation of their fair value. Loans having long term maturity (mere than twelve months) are valued using
a discounted cash flow model based on ohservable future cash fows based on term, discounted at the average lending rate of the
Company.

Financial Assets (excluding loans} measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets (2xcluding loans) generally have assets with short-term maturity {less than lwelve months) as on balance sheet date
and therefore, the carrying amounts, which are net of impairment, are a reasonable approximation of their falr value.

Such instrument majorly include: Cash and Cash Equivalents, other bank balances, Receivables and other financial aszets.

Borrowing measured at Amortised Cost

The borrawing generally have liabilities with short-term maturity (less than twelve months) 25 on balance sheet date and therefore,
the carrying amounts, are o reasonable approximation of their fair value.

Other Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost

Cther financial liabilities have Babibty with short-term maturity (less than twelve months) as on balance sheet date and therefore, the
carrying amounts are a reasonable approxmation of their fair value.
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ASHIKA CREDIT CAPITAL LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2025

37. Risk Management

Whilst risk 5 inherent n the Company’'s activities, it [s managed throumoh an integrated risk manasgement framewark including ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management s critical to the
Company's continuing profitability and each individual within the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relatng to his or har
responsibilities, The Campany Is mainly exposed to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. 1t is also subject to vanous operating and business

risks.

The Beard of Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk management sirategies and
Arincipes.

The Company has a robust Risk manasgement framework to identify, evaluate business risk and opportunities. This ramework seeks to create
transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business objectives and enhance the competitive advantage. The framework has a different risk
medel which helps in dentifying risk trends, exposure and potential impact analysis at a company level.

a. Market Risk
The Company's Financial Instruments are exposed to market changes as are summarised below:

(i)Foreign Currency Risk
The Campany does not have any exposure to foreign currency. Hance, any Mucluations on account of forelgh currency has nat arisen.

(i) Equity Price Risk
The Company is exposed to equity price risk arising from its investments in eguity instruments, Equity price risk k= related to the change in
market reference price of the nvestment in equity securities,

(ili)Interest Rate Risk

The Company s exposed Lo nterest rate sensitivity on fixed and fleating rate liabdities, The Company raises funds from financial institutions. In
wiew of the financial nature of assets and liabilithes, changes in market interest rates can affect its financial condition. Fluctuations in interest
rates ¢an accur due to both intarnal and external factors. Internal factors include compasition of assets and fiabilites, maturity profile, pricing of
borrowings and fixed and floating natura of assets and hiabilities. External factors include macroeconomic developments, competitive pressures,
regulatory developments, and glabal factors.
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Annexure-Tt tes r
Disclosure of details pursuant to Paragraph 27 of Master Directions-Reserve Bank of India {(Non Banking Financial
Company- Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023

Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman

Com palnts recaived by the NBFC from its customers

1) Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year il il
2) Number of complaints received during the year Ml il
3 Number of complaints dispased during the year Mil Wil

3.1) Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC Mil il
4% Number of complaints pending at the end of the year Mil Nil
5) Maintainable complaints recelved by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman

5,1) OF 5, number of complaints reselved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman il Nit

5.2) Of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office

af Ombudsman

5.3) Of 5, number of complaints resclved after passing of Awards by Office of

Ombudsman against the NBFC

6) Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those appealed)

Disclosure of details pursuant to paragragh 40 of Master Directions-Reserve Bank of India {Non Banking Financial
Company- Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023

Loan to Directors, Senior Officers, and Relatives of Directors

" Directors and their relatives
Entities assoclated with directors and thelr relatives 7.510.00

Senior Officers and their relatives =

Page 253 of 292



Page 254 of 292



ANNEXURE -14

@( SHYAMSUKHA AMIT & ASSOCIATES
(ICAI Reg. No. 324514E)

Chartered Accountants
INDIA 1%, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, "PREMIER HOUSE' | 2nd Floor, Suite No. : 7.

Kolkota-700 013, Mob : 93310 29389, 98364 92553, 98342 12802
Websile | www s00a.co,in « E-mail . amitshyamsukha ca@gmall.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Yaduka Financial Services Limited

Report on the Audit ol the Standalone financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Yaduka Financial Services Limited (*'the Company™). which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Statement of Cash Flows for the vear then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred 1o as “the financial stutements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial Statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with  accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of attairs ol the Campany as at March 31 2025 and
its Profit, for the vear ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Nnancial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilitics for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICA1™) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereander, and we have tulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 1ICA's Code of Ethics. We believe that the sudit
evidence we have obrained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion on the linancial statements

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other infarmation. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board's Report including Annexures 1o Board's Report and Muanagement Discussion and Analvers repon
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Crur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon,

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, ourresponsibility is to read the other inlormation and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standulone finuneial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit. or otherwise appears to be materiallymisstated
If. hased on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is o material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing 1o report in this regard

Responsibilities of Manogement and Those Charged with Gosernance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act™)
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements thal give a true and fair view ol the
financial position. financial performance of the Company and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles senerally accepted in hidia, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7
of the Companics (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safcguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and

other iregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies. making judements and estimgtes thi are

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of deguate internal findineinl controls, 4
/e

l | | curacy and completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation & i
ey for ensuring the aceuracy and comp

I i aleri i W - - ciney L||1|-.‘ Lo A1
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SHYAMSURHA AMIT & ASNOCIATEN Corzton e

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, maters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an sudit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a maerial
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 1aken on the basis of these financial
starements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintiin professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also;

= |dentify and assess the nisks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due (o fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 10 provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of mternal
control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

«  Fwvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimaies and refated
disclosurés made by management,

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and, bused on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report 1o the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are nadequate, 10
modifv our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up w the date of our auditor’s report
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 10 cease 10 continue as @ going concern,

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statemenis, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and tming of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audir.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and 10 communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Erom the matiers communicated with those charged with governance, we determne those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such commumication.

Report on Other Legal and Repulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
in terims of cub-section (11} of section 1435 of the Act, we give hereunder a statement on the matte
paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. Page 256 of 292



SHYAMSUKHA AMIT & ASSOCIATES Coniinuation Sheet

CHARTERED ACCOIINTANTS

(1)

(2)

(&)

The company did not have property, plant and equipment or intangible assets during the year under review. In
view of above entire clause (i) in paragraph 3 is not applicable to the company.

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our ppinion, the frequency
of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. The
discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stock and the book records were not material.

(b Aceording to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets, Accordingly, elause 3(ii)(b) of the Order 15 not
applicable,

(¢)The Company being a Non-Banking Finance Company, the provisions of clause 3(iit)(a) are not applicable 1o
the company.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any investment
cuarantess provided, security given which are prejudicial 1o the Company’s interest.

(¢} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given Lo us, in respect  of loans and
advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and the repayments or receipts are regular during the year.,

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, no amount is overduc in respect
of loans and advances in the nature of loans,

(¢) Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans, the provisions of clause 3(in)(e) of the Order are not
applicable to it.

(f) The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to Related Partics (as defined in section
2(76) of the Act) which are cither repayable on demand or without specilying any terms of period of
repavment. Following are the details of the aggregate amount of loans granted 1o promaters, related partics as
defined in clause (76) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013

(2 in lakhs)
, All Parties | Promoters | Related Party
| Aggregate amount of loans / advances in
narure of loans |
- Repayable on demand (A) 8,191.39 -- 6.520.00
- Agreement does not specify any
terms or period of repayment (B) = -- -
| Total (A+B) 8.191.39 o - | 6,520,00
" Percentage of loans / advances in nature of 100.00% 79.6%
| loans to the total loans e il
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(4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company has not granted any
loans, made investments or provided guarantees in contravention of provisions of section 185 of the Act. The
Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186(1) of the Act; as informed, the provisions of section
186 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public, within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act and Rules framed thereunder. We are informed that no order has been passed by the
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or other tribunal.

(h) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by Central Government under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act,2013 for the company,

(7 {a) According to the information and explanations given o us the Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including, income tax, and other statutory dues as applicable o the Company with the
appropriate authorities, We are informed that the provisions of Goods and Service Tax, Custorns Duty and Excise
Duty are not applicable to the Company There were no undisputed amounts pavable in respeet of Income-tax,
cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

(b) ) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income-Tax, Cess or other
statutory dues which have nat been deposited by the Company on account of disputes.

(8) As per the information and explanation provided 1o us and as represemied to us, there were no transactions not
recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

(L)) {a) According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any lender during the vear. Accordingly,
clause 3(ix }a) of the Order is not applicable

{b) According to the information and explanations given (o us and on the busis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or government authority.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not obtaimed
any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)c) of the Qrder is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of
the Company, we report that no funds have been raised on short-term basis by the Company. Accordingly. clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order 1s not applicable.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under the Companies
Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is notapplicable.

(f) According to the information and explanations given 10 us and procedures performed by us, we report I]li:l! t_hc
Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries. associates or joint
ventures as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(D of the Order is not applicable

(10) (2) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shargss
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly. clause 3{x)(b) of the Order is not applicable
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(11 (2) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that
no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given Lo us, no report under sub-section 12) of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle blower complaints were received during
the vear by the Company.

(12) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable

(13) According to the information and explanations given 1o us and in our opinion, all the transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable and the detalls have been
disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards,

(14) The Company does not have a formal intemal audit system. C onsidering the nature and volume of transactions in
the company we are of the opinion that the Company has well placed internal controls and checks commensurate
with the nature and size of the Company.

(15) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 10 us. during the year the Company has not
entered into anv non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of its holding or subsidiary companies or
persons connected with them and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(16) (a) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and it
has obtained the registration.

(b)The company is in the business of and has carried on the business of Non- Banking Financial activities during
with valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) obtained from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934

(c) The company is not a Core Invesiment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank
of India and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016} and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.

(17) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately
preceding financial year.

(18) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(19 Acvording to the information and explanations given 10 us and on the basis of the financial ratios. ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other nformation
accompanying the financial stalements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us 1o believe that any material uncettainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilitles existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We. however, state that this is not an assurance as 1o the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up 1o the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guaraniee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balunce
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall duc.

nt that needs

(20 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, there is no unspent amo
to be transferred to @ Fund specified in Schedule V1T to the Act in compliance with the second fighs
section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant 10 any project. Accordingly /&
1(xx¥(h) of the Order are not applicable :

(20 This clause is not applicable to the company.
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As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the informationand explanations which 1o the best of our knowledge and beliel were
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the financial statements,

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books except for the maners stated in the paragraph 11 (i) (v1) below on reporting under Rule
1 1{g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid financial stmements comply with the Aceounting Standards (AS) specified under seetion
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014,

&) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315t March, 20235 wken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appuinted as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

i The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in the
paragraph 11 (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)b) of the Act and para 1 (i) (vi) below on reponing under
Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

gl  With respect to the adequaey of the internal financial controls with reference w Standalone Fancial Staterments of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A" Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's intemal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements,

hy  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act are not applicable as the company s 2 unlisted
Limited Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act
which are required to be commented upon by us

1) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Repon in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations
given 10 us:

| The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impacts its the financial statements.

i The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foresceable losses.

Wi, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

iv. (4) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced
of loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediarics™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
(h)The management has represented, that, 1o the best of its knowledge and beliel, no funds have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), w ith 3
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirg
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Fung F
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Bendghy
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(¢) In our opinion and based on the audit procedures, we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
¢lause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement,

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed final dividend for the
year.

vi Based on our examination, which included test checks. the Company has used accounting software for
muintaining its books of account for the financial vear ended March 31, 2025 which has a feare of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated effectively from 18th day of Jume, 2024 ull the end
of the vear for all relevant transactions recorded in the software

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any mstance ol the audit tral [eature being
tampered with w.e.f. 18th Day of June, 2024, As the company has activated the feature of audit trail in the
current financial year, the audit trial has not been preserved as per the statutory requirements for record retention
for the Financial Year ending 31st Day of March 2024 as required under Rule 11{g) of the Companies {Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014

For Shyamsukha Amit & Associates
Firm Registration Number: 324516E
Chartered Accountants

O\ Shyamavl 4

[CA. Amit Shyamsukha]

(Partner)

Membership No: 058596

UDIN: 25058589¢amLbek 1393
Place: Kolkata

Date: =9™ nay 0F TUNE , 2015
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ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referrved to in paragraph 1fg) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reqiurementy” section of onr repor! 14
the Members of Yaduka Financial Services Limited of cven duie)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements under Clause (1) of sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act™)

We have audited the intermal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements of YADUKA
FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (the “Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunctionwith our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the vear ended on than date

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Swtements based on the intermal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Campany considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Imstitute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI™),
These respensibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of s business, including adherence 1o
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and crrors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s Lo express an opinion on the Compuny's internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Fimancial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Swandards on
Auditing preseribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, 1o the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
with reference to Standalone Financial Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to ebtain reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements was established and maintained and 1f such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit mvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy ol the internal financial controls
with reference 1o Standalone Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal Financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial Siatements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exisis. and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement af
the financial statements. whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtined, is sufficient wnd appropriate to provide a basis for our audi
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Menning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company’s intemal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements is a process designed w
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financiul staterments
for external purposes in gecordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal fipancial
control with reference 1o Standalone Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertion to the

of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised scofu
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 10 error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with
the policics or procedures may deteriorate

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects. an adequate internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and such
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31,
2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For Shyamsukha Amit & Associates
Firm Registration Number: 324516E
Chartered Accountants

&

-Dﬁﬁ'!"%wqt\ﬂ vl o
. Ao . ‘w‘f
|CA. Amit Shyamsukha

{Pariner)

Membership No: 058596

UDIN: 25058596 RAMLAEKATTS
Mace: Kolkata

Date: zp™ pay OF JumNE , 2005
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(All Amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As Al
Note 31st March 2025
(Rs.)
ITY ABI
Sharcholders' Funds
Share Capital 3 452.22
Reserves and Surplus 4 8,020.09
8472.31
Carrent Lishilities
Other Current Linbilities 5 1.49
Short Term Provisions 6 33.02
34.51
Total 8.506.82
ASSETS
Non - Current Assects
Nono- Current Invesiments 7 255.00
255.00
Current Assels
Inventories 8 -
Trade Receivahles 9 -
Cash & Cash Equivalents 10 3.59
Short Term Loans & Advances 11 $,247.93
£,251.42
Total H,506.82
Significant Accounting Policies i

The accompanying notes 1 1o 29 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred in our report of even date

For SHYAMSUKHA AMIT & ASSOCIATES
Charfered Accoumtanix

Firm Registration No, 3245161 ég\h

FShwawmsvel e 5
CA Amit Shyamsukha o
Partner

Membership No. 058596

UDIN: 2C0SR & BMLAEK 133
Place : Kolkata

Dated : a0™ pAY oF Jume |, 2025

Sobhit Chhawchharia
{Director)
DIN : 02926948

As AL
31st March 2024

(Rs.)

45222
5.859.92
6,312.14

1317
1.47
14.64

Elﬁ.ﬂ

255.00
255.00

342505
1.824.99
100.11
T21.63
6,071.78

6,326.78

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

St Mawcrdaz N, [, [

Neha Chhawchharia

(Director)
DIN: 02182603
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2025
(All Amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year Ended Year Ended
Nute 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(Rs.) (Rs.)
INCOME
Revenue From Operations 12 12,440.09 §,762.44
Other Income 13 3.23 -
Tatal Income 12,443.32 8.761.44
. XPEN
Loss from Trading in Equity & Derivatives 177.40 -
Purchases of stock in trade 6,452.92 | 1,444.54
Changes in inventories of stock in trade 4 3.425.05 (3.425.05)
Finanee Costs 15 98.24 1.74
Employee Benefit Expenses 16 18.31 435
Other Expenses 17 26,76 9.03
Bad Debt written ofT, Provisions, Contingencies and Diminutions 18 19.01 (12.13)
Total Expenscs 10,217.69 §,022.48
Profit Before Tax 2,225.63 73996
Less : Tax Expenscs
- Current Tax 6546 -
- Short ! {Excess) Provixion in Larlier Year(s) - (36.54)
Profit After Tax 216017 776.50
Earnings per Equity Share of Rs. 10/ each (Basic and Diluted) (Ra.) 19 47,77 17.17
Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes 1 1o 29 are an integral part of the Financial Stafements
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred in our report of even date
For SHYAMSUKHA AMIT & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chariered Acceinianis
Finm Registration No. 324516E ) .
gﬂ{ Q M-M NQL“ I-JL..wrn\
Shyemew et
CA Amit Shyamsukha - Sobhit Chhawchharia Neha Chhawchharis
Partner {Director) (Direcior)
Membership No. 058596 DIN : 02926948 DIN: 02182603

UDIN: 250€2€O6RMLLEE 1773
Place : Kolkaia
Dated: 30" Ay DF Jume 2005
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2025

(All Amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year Ended
31st March, 2025

Year Ended
Jst March, 2024

Al CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit Before Tax 2,225.63 739.98

Adfusiments for ;

Contingent Provision against Standard Assets/{ Written Back) 19.01 f12.13)

Provision for Non Performing Assets/(Written Back) (739.75) .

Bad Debts Written O 739.75

Interest on Income Tax Refund (3.23) 5
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 2,241.41 727.85

Adjusiments for ;

Increase [ (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities {11.68) 11.85

In¢rease [ (Decrease) in Invenlories J.425.05 (3,425.05)

{Increase) / Decrease in Trade Reccivables 1,824.99 (1.824.99)

(Inerease) / Decrease in Short / Long Term Logns & Advances (7,603.70) 4,851.05
Cash Generated from Operations (123.,93) EETI R

Adfustments for ;

Direct Tax (Paid) / Refund 217 11.57
Met Cash Generated (Used in) / from Operating Activities (96.22) 352.28

H. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Add / {Less) -

Purchases of Non- Current Investments - (255.00)
Net Cash Generated from / (Used in) Investing Activities

- (255.00)

Net Inerease /(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (96.22) 97.28
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 100.11 283
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 3189 100.11

Note

{u) Previous year's figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the current year's classification.

(h) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Accounting Standard - 3 'Cash Flow Statements’

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred in our report of even date

For SHYAMSUKHA AMIT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountamis
Firm Registration No. 324516F

Py Shyamawel4

A Amit Shyamsukha
Partner

Membership No. 058596
UDIN: 208890 maMLMER A3
Place : Kolkata

Dated : 20TH Aay OF TUNE, 3095

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sobhit Chhawchharia

(Director)
DIN ; 02926948

St Wkt N g

Neha Chhawchharia

(Dircctor)
DIN: 02152603
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N

FIN HE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2025

{All Amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes
N

Significamt Accounting Policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2025

l

Corporaie infgrm‘;l}gg

Yaduka Financial Services Limited is a Limiled company domiciled in India and a Non Deposit Accepting Non-
Banking Finance Company (“NBFC*) holding a Certificate of Registration {rom the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI™)
CoR No. N.05.06760 on 11™ Day of September 2013, The Company is engaged in the business of providing loans and
finance und dealing in shares and securitics,

Significant Accounting Policies

-

Basis of aununliug-ﬁud preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and specified under Section 129 & Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. Further, the company follows the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Directions
issued for Non- Banking Financial Companies (NBFC). The financial statements unless specifically mentioned, have
been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in the previous vear.

All assets und liabilitics have been classified as current or non- current as per the criteria set out in the Schedule 111 of
the Companics Act, 2013,

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in thousand rounded ofl 10 two decimal places as
permitted by Schedule 11 10 the Companies Act, 2013. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupee to two decimal
places.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the Management to make
estimates and assumplions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent linbilities)
and the reported income and expenses during the year, The Management believes that the estimates used in
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable, Future results could differ due to these estimates
and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognized in the periods in which the results are
known / materialize.

Revenue recognition

a) Transactions in respect of dealing in securitics are recognized on trade dates.

b) Interest Income from financing activitics and others is recognized on and acerual basis exeept in the case of
non- performing assets where it is recognized, upon realization, as per Prudential Norms of Reserve Bank
of India.

¢) Dividend Income is recognized on receipt basis.

d) All other incomes are accounted for on acerual basis.

¢) Profit on Sale of investments is determined on the basis of FIFO carrying amount of investments disposcd
off.

VEStmen

Long-term investments are carried individually at cost less provision for diminution, other than temporary, in the value
of such investments. Currenl investments are carried individually, at the lower of cost and fair value. Costs of
investments include acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) afier tax (including the post tax cﬁqcl of
extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equily sharcs outstanding during the year. Du]utcd
carnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of emam'dm;try
jtems, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to ¢xpense or income relating to the dilutive potential
equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic eamings per share and

the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issugd he conversion of all dilul potential |




YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINA TEME AS AT AND FOR THE D N 31 ARCH. 2
(All Amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

equity shares. Polential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equily shares would decrease
the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Polential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be
converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date, The dilutive poential equity
shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market
value of the ouistanding shares), Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period
presented. The number of equity shares und potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse
share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

F Shares, Com ities Futur

Initiul margin and margin paid over and above initial margin, for entering into a contract for shares, commoditics
futures / equity index which are released on final settlement / squaring up of the underlying contract, are disclosed
under Loans & Advances.

Shares, commodities futures / equity index are marked-to-market on a daily basis, Debit or Credit Balance,
representing the net amount paid or received on the basis of movement in the price of shares, commoditics futures /
equity index till the balance sheet date, are disclosed under Receivables or Current Liabilities, respectively.

Profit / Loss on open position in shares. commodities [utures / equily index as on the balance sheet date is accounted
for as follows:

Credit balance in the Mark-10-Market margin, being the anticipated profil is ignored and no credit for the same is tuken
in the Prolit and Loss Accounl,

Debit balance in the Mark-to-Market, being the anticipated loss is adjusted in the Profit and Loss Account.

o

Taxes on 1959 me

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The Company had opted for reduced rate of Income Tax pursuant 1o Section
115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Taxes are computed in compliance with applicable 1CDS, as notificd by the Central Board of Direet Taxes vide
notification no 87/2016, F.No 133/23/2015-TPL dated 29th September 2016, Any difference in method/policy of
preparation of books of Account and Computation of Income shall be disclosed separately in the Notes on Account.

H Provisions and contingencies
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that

an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a relisble estimate can be made.
Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the
hest estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates, Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Notes,

Provisions against loan and advances
Contingent provision against standard assets is made at 0.25% of the outstanding standard assets in sccordance with
the RBI guidelines.

| d valenis

Cash and Cash equivalents comprise Cash and cash on deposit with Banks and Corporations. The Company considers
all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity a1 the date of purchase of three month or less and that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

] Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions
of & non cash nature, any deferrals or acerual of past or future operating cash Receipts or payments and items of
income and expenses associated with investing or financing Cash fows. The Cash flows from operating, investing, and
financing activities of the company is segregated.

K Inventories ‘ )
Inventories are valued at cost under IFIFO method or net realizable value, whichever is lower.,
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YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 3151 MARCIT, 2025

(All Amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As AL As AL
st March, 2025 35t March, 2024
(Rs.) (Hs.)
Authorised
435,50,000 (P.Y, 45,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 455.00 455,00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Shares
4522.150 (P.Y. 45.22,150) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each 452.22 452,22
a) Reconciliation of Authorised F,qmty Shares
[ Equity Shares Asatdist March, 2035 | Asal Ei:i'ﬁ;}g}j@;}:ﬁ“‘
1 Nos. .. SR S Nos. ¢ | Re. |
'Mlhhcg'tnningnflhcyc!: L 45.50,000 | 45500 45 SON&I 455.00
! Add _ Issued during the year - | . - 1 o=
T At the end of the year 45,50,000 | 435.00 45,50,000 T 455.00
b) Reconciliation of 1ssued, Subscribed and Paid Up Equity Shnru Outstanding R
i Equity Shares As at 31st March, 2028 As at 315t March, 2024 I
I S Nos, Rs. Nos. Rs. |
| ALihe beginning of the year 45221501 45223 asazisol 413
L ALthe end of the year ! 45,212,150 451,22 4522,150 452.22 ]

¢) Terms / rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10/~ per share. All these shares have the same right with respect to
payment of dividend, repayment of ¢apital and voting. Each holder of ¢quity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied (o receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportien to the number of equity shares held by them

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 3% shares in the Company

ir At 315t March, 2025 Asa3istMarch, 2024 |
INlme of the Shareholder Nos. %% holding in the Nos. %% holding in the E
| . Glass class !
{Equity Shares of s, 10/~ each fully paid up |
{Puranmal Jain - - 2292,510 5070 |
Kanchen Devi Jain 10,85,000 2399 10,85,000 2399 |
{Pawan Jain 22,92,510 50.70 § = -
{Roshni Jain - 1125000 2488 | 11.25.000 | 2488 |
e) Detuils of shares held by promoters at the end of the year = o
P , No, of Shares at % holding in the § % Change during |
i TOMOALY'S RAme the end of the vear. clasy the year
{Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up
{Puraninal Jain - 0.00%| (50.70%)|
{Kanchan Devi Jain 10,835,000 23.99%: -4
{Pawan Jain 2292150 50.70% 50.70%
iﬂoshm Mo e i, 11.25.000 24 88%1 . -

, vﬁ
g

fph ?EI
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YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 3181 MARCII, 2025

{All Amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE- 4:RESERVESANDSURPLLS

- As AL A3 AL
31st Murch, 2025 3st March, 2024
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Seccuritics Premium Account
Balance as per last financial statements £373.09 8.3173.09
Add: Statutory Premium received during the year - -
(A) §,373.09 E3T3.09
Statutory Reserves Ufs 451C of the REI Aet, 1934
Halance as per |ast financial statements 30749 15219
Add . During the vear 432.03 155.30
(1) 739.52 30749
Surplus / (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as per lust [inancial siatcments (2.820.006) {3,441 Bh)
Adid : Profit After Tax transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year 2.160.17 776.50
Less ; Transterred to Statutory Reserves Lis 451C of the RBI Act, 1934 432.03 (155.30)
() (1,092.52) {2.820.06)
(A+B+() §,020.09 5,859.92
N. 1 :_L_-is.L i e ..- . -.; .. L BT "-' —‘-I.&_-L i :
As Al As Al
J1st March, 2025 315t March, 2024
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Statulory Dues - 0.17
Liability of Expenses 1.48 0.59
Other Payahles - 12.41
1.49 13.17
- o T i R S ,.|'|'I 3 -
As AL As AL
315t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
(Rs.) (Rs.)
(Others
Provision for Income Tax 12.54 -
Contingent Provision against Standard Assets * 2048 1.47
A3.02 1.47

e ———————
* The Company crestes a general provision at 0.25% of the standard assets outstanding on the balance sheet date, as per the RBI Prudential Norms.
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YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR EH]JED ON ST MARCH, 2025
(All Amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As At As Al
Jist March, 2025 st March, 2024
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Other Investments - At Cosi
Tnvestments in Alternate Investment Fund (Ungquoted)
25.50,000 (P.¥ 25,50,000) units of Rs 10/- cach Ashika India Sclect Fund 255.00 255.00
235.00 285.00
Less : Provision for Mon Current Investments - .
255.00 25500
Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Non- Current Investments - At Cost 25500 25500
- Murket Value 266.63 254,12
o T = = S by ety . e :.-‘.,..‘r
As At As At
31st March, 2025 31st Miairch, 2024
(Rs.} (Rs.)
Shares - Cuoled JA425.05
(Valued st Jower of cost or market value)
- 3421808
E As At As Al
11st March, 2025 F1si March, 2024
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Halances with Banks in Current Accounts 127 100,09
Cash in Hand 2.62 D2
3.59 10011
NOTE - 11; SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES 5 b _
As At As Al
st March, 2025 Jist March, 2024
(Rs.) (Ks.)
Loans
Unsecured, Considered Good

To Relaled partics 6,520.00 -

T Others |,671.39 587,69
Total (Gross) 819139 58769
Diher Loans & Advances, Unsecured
Prepaid Income Tux 5654 153 94

56,54 13394
§,247.93 721.63
Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to related parfies repayhle on demand or without specifying anl;nrms or period aof ;_eﬁ'y_g_ggl 1
i o ) Amouni of loan or advance in the ercentage of the tofal Loan and
: Typent oot  pature of loan outstanding. . Advancesin.the nature o l0n.
i NSALIIst | As At 31st March, {As At 31st March,} As At 31st March,
B e March, 2028 ! e L I 2025 i 2024
e R T T DN 108, AR : N
Dwectors . SR T 2l o i
{RMPs I e ol e . . 2]
IReiaied Parties : . . 652000 7960 = o J
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YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

OTES AS AT AND EAR ENDED ON 31
{All Amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year Ended

Year Ended

31st March, 2025 Jisi March, 2024

(Rs.) (Rs.)

Sale of Shares 11,841.60 7.867.71

Interest Income -

- {Un Loans Granted 59091 28649
Income from Dther Financial Services

- Praofit from Trading in Equity & Denivatives - 606,99

= Dividend on Sharcs 7.58 1.25

12,440.09 8.762.44

_ Year Ended

o Year Ended

31st March, 2025 A1si Murch, 2024

(R} (Rs)
Inierest on Income Tax Refunds 323 .
3.23 =

Year Ended \ ear Emkfil
31st March, 2025 Jist March, 2024
(Rs.) (Rs.)

Crpening Stock 3425058
Less : Closing Stock - 3425.05
3,415.08 (3,415,05)

Year Year Ended

315t March, 2025 31t March, 2024

(Rs.) (Rs.)

Imerest Expenses 0824 1.74

' T R34

‘l’ur Elﬂed

318t March, 2025 35t March, 2024

(Rs.) (Rs.)

Salary, Benus & Other Allowances lﬁ? ;,:I!{;
Staff Wellnre Expenses ; :

18.31 4.35
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Auditors' Remuncration
For Statutory Audii
For Tax Audit

For Other Certification
Accounting Charges
Corporate social responsibility expenses
Printing & Stationary
Professional Fees
Postage & Stamps

Office Rent

Rates & Taxes

Repair & Maintenance
Maintenance Charges
Gieneral Expenses
Telephone Charges
Travelling & Conveyance
Miscellencous Expenscs

0.35
024
0.38
2140
8.00
1.63
143
027
1.80

36,76

0.35
024

0.12
.01
0.05
1.76
0.03
1.80
0.07

'i'ﬂr Eud:d

Year Ended

31st March, 2025 J1si March, 2024
(Rs) (Rs.)
Contingent Provision against Standard Assets / (Written Back) 19.01 (12.13)
Provision for NPA (739.75) 2
Bad Debts written off (net) 739.75 <
19.01 (12.13)

e |7
Year Ended

Year Elldld

J1st March, 2025 Aist March, 2024
Profit / (Loss) After Tax (Rs.) 2,160.17 776.50
Weighted average number of Equity Shares (Nos.) 43,22,150 45,22,150
Nominal value of Equity Shares (Rs.) 10 10
Basic und Diluted Enrnings per Share (Hs.) 47.77 17.17

Mote: Earnings per share are done in accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS) - 20 issued by ICAL
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YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STAT S AT AND F EYEAR EN N AR 2
(All Amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
21. Corporate Social onsibili R):

The Company is covered under ws 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 for CSR Activity, The amount recognised as
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on CSR related activities which comprises oft

S1. No, Particulars As at 31st Asar 3ist
March, 2025 March, 2024
1. | Amount required to be spent during the vear 7.62 1.93
2. | Amount of expenditure incurred 8.00 2.01
3, | Shortfall at the end of the year = :
4. | Total of previous year Shortfall - -
3. | Reasons for Shortfall . -
6. | Mature of CSR Activilies Social Business Social Business
Projects Projects
7. | Related Party Transactions: 8.00 -
Contribution made to Ashika Foundation
8. | Provisions of liability for any contractual obligation in this - .
respeet with: - =
i) Provision at the beginning of the year - -
ii) Reduction in provision during the vear 2 5
iii) Inerease in provision during the year = -
iv) Provision at the end of the year

12, Centingent Liabilifies
The company does not have any Contingent Liabilities & pending litigations as on the Balance Sheet date and hence no

provision is required under any law or accounting standard, for material loresecable losses if any on long term contracts
including derivative contracts,

13, Transaction in foreign currency:
(a) CIF Value of Imports — Nil (P. Y. Nil)

{b) Earnings in Foreign Currency - Nil (P. Y. Nil)
(c) Expenditure in Foreign Currency - Rs. Nil (P.Y. Nil)

24. Related party disclosures pursuant to Accounting Standard (AS)-18:

A) List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have been taken place and

relationship:
Key Management Personnel Sobhit Chhawchharia Director
Neha Chhawchharia Director
Puja Sharma Director o
Enterprises  in which  Key | Ashika Business Private Limited Entity under same Management
Management Personnel & their | Ashika Credit Capital Limited Entity under same Management

Lntity under same Management
Entity under same Manggement
Entity under same Management

Relatives have significent influence | Ashika Global Finance Private Limited
Ashika Global Securities Private Limited

Ashika Stock Serviees Limited (Formerly
known us Ashika Stock Broking Limited)
Ashika Foundation

Entity under same Management

B) Related party relationship in terms of AS-18 Related Party Disclosure, as notified by the Qummnius {Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006, have been certified by the management and relied upon by the Auditors,

Nume of the Party Nature of Balance Transaction Balance
Transaction Outstanding as | During the Year | Outstanding as on
on 1st April 2024 31* March 2025
Interest received = 163.27 -
s . . - Loan Given - 8.355.00 620.00
Ashika Business Private Limited 7 Repaid 7.735.00




YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINA STATEMENTS FORTHE YEAR ENDED ON ARCH. 2
(All Amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Interest received - 91.38

A " S " Ld . -
ik Global Socucttles Priviid. [ o0 Given » 7.500.00 5.900.00
Limited .
Loan Repuid 1,600.00
Interest received - 26,90 -
Ashika Credit Capital Limited Loan Given - 7.750.00 -
Loan Repaid 7,750.00
i T et : Inierest received . 128.85 -
:lsh{kn Global Finance Private L Given S 10.695.00 -
imited :
Loan Repaid 10,695.00
Brokerage Paid - 21.59 -
Ashika Stock Services Limited Interest Paid - 98.24 N
{Formerly known as Ashika Stock | Interest received - 27.36 -
Broking Limited) Loan Given - 4,905.00 -
Loan Repuid 4,905.00
Ashika Foundation CSR Expenses - 8.00 -

25. MSMED Aet, 2006

The Government of India has promulgated an Act namely The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 which comes into force with effeet from October 2, 2006. As per the Act, the company is required to identify the
Micro, Small & Medium suppliers and pay them interest on overdues beyond the specified period irrespective of the
terms agreed with the suppliers. The Company does not have any dues to any entity covered under The Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

26. During the year ended March 31, 2025, a Scheme of Arrangement (‘the Scheme”) involving merger of the Company with
and into Ashika Credit Capital Limited was approved by the Board of Dircctors of the respective companies at their
meeting held on July 31, 2024, The Scheme is subject to receipt of approval from Hon'ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Kolkats Bench and from Sharcholders and Creditors of each of the Companies, as may be required and ather
requisite Statutory/ Regulatory Approvals, as applicable. The appointed date for the proposed scheme is October 1, 2024,

27. Other Regulatory Information

i.  The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any Benami property.

ii.  The Company does not have any transactions or relationships with any companies struck off under Section 248 of
the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956,

iii. ~ The Company does not have any charpes or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies
beyond the statutory period.

iv.  The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year ended
March 31, 2025.

v.  The Company has not advanced or given loan or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever hy or on
behall of the company (Uliimate Beneliciaries) or
{b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vi.  The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) dircetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneliciaries) or
(b} Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vii.  The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts thal has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tux assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such
as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

wiii,




YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

ATEME AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDE ARCH, 2025
(AIl Amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

28. Schedule to the Balance Sheet as required in terms of the Master Directions - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking
Financial Companies - Scale Based Regulations),2023 is lumnished vide Annexure - I antached herewith

29. Previous year's figures

Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary (o correspond with the current year's
classification / disclosure. The company has compiled the above accounts based on the revised/Modified schedule 111
applicable for the accounting period 2024-2025. The disclosure requirements are made in the notcs 1o accounts or by way of
additional statements. The other disclosures as required by the Companies Act are made in the notes L accounts.

SIGNATURE TONOTES 1 TO 29

As per aur report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S| Uteastons \WPEIRRESERS

Sobhit Chhawchharia Neha Chhawchharia
(Director) (Director)
DIN ; 02926948 DIN : 02182603

For SHYAMSUKHA AMIT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountanis
ICAI Firm Registeation No: 324516E

iy Ly am o

(CA. Amit Shyalnnkhl] g"—f
Partner

Membership No. 058596

UDIN : AS0SRSOLAMLBEKLTT
Place : Kolkata

Dated : 3™ pay OF JuE 2015
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(AN Amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Sehedule to the Balance Sheet of Non-Depasit Taking Non-Hanking Financial Company (os required in terms of Reserve Bank of India (Nos-Banking Financial

Compan

y-Scale Based Regulstion) Directions. 2023)

Serial
N

T in Lakhs

Particulars

Amgunt Dutstanding

[Amount Overdue

LIARIL

ATIES SIDE

Loans and Advances avmled by NBFC mclusive of Intcrest Accrued thereon but not paid
(8) Debentares
= Secured
- Unsecured
{Onther tham falling within the meaning of public deposits®)
(b} Deferred Credits
{¢) Term Loans
(d) Inter-corporate Loans and bormowings
() Commercial Paper
() Public Depoait
(g} Ouher Loans (Specify nature)

Break-up of (1 X1 above (Outsianding public deposits inclusive of interest seerved therson but not
(a) o the form of unsecured debentures
it}

In the form of secured debentures 1o debentures where there 1ca shortfall 1 value of security

(e} Other public deposits

ASSETS SIDE

3

Break-up of Loans and Advances including Bills receivables (other than thase included in (4] below)
(a) Secured
(b) Unsecured

8,191 30

Brenk-up of Lemsed Assets and stock on hire and hypothecation loans counting towands TLAHF scuvilics

(8} Leuse sxsets inchacing lease rentals under sundry dibiors
a) Fizancial lense
i) Operating |ease

) Stock on hire meloding hire churges under sundry deblors
(i) Assete on hire
] Repossessed nsets

{iti} Hypothecation loans counting lowards EL/HP activities
] |oans where assets have been repossessad

{h) lomns other than (a) above

Hreak-up of lnvestments
Lurrgnl Investments®
I CQuoted
(v} Shares
(0) Equity
ih) Preference
() Debentures and Bonds
(i)  Units of mutwal funds
(v} Governmeni Securities
(v} (thers (plense specily)

2 Unguoted
(1} Shnres

(i)  Debentures and Boads
i) Umits of mutunl funds

(iv)  Governmeni Secuntics
(v)  Crhers (plexse spealy)

* Lieid as Stock in Trade
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YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

(AN Amounts are in INR lakhs, anless otherwise stated)

ST i 8 N

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of Noo-Deposit Taking Non-Banking Financial Company (as required in terms of Reserve Bank of Indin (Mon-Banking Financial Company-
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023)

iy Exposures:
1) Exposure to real estale sector
SL | particulars Curreat Year | Previous Year
N,
i) |Residentinl Mortgages T =
i) |Commercial Real Estate - -
1) Exposure to capital market
:L Particulars Current Year Previous Year
il
1) | Direct investment in cquity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debenures and units of equity onented mutual funds the . 42308
corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt
n) | Al Exposure to Alternative Investment Funds
Category . -
Category |1 . -
Category 11 255.00 255.00
Total exposure 1o capital market 25300 3,680.05
})  Sectoral exposure
S1 Current Year Previous Year
No.
Total  Exposure Percentage  |Total  Exposure Percentage
{includes un | Gross ol Gross {imcludes L P ol Gross
Particulars balance sheet and | NFAs NPAs to halance sheet and NPAs NPAs to
off-balance (Rs. total ofl-balanee (Rs. Lakhs) total
sheet exposure) | Lakhs) exposare in  |sheet exposure) expasre in
{Rs. Lakhs) that seetor |(Rs. Lakhs) thut sector
11 |Agriculiure and Allied Activities B - - - - .
2) |Industry
=Miero and Small - = = = - 5
Mediom * . = . - 3
-Large - - - - - -
1y |Services
i) Real-Estale Loans 49755 - - 40.20 . -
ii) Mot Banking Financial Companies 5,900.00 . = . . -
1ii) All other services 1,689 24 - - . < .
Totul of services K.086.79 - - 40.20 -
4) |Personnl Loans - . - 5 .
5) |Others 104 .61 - - 54749 -
4)  Intra-group exposures
- b dvus Year
Sk Particulars Currenl Year Previous Yes
il
6,520.00 s
1) | Total amount of intra-group exposures ﬂ,im o :
2} |Total amount af 1op 20 intre-group exposurcs x 5
3} |Percentage of intra-group exposures 10 total exposure of the NBFC on borrowcrs/customers - =i |}
%)  Unhedged forcign currency exposure

The company docs not hive foreign curmency <Xposure
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YADUKA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

ANNEXURE - 1

NO J FINAN o]

IMENTS (REFER NOTE NO. 28

(All Amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Schedule to the Balance Sheel of Non-Deposit Tuking Non-Banking Financial Company (as required in terms of Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking

Financial Company-Scale Based Regulation) Directions,2023)

(ii) Related Party Disclosure

Reluted Party
Directors Relatives of Directlors
Ttems
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Balunce Balance Balance Balance
For the year |Outstanding |For the year |Outstanding |For the year |Outstanding |For the vear |Outstanding
ended March|during the  |ended March |during the  |ended March |during the  |ended March |during the
31, 2015 year 31,2024 year 31, 20258 vear 31,2024 year
Borrowings - = - = x =
Trade Pavable
Loan Given - - - - r :
Advances - - - = a -
Investments - 2 -
Trade Receivable - - 3 - = = =
Interest Paid - - - - = = 5
Interest Received - - -
Others - - - B - = :
Total - = - - < "5 = a
Related Party
KMPp Others
Items
Current Year Previous Year Clurrent Year Previous Year
Balance Balance Balance Balance
For the year |Outstanding |For the year |Outstanding |For the year |Outstanding |For the year Outstanding
¢nded March |during the  |ended March |during the  |ended March |during the  |ended March |during the
31,2025 year 31, 2024 year 31, 2025 year 31, 2024 year
Borrowings - = = - - -
Salary Payable = = = s .
Loan Given - - - - 39.205.00 f,520.00 105.00 -
Advances - - B - - =
Security Deposit Given 3 = =
Interest Paid - - - - 58 24 - . C
Interest Received - - - 437.76 248.18
Salary, Bonus & Allowances - - 11-59 - ‘
I::,I::‘: - = B . 39.762.59 | 6,520.00 353.18 2
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ANNEXURE -1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL MENT N k
(Al Amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stnted)

Schedule 10 the Balance Sheet of Noo-Deposit Taking Non-Banking Financial Company (8 required in terms of Reserve Dank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company-
Scale Based Regulation) Directions,2023)

{iii) Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers

:t' Particulars E:‘::Er“' Pr{::::;“”
17 [Mumber of complaints pending st beginning of the year Mil Nil
2} |Number of complaimts received during the year Nil Nil
3 |Number of complaints disposed during the year Nil Mil

3.1) Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC Nil Nil
4)  [Mumber of complaints pending at the end of the year Wil Nil

5) [Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman
5.1)Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman Nil Nil
5.2) OF 5, number of complaints resobved through conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of Cmbudsman

5,3) Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsmun against the NBFC

6)  [Mumber of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those appealed)

1.0an to Directors, Senior Officers, and relatives of Directors

Curremt Previous
Particulars Year Year
Diirectors and their religives & &
Entities nssociated with directors and their relatives =
Senior OfFicers and their relatives - e
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